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Financial Highlights

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands except per share amounts) | 2007 2006 2005
Revenues: W

North America contract operations | $ 551,140 @ $ 384,292 $ 351,128
International contract operations ! 336,307 263,228 232,587
Aftermarket services 274,489 179,043 152,456
Fabrication : 1,378,049 766,758 568,140
Total Revenues | 2,540,485 1,593,321 1,304,311
Grass margin® ; 822 309 546,784 464,659
EBITDA, as adjusted™® | 621,139 419,829 317,492
Net income (loss)® 34,569 86,523 (38,017)
Net ncome (loss) per share — diluted | 0.75 2.51 (1.28)
Total assets - 6,863,523 3,070,889 2,862,996
Total debt 2,333,924 1,369,931 1,478,948
Common stockholders” equity © 3,162,260 1,014,282 909,782
Fabrication backlog © 1,109,500 807,600 373,100
Reconciliation of GAAP to Non-GAAP Information Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands} 2007 2006 2005
Income (loss} from continuing operations'? $ 34,509 § 85,722 $(37,148)
Add:

Depreciation and amortization 252,716 175,927 172,649
Fleet impairment 61,945 — _
Impairment of investment in non-consolidated affiliates 6,743 — —
Interest expense 130,092 123,496 146,959
Debt extinguishment costs 70,150 5.902 7318
Merger und integration expenses 46,723 — -_
Minority interest 6,307 — —
Provision for income taxes 11,894 28,782 27,714
EBITDA, as adjusted™ 621,139 419,829 317,492
Selling, general and administrative 265,057 167,282 176,831
Equity in (income) loss of non-consolidated affiliates (12,498) (19,430} (21,466)
Less: impairment of invesiment in non-consolidated affiliates (6,743) — —
Other (income) expense (44,646) (50,897} (8,198)
Gross margin®™ $822, 300 $540,784 $464,659

(1) EBITDA, as adjusted, 3 non-GAAP measure, is defined as income from continuing operations plus income taxes, interest expense (ncluding
debt extinguishment costs and gain or loss on termination of interest rate swaps), depreciation and amortization expense, impairment
charges, merger and integration expenses, minority interest, excluding non-recurring itenss, and extraordinary gains or losses, Gross
margin, 2 non-GAAP measure, is defined as total revenue less cost of sales (excluding depreciation and amontization expense).
Management believes disclosure of EBITDA, as adjusted, and gross margin provide useful information to investors because, when viewed
with our GAAP results and accompanying reconciliations, they provide a more complete understanding of our performance than GAAP
results alone. Management uses EBITDA, us adjusted, and gross margin as supplemental measures to review cuarrent period operating
performance, comparability measures and performance measures for period-to-period comparisons. In addition, EBITDA, as adjusted,

is used by management as a valuation measure.

(2) Income (loss) from continuing operations differs from net income (loss), as income (loss) from continuing operations excludes income from
discontinued operations and the cumulative effect of accounting changes, both net of tax, which are included in net income (loss).

Extercan Holdings 2007 Annual Report
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To Our Stockholders

A New Organization. A Proud Legacy.

For the employees of Hanover Compressor Company and Universal Compression

Holdings, Inc., 2007 was a year of intense activity. We finalized merger discussions

in February and began working in cross-company teams in May to prepare for

integration. Meanwhile, both companies continued serving their customers and
building on their successes. The companies came together officially—as Exterran

Holdings, Inc.—on August 20, 2007,

The merger included Universal's master limited parinership subsidiary that
was renamed Exterran Partners, L.P. (EXLP)., We believe this structure provides

us a fower cost of capital for cur U.S. contract compression operations. Both

companies had strong business positions in North America and in Latin America.

Hanover was well-established in the Middle East and Europe; Universal was strong

in Asia Pacific. Both companies had an established compression market, and

Hanover was successfully growing its production and processing lines.

Merging these two leading companies to form Exterran created an enhanced
market leadership position and expanded our international platform for growth.

* Exterran now has a team of over 10,000 employees operating in over 30 countries.

» We are a leader in contract compression, utilizing our fleet of almost six miilion
horsepower.

= We have a growing production and processing equipment business and plan to
invest to expand that business at attractive returns.

e We have a strong third-party sales business, represented by a fabrication backlog
of $1.1 hillion at December 31, 2007, encompassing all our different products.

¢ The merger increased the available amount of
Exterran compression horsepower in the United
States that can be contributed to EXLP.

s We are well on our way to achieving the expected
$50 million in operational and back-office cost
savings from merger-related synergies.

* We expect to realize an additional $25 million in
annual interest savings from the refinancing of most
of our debt after the completion of the merger.

We believe that our customers are Jbenefiting from
this merger as well. We are working on improving

our operating efficiencies and service levels as well

as offering a deeper array of experienced and skilled

employvees and a broader product and service offering.

Exterran Holdings has a 51% ownership interest,

The Reinecke Station in Big
Spring, Texas, is a contract
compression station that
provides approximately
10,000 horsepower to the
West Texas fiefd.

Page 2

including all of the general partner interest, in EXLP.
At December 31, 2007, EXLP had approximately
723,000 horsepower, or about 16% of the combined U.S. compressor fleet of
Exterran and EXLP. We believe this fleet provides organic growth potential o
EXLP as demand for compression in the U.S. is expected to rise.

We expect Exterran will continue to benefit from its ownership of EXLP limited
partner and general partner units. We plan to offer to sell the balance of our U.S.
contract compression fleet over time to EXLP. In addition, we expect the capital
received from any future sales to EXLP will be available to be reinvested in

Exterran Holdings 2007 Annua! Report




high-return growth opportunities and stock repurchases. EXLP's growth prospects
are enhanced by this strategy in addition to its organic growth and third-party
acquisition opportunities.

While the merger itself makes us a premier provider of compression services
and production and processing services, our vision is clear: to be the
leading global provider of oil and gas infrastructure and surface pro-
duction solutions. With a clear strategy and strong market conditions,
we believe we're on our way.

Review of 2007. A Strong Year.

Even while completing merger activities, our dedicated employees
continued to grow our business, meeting expanding customer
requirements all over the world.

Exterran’s financial performance was improved in 2007 due to
the success of our growth strategies and continuing healthy market
conditions. Revenue was $2,540.5 million, and EBITDA, as adjusted,
was $621.1 million. Net income was $34.6 million, or $0.75 per share,
including pre-tax charges related to merger integration and refinanc-
ing activities and asset impairments that totaled $192.5 million, or
approximately $2.55 per share. Although the combination of Hanover
and Universal was a merger of equals, Hanover was deemed the
acquirer for accounting purposes, and as a result, our pre-merger finan-
cial statements reflect only Hanover's financial results and position.

We refinanced a substantial portion of Exterran Holdings’ debt
upon completion of the merger, lowering our ongoing interest
expenses and providing enhanced flexibility to pursue our drop- P — - .
down strategy with EXLP. Total debt increased to $2.3 billion from Gordon T. Hall Stephen A. Snider
$1.4 billion at December 31, 2006 from the combination of the Chairman of the Board ﬁ;ﬁ;}dzzzgﬁie Officer
two predecessor companies. Our debt-to-capital ratio decreased to
42.5% as compared to 57.5% at December 31, 2006. We repurchased approximately
$100 million of our common stock during 2007 under a stock buyback program
established upon completion of the merger in August 2007.

EXLP achieved outstanding financial results in its first full year of operations,
highlighted by strong activity levels, an acquisition from Exterran Holdings in July,
and two increases in its cash distribution. EXLP reported revenue of $107.7 million
and net income of $19.4 million in 2007. In February 2008, EXLP paid a cash
distribution of $0.425 per limited partner unit with respect to the fourth quarter of
2007, which is an increase of 21.4% as compared to a cash distribution of $0.35 per
limited partner Jnit for the first quarter of 2007,

A Structure That Works. A Clear Strategy.

Our organization offers multiple products and services through our well-positioned
business units. In our contract operations business, we provide services under term
contracts utilizing our fleet of equipment and backed by our field operations and
support teams. We have established contract compression operations in North
America and Latin America and a relatively small but fast-growing presence in the
Eastern Hemisphere. Our fabrication segment designs, fabricates, installs and sells
equipment directly for customers, and cur aftermarket services segment offers oper-
ational services and parts sales for customer-owned equipment. We are optimistic
about future contract operations investment opportunities, including those in our
bundled Total Solutions offerings.

Exterran Holdings 2007 Annual Report Page 3



In North America, our largest market, our operations consist of contract
compression services, utilizing our fleet of 4.5 million horsepower, compressor
sales, production and processing equipment sales and aftermarket services. We
have significant North American fabrication facilities, which supply equipment
for our contract operations as well as for third-party sales.

Most of the operating cost savings from the merger are expected to come
from our North America business; prior to the merger, Hanover and Universal
each maintained field offices and operations in the same general areas. The
two separate ERP systemns for U.S. field operations were converted into one
system in early 2008. We are now positioned to capture the balance of
expected U.S. operational savings related to the merger.

Development of shale and other unconventional gas resources continues
to be particularly active in North American markets. These often low-pressure
reservoirs require more compression than production from conventional
sources, and this is good for our business.

We are not without challenges. In our North America contract compression
operations, strong demand for larger horsepower applications has been offset by
weakness in the smaller horsepower segments. Despite near-term challenges,
we believe we are making progress in our North American operations. We have
finalized and stabilized our field operations as a result of the merger, and we
are implementing our-Service Excellence program to ensure a consistent, high-
quality service delivery system throughout the combined new organization.

With our efficient service platform, experienced workforce and solid cus-
Qur fabrication operations in tomer relationships, we believe no other company can provide better service
North America supply equip- throughout the region. We also believe the U.S. market is still healthy and growing,
ment to markets in the . .

United States, Canada and and we expect to continue to add to our fleet during 2008.

around the world, Worldwide markets are very active as investment in oil and gas infrastructure
continues to increase, We are actively participating in international markets through
our established operations in Latin America from Mexico to Argentina, and through
our growing presence in the Eastern Hemisphere, including Europe, Russia, China,
the Middle East, Africa and Asia Pacific. Currently, we are actively pursuing a
greater number of opportunities in Latin America and the Eastern Hemisphere
than we have seen in the past, and we are enthusiastic about the opportunities
for Total Solutions contract operations projects.

Latin America is a2 maturing contract compression market. Our compression
fleet in this region totals approximately 1.3 million horsepower, and we continue
10 see strong growth prospects in production and processing. Latin America has
followed the compression outsourcing model for many years and the coupling of
production and processing with more traditional compression services seems a
natural progression that offers value to our clients.

Business in Latin America continues to grow. We are excited about the increas-
ing number of infrastructure projects that are being discussed, and we continue to
believe we will add more projects to our backlog during 2008.

Eastern Hemisphere is a significant growth market for Exterran. Our business
in the Eastern Hemisphere currently centers on sales of Total Solutions projects
throughout the region as well as on our Belleli Energy operations. We maintain
fabrication facilities in Dubai, Singapore, Mantova, Italy, and Aldridge, UK.

Page 4 Exterran Holdings 2007 Annual Report




The build-out of natural gas infrastructure throughout the Eastern Hemisphere
continues to provide us with significant opportunities for our products and services,
and we continue to see strong fabrication demand. Our compression fleet currently
totals approximately 140,000 horsepower in the region, and our intention is to sig-
nificantly increase the amount of contract operations in this key energy market.

Our Belleli Energy operations produce critical process equipment for refineries
and petrochemical facilities, as well as design and build tank farms and compo-
nents for desalination plants. Reflective of continuing strong demand for our
products and services, this operation recently
received a $55 million order to supply highly
engineered equipment for a syngas clean coal
power plant in the United States and a $230 mil-
lion contract to supply nine refinery reactors to
a customer in Kuwait,

Total Solutions

Our extensive product lines and service plat-
form and proven success in bundling these
offerings together have developed into what we
refer to as Total Solutions, an area where we
expect significant growth over the next several
years. We believe our ability to deliver Total
Solutions will allow us to continue to capture
many of the growing opportunities to supply
energy infrastructure throughout the world.

We have been awarded several Total Solutions
projects since the merger was completed and
continue (o see significant demand for such projects in many areas of the world.

A tank farm under construc-
tion on the coast of Dubai is

We expect that, over time, a greater portion of our Total Solutions projects will an important part of Exterran’s
convert 1o long-term contract operations relationships. This process will take some growing product and services
time, as our strategy in new regions is to sell fabricated projects first, follow up portfolio. The tank farm is part

of @ major complex on the

with aftermarket service work and then, over time, add contract operations. Interest X
Straits of Hormuz.

in Total Solutions contract operations is strongest in international markets where
we have been active historically.

Our Strategy

Building on the strong foundation provided by the merger, we are confident we

can create value through our vision by executing clear strategies:

» Enhance service delivery and operating cfficiency of our core operations,

+ Continue to grow the U.S. contract operations market and- eventually offer EXLP
the opportunity to purchase the remainder of this business,

* Use a large portion of the proceeds from anticipated sale of our U.S. contract
operations business to EXLP to finance the expansion of our international
businesses, and

* Continue to expand our product offerings and to provide integrated Total
Solutions for our customers’ oil and gas production and processing needs.

Bxerran Holdings 2007 Annual Repart Page 5




Safety is a top priority at
Exterran. Exterran employees
worldwide are committed

to maintaining a safe work
environment.

Page B

Our 2008 Qutlook. A Bright Future.

We are optimistic about the prospects for our business. The merger
has provided us with greater strength and an enhanced market
position. During 2008, we plan to continue to build our interna-
tional infrastructure. We expect to leverage our manufacturing
capabilities on a global scale, expand our geographic coverage
and enhance the capabilities and scope of our Eastern Hemisphere
business, headquartered in Dubai. We also expect to enhance our
profitability by meeting or exceeding our merger synergy targets.

Qur industry is opportunity-rich, We have a strong fabrication
backlog for sales of both compression and production and process-
ing equipment. We expect to continue to grow our worldwide
contract operations business, and are optimistic about investment
opportunities in this area. These factors, combined with the positive
global fundamenals we see for natural gas and crude oil infrastruc-
ture development, contribute to our expectation for continuing
overall growth for Exterran.

Cur employees have responded positively to the merger. They
are excited about our new vision and the enhanced career opportu-
nities created by the merger. And they are already working hard
to achieve our goals. Exterran customers have also voiced their
approval of our service initiatives, our commitment to maintaining
a safe working environment and expanded global infrastructure.

We apprecitte the continuing support of our stockholders,
customers, suppliers and employees. 2008 is shaping up to be
an exciting year for Exterran!

Respectfully,

T ﬁé)‘(Z—-

Gordon T. Hall Stephen A. Snider

Chairman of the Board President and Chief Executive Officer

Exterran Holdings 2007 Annua! Report
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PART I
DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains “forward-looking statements” intended to qualify for the safe harbors from liability
established by the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements other than statements of
historical fact contained in this report are forward-locking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, including, without limitation, statements regarding our
business growth strategy and projected costs; future financial position; the sufficiency of available cash flows
to fund continuing operations; the expected amount of our capital expenditures; anticipated cost savings, future
revenue, gross margin and other financial or operational measures related to our business and our primary
business segments; the future value of our equipment; and plans and objectives of our management for our
future operations. You can identify many of these statements by looking for words such as “believes,”

“expects,” “intends,” “projects,” “anticipates,” “estimates” or similar words or the negative thereof.

LLINYY LLIETY LI

Such forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results
to differ materially from those anticipated as of the date of this report. Although we believe that the
expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, no assurance
can be given that these expectations will prove to be correct.

These forward-looking statements are also affected by the risk factors described below in Part I, Item 1A.
“Risk Factors,” and those set forth from time to time in our filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”), which are available through our website at www.exterran.com and through the SEC’s
Electronic Data Gathering and Retrieval System (“EDGAR™) at www.sec.gov. Important factors that could
cause our actual results to differ materially from the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements
include, among other things:

» conditions in the oil and natural gas industry, including a sustained decrease in the level of supply or
demand for natural gas and the impact on the price of oil and natural gas, which could cause a decline
in the demand for our compression, production and processing equipment and services;

+ reduced profit margins or the loss of market share resulting from competition or the introduction of
competing technologies by other companies;

* the success of our subsidiaries, including Exterran Partners, L.P;

* our inability to realize the anticipated benefits from the merger of Hanover Compressor Company and
Universal Compression Holdings, Inc.;

* changes in economic or political conditions in the countries in which we do business, including civil
uprisings, riots, terrorism, kidnappings, the taking of property without fair compensation and legislative
changes;

» changes in currency exchange rates;

* the inherent risks associated with our operations, such as equipment defects, malfunctions and natural
disasters;

* our ability to timely and cost-effectively obtain components necessary to conduct our business;
 employment workforce factors, including our ability to hire, train and retain key employees;
* our inability to implement certain business and financial objectives, such as:

* international expansion; .

+ sale of additional U.S. contract operations contracts and assets to Exterran Partners, L.P;

« timely and cost-effective execution of integrated projects;

« integrating acquired businesses;



» generating sufficient cash; and
* accessing the capital markets;
* liability related to the use of our products and services; |

* changes in governmental safety, health, environmental and other regulations, which could require us to
make significant expenditures; and

» our level of indebtedness and ability to fund our business.

All forward-looking statements included in this report are based on information available to us on the date of
this report. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-
looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. All subsequent written
and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified
in their entirety by the cautionary statements contained throughout this report.

Item 1. Business

We were incorporated on February 2, 2007 as Iliad Holdiﬂgs, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Universal
Compression Holdings, Inc. (“Universal™), and thereafter changed our name to Exterran Holdings, Inc, On
August 20, 2007, in accordance with their previously announced merger agreement, Universal and Hanover
Compressor Company (“Hanover”) merged into our wholly-owned subsidiaries. As a result of the merger, we
became the parent entity of Universal and Hanover. Hanover was determined to be the acquirer for accounting
purposes and, therefore, our financial statements reflect Hanover’s historical results for periods prior to the
merger date. We have included the financial results of Universal’s operations in our financial statements
beginning August 20, 2007. As a result of the merger between Hanover and Universal, each outstanding share
of common stock of Universal was converted into one share of Exterran comimon stock and each outstanding
share of Hanover common stock was converted into 0.325 shares of Exterran common stock. All share and per
share amounts in this report have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the conversion ratio of Hanover
common stock for all periods presented.

M i,

References to “our,” “we” and “us” when used in this report refer to Hanover and its subsidiaries for periods

prior to the merger date and to Exterran Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Exterran™) for periods on or after

the merger date. References lo “North America” when used in this report refer to the United States of America
(“U.5.”} and Canada. References to “International” and variations thereof when used in this report refer to the

world excluding Nerth America. For more information regarding the merger, see Note 2 to the Consolidated '
Financial Statements included in Part IV, Item 15 (“Financial Statements™) of this report.

General

We are a global market leader in the full service natural gas compression business and a premier provider of
operations, maintenance, service and equipment for oil and natural gas production, processing and transporta-
tion applications. We operate in three primary business-lines: contract operations, fabrication and aftermarket
services. In our contract operations business line, we own a fleet of natural gas compression and crude oil and
natural gas production processing equipment that we ufilize to provide outsourcing services to our customers.
In our fabrication business line, we fabricate and sell equipment that is similar to the equipment that we own
and utilize to provide contract operations to our customers. Also within our fabrication business line, we build
equipment for our contract operations fleet. In our aftermarket services line of business, we sell parts and
components and provide operations, maintenance, overhaul and reconfiguration services to customers who own
compression, production, gas treating and oilfield power generation equipment or use equipment provided by
companies other than us. In addition, we provide power generation services as a complement to our services,
In what we call “Total Solutions” projects, we provide the engineering design, project management,
procurement and construction services necessary to consolidate some or all of our products into complete
production and processing facilities. In addition, we manufacture critical process equipment utilized in oil
refineries, petrochemical plants and gas-to-liquids plants. Finally, we provide engineering, procurement and
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construction services for tank farms for crude oil and other liquids storage, as well as evaporators and brine
heaters for desalination plants.

Subsequent to the merger between Hanover and Universal, we evaluated our management process for
analyzing the performance of our operations. We have changed our segment reporting in accordance with

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles in order to enable investors to view our operations in a manner
similar to the way management does. Our Fabrication segment previously reported three product lines:
Compressor and Accessory Fabrication, Production and Processing Fabrication — Surface Equipment and
Production and Processing Fabrication — Belleli. We also renamed three of our segments as follows: .
U.S. Rentals is now referred to.as North America Contract Operations; International Rentals is now referred to
as International Contract Operations; and Parts, Service and Used Equipment is now referred to as Aftermarket
Services. North America Contract Operations includes U.S. and Canada contract operations. The changes in
our reportable segments, including the reclassification on the consolidated statements of operations of the
related revenues and cests of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization), have been made to all periods
presented within this report.

In addition, we reclassified our used equipment sales to report these transactions within other income and
expense and reclassified installation sales from Aftermarket Services to our Fabrication segment. Additionally,
we reclassified our supply chain department to include it as part of cost of sales rather than a component of
selling, general and administrative expense. We have made these reclassifications to all periods presented
within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We operated a fleet of 11,676 natural gas compression units in North America having an aggregate capacity of
approximately 4,514,000 horsepower at December 31, 2007. In addition, we operated 1,271 of our units
internationally with an aggregate capacity of approximately 1,447,000 horsepower at December 31, 2007. As
of December 31, 2007, approximately 76% of our natural gas compression horsepower was located in North
America.

Our products and services are essential to the production, processing, trahsponation and storage of natural gas
and are provided primarily to energy producers and distributors of oil and natural gas. Our geographic business
unit operating structure, technically experienced personnel and high-quality contract operations fleet allow us
to provide reliable and timely customer service.

As a result of the merger, we became the indirect majority owner of Exterran Partners, L.P. {(along with its
subsidiaries, the “Partnership”). The Partnership is a master limited partnership that was formed to provide
natural gas contract operations services to customers throughout the U.S. In October 2006, the Partnership
completed its initial public offering, as a result of which the common units owned by the public represented a
49% limited partner ownership interest in the Partnership and Universal owned the remaining equity interest in
the Partnership.

The general partner of the Partnership is our subsidiary and we consolidate the financial position and results of
operations of the Partnership. It is our intention for the Partnership to be our primary growth vehicle for our
U.S. contract operations business and for us to continue to contribute U.S. contract operations customer
contracts and assets to the Partnership over time in exchange for cash and additional interests in the
Partnership. As of December 31, 2007, the Partnership had a fleet of approximately 1,720 compressor units
comprising approximately 723,000 horsepower, or 16% (by available horsepower) of our and the Partnership’s
combined total U.S. horsepower. For more information regarding the Partnership, see Note 2 to the Financial
Statements.

On August 20, 2007, in connection with the merger, we completed a refinancing of much of the outstanding
debt of Hanover and Universal by entering into two new debt facilities. We entered into a $1.65 billion senior
secured credit facility, consisting of an $850 million five-year revolving line of credit and an $800 million six-
year term loan, with a syndicate of financial institutions, as well as a $1.0 billion asset-backed securitization
facility. As a result of these new debt facilities, substantially all of the debt of Universal and Hanover that
existed on the merger date has been replaced, other than Hanover's convertible debt securities and the credit
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facility of the Partnership. For more information regarding the refinancing, including a summary of the debt
extinguishment charges, see Note 11 to the Financial Statements.

Industry Overview
Natural Gas Compression

Natyral gas compression is a mechanical process whereby the pressure of a given volume of natural gas is
increased to a desired higher pressure for transportation from one point to another; compression is essential to
the production and transportation of natural gas. Compression is typically required several times during the
natural gas production and transportation cycle, including: (1) at the wellhead; (2) throughout gathering and
distribution systems; (3) into and out of processing and storage facilities; and (4) along intrastate and interstate
pipelines.

* Wellhead and Gathering Systems — Natural gas compression that is used to transport natural gas from
the wellhead through the gathering system is considered “field compression.” Compression at the
wellhead is utilized because, at some point during the life of natural gas wells, reservoir pressures
typically fall below the line pressure of the natural gas gathering or pipeline system used to transport
the natural gas to market. At that point, natural gas no longer naturally flows into the pipeline.
Compression equipment is applied in both field and gathering systems to boost the pressure levels of
the natural gas flowing from the well allowing it to be transported to market, Changes .in pressure levels
in natural gas fields require periodic changes to the size and/or type of on-site compression equipment.
Additionally, compression is used to reinject natural gas into producing oil wells to maintain reservoir
pressure and help lift liquids to the surface, which is known as secondary oil recovery or natural gas lift
operations. Typically, these applications require, low- to mid-range horsepower compression equipment
located at or near the wellhead. Compression equipment is also used to increase the efficiency of a low-
capacity natural gas field by providing a central compression point from which the natural gas can be
produced and injected into a pipeline for transmission to facilities for further processing. In an effort to
reduce costs for wellhead operators, operators of gathering systems tend to keep the pressure of the
gathering systems low. As a result, more pressure, and therefore, more compression is often needed to
force the natural gas from the low pressure gathering systems into the higher pressure pipelines that
transport large volumes of natural gas over long distances to end-users.

* Pipeline Transportation Systems — Natural gas compression that is used during the transportation of
natural gas from the gathering systems to storage or the end user is referred to as “pipeline
compression.”” Natural gas transported through a pipeline loses pressure over the length of the pipeline.
Compression is staged along the pipeline to increase capacity and boost pressure to overcome the
friction and hydrostatic losses inherent in normal operations. These pipeline applications generally
require larger horsepower compression equipment (1,000 horsepower and higher).

* Storage Facilities — Natural gas compression is used in natural gas storage projects for injection and
withdrawals during the normal operational cycles of these facilities.

* Processing Applications -— Compressors may also be used in combination with natural gas production
and processing equipment and to process natural gas into more marketable energy sources. In addition,
compression services are used for compression applications in refineries and petrochemical plants.

Natural gas producers, transporters and processors historically owned and maintained- most of the compression
equipment used in their operations. Over the past two decades, many producers, transporters and processors
have increasingly outsourced their compression services due to the benefits and flexibility of contract
compression. Changing weli and pipeliné pressures and conditions over the life of a well often require
producers to reconfigure or replace their compressor units to optimize the well production or gathering system
cfficiency.




We believe outsourcing compression operations to compression service providers such as us offers customers:

» the ability to efficiently meet their changing compression needs over time while limiting the
underutilization of their existing compression equipment;

» access to the compression service provider’s specialized personnel and technical skiils, including
engineers and field service and maintenance employees, which generally leads to improved production
rates and/or increased throughput;

» the ability to increase their profitability by transporting or preducing a higher volume of natural gas
through decreased compression downtime and reduced operating, maintenance and equipment costs by
allowing the compression service provider to efficiently manage their compression needs; and

* the flexibility to deploy their capital on projects more directly related to their primary business by
reducing their compression equipment and maintenance capital requirements.

The international compression market is comprised primarily of large horsepower compressors. A significant
portion of this market involves comprehensive installation projects, which include the design, fabrication,
delivery, installation, operation and maintenance of compressors and related natural gas treatment and
processing equipment by the contract operations service provider.

Production and Processing Equipment

Crude oil and natural gas are generally not marketable as produced at the wellhead and must be processed or
treated before they can be transported to market. Production and processing equipment is used to separate and
treat oil and natural gas as it is produced to achieve a marketable quality of product. Production processing
typically involves the separation of oil and natural gas and the removal of contaminants. The end result is
“pipeline” or “‘sales” quality oil and natural gas. Further processing or refining is almost always required
before oil or natural gas is suitable for use as fuel or feedstock for petrochemical preduction. Production
processing normally takes place in the “upstream” and “midstream”™ markets, while refining and petrochemical
processing is referred to as the “downstream” market. Wellhead or upstream production and processing
equipment includes a wide and diverse range of products.

The standard production and processing equipment market tends to be somewhat commoditized, with sales
following general industry trends. Equipment can be built for inventory based on historical product mix and
predicted industry activity. The custom equipment market is driven by global economic and political trends,
and the type of equipment that is purchased can vary significantly. Technology, engineering capabilities,
project management and quality control standards are the key drivers in the custom equipment market.

Market Conditions

We believe that the fundamental force driving the demand for natural gas compression and production and
processing equipment is the growing global consumption of natural gas and its byproducts. As more natural
gas is consumed, the demand for compression and production and processing equipment increases. In addition,
we expect the demand for natural gas and natural gas byproducts to continue to increase and result in
additional demand for compression and production and processing equipment and related services.

Although natural gas has historically been a more significant source of energy in the U.S. than in the rest of
the world, the U.S. Energy Information Administration (“EIA") reports that natural gas consumption outside of
North America grew over 40% from 1997 through 2006. Despite this growth in energy demand, most
international energy markets have historically lacked the infrastructure necessary to either transport natural gas
to markets or consume it locally; thus, natural gas historically has often been flared at the wellhead. Given
increasing worldwide demand, recent technology advances, including liquefied natural gas {or LNG) and gas-
to-liquids, which make the transportation of natural gas without pipelines more economical, environmental
legislation prohibiting flaring, and the construction of numerous natural gas-fueled power plants built to meet
international energy demand, we believe that demand for natural gas infrastructure, including demand for the
products and services we offer, in international markets is experiencing growth.
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While natural gas compression and production and processing equipment typically must be engineered to high
specifications to meet unique customer specifications, the fundamental technology of such equipment has not
been subject to significant change.

Natural gas consumption in the U.S. for the eleven months ended November 30, 2007 increased by
approximately 6% over the eleven months ended November 30, 2006 and is expected to increase by 0.7% per
year until 2030, according to the EIA. We believe the outlook for natural gas compression in the U.S. will
continue to benefit from aging producing naturat gas fields that will require more compression to continue
producing the same volume of natural gas, and from increasing production from unconventional sources,
including coal beds, shales and tight sands, which generally require more compression than has been required
for production from conventional sources. Recently, the smaller horsepower segments of our compression fleet
have experienced some weakness due to shifts in market demands, including more demand for higher
horsepower compression.

Natural gas consumption in areas outside the U.S. is projected to increase by 2.9% per year until 2030,
according to the EIA. We believe this increase in consumption will positively impact the market for natural
gas compression in areas outside the U.S. as infrastructure will need to be built to accommodate such growth.
Additionally, we believe fabrication of production and processing equipment will need to increase over time to
support the infrastructure required to meet this increasing demand.

Operations
Business Segments
Our revenues and income are derived from four business segments:

* North America Contract Operations. Our North America Contract Operations segment primarily
provides natural gas compression and production and processing services to meet specific customer
requirements utilizing Exterran-owned assets within the U.S. and Canada.

* International Contract Operations.  Qur International Contract QOperations segment provides substan-
tially the same services as our North America Contract Operations segment except it services locations .
outside the U.S. and Canada.

» Aftermarket Services. Our Aftermarket Services segment provides a full range of services to support
the surface production and processing needs of customers and normal maintenance services to full
operation of a customer’s owned assets. Addittonally, within our Aftermarket Services segment, we sell
parts to customers who service their own equipment.

* Fabrication. Our fabrication segment involves the design, engineering, installation, fabrication and
sale of (i) natural gas compression units and accessories, (i) production and processing equipment to
meet standard or unique customer specifications and (iii) equipment used in the production, treating and
processing of crude oil and natural gas. Our fabrication segment also provides engineering, procurement
and construction services primarily related to the manufacturing of critical process equipment for
refinery and petrochemical facilities, the construction of tank farms and the construction of evaporators
and brine heaters for desalination plants.

For financial data relating to our business segments or geographic regions that accounted for 10% or more of
consolidated revenue in any of the last three fiscal years, see Part Il, Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and Note 21 to the Financial Statements,




Compressor Fleet

The size and horsepower of our compressor fleet on December 31, 2007 is summarized in the following table.

Number Aggregate % of
Range of Horsepower Per Unit of Units Horsepower  Horsepower
(In thousands, except percentage)
0=200 ... e 6,413 676 11.3%
] 1 2,752 851 14.2%
S01=800. . .. e e 1,000 619 10.4%
8B01-1,000 .. ... o [ 762 - 737 12.4%
LIOL=1,500 . . ... e 1,516 2,036 342%
L0 = 4,780 . . oo s 504 1,042 17.5%
TOMl + e e e e 12947 . 5961 100.0% |

Over the last several years, we have undertaken efforts to standardize our compressor fleets around major
components and key suppliers. The standardization of our fleet:

« enables us to minimize our fleet operating costs and maintenance capital requirements;
* enables us to reduce inventory costs;
+ facilitates low-cost compressor resizing; and

« allows us to develop improved technical proficiency in our maintenance and overhaul operations, which
enables us to achieve high run-time rates while maintaining low operating costs.

Contract Operations

We provide comprehensive contract operations services, which include our provision at the customer’s location
of our personnel, equipment, tools, materials and supplies necessary to provide the amount of natural gas
compression, production or processing service for which the customer has contracted. Based on the operating
specifications at the customer’s location and the customer’s unique compression needs, these services include
designing, sourcing, owning, installing, operating, servicing, repairing and maintaining equipment to provide
compression and other services to our customers. When providing contract compression services, we work
closely with a customer’s field service personnel so that the compression services can be adjusted to efficiently
match changing characteristics of the reservoir and the natural gas produced. We routinely repackage or
reconfigure a portion of our existing fleet to adapt to our customers’ compression services needs. We utilize
both slow and high speed reciprocating compressors driven either by internal combustion engines or electric
motors. We also utilize rotary screw compressors for specialized applications.

Our equipment is maintained in accordance with daily, weekly, monthly and annual maintenance schedules.
These maintenance procedures are updated as technology changes and as our operations group develops new
techniques and procedures. In addition, because our field technicians provide maintenance on our contract
operations equipment, they are familiar with the condition of our equipment and can readily identify potential
problems. In our experience, these maintenance procedures maximize equipment life and unit availability and
minimize avoidable downtime. Generally, each of our compressor units undergoes a major overhaul once every
three to six years, depending on the type and size of the compressor unit. A major overhaul involves the
rebuilding of the unit to materially extend its economic useful life or to enhance the unit’s ability to fulfill
broader or different contract compression applications. '

We also provide services similar to the contract compression services described above with respect to natural
gas production and processing equipment. Typically, these services involve some or all of the equipment that
we offer to our customers, including compression. We refer to the projects that combine more than one of our
services or products into a natural gas solution for our customers as “Total Solutions™ projects.
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We believe that our fabrication and aftermarket services businesses, described below, provide us with
opportunities to cross-sell our contract operations services.

We and our customers typically contract for our services on a site-by-site, basis. We have standard contract
operations contracts and fixed monthly rates, which may be modified through negotiations. At the end of the
initial term, contract operations setvices can continue on a month-to-month basis until terminated by either
party within 30 days advance notice. Our customers generally are required to pay our monthly fee even during
periods of limited or disrupted natural gas flows, which enhances the stability and predictability of our cash
flows. Additionally, because we do not take title to the natural gas we compress, process or treat and because
the natural gas we use as fuel for our compressors is supplied by our customers, we have limited direct
exposure to commodity price fluctuations. '

As of December 31, 2007, we operated a North American fleet of 11,676 compressor units comprising
approximately 4,514,000 horsepower. For the year ended December 31, 2007, 22% of our total revenue was
generated from North America contract operations,

We maintain field service locations in the natural gas producing regions of the U.S. and Canada from which
we can service and overhaul our own compressor fleet to provide contract operations services to our
customers. At many of these locations, we also provide aftermarket services to our customers, as described in '
more detail below.

As of December 31, 2007, we operated 1,271 compressor units comprising approximately 1,447,000
horsepower in international markets. For the year ended December 31, 2007, 13% of our total revenue was
generated from international contract operations.

Our international operations are focused on markets that require both large horsepower compressor applica-
tions and full production and processing facilities. The projects in our international contract operations
segment typically involve longer-term and more comprehensive service projects than our North America
projects. International projects often require us to provide complete engineering, design and installation
services and more investment in facilities and installation, and may involve larger amounts of horsepower.
These larger facilities can include several compressor units on one site or entire facilities designed to process
and treat natural gas to make it suitable for end use.

Aftermarket Services

Our aftermarket services segment sells parts and components and provides operation, maintenance, overhaul
and reconfiguration services to customers who own compression, production, treating and oilfield power
generation equipment or use equipment provided by other companies. We believe that we are particularly well
qualified to provide these services because our highly experienced operating personnel have access to the full
range of our compression services, production and processing equipment and oilfield power generation
equipment and facilities. For the year ended December 31, 2007, 11% of our total revenue was generated from
aftermarket services.

Fabrication
Compressor and Accessory Fabrication

We design, engineer, fabricate and sell skid-mounted natural gas compression units and accessories to meet
standard or unique customer specifications. We sell this compression equipment primarily to major and
independent oil and natural gas producers as well as national oil and natural gas companies in the countries in
which we operate. -

Generally, compressors sold to third parties are assembled according to each customer’s speciﬁc'ations. We

purchase components for these compressors from third party suppliers, many of which are original equipment
manufacturer representatives, including several major engine, compressor and electric motor manufacturers in
the industry. We also sell prepackaged compressor units designed to Exterran standard specifications. For the
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year ended December 31, 2007, 24% of our total revenue was generated from our compressor and accessory
fabrication business line.

As of December 31, 2007, we had a compressor and accessory fabrication backlog of $321.9 million,
compared to $325.1 million at December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2007, approximately $4.9 million of
future revenue related to our compressor and accessory fabrication backlog was expected to be recognized
after December 31, 2008.

Production and Processing Equipment Fabrication

We design, engineer, fabricate and sell a broad range of oil and natwral gas production and processing
equipment designed to heat, separate, dehydrate and condition crude oil and natural gas to make such products
suitable for end use. Qur products include line heaters, oil and natural gas separators, glycol dehydration units,
dewpoint control plants, water treatment, mechanical refrigeration and cryogenic plants and skid-mounted
production packages designed for both onshore and offshore production facilities, We sell “standard”
production and processing equipment primarily into U.S. markets, which is used for processing wellhead
production from onshore or shallow-water offshore platform production. In addition, we sell custom-
engineered, built-to-specification production and processing equipment, which typically consists of much
larger equipment packages than standard equipment, and is generally used in much larger scale production
operations. These large projects tend to be in remote areas, such as deepwater offshore sites and in developing
countries with limited oil and natural gas industry infrastructure. To meet most customers’ rapid response
requirements and minimize customer downtime, we maintain a strategic inventory of standard products and
long delivery components used to manufacture our customer specification products. We also provide engineer-
ing. procurement and construction services primarily related to the manufacturing of critical process equipment
for refinery and petrochemical facilities and construction of tank farms and evaporators and brine heaters for
desalination plants, primarily for use in Europe and the Middle East. For the year ended December 31, 2007,
30% of our total revenue was generated from our production and processing equipment fabrication business
line.

As of December 31, 2007, we had a production and processing equipment fabrication backlog of $787.6 mil-
lion, compared to $482.5 million at December 31, 2006. Typically, we expect our production and processing
equipinent backlog to be produced within a three to thirty-six month period. At December 31, 2007,
approximately $207.5 million of future revenue related to our production and processing equipment backlog
was expected to be recognized after December 31, 2008.

Business Strategy

We intend to continue to capitalize on our competitive strengths to meet our customers’ needs through the
following key strategies:

« Focus on core operations. 'We have built our leading market position through our strengths in
comprehensive contract operations, compressor, production and processing equipment fabrication and
aftermarket services. We are focusing our efforts on these businesses, improving our service delivery

.processes and streamlining operations in our core markets. We believe this focused approach will
enable us to enhance our growth prospects and stockholder returns. In addition, we are actively
pursuing improvements in our fleet utilization by prudently employing additional units and moving idle
North America units into service in international markets.

« Utilize the Partnership as our primary vehicle for the growth of our U.S. contract operations
business. We intend for the Partnership to be the primary growth vehicle for our U.S. contract
operations business. Because we believe the Partnership has a lower cost of capital due to its
partnership structure, we intend to offer the Partnership the opportunity to purchase the remainder of
our U.S. contract operations business over time. We believe that the Partnership provides us a
competitive advantage in the U.S. because we believe it has a lower cost of capital. )
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* Expand international presence, International markets continue to represent the greatest growth
opportunity for our business. We believe that these markets are underserved in the area of the products
and services we offer. In addition, we typically see higher returns in international markets relative to
North America. We intend to allocate additional resources toward international markets, to open offices
abroad, where appropriate, and to move idle units into service in international markets,

* Continue to develop product lines. 'We intend to continue to develop and deliver products and
services beyond comprehensive contract operations services and sale of compression, production,
processing equipment and aftermarket services. Especially in internationat markets, we are seeing new
opportunities driven more by our ability to deliver a total solution rather than just a single product. We
believe that this will enable us to capitalize on and expand our existing client relationships and enhance
our revenue and returns from each individual project.

Competitive Strengths
We believe we have the following key competitive strengths:

* Breadth of product und service offering. We believe that we are a leading company in our industry
that offers outsourced compression, production and processing services, as well as the sale of
compression and oil and natural gas production and processing equipment and installation services. For
those customers that outsource, we believe our contract operations services generally allow our
customers to achieve higher production rates than they would achieve with their own operations,
resulting in increased revenue for our customers. In addition, outsourcing allows our customers

- flexibility with regard to their changing compression and production and processing needs while
limiting their capital requirements. By offering a broad range of services that complement our strengths,
we believe that we can provide comprehensive integrated global solutions to meet our customers’ oil
and natural gas production and processing equipment and compression needs. We believe the breadth
and quality of our services and compressor fleet, the depth of our customer relationships and our
presence in many major natural gas-producing regions place us in a position to capture additional
business on a global basis.

+ Leading position in high horsepower compression. High horsepower compression, composed of units
with greater than |,000 horsepower, is the largest portion of our fleet, based on horsepower. We believe
we are a leading provider of these units, which are typically installed on larger wells, gathering systems
and processing and treating facilities. The scale and more aftractive unit economics of these applications
and facilities generally insulate them from declining commodity prices. As a result, compressors in this
segment tend to realize higher utilization rates,

= ‘'Focus on providing superior customer service, 'We have adopted a geographical business region

* concept and utilize a decentralized management and operating structure to provide superior customer
service in a relationship-driven, service-intensive industry. We believe that our regionally-based
network, local presence, experience and in-depth knowledge of customers’ operating needs and growth
plans enable us to effectively meet their evolving demands on a more timely basis. Our sales efforts
concentrate on demonstrating our commitment to enhancing the customer’s cash flow through superior
customer service, product design, fabrication, installation and after-market support.

[

» Size and geographic scope. 'We operate in the primary onshore and offshore natural gas producing
regions of North America and other international markets. As a leading provider of natural gas
compression services, we believe we have sufficient fleet size, personnel, logistical capabilities,
geographic scope, fabrication capabilities and range of compression service and product offerings to
meet the full service needs of our customers in the North America and international markets we serve
on a timely and cost-effective basis. We believe our size, geographic scope and broad customer base
reduce our volatility and provide us with improved fleet utilization opportunities. By increasing our
fleet utilization, we are able to improve our operating leverage and increase returns. As a result, due to
cconomies of scale, we believe we have relatively lower operating costs and higher margins than most
companies with smaller fleets.
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* Ability to leverage the Partnership. We believe that the Partnership provides us a lower cost of capital
through which we can pursue additional contract operations business in the U.S. Through the
Partnership, we will attempt to increase the amount of U.S. compression services that is outsourced.

Qil and Natural Gas Industry Cyclicality and Volatility

The financial performance of our contract operations business is generally less affected by short-term market
cycles and oil and natural gas price volatility than the financial performance of our fabrication operations and
other companies operating in the oilfield services industry because:

« compression, production and processing services are necessary for natural gas to be delivered from the
wellhead to end users;

« the need for compression services and equipment has grown over time due 1o the increased production
of natural gas and the natural pressure decline of natural gas producing basins; and

» our contract operations businesses are tied primarily to natural gas production and consumption, which
are generally less cyclical in nature than exploration activities.

In addition, we have a broad customer base and we operate in diverse geographic regions. While compressors
often must be specificaily engineered or reconfigured to meet the unique demands of our customers, the
fundamental technology of compression equipment has not experienced significant technological change.

Seasonal Fluctuations

Our results of operations have not historically reflected any material seasonal tendencies and we currently do
not believe that seasonal fluctuations will have a material impact on us in the foreseeable future.

Market and Customers

Our global customer base consists primarily of companies engaged in all aspects of the oil and natural gas
industry, including large integrated oil and natural gas companies, national oil and natural gas companies,
independent producers and natural gas processors, gatherers and pipelines.

Our contract operations and sales activities are conducted throughout the continental U.S., internationally and
in offshore operations. We currently operate in approximately 35 countries in major oil and natural gas
producing areas including the U.S., Argentina, Venezuela, Brazil, llaly and the United Arab Emirates. We have
fabrication facilities in the U.S., Canada, lialy, Singapore, the United Arab Emirates and the United Kingdom.
As of December 31, 2007, equipment representing approximately 24% of our aggregate compressor fleet
horsepower was being used in international applications.

Sales and Marketing

Our salespeople pursue the market for our products in their respective territories. Each salesperson is assigned
a customer list or territory on the basis of the experience and personal relationships of the salesperson and the
individual service requirements of the customer. This customer and relationship-focused strategy is communi-
cated through frequent direct contact, technical presentations, print literature, print advertising and direct mail.
Additionally, our salespeople coordinate with each other to effectively pursue customers who operate in
multiple regions. Our salespeople maintain contact with our operations personne! in order to promptly respond
to and satisfy customer needs. Qur sales efforts concentrate on demonstrating our commitment to enhancing
the customer’s cash flow through superior customer service, product design, fabrication, installation and after-
market support.

Upon receipt of a request for proposal or bid by a customer, we analyze the application and prepare a
quotation, including pricing and delivery date. The quotation is then delivered to the customer and, if we are
selected as the vendor, final terms are agreed upon and a contract or purchase order is executed. Our
engineering and operations personnel also provide assistance on complex applications, field operations issues
or equipment modifications.
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Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

We fabricate compression and production and proc‘:essing equipment for use in providing contract operations
services and for sale to third parties from components and subassemblies, most of which we acquire from a-
wide range of vendors. These components represent a significant portion of the cost of our compressor and
production and processing equipment products. In addition, we fabricate critical process equipment for refinery
and petrochemical facilities, tank farms and other vessels used in production, processing and treating of crude
oil and natural gas. Steel is a commadity which can have wide price fluctuations and represents a significant
portion of the raw materiais for these products. Increases in raw material costs cannot always be offset by
increases in our products’ sales prices. While many of our materials and components are available from
multiple suppliers at competitive prices, some of the components used in our products are obtained from a
limited group of suppliers. Due to the increase in demand for compression equipment over the past several
years we have experienced long lead times for components from our suppliers and have made purchases in
anticipation of future orders.

Competition

The natural gas compression services and fabrication business is highly competitive. Overall, we experience
considerable competition from companies who may be able to more quickly adapt to changes within our
industry and changes in economic conditions as a whole, more readily take advantage of available opportuni-
ties and adopt more aggressive pricing policies. We believe that we compete effectively on the basis of price,
customer service and flexibility in meeting customer needs and quality and reliability of our compressors and
related services. We face vigorous competition in both compression services and compressor fabrication, with
some firms competing in both segments. in our production and processing equipment business, we have
different competitors in the standard and custom-engineered equipment markets. Competitors in the standard
equipment market include several large companies and a large number of small, regional fabricators.
Competition in the standard equipment market is generaily based upon price and availability. Our competition
in the custorn-engineered market usually consists of larger companies that have the ability to provide
integrated projects and product support after the sale. Increasingly, the ability to fabricate these large custom-
engineered systems near the point of end-use is a major competitive advantage.

International Operations

We operate in many geographic markets outside the U.S. At December 31, 2007, of the approximately
1,447,000 horsepower of compression we had deployed internationally, approximately 91% was located in
Latin America (primarily in Venezuela, Argentina, Mexico and Brazil). Changes in local economic or political
conditions, particularly in Venezuela, Argentina and other parts of Latin America and Nigeria, could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows. Additional
risks inherent in our international business activities are described below in “Risk Factors”.

Our future plans involve expanding our business into international markets, including markets where we
currently do not conduct business. The risks inherent in establishing new business ventures, especially in
international markets where local customs, laws and business procedures present special challenges, may affect
our ability to be successful in these ventures or a\{oid losses which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, resulis of operations and cash flows,

We have significant operations that expose us to currency risk in Argentina, Italy and Venezuela.

For financial data relating to our geographic concentrations, see Note 21 to the Financial Statements.

Cawthorne Channel Project

We are involved in a project in the Cawthorne Channel in Nigeria (the “Cawthorne Channel Project”), in
which Global Gas and Refining Ltd., a Nigerian entity (“Global”), has contracted with an affiliate of Royal
Dutch Shell plc (“Shell”) to process natural gas from some of Shell’s Nigerian oil and natural gas fields.
Pursuant to a contract between us and Global, we provide natural gas compression and natural gas processing
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services from a barge-mounted facility we own that is stationed in a Nigerian coastal waterway. We completed
the building of the required barge-mounted facility and our portion of the project was declared commercial by
Global in November 2005. The contract runs for a ten-year period which commenced when the project was
declared commercial, subject to a purchase option by Global, which is exercisable for the remainder of the
term of the contract. Under the terms of a series of contracts between us, Global, Shell and several other
counterparties, Global is primarily responsible for the overall project. The area in Nigeria where the Cawthome
Channel Project is located has experienced civil unrest and violence, and natural gas delivery from Shell to the
Cawthorne Channel Project was stopped from June 2006 to June 2007. As a result, the Cawthorne Channel
Project did not operate from early June 2006 to June 2007. From July 2007 through the end of 2007, we
received some natural gas from Shell and we have been processing the natural gas received.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, we received approximately $4.5 million in payments, which we
applied against outstanding receivables. Even though we believe we are entitled to payments from Global and
have accordingly invoiced Global for such, collectibility is not reasonably assured due to uncertainty regarding
when the Cawthorne Channel Project will receive natural gas from Shell and due to Global's dependence on
natural gas production by the Cawthorne Chanrel Project to pay us. Therefore, we billed but did not recognize
revenue of approximately $16.8 million relatéd to the Cawthorne Channel Project during the year ended
December 31, 2007. Based on our analysis of estimated future cash flows, we believe we will recover all of
our receivables and our full investment in the Cawthorne Channel Project over the term of the contract.

However, if Shell does not provide natural gas to the project or if Shell were to terminate its contract with
Global for any reason or if we were to terminate our involvement in the Cawthorne Channel Project, we would
be required to find an alternative use for the barge facility, which could potentially result in an impairment
and write-down of our investment and receivables related to this project and could have a material impact on
our consolidated financial position or results of operation. Additionally, due to the environment in Nigeria and
Global's capitalization level, inexperience with projects of a similar nature and lack of a successful track
record with respect to this project as well as other factors, there is no assurance that Global can satisfy its
obligations under its various contracts, including its contract with us.

This project and our other projects in Nigeria are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties associated with
operating in Nigeria. For more information about those risks, see “There are risks associated with our
operations in Nigeria. Local unrest and violence in Nigeria have adversely affected our historical results and
could result in possible impairment and write-downs of our assets in Nigeria if the political situation in
Nigeria does not improve.” included in Part 1, Item 1A (“Risk Factors™) of this report. Any of these risks
coyld adversely impact any of our operations in Nigeria, and could affect the timing and decrease the amount
of revenue we may ultimately realize from our investments in Nigeria. At December 31, 2007, we had net
assets of approximately $76 million related to projects in Nigeria, a majority of which are related to our
capital investment and advances/accounts receivable for the Cawthorne Channel Project.

Government Régulalion

Our operations are subject to various federal, state, local and international laws and regulations relating to the

" environment and to occupational health and safety, including the regulation and permitting of air emissions,

wastewater and storm water discharges and waste handling and disposal activities. From time to time as part
of the regular overall evaluation of our operations, including newly acquired operations, we apply for or
amend facility permits with respect to air emissions, wastewater or storm water discharges or waste handling,
which subjects us to new or revised permitting conditions that may be onerous or costly to comply with. In
addition, certain of our customer service arrangements may require us to operate, on behalf of a specific
customer, petroleum storage units such as underground tanks, or pipelincs and other regulated units, all of
which may impose additional regulatory compliance and permitting obligations. Compliance with these
environmental faws and regulations may expose us to significant costs and liabilities and cause us to incur
significant capital expenditures in our operations. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may result
in the assessment of administrative, civil and criminal penalties, imposition of investigatory and remedial
obligations, and the issuance of injunctions delaying or prohibiting operations. Moreover, as with any owner or \
operator of real property, we may be subject to clean-up costs and liability for regulated substances or any
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other toxic or hazardous wastes that may exist on or have been released from any of our properties. We
believe that our operations are in substantial compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations
and that continued compliance with current requirements would not have a material adverse effect on us.
However, the clear trend in environmental regulation is to place more restrictions on activities thar may affect
the environment, and thus, any changes in these laws and regulations that resuit in more stringent and costly
waste handling, storage, transport, disposal or remediation requirements could have a material adverse effect
on our results of operations and financia! condition.

The primary federal environmental laws to which our operations are subject include the Clean Air Act and
regulations thereunder, which regulate air emissions; the Clean Water Act and regulations thereunder, which
regulate the discharge of pollutants in industrial wastewater and storm water runoff; the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (“RCRA”) and regulations thereunder, which regulate the management and disposal of solid
and hazardous waste; and the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability
Act (“CERCLA™) and regulations thereunder, known more commonly as “Superfund,” which imposes liability
for the remediation of the releases of hazardous substances in the environment. We are also subject to
regulation under the Occupational Safety and Health Act (“OSHA™) and regulations thereunder, which regulate
the protection of the health and safety of workers. Analogous state laws and regulations may also apply.

The Clean Air Act and comparabie state laws and regulations regulate emissions of air poilutants from various
sources, including natural gas compressors, and also impose various monitoring and reporting requirements,
Such laws and regulations may require a facility to obtain pre-approval for the construction or modification of
certain projects or facilities expected to produce air entissions or result in the increase of existing air emission,
obtain and strictly comply with air permits containing various emissions and operational limitations, or utilize
specific emission control technologies to limit emissions. While our standard contract typically provides that
the customer will assumc the permitting responsibilities and environmental risks related to site operations, we
have in some cases obtained air permits as the owner and operator of the compressors. Under most of our
contract operations service agreements, our customers must indemnify us for certain losses or liabilities we
may suffer as a result of the failure to comply with applicable environmental laws, including permit conditions.
Increased obligations of operators to reduce air emissions of nitrogen oxides and other pollutants from internal
combustion engines in transmission service are anticipated. For example, the Environmental Protection Agency
(“EPA") recently adopted rules, effective March 18, 2008, thar establish emission standards for new spark
ignition engines and require emission controls of certain new and existing stationary reciprocating engines that
were excluded from previous regulation. We do not expect these recently adopted rules to have a material
adverse effect on our operations or financial condition. Nevertheless, there can be no assurance that those
rules, once effective, or any other new regulations requiring the installation of more sophisticated emission
control equipment would not have a material adverse impact. In any event, we believe that in most cases these
obligations would be allocated to our clients under our contracts. Moreover, we expect that such requirements
would not have any more significant effect on our operations or financial condition than on any SImllarly
situated company providing contract operations services.

The Clean Water Act and comparable state laws and regulations impose restrictions and strict controls with
respect to the discharge of pollutants into state waters or waters of the United States. The discharge of
pellutants into regulated waters is prohibited, except in accordance with the terms of a permit issued by the
EPA or an analogous state agency. In addition, the Clean Water Act regulates storm water discharges
associated with industrial activities depending on a facility’s primary standard industrial classification. Many
of our facilities on which we may store inactive compression units have applied for and obtained industrial
wastewater discharge permits as well as sought coverage under local wastewater ordinances. In addition, many
of those facilities have filed notices of intent for coverage under statewide storm water general permits and
developed and implemented storm water pollution prevention plans, as required, Federal laws also require spill
preveniion, control, and countermeasures, including appropriate containment berms and similar structures to
help prevent the contamination of navigable waters in the event of a petroleum hydrocarbon tank spill, rupture,
or leak at such facilities.

The U.S. Congress is actively considering legislation to reduce emissions of “greenhouse gases,” including
carbon dioxide and methane. In addition, at least 14 states have already taken legal measures to reduce
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emissions of greenhouse gases. Also, as a result of the U.S.. Supreme Court’s decision on April 2, 2007 in
Massachusetts, et al. v. EPA, the EPA must consider whether it is required to regulate greenhouse gas
emissions from mobile sources (e.g., cars and trucks) even if Congress does not adopt new legislation
addressing emissions of greenhouse gases. Passage of climate control legislation or other regulatory initiatives
by Congress or various states of the U.S. or the adoption of regulations by the EPA or analogous state agencies
that restrict emissions of greenhouse gases could result in increased compliance costs or additional operating
restrictions, and could have a material adverse effect on our operations or financial condition.

The RCRA and comparable state laws and regulations govern the generation, transportation, treatment, storage,
disposal and cleanup of hazardous and non-hazardous solid wastes. During the course of our operations, we
generate wastes {including, but not limited to, used oil, antifreeze, filters, sludges, paints, solvents, and
sandblast materials) in quantities regulated under RCRA. The EPA and various state agencies have limited the
approved methods of disposal for these types of wastes. In addition, to the extent we operate underground
tanks on behalf of specific customers, such operations may be regulated under RCRA.

CERCLA and comparable state laws and regulations impose strict, joint and several liability without regard to
fault or the legality of the original conduct on classes of persons who are considered to be responsible for the
release of a hazardous substance into the environment. These persons include the current or past owner or
operator of the facility or disposal site where the release occurred and any company that transported, disposed
of, or arranged for the transport or disposal of the hazardous substances released at the site. Under CERCLA,
such persons may be subject to joint and several liability for the costs of cleaning up the hazardous substances
that have been released into the environment, for damages to natural resources and for the costs of certain
health studies. In addition, where contamination may be present, it is not uncommon for neighboring
landowners and other third parties to file claims for personal injury, property damage and recovery of response
costs allegedly caused by hazardous substances or other pollutants released into the environment,

We currently own or lease, and in the past have owned or leased, a number of properties that have been used
in support of our operations for a number of years. Although we have utilized operating and disposal practices
that were standard in the industry at the time, hydrocarbons, hazardous substances, or other regulated wastes
may have been disposed of or released on or under the properties owned or leased by us or on or under other
locations where such materials have been taken for disposal by companies sub-contracted by us. In addition,
many of these properties have been previously owned or operated by third parties whose treatment and
disposal or release of hydrocarbons, hazardous substances or other regulated wastes was not under our control.
These properties and the materials released or disposed thereon may be subject to CERCLA, RCRA and
analogous state laws. Under such laws, we could be required to remove or remediate historical property
contamination, or to perform certain operations to prevent future contamination. At one of our owned sites, we
are currently working with the prior owner who has undertaken the full legal obligations to monitor and
cleanup contamination at such site that occurred prior to our acquisition of this site. We are not currently
under any order requiring that we undertake or pay for any clean-up activities. However, we cannot provide
any assurance that we will not receive any such order in the future.

We are subject to the requirements of OSHA and comparable state statutes. These laws and the implementing .
regulations strictly govern the protection of the health and safety of employees. The OSHA hazard communi-
cation standard, the EPA community right-to-know regulations under Title III of CERCLA and similar state
statutes require that we organize and/or disclose information about hazardous materials used or produced in
our operations. We believe we are in substantial compliance with these requirements and with other OSHA
and comparable requirements.

Our operations outside the U.S. are potentially subject to similar international governmental controls and
restrictions pertaining to the environment and other regulated activities in the countries in which we operate.
We believe our operations are in substantial compliance with existing international governmental controls and
restrictions and that compliance with these international controls and restrictions has not had a material
adverse effect on our operations. We cannot provide any assurance, however, that we will not incur significant
costs to comply with these international controls and restrictions in the future.
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Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately 10,700 employees, approximately 600 of whom are
represented by labor unions. We believe that our relations with our employees are satisfactory.

Available Information

Qur website address is www.exterran.com. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q,
current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports, as well as the corresponding reports of Hanover
and Universal, are available: on our website, without charge, as soon as reasonably practicable after they are
filed electronically with the SEC. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference in
this report or any of our other securities filings. Paper copies of our filings are also available, without charge,
from Exterran Holdings, Inc., 4444 Brittmmoore Road, Houston, Texas 77041, Attention: Investor Relations.
Alternatively, the public may read and copy any materials we file with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference
Room at 100 F Street, N.E., 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20549, Information on the operation of
the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains
a website that contains reports, proxy and information statements and other information regarding issuers who
file electronically with the SEC. The SEC's website address is www.sec.gov.

Additionally, we make available free of charge on our website:
» our Code of Business Conduct;
* our Corporate Governance Principles; and

+ the charters of our audit, compensation, and nominating and corporate governance committees.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

As described in the “Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements,” this report contains forward-looking
statements regarding us, our business and our industry. The risk factors described below, among others, could
cause our actual results to differ materially from the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements.
If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows
could be negatively impacted. .

The anticipated benefits of the merger of Hanover and Universal may not be realized.

We expect the merger of Hanover and Universal to result in various benefits, including, among other things,
annual synergies and cost savings of approximately $50 million and other operating efficiencies that cannot be
quantified at this time. We may not achieve these benefits at the levels expected or at all. If we fail to achieve
these expected benefits, the results of operations and the enterprise value of the combined company may be
adversely affected. The $50 million of cost savings is in addition to the approximately $25 million in interest
expense savings achieved based upon the completion of the debt refinancing and interest rate hedging activities
in September 2007.

The integration of Hanover and Universal following the merger presents significant challenges that may
reduce the anticipated potential benefits of the merger,

We face significant challenges in consolidating functions and integrating the Hanover and Universal organiza-
tions, procedures and operations in a timely and efficient manner, as well as in retaining key personnel. The
integration of Hanover and Universal will continue to be costly, complex and time-consuming due to the size
and complexity of each organization. The principal challenges include the following:

» integrating Hanover’s and Universal’s existing businesses;
+ combining diverse product and service offerings and sales and marketing approaches;

+ preserving customer, supplier and other important relationships and resolving potential conflicts that
may arise as a result of the merger;

» consolidating and integrating duplicative facilities and operations, including back-office systems such as
Hanover’s and Universal’s different enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) systems; and

+ addressing differences in business cultures, preserving employee morale and retaining key employees,
while maintaining focus on providing consistent, high quality customer service and meeting our
operational and financial goals.

We are dedicating substantial cost and effort to integrate the businesses. These efforts could divert our focus
and resources from other day-to-day tasks, corporate initiatives or strategic opportunities during the integration
process.

We have a substantial amount of debt that could limit our ability to fund future growth and operations
and increase our exposure during adverse economic conditions.

At December 31, 2007, we had approximately $2.3 billion in outstanding debt obligations. Factors beyond our
control may affect our ability to make payments on our outstanding indebtedness. These factors include those
discussed elsewhere in these “Risk Factors” and those listed in the “Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements” section of this report.

Our substantial debt and associated commitments could have important adverse consequences. For example,
these commitments coutd:

« make it more difficult for us to satisfy our contractual obligations;

» increase our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions,
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= limit our ability to fund future working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions or other corporate
requirements;

* increase our vulnerability to interest rate fluctuations because the interest payments on a portion of our
debt are based upon variable interest rates and a portion can adjust based upon our credit statistics;

+ limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and our industry;
* place us at a disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt; and

« limit our ability to borrow additional funds.

We may be vulnerable o interest rate increases due to our floating rate debt obligations.

As of December 31, 2007, after taking into consideration interest rate swaps, we had approximately

$887 miilion of outstanding indebtedness subject to interest at floating rates. Changes in economic conditions
outside of our control could result in higher interest rates, thereby increasing our interest expense and reducing
the funds available for capital investment, operations or other purposes.

Our indebtedness imposes restrictions on us that may affect our ability to successfully operate our
business. .

Our bank credit facilities, asset-backed securitization facility and the agreements governing certain of our
indebtedness include covenants that, among other things, restrict our ability to:

« borrow money;

* create liens;

= make investments;

* declare dividends or make certain distributions;

= sell or dispose of property; or _

» merge into or consolidate with any third party or sell or transfer ali or substantially ail of our property.

These facilities and other agreements also require us to maintain various financial ratios. Such covenants may
restrict our ability to expand or to pursue our business strategies. Our ability to comply with these and any
other provisions of such agreements may be affected by changes in our operating and financial performance,
changes in business conditions or results of operations, adverse regulatory developments or other events
beyond our control. The breach of any of these covenants could result in a default, which could cause our
indebtedness to become due and payable. If any of our indebtedness were to be accelerated, we may not be
able to repay or refinance it.

A reduction in oil or natural gas prices, or instability in North American or global energy markets, could
adversely affect our business. .

Our results of operations depend upon the level of activity in the global energy market, including natural gas
development, production, processing and transportation. Oil and natural gas prices and the level of drilling and
exploration activity can be volatile. For example, oil and natural gas exploration and development activity and
the number of well completions typically decline when there is a significant reduction in oil and natural gas
prices or significant instability in energy markets. As a result, the demand for our natural gas compression
services and oil and natural gas production and processing equipment would be adversely affected. Any future
decline in oil and natural gas prices could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

Erosion of the financial condition of our customers could alse have an adverse effect on our business. During
times when the oil or natural gas markets weaken, the likelihood of the erosion of the financial condition of
our customers increases. If, and to the extent the financial condition of ocur customers declines, those
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customers could seek to preserve capital by canceling any month-to-month contracts, canceling or delaying
scheduled maintenance of their existing natural gas compression and oil and natural gas production and
processing equipment or determining not to enter into any new natural gas COmpression service contracts or
purchase new compression and oil and natural gas production and processing equipment, thereby reducing
demand for our products and services. The reduced demand for our products and services as described above
could adversely affect our business, financial condition results of operations and cash flow. In addition, in the
event of the financial failure of a customer, we could experience a loss associated with the unsecured portion
of any of our outstanding accounts receivable associated with that customer.

There are many risks associated with conducting operations in international markets.

We operate in many geographic markets outside the U.S. Changes in local economic or political conditions
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.
Additional risks inherent in our international business activities include the following:

» difficulties in managing international operations, including our ability to timely and cost effectively
execule projects;

 unexpected changes in .regulatory requirements;

* training and retaining qualified personnel in international markets;

"» inconsistent product regulation or sudden policy changes by foreign agencies or governments;

» the burden of complying with multiple and potentially conflicting laws;

» tariffs and other trade barriers that may restrict our ability to enter new markets;

« governmental actions that result in the deprivation of contract rights, including possible law changes,’
and other difficulties i:} enforcing contractual obligations; ‘

» foreign currency exchange rate risks;

+ difficulty in collecting international accounts receivable;

« potentially longer receipt of payment cycles;

» changes in political and economic conditions in the countries in which we operate, including the
nationalization of energy related assets, civil uprisings, riots, kidnappings and terrorist acts;

+ potentially adverse tax consequences or tax law changes;
» restrictions on repatriation of earnings or expropriation of property without fair compensation;

« the geographic, time zone, language and cultural differences among personnel in different areas of the
world; and

« difficulties in establishing new international offices and risks inherent in establishing new relationships
in foreign countries.

In addition, we plan to expand our business into international markets where we have not previously conducted
business. The risks inherent in establishing new business ventures, especially in international markets where
local customs, laws and business procedures present special challenges, may affect our ability to be successful
in these ventures or avoid losses that could have a material adverse éffect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

There are risks associated with our operations in Nigeria. Local unrest and violence in Nigeria have
adversely affected our historical financial results and could result in possible impairment and write-downs
of our assets in Nigeria if the political situation in Nigeria does not improve.

Our operations in Nigeria are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties associated with operating in Nigeria.
These risks include, among other things, political, social and economic instability, civil uprisings, riots,
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terrorism, kidnapping, the taking of property without fair compensation and governmental actions that may
restrict payments or the movement of funds or result in the deprivation of contract rights. Any of these risks,
including risks arising from the increase in violence and local unrest in Nigeria over the past 18 months, could
adversely impact our operations in Nigeria and could affect the timing and decrease the amount of revenue we
may realize from our assets in Nigeria.

For example, we are involved in a project called the Cawthorne Channel Project in Nigeria pursuant to which
we provide natural gas compression and natural gas processing services from a barge-mounted facility we own
that is stationed in a Nigerian coastal waterway. Because of unrest and violence in the region and a lack of
natural gas provided to the project, the project was offline from June 2006 through July 2007. We have not
recognized revenue on the Cawthorne Channel Project during 2007 and may not be able to recognize revenue
from this project in the future.

At December 31, 2007, we had tangible net assets of approximately $76 million related to projects in Nigeria,
If we are unable to operate our assets under current projects, we may be required to find alternative uses for
those assets, which could potentially resolt in an impairment and write-down of the investment in those assets
in Nigeria, which could adversely impact our financial condition or results of operations.

There are risks associated with our operations in Venezuela. Further changes to the laws and regulations
of Venezuela could adversely impact our results of operations and require us to write-down certain of our
assets in Venezuela.

Recently, laws and regulations in Venezuoela have been subject to frequent and significant changes. These
changes have included currency controls, restriction$ on repatriation of capital, import prohibition of certain
consumable commodities required for ongoing operations, expropriation and nationalization of certain firms
and industries and changes to the tax laws. While these changes have not had a material impact on us to date,
future changes could have a material impact on us. For example, if the government of Venezuela institutes
further changes to the laws*and regulations of Venezuela, those changes could increase the expenses incurred
by our Venezuelan operations, resulting in a reduction in our net income or a write-down of our investments in
Venezuela. At December 31, 2007, we had tangible net assets in Venezuela, including investments in non-
consolidated affiliates, of approximately $454.7 million. '

We are exposed to exchange rate fluctuations in the international markets in which we operate. A decrease
in the value of any of these currencies relative to the U.S. dollar could reduce profits from international
operations and the value of our international net assets.

Our reporting currency is the U.S. dollar. Gains and losses from the remeasurement of assets and liabilities
that are receivable or payable in currency other than functional currency are included in the consolidated
statements of operations. The remeasurement has caused the U.S. dollar value of our international results of
operations to vary with exchange rate fluctuations, and the U.S. dollar value of our international results of
operations will continue to vary with exchange rate fluctuations. We have not hedged exchange rate exposures,
which exposes us to the risk of exchange rate losses.

A fluctuation in the value of any of these currencies relative to the U.S. dollar could reduce our profits from
international operations and the value of the net assets of our international operations when reported in

U.S. dollars in our financial statements. This could have a negative impact on our business, financial condition
or results of operations as reported in U.S. dollars. For example, in February 2004 and March 2005, the
Venezuelan government devalued Venezuela’s currency to 1,920 bolivars and 2,148 bolivars, respectively, for
each U.S. dollar.

In addition, fluctuations in currencies relative to currencies in which the earnings are generated may make it
more difficult to perform period-to-pericd comparisons of our reported results of operations,

We anticipate that there wilt be instances in which costs and revenues will not be exactly matched with respect
to currency denomination. As a result, to the extent we expand geographically, we expect that increasing
portions of our revenues, costs, assets and liabilities will be subject to fluctuations in foreign currency
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valuations. We may experience economic loss and a negative impact on earnings or net assets solely as a result
of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. Further, the markets in which we operate could restrict the
removal or conversion of the local or foreign currency, resulting in our inability to hedge against these risks.

Many of our compressor contracts with customers have short initial terms, and we cannot be sure that
the contracts for these compressors will be renewed after the end of the initial contractual term.

The length of our compressor contracts with customers varies based on operating conditions and customer
needs. In most cases, under currently prevailing contract compression rates, our initial contract terms are not
long enough to enable us to fully recoup the average cost of acquiring or fabricating the equipment. We cannot
be sure that a substantial number of these customers will continue to renew their contracts, that we will be
able to enter into new contracts for the equipment with new customers or that any renewals will be at
comparable rates. The inability to renew contracts wiih respect to a substantial portion of our compressor fleet
would have a material adverse effect upon our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows.

We are dependent on particular suppliers and are vulnerable to product shortages and price increases.

Some of the components used in our products are obtained from a single source or a limited group of
suppliers. Our reliance on these suppliers involves several risks, including price increases, inferior component
quality and a potential inability to obtain an adequate supply of required components in a timely manner. The
partial or complete loss of certain of these sources coutd have a negative impact on our results of operations
and could damage our customer relationships. Further, a significant increase in the price of one or more of
these components could have a negative impact on our results of operations.

The tax treatment of the Partnership depends on its status as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax pur-
poses, as well as its not being subject to a material amount of entity-level taxation by individual states. If
the Internal Revenue Service treats the Partnership as a corporation or if the Partnership becomes subject
to a material amount of entity-level taxation for state tax purposes, it would substantially reduce the amount
of cash available for distribution to the Partnership’s unitholders and undermine the cost of capital advan-
tage we believe the Partnership has, which would diminish one of the anticipated benefits of the merger.

The anticipated after-tax economic benefit of an investment in the Partnership’s common units depends largely
on its being treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes. The Partnership has not received a
ruling from the Internal Revenue Service, or IRS, on this or any other tax matter affecting it.

If the Partnership were treated as a corporation for federal income tax purposes, it would pay U.S. federal
income tax at the corporate tax rate and would also likely pay state income tax. Treatment of the Partnership
as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes would result in a material reduction in the anticipated
cash flow and after-tax return to its unitholders, likely causing a substantial reduction in the value of its
common units.

Current law may change so as to cause the Partnership to be treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income
tax purposes or otherwise subject it to entity-level taxation. In addition, because of widespread state budget
deficits and other reasons, several states are evaluating ways to subject partnerships to entity-level taxation
through the imposition of state income, franchise and other forms of taxation. The Partnership’s partnership
agreement provides that if a law is enacted or existing law is modified or interpreted in a manner that subjects
it to taxation as a corporation or otherwise subjects it to entity-level taxation for U.S. federal, state or local
income tax purposes, the minimum quarterly distribution amount and the target distribution levels of the
Partnership may be adjusted to reflect the impact of that law on it at the option of its general partner without
the consent of its unitholders. If the Partnership were to be taxed at the entity level, it would lose the
comparative cost of capital advantage we believe it has over a corporation structure, thereby undermining one
of Hanover's and Universal’s key strategic reasons for the merger.

23




We face significant competition that may cause us to lose market share and harm our financial
performance.

Our industry is highly competitive and there are low barriers to entry, especially in North America. We expect
to experience competition from companies that may be able to adapt more quickly to technological changes-
within our industry and throughout the economy as a whole, more readily take advantage of acquisitions and
other opportunities and acdopt more aggressive pricing pelicies, Qur ability to renew or replace existing
contracts with our customers at rates sufficient to maintain current revenue and cash flows could be adversely
affected by the activities of our competitors and customers. If our competitors substantially increase the
resources they devote to the development and marketing of competitive services or substantially decrease the
price at which they offer their services, we may not be able to compete effectively. Some of these competitors
may expand or construct newer or more powerful compression systems that would create additional
competition for the services we currently provide to our customers. In addition, customers that are significant
producers or gatherers of natural gas may purchase their own assets in lieu of using our contract operations
services. In addition,,our other lines of business will face significant competition.

We also may not be able to take advantage of certain opportunities or make certain investments because of our
significant leverage and our other obligations. All of these competitive pressures could have a material adverse
effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition,

Natural gas operations entail inherent risks that may result in substantial liabilitv. We do not insure
against all potential losses and could be seriously harmed by unexpected liabilities.

Natural gas operations entail inherent risks, ificluding equipment defects, malfunctions and failures and natural
disasters, which could result in uncontrollable flows of natural gas or well fluids, fires and explosions. These
risks may expose us, as an equipment operator or fabricator, to lability for personal injury, wrongful death,
property damage, pollution and other environmental damage. The insurance we have obtained against many of
these risks may not be adequate to cover our claims or losses. We are not fully insured on all of our offshore
assets. In addition, we are substantially self-insured for worker’s compensation, employer’s liability, property,
auto liability, general liability and employee group health claims in view of the relatively high per-incident
deductibles we absorb under our insurance arrangements for these risks. Further, insurance covering the risks
we expect to face or in the amounts we desire may not be available in the future or, if available, the premiums
may not be commercially justifiable. If we were to incur substantial liability and such damages were not
covered by insurance or were in excess of policy limits, or if we were to incur liability at a time when we
were not able to obtain liability insurance, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be
negatively impacted.

We are subject to a variety of governmental regulations.

We are subject to a variety of U.S. federal, state, local and international laws and regulations relating to the
environment, health and safety, export controls, currency exchange, labor and employment and taxation. These
laws and regulations are complex, change frequently and have tended to become more stringent over time.
Failure to comply with these laws and regulations may result in a variety of administrative, civil and criminal
enforcement measures, including assessment of monetary penalties, imposition of remedial requirements and
issuance of injunctions as to future compliance. From time to time, as part of our operations, including newly
acquired operations, we may be subject to compliance audits by regulatory authoritics in the various countries
in which we operate.

Environmental laws and regulations may, in certain circumstances¢ impose strict liability for environmental
contamination, which may render us liable for remediation costs, natural resource damages and other damages
- as a result of conduct that was lawful at the time it occurred or the conduct of, or conditions caused by, prior
owners, operators or other third parties. In addition, where contamination may be present, it is not uncommon
for neighboring land owners and other third parties to file claims for personal injury, property damage and
recovery of response costs. Remediation costs and other damages arising as a result of environmental laws and
regulations, and costs associated with new information, changes in existing environmental laws and regulations
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1
or the adoption of new environmental laws and regulations could be substantial and could negatively impact

our financial condition or results of operations.

We may need to apply for or amend facility permits or licenses from time to time with respect to storm water
or wastewater discharges, waste handling, or air emissions relating to manufacturing activities or equipment
operations, which subjects us to new or revised permitting conditions that may be onerous or costly to comply
with. In addition, certain of our customer service arrangements may require us to operate, on behalf of a
specific customer, petroleum storage units such as underground tanks or pipelines and other regulated units, all
of which may impose additional compliance and permitting obligations.

We conduct operations at numerous facilities in a wide variety of locations across the continental U.S. The
operations at many of these facilities require U.S. federal, state or local environmental permits or other
authorizations. Additionally, natural gas compressors at many of our customers’ facilities require individual air
permits or general authorizations to operate under various air regulatory programs established by rule or
regulation. These permits and authorizations frequently contain numerous compliance requirements, including
monitoring and reporting obligations and operational restrictions; such as emission limits.-Given the large
number of facilities in which we operate, and the numerous environmental permits and other awthorizations
that are applicable to our operations, we may occasionally identify or be notified of technical violations of
certain requirements existing in various permits or other authorizations. Occasionally, we have been assessed
penalties for our non-compliance, and we could be subject to such penalties in the future.

In addition, future events, such as compliance with more stringent laws, regulations or permit conditions, a
major expansion of our operations into more heavily regulated activities, more vigorous enforcement policies
by regulatory agencies, or stricter or different interpretations of existing laws and regulations could require us
to make material expenditures.

The price of our common stock may experience volatility.

The price of our common stock may be volatile.  Some of the factors that could affect the price of our
common stock are quarterly increases or decreases in revenue or earnings, changes in revenue or earnings
estimates by the investment community, our ability to implement our merger integration strategy and to realize
the expected synergies and other benefits from the merger beiween Hanover and Universal and speculation in
the press or investment community about our financial condition or results of operations. General market
conditions and North America or international economic factors and political events unrelated to our
performance may also affect our stock price. For these reasons, investors should not rely on recent trends in
the price of our common stock to predict the future price of our common stock or our financial results.

We may not be able to consummate additional contributions or sales of portions of our U.S. contract
operations business to the Partnership.

~ As part of our business strategy, we intend to contribute or sell the remainder of our U.S. contract operations
business to the Partnership, over time, but we are under no obligation 1o do so. Likewise, the Partnership is
under no obligation to purchase any additional portions of that business. The consummation of any future sales
of additional portions of that business and the timing of such sales will depend upon, among other things:

* our reaching agreement with the Partnership regarding the terms of such sales, which will require the
approval of the conflicts committee of the board of directors of the Partnership, which is comprised
exclusively of directors who are deemed independent from us;

+ the Partnership’s ability to finance such purchases on acceptable terms, which could be impacted by
general equity and debt market conditions as well as conditions in the markets specific to master
limited partnerships; and

» the Partnership’s compliance with its debt agreements.

If we are unable to consummate additional contributions or sales of our U.S. contract operations business to
the Partnership, we may not be able to capitalize on what we believe is the Partnership’s lower cost of capital,
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which could impact our competitive position in the U.S. Additionally, without the proceeds from future
contributions or sales of our U.S. contract operations business, we will have less capital to invest to grow our
business.

Our charter and bylaws contain provisions that may make it more difficult for a third party to acquire
control of us, even if a change in control would result in the purchase of our stockholders’ shares of
common stock at a premium to the market price or would otherwise be beneficial to our stockholders.

There are provisions in our restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws that may make it more difficult for a
third party to acquire control of us, even if a change in control would result in the purchase of our stockholders’
shares of common stock at a premium to the market price or would otherwise be beneficial to our stockholders.
For example, our restated certificate of incorporation authorizes the board of directors to issue preferred stock
without stockholder approval. If our board of directors elects to issue preferred stock, it could be more difficult
for a third party to acquire us. In addition, provisions of our restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws,
such as limitations on stockholder actions by written consent and on stockholder proposals at meetings of
stockholders, could make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of us. Delaware corporation law
may also discourage takeover attempts that have not been approved by the board of directors.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties

The following table describes the material facilities we owned or leased as of December 31, 2007:

Location

Houston, Texas .. ............ )

Houston, Texas ....... ..
Houston, Texas ,.............

Calgary, Alberta, Canada. . . . .. ..
Schulenburg, Texas. .. .........

Yukon, Oklahoma ............
Belte Chase, Louisiana . . . .. .. ..
Broussard, Louisiana .. ........
Houston, Texas . .............
El Tigre, Venezuela . ..........
Anaco, Venezuela. . . ..........
Camacari, Brazil .............
Reynosa, Mexico . .. ..........
Casper, Wyoming. . . ..........
Comodoro Rivadavia, Argentina. . .
Davis, Oklahoma . . . ..........
El Tigre, Venezuela . ... .......
Farmington, New Mexico .......
Maturin, Venezuela. . .. ........
Kilgore, Texas . ... ...........
Midland, Texas ..............
Neuquen, Argentina . . .........
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma . .....
Pampa, Texas ...............
Santa Cruz, Bolivia . ..........
Victoria, Texas. .. ............
Walsall, United Kingdom . . ... ...
Yukon, Oklahoma ............
Houston, Texas ..............
Port Harcourt, Nigeria . .. ... ...
Houma, Louisiana . ... ........
Broussard, Louisiana . .........
Broken Amow, Oklahoma . ... ...
Columbus, Texas . ............
Jebel Ali Free Zone, UAE. . ... ..
Hamriyah Free Zone, UAE . . . ...
Mantova, Italy . . . ............
Neuquen, Argentina . . .........
Singapore, Singapore .. ........
Tulsa, Oklahoma . ............
Victoria, Texas. . . ............

Status

Square
Feet

234,746
51,941
244,000

105,760
23,000

72,000
35,000
24,700
343,750
35,954
129,000
86,111
22,235
28,390
26,000
393,870
107,600
42,097
23,695
32,995
53,300
30,000
37,485
24,000
21,119
59,852
44,700
22,453
28,750
32,808
60,000
74,402
141,549
219,552
113,211
169,576
654,397
47,500
482,098
40,100
50,506

Uses

Office

Office

Corporate office, fabrication, North America contract
operations and aftermarket services

Fabrication, North America contract operations and
aftermarket services

Fabrication, North America contract operations and
aftermarket services

North America contract operations and aftermarket services
North America contract operations and aftermarket services
North America contract operations and aftermarket services
Fabrication; corporate office

Fabrication, office

International contract operations and aftermarket services -
International contract operations and aftermarket services
International contract operations and aftermarket services
North America contract operations and aftermarket services
International contract operations and aftermarket services
North America contract operations and aftermarket services
International contract operations and aftermarket services
North America contract operations and aftermarket services
International contract operations and aftermarket services
North America contract operations and aftermarket services
North America contract operations and aftermarket services
International contract operations and aftermarket services
North America contract operations and aftermarket services
North America contract operations and aftermarket services
International contract operations and aftermarket services
North America contract operations and aftermarket services
International contract operations and aftermarket services
North America contract operations and aftermarket services
Aftermarket services

Aftermarket services

Aftermarket services

Fabrication

Fabrication

Fabrication

Fabrication

Fabrication

Fabrication

Fabrication

Fabrication

Fabrication

Fabrication

Our executive offices are located at 4444 Brittmoore, Houston, Texas 77041 and our telephone number is

(713) 335-7000.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business we are involved in various pending or threatened legal actions. While
management is unable to predict the ultimate outcome of these actions, it believes that any ultimate liability
arising from these actions will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows; however, because of the inherent uncertainty of litigation, we cannot provide
assurance that the resolution of any particular claim or proceeding to which we are a party will not have a
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material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operation or cash flows for the period in which the
resolution occurs.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of our stockholders during the fourth quarter of our fiscal year ended

December 31, 2007.

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Our common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “EXH.” The following table

scts forth the range of high and low sale prices for our common stock for the periods indicated.

Year ended December 31, 2006

First Quarter. . ... .. i i e e e e
Second Quarter. .. .................. (T
Third Quarter . .. ... ... e e
Fourth QUarter . ... ..ot i e e e e e e e e
Year ended December 31, 2007

First QuUarter. . . . . e e
Second QUarter. . .. ... . e e e e
Third QUarter . ... .. i i e e e
Fourth Quarter . .. ... ... . i e e

Price

Low

$43.69
$47.91
$49.45
$52.43

$53.54
$65.23
$72.53
$74.17

On February 20, 2008, the closing price or our common stock was $71.40 per share. As of February 20, 2008,

there were approximately 1,406 holders of record of our common stock.
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The performance graph below shows the cumulative total stockholder return on Hanover and our common stock
compared with the S&P 500 Composite Stock Price Index (the “S&P 500 Index™) and the Qilfield Service
Index (the “OSX") over the five-year period beginning on December 31, 2002, The results for the period from
December 31, 2002 through August 20, 2007, the date of the merger, reflect Hanover’s historical common stock
price adjusted for the 0.325 merger exchange ratio. We have used Hanover's historical common stock price
during this period because Hanover was determined to be the acquirer for accounting purposes in the merger.
The results for the period from August 21, 2007, when our common stock began trading on the New York
Stock Exchange, through December 31, 2007 reflect the price of our common stock. The results are based on
an investment of $100 in each of Hanover’s common stock, the S&P 500 Index and the OSX. The graph
assumes the reinvestment of dividends and adjusts all closing prices and dividends for stock splits.

Comparison of Five Year Cumulative Total Return

350

300

250

200

DOLLARS

150

Dec-02 Dec-03 Dec-04 Dec-05 Dec-06 Dec-07
I —e— EXH. - -a= = S&P 500 —— OSX ]

The performance graph shall not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating
by reference this Annual Report on Form 10-K into any filing under the Securities Act of 933 or the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent that we specifically incorporate this information by
reference, and shall not otherwise be deemed filed under those Acts.
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We have never declared or paid any cash dividends to our stockholders and do not anticipate paying such
dividends in the foreseeable future. The board of directors anticipates that all cash flow generated from
operations in the foreseeable future will be retained and used to pay down debt, repurchase company stock, or
develop and expand our business. Any future determinations to pay cash dividends to our stockholders will be
at the discretion of the board of directors and will be dependent upen our results of operations and financial
condition, credit and loan agreements in effect at that time and other factors deemed relevant by the board of
directors.

On August 20, 2007, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $200 million of our common
stock through August 19, 2009. Under the stock repurchase program, we may repurchase shares in open
market purchases or in privately negotiated transactions in accordance with applicable insider trading and other
securities laws and regulations. We may also implement all or part of the repurchases under a Rule 10b5-1
trading plan, so as to provide the flexibility to extend our share repurchases beyond the quarterly purchasing
window. During the period August 20, 2007 through September 30, 2007, we repurchased 641,300 shares of
our common stock at an aggregate cost of approximately $50 million. The following table provides
information with respect to our purchases of our common stock during the quarter ended December 31, 2007
pursuant to our stock repurchase program:

Total Number of

Total Number of
Shares Purchased
as Part of Publicly

Maximum Dollar
Value of Shares that
may yet be

Shares Average Price Announced Purchased under the
Period Purchased Paid per Share Programs Prograrms
10/01/07 - 10438707 .. ... ........ — 3 — — $150,015,416
11107 - 11/30/07 . ............ 553,200 81.15 553,200 105,123,236
12/01/07 - 12/31/07 ............. €3,900 79.71 ' 63,900 100,029,767
$81.00 617,100 $100,029,767

Total..................... 617,100
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

In the table below we have presented certain selected financial data for Exterran for each of the five years in
the period ended December 31, 2007. The historical consolidated financial data for 2005 through 2007 has
been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The historical consolidated financial data for
2003 and 2004 has been derived from our consolidated financial statemenis. The Company has made certain
reclassifications to the 2003 through 2006 consolidated statements of operations to conform to the 2007
presentation, these changes are discussed in Note 1 to the Financial Statements. The following information

' should be read together with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” in Item 7 of this report and the Consolidated Financial Statements in Itemn 15 of this report.

Years Ended December 31,

2007(1) 2006 2005 2004 2003
{In thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:
Revenues . ...........cvuvuun.. $2,540,485 $1,593,321 §$1,304311 $1,149238  $1,021,531
Gross margin(2) .. ............... 822,309 546,784 464,659 423,878 400,165
Selling, general and administrative . . . 265,057 197,282 176,831 170,010 159,313
Merger and integration expenses . . . . . 46,723 - — — —
Depreciation and amortization(3). . . . . 252,716 175,927 172,649 165,058 159,347
Fleet impairment(4) . ............. 61,945 — — — —
Interest expense(3) ............... 130,092 123,496 146,959 157,228 98,992
Leasing expense(3) .. ............. —_— — — e — 43,139
Securities related litigation

setttement(5). . ...... ... .. ... .. —_ — — (4,163) 42,991
Debt extinguishment costs(6). . ... ... 70,150 5,902 7318 — —
Equity in {income) loss of non-

consolidated affiliates ........... (12,498) (19,430) (21,466) (19,780) (23,014)
Other (income) expense, net . ....... (44,646) (50,897) (8,198) (15,151) (2,210)
Goodwill impairment ............. — —_ — — 35,466
Provision for income taxes ......... 11,894 28,782 27,714 24,767 3,620
Minority interest . . ............... 6,307 — — — —
Income (loss) from continving

Operations . . . ..........cc.uunn. 34,569 85,722 (37,148) (54,001) (117,488)
Cumulative effect of accounting

change, netof tax(3) ............ —_ 370 —_— —_ (86,910)
Net income (loss) . ... ... ........ 34,569 86,523 (38.017) (44,006) (208,259
Earnings (loss) per share from

continuing operations(7):

Basic ............... ... .. ... $ 076 § 261 % (1.25y $ (1.96) $ (4.46)

Diluted . . ...t $ 075 § 248 % (1.25) % (1.96)y $ (4.46)
Weighted average common and

common equivalent shares(7):

Basic ............ ... .. ... 45,580 32,883 29,756 27,557 26,365

Diluted.............. ... ... 46,300 36,411 29,756 27,557 26,365
Other Financial Data;
Capital expenditures:

Growth.............. .. ... ... $ 190,251 § 115254 § 79279 §$ 27871 § 57112

Maintenance . .. ............... 115,127 82,911 61,102 42,987 61,390

Other ....................... 46,812 48,418 14,765 19,638 23,964
Cash flows provided by {used in):

Operating activities . .. .......... $ 239,710 $ 209,089 $ 122487 $ 131,837 $ 164,735

Investing activities. . ............ (302,268) (168,168) (104,027 11,129 (43,470)

Financing activities . .. .......... 135,727 (18,134) {6,890) (162,350) (84,457)
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash. ..ot $ 149224 $ 73286 $ 48233 § 38076 $ 56,619
Working capital(8) .. ............, 670,482 326,565 351,694 301,893 279,050
Net property, plant and equipment. ... 3,533,505 1,863,452 1,823,100 1,876,348 2,027,654
Total assets. .. ................n. 6,863,523 3,070,889 2,862,996 2,771,229 2,942,274
Debt and convertible preferred

SECUTIHES. . ... oo e 2,333,924 1,369,931 1,478,948 1,643,616 1,782,823
Common stockholders’ equity ... . ... 3,162,260 1,014,282 909,782 760,055 753,488
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(1) Universal’s financial results have been included in our consolidated financial statements after the merger
date on August 20, 2007. Financial information for prior periods may not be comparable with 2007 due to
the impact of this business combination on our financial position and results of operation. See Note 2 w0
the Financial Statements for a description of the merger. See Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” for further discussion about the impact of the
merger on our results of operations and financial position for the year ended and as of December 31,
2007.

(2) Gross margin is defined, reconciled to net income (loss) and discussed further in Part II, Item 6 (“Selected
Financial Data — Non-GAAP Financial Measure™) of this report.

(3) In accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Ihterprelation No. 46, “Consolidation of Vari-
able Interest Entities, an interpretation of ARB 51 as revised in December 2003 (“FIN 46”), for periods
ending after June 30, 2003, we have included in our consolidated financial statements the special purpose
entities that leased compression equipment to us. As a result, on July 1, 2003, we added approximately
$897 million of compression equipment assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and approximately
$1,139.6 million of our compression equipment lease obligations (including approximately $1,105.0 million
in debt) to our balance sheet. This debt was redeemed in the third quarter of 2007.

{4) Management reviewed our fleet for units that would not be of the type, configuration, make or model that
management would want to continue to offer after the merger with Universal due to the cost to refurbish
the equipment, the increinental costs of maintaining more types of equipment and the increased financial
flexibility of the new cornpany to build new units in the configuration currently in demand by our custom-
ers. As a result of this review, we recorded an impairment to our fleet assets of $61.9 million in the third
quarter of 2007.

(5) In May 2003, Hanover reached an agreement that was subject to court approval, to settle securities class
actions, ERISA class actions and the stockholder derivative actions. The terms of the settlement became
final in March 2004 and required Hanover to: (a} make a cash payment of approximately $30 million to
the securities settlement fund (of which $26.7 million was funded by payments from Hanover’s directors
and officers’ insurance carriers), (b) issue 2.5 million shares of Hanover common stock to the securities
settlement fund, and (c) issve a contingent note with a principal amount of $6.7 million to the securities
settlement fund.

In April 2004, Hanover issued the $6.7 million contingent note related to the securities settlement. The
note was payable, together with accrued interest, on March 31, 2007 but was extinguished (with no money
paid under it) under the terms of the note because our common stock traded above the average price of
$12.25 per share for 15 consecutive wading days during the third quarter of 2004. As a result of the can-
cellation of the note in the third quarter of 2004, we reversed the note and the embedded derivative, which
resulted in a $4.0 million reduction to the cost of the securities-related litigation.

{6) In the third quarter of 2007, we refinanced a significant portion of Universal’s and Hanover’s debt that
existed before the merger. We recorded $70.2 million of debt extinguishment charges related to this refi--
nancing. The charges related to a call premium and tender fees paid to retire various Hanover notes that
were part of the debt refinancing and a charge of $16.4 million related to the write-off of deferred financ-
ing costs in conjunction with the refinancing.

(7} As a result of the merger between Hanover and Universal, each outstanding share of common stock of
Universal was converted into one share of Exterran common stock and each outstanding share of Hanover
common stock was converted into 0.325 shares of Exterran common stock. All share and per share
amounts have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the conversion ratio of Hanover common stock for all
periods presented.

(8) Working capital is defined as current assets minus current liabilities.
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NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURE

We define gross margin as total revenue less cost of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization expense).
Gross margin is included as a supplemental disclosure because it is a primary measure used by our
management as it represents the results of revenue and cost of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization
expense), which are key components of our operations. We believe gross margin is important because it
focuses on the current operating performance of our operations and excludes the impact of the prior historical
costs of the assets acquired or constructed that are utilized in those operations, the indirect costs associated
with our selling, general and administrative activities, the impact of our financing methods and income taxes.
Depreciation expense may not accurately reflect the costs required to maintain and replenish the operational
usage of our assets and therefore may not portray the costs from current operating activity. As an indicator of
our operating performance, gross margin should not be considered an alternative to, or more meaningful than,
net income as determined in accordance with GAAP. Our gross margin may not be comparable to a similarly
titled measure of another company. because other entities may not calculate gross margin in the same manner.

Gross margin has certain material limitations associated with its use as compared to net income (loss). These
limitations are primarily due to the exclusion of interest expense, depreciation and amortization expense and
selling, general and administrative expense. Each of these excluded expenses is material to our consolidated
results of operations. Because we intend to finance a portion of our operations through borrowings, interest
expense is a necessary element of our costs and our ability to generate revenue. Additionally, because we use
capital assets, depreciation expense is a necessary element of our costs and our ability to generate revenue and
selling, general and administrative expenses are necessary costs to support our operations and required
corporate activities. To compensate for these limitations, management uses this non-GAAP measure as a
supplemental measure to other GAAP results to provide a more complete understanding of our performance.

The following table reconciles our net income (loss) to gross margin (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Net income (loss) . .. ................... $ 34,569 $ 86,523 $(38,017) $(44,006) $(208,259)

Selling, general and administrative . . ... ... 265,057 197,282 176,831 170,010 159,313
Merger and integration expenses . ........ 46,723 — — — —
Depreciation and amortization . .......... 252,716 175,927 172,649 165,058 159,347
Fleet impairment . . ... ................ 61,945 — — — —
Interest Xpense. .. ... covvvenennne. . 130,092 123,496 146,959 157,228 98,992
Debt extinguishment costs . ............. 70,150 5,902 7,318 —_— —
Equity in (income) loss of non-consolidated

affiliates .............. ... ...... (12,498) (19,430)  (21,466) (19,780) (23,014)
Other (income} expense, net. . ........... {44,646) (50,897} (8,198) (15,151) (2,210)
Provision for income taxes. .. ........... 11,894 28,782 21,714 24,767 3,629
Minerity interest, netof tax . ............ 6,307 — — —_ —
Securities related litigation settlement. ., . . . — — —_ {4,163) 42,991
Goodwill impairment. . ................ —_ — —_ —_ 35,466
Leasing expense .............cc0cu..- — — — — 43,139
{Income) loss from discontinued operations,

netoftax.................... e — (368) 756 (6,314) (10,190)
{Gain) loss from sale of discontinued

operations, netoftax . ............... — (63) 113 (3,771 14,051
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net

oftax ... ... — (370) — — 86,910

Grossmargin......................... $822,309 $546,784  $464,659  $423,878  § 400,165

33




Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjuncrion with our financial statements, and the notes thereto, and the other financial information appearing
elsewhere in this repori. The following discussion includes forward-looking statements that involve certain
risks and uncertainties. See Part I (“Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements™) and Part I, Item 1A
{ “Risk Factors™} of this report.

Overview

We are a global market leader in the full service natural gas compression business and a premier provider of
operations, maintenance, service and equipment for oil and natural gas production, processing and transporta-
tion applications. We sell this equipment and provide complete operation and maintenance services for both
customer-owned equipment and our fleet of contract equipment. Qur customers include major and independent
oil and natural gas producers and distributors as well as national oil and natural gas companies in the couniries
in which we operate. Our maintenance business, together with our parts and service business, provides
solutions to customers that own their own compression and surface production and processing equipment, but
want to outsource their operations. We also fabricate compressor and oil and natural gas production and
processing equipment, and provide natural gas processing and treating and oilfield power generation services,
as a complement to our compression services. In addition, we provide engineering, procurement and
fabrication of critical process equipment for refinery and petrochemical facilities and tank farms and
evaporators and brine heaters for desalination plants,

Subsequent to the merger between Hanover and Universal, we evaluated our management process for
analyzing the performance of our operations. We have changed our segment reporting in accordance with

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles in order to enable investors to view our operations in a manner
similar to the way management does. Our Fabrication segment previously reported three product lines:
Compressor and Accessory Fabrication, Production and Processing Fabrication — Surface Equipment and
Production and Processing Fabrication — Belleli. We also renamed three of our segments as follows:

U.S. Rentals is now referred to as North America Contract Operations; International Rentals is now referred to
as Internationat Contract Operations; and Parts, Service and Used Equipment is now referred to as Aftermarket
Services. North America Contract Operations includes U.S. and Canada contract operations. The changes in
our reportable segments, including the reclassification on the consolidated statements of operations of the
related revenues and costs of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization), have been made to all periods
presented within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Hanover and Universal Merger

On August 20, 2007, Hanover and Universal completed their business combination pursuant to a merger. As a
result of the merger, each of Universal and Hanover became our wholly-owned subsidiary, and Universal
merged with and into us. Hanover was determined to be the acquirer for accounting purposes and, therefore,
our financial statements and the financial information included herein reflect Hanover’s historical results for
the periods prior to the merger date. For more information regarding the merger, see Note 2 to the Financial
Statermnents.

Industry Conditions and Trends

Natural Gas Industry.  Worldwide consumption of natural gas increased from approximately 53 trillion cubic
feet in 1980 to approximately 105 irillion cubic feet in 2006, although consumption levels in the U.S. declined
in the early 2000s, primarily due to an economic slowdown, and continue to be relatively {lat today. Industry
sources expect the iong-term growth trend of worldwide natural gas consumption to continue. We believe the
growing demand in electrical power generation is a contributing factor in the worldwide growth of natural gas
consumption as natural gas tends to be the fuel of choice for new power plants. )

The U.S. accounted for an estimated annual production of approximately 19 trillion cubic feet of natural gas
in calendar year 2006, or 18% of the worldwide total, compared to an estimated annual production of
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approximately 86 trillion cubic feet in the rest of the world. Industry sources estimate that the U.S. natural
gas production level will be approximately 21 trillion cubic feet in calendar year 2025, or 13% of the - |
worldwide total, compared to an estimated annual production of approximately 144 trillion cubic feet in the
rest of the world. As of Janvary 1, 2007, the U.S. natural gas reserves were estimated at 204 trillion cubic
feet, or 3.3% of the worldwide total.

Natural Gas Compression Services Industry. The natural gas compression services industry has experienced a
significant increase in the demand for its products and services from the early 1990s, and we believe the
contract compression services industry in the U.S. will continue to have growth opportunities due to the
following factors, among others:

« aging producing natural gas fields will require more compression to continue producing the same
volume of natural gas; and

* increasing production from unconventional sources, which include tight sands, shale and coal bed
methane, generally require more compression than production from conventional sources to produce the
same volume of natural gas.

More recently, the industry began to increase capital expenditure levels in the U.S. as increasing utilization i
levels caused a shortage in the supply of available, large horsepower units. During this expansion of the large '
horsepower fleet in the U.S., demand for certain smaller horsepower units moderated, partly as a result of

larger horsepower units replacing smaller horsepower units to gain efficiencies in natural gas production.

While the international contract compression services market is currently smaller than the U.S, market, we
believe there are growth opportunities in international demand for compression services and products due to
the following factors: ‘

* implementation of international environmental and conservation laws preventing the practice of flaring
natural gas and recognition of natural gas as a clean air fuel;

* a desire by a number of oil exporting nations to replace cil with natural gas as a fuel source in local
markets to allow greater expert of oil;

* increasing development of pipeline infrastructure, particularly in Latin America and Asia, necessary 10
transport natural gas to local markets;

+ growing demand for electrical power generation, for which the fuel of choice tends to be natural
gas; and

» privatization of state-owned energy producers, resulting in increased outsourcing due to the focus on
reducing capital expenditures and enhancing cash flow and profitability.

Company Performance Trends and Outlook

For the year ending December 31, 2008, we expect continued strong demand throughout the majority of our
contract operations segments. In the U.S., we expect to see continued strong demand for our contract
operations services that utilize large horsepower compressors, but moderating or decreasing dermnand for our
contract operations services that utilize smaller horsepower units. In international markets, we continue to
expect strong demand for our contract operations services, particularly for our Total Solutions projects
throughout Latin America and the Eastern Hemisphere. As a result of this continued strong demand, we expect
to add a similar amount of growth capital investment as compared to what we added on a combined basis
during 2007; however, our capital expenditure levels will exceed those during 2007 as the year ending
December 31, 2008 will include a full year of capital additions related to Universal operations. Within the
North America contract operations segment, we expect that operating costs will moderate during 2008. As a
result of the strong fundamentals we expect in the markets we serve, we expect our fabrication business to
improve in 2008 over 2007, and we expect fabrication revenue for 2008 to be in excess of 2007 levels.
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We are investing in key initiatives to help support the future growth of our company. These initiatives include
an increased marketing and business development commitment targeted ai international expansion and the
conversion of certain of our locations to our enterprise resource planning (“ERP”} system.

We intend for the Partnership to be our primary growth vehicle for our U.S. contract operations business. To
this end, we may contribute additional U.S. contract operations customers to the Partnership in 2008 in
exchange for cash and/or additional interests in the Partnership. Such transactions would depend on, among
other things, reaching agreement with the Partnership regarding the terms of the purchase, which may require
approval of the conflicts committee of the board of directors of the general partner of the Partnership, and the
Partnership’s ability to finance any such purchase.

Certain Key Challenges and Uncertainties

Market conditions in the natural gas industry, competition in the natural gas compression industry and the risks
inherent in our on-going international expansion continue to represent key challenges and uncertainties. In

-addition to those, we believe the following represent some of the key challenges and uncertainties we will face

in the near future.

Labor. As we continue to grow both in North America and internationally and in light of the currently
favorable energy industry market conditions, we believe our ability to hire, train and retain qualified personnel
continues to be challenging and important. In particular, the supply of experienced operational, fabrication and
field personnel continues to be tight and our demand for such personnel continues to grow. Although we have
been able to satisfy our personnel needs in these positions thus far, retaining these employees has been a
challenge. To increase retention of qualified operating personnel, we have instituted programs that enhance
skills and provide on-going training. Our ability to continue cur growth will depend in part on our success in
hiring, training and retaining these employees.

Smaller Horsepower Compression.  Over the course of the last eighteen months, the utilization of our small
and mid range horsepower compressors has decreased due to lower demand for those units by our customers
and increased competition with respect to those units. We believe that the lower customer demand has been
driven by our lack of investment in new smaller horsepower compressors coupled with a replacement of such
compressors with larger horsepower compressors as producers attempt to improve economics by maintaining
lower pressures in gathering lines. We also believe that the increase in competition for these units has been
driven by the low barriers to entry, including relatively low capital costs, associated with providing contract
compression services with smaller horsepower compressors. While we believe the demand for smaller

. horsepower compressor units will increase over time due to the favorable fundamentals of the compression

industry, further utilization declines could have an adverse effect on our future business.

Summary of Results

Net income (loss). We recorded consolidated net income of $34.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2007, as compared to consolidated net income of $86.5 million and consolidated net loss of $38.0 million for
the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Our results for 2007, 2006 and 2005 were affected
by charges and events that may not necessarily be indicative of our core operations or our future prospects and
impact comparability between years.
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Results by Business Segment. The following table summarizes revenues, expenses and gross margin percent-
ages for each of our business segments:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

Revenues: .
North America Contract Operations . .1............ $ 551,140 $ 384292 § 351,128
International Contract Operations . ... ............. 336,807 263,228 232587
Aftermarket Services . ... ... ... o e 274,489 179,043 152,456
Fabrication. . ... ... ... i 1,378,049 766,758 568,140

$2,540,485  $1,593321  $1,304,311

Cost of sales: ) ,

North America Contract Operations . . ............. $ 232,238 $ 156,554 3 142,657
International Contract Operations .. ............... 126,861 96,631 76,512
Aftermarket Services . .. ... .. i e 214,497 139,633 114,535
Fabrication. .. ......c..ovinvnnniiai e 1,144,580 653,719 505,948

$1,718,176  $1,046,537 § 839,652

Gross margin percentage:

- North America Contract Operations . .............. 58% 59% 59%
International Contract Operations ... .............. 62% 63% 67%
Aftermarket Services . ... ... ... . . . e 22% 22% 25%
Fabrication. . ....... ... ... e 17% 15% 11%

Operating Highlights

The following tables summarize our total available horsepower, operating horsepower, horsepower utilization
percentages and fabrication backlog.

December 31, 2007
{Horsepower in thousands)

Total Avaitable Horsepower (at period end):

NOPth AIMEHICA . . o .ttt et e e et e e e e e ie s 4,514
Intermational. . . .. ... e e 1,447
Total . . e e 5,961
Operating Horsepower (at period end):
North AMErica. .. ..o e e e e 3.632
International. . . . . o e e e e e i 1,306
3 o A O 4,938
Horsepower Utilization:
Spot(atperiod end) ... ... ... .. e e 83%
Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In millions)
Compressor and Accessory Fabrication Backlog ... ............. $ 3219 $325.1 § 854
Production and Processing Equipment Fabrication Backlog . ..... .. 787.6 482.5 287.7
Fabrication Backlog . .. .. ... oot e $1,109.5 $807.6  $373.1




Critical Accounting Estimates

This discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based upon our consolidated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the U.S. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates and accounting policies, including those related
to bad debts, inventories, fixed assets, investments, intangible assets, income taxes, revenue recognition and
contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical experience and on other assumptions that we
believe are reasonable under the circumstances. The results of this process form the basis of our judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions and these differences can be
material to our financial condition, results of operations and liquidity.

Allowances and Reserves

We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our
customers to make required payments. If the financial condition of a customer deteriorates, resulting in an
impairment of its ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is our best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our existing accounts
receivable. We determine the allowance based on historical write-off experience. We review the adequacy of
our allowance for doubtful accounts monthly. Balances aged greater than 90 days are reviewed individually for
collectibility. In addition, all other balances are reviewed based on significance and customer payment
histories. Account balances are charged off against the allowance after all means of collection have been
exhausted and the potential Tor recovery is considered remote, During 2007, 2006 and 2003, we recorded bad
debt expense of approximately $2.7 million, $2.5 million, and $2.0 million, respectively.

We write down our inventory for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable inventory equal to the difference
between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand
and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than those expected by management,
additional inventory write-downs may be required. During 2007, 2006 and 2005, we wrote-down inventory of
approximately $1.7 million, $2.3 million, and $0.1 million, respectively.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation for financial reporting purpases is computed on
the straight-line basis using estimated useful lives and salvage values.

Purchase Accounting

We applied purchase accounting in accordance with SFAS No. 141 “Business Combinations,” for our
acquisition of Universal. As described in Note 2 to the Financial Statements, we valued the acquired assets
and liabilities assumed at fair value. The preliminary allocation of the purchase price was based upon
preliminary valuations and our estimates and assumptions are subject to change upon the completion of
management’s review of the final valuations. We are in the process of finalizing valuations related to
identifiable intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, capitalized transaction costs, certain acquired
contracts and residual goodwill. Changes to the preliminary purchase price could impact future depreciation
and amortization expense as well as income tax expense. In addition, upon the finalization of our legal entity
structure, additional adjustments to deferred taxes may be required. The final valuation of net assets is
expected to be completed as soon as possible, but no later than one year from the acquisition date, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S.

Long-Lived Assets and Investments

We review for the impairment of long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment and assets held for
sale, whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
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recoverable. An impairment loss exists when estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the
use of the asset and its eventual disposition are less than its carrying amount. When necessary, an impairment
loss is recognized and represents the excess of the asset’s carrying value as compared to its estimated fair
value and is charged to the period in which the impairment occurred. The determination of what constitutes an
indication of possible impairment, the estimation of future cash flows and the determination of estimated fair
value are all significant judgments. We recorded a long-lived asset impairment of $61.9 million in the third
quarter of 2007 on fleet assets which were owned by Hanover prior to the merger that we will no longer use.
See Note 19 to the Financial Statements for further discussion of this charge. There were no significant
impairments in 2006 or 2005.

In addition, we perform an annual goodwill impairment test, pursuant to the requirements of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” in the fourth
quarter of each year or whenever events indicate impairment may have occurred, to determine if the estimated
recoverable value of the reporting unit exceeds the net carrying value of the reporting unit, including the
applicable goodwill. We determine the fair value of our reporting units using a combination of the expected
present value of future cash flows and a market approach. The present value of future cash flows is estimated
using our most recent forecast, the weighted average cost of capital and a market muitiple on the reporting
units’ earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization. Changes in forecasts could affect the
estimated fair value of our reporting units and result in a goodwill impairment charge in a future period. There
were no impairments in 2007, 2006 or 2005 related to our annual goodwill impairment test.

We hold investments in companies having operations in areas that relate to our business. We record an
investment impairment charge when we believe an investment has experienced a decline in value that is other
than temporary. Future adverse changes in market conditions or poor operating results of underlying
investments could result in losses or an inability to recover the carrying value of the investments that may not
be reflected in an investment’s current carrying value, thereby possibly requiring an impairment charge in the
future.

We own 35.5% of the SIMCO and Harwat Consortium, which owns, operates and services water injection
plants in Venezuela. During the third quarter of 2007, we determined that the financial condition and near and
long-term prospects of our investment in the SIMCO and Harwat Consortium had declined and that we had a
loss in our investment that was not temporary. This decline was primarily caused by increased costs to operate
the business and is not expected to improve in the near term. In the third quarter of 2007, we recorded an
impairment of our investment in the SIMCO and Harwat Consortium of $6.7 million, which is reflected as a
charge in equity in income (loss) of non-consolidated affiliates in our consolidated statements of operations.

Deferred Tax Assets '

As of December 31, 2007, our net ‘deferred tax liability was $224.8 million, which included gross deferred tax
assets of $557.5 million, offset by valuation allowances of $30.9 million, and gross deferred tax liabilities of
$751.4 million. Numerous assumptions are inherent in the estimation of future taxable income, including
assumptions about matters that are dependent on future events, such as future operating and financial
performance and market conditions.

Additionally, we must consider any prudent and feasible tax planning strategies that might minimize the
amount of tax liabilities recognized or the amount of any valuation allowance recognized against deferred tax
assets. We must also consider if we have the ability to implement these strategies should the forecasted
conditions actually occur. The principal tax planning strategy available to us relates to the permanent
reinvestment of the earnings of foreign subsidiaries. Assumptions related to the permanent reinvestment of the
earnings of foreign subsidiaries are reconsidered periodically to give effect to changes in our businesses and in
our tax profile.

Due 1o income from continuing operations before income taxes in 2006 and 2007, together with our
expectations for 2008 and future years, we have reached the conclusion that it is more likely than not that
certain of our deferred tax assets in the U.S. and foreign jurisdictions will be realized. Previously, because of
cumulative tax losses in the U.S. and other foreign jurisdictions, we were not able to reach the “more likely
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than not” criteria of SFAS No. 109 and had recorded valuation allowances against such deferred tax assets. We
have recorded valuation atlowances for certain other deferred tax assets (e.g., net operating losses of certain
foreign subsidiaries) that are not likely to be realized. If we are required to record and/or reverse additional
valuation allowances in the U.S. or in any other foreign jurisdiction, our effective tax rate will be impacted,
perhaps substantially, compared to the U.S. federal statutory rate.

As a result of the merger between Hanover and Universal, we have changed our position with respect to
foreign taxes by treating foreign taxes as credits rather than deductions. Foreign tax credits that are not utilized
in the year they are generated can be carried forward for 10 years offsetting payments of U.S. federal income
taxes on a dollar-for-dollar basis. We believe that we will generate sufficient taxable income in the future from
our operating activities as well as from the transfer of U.S. contract operations customer contracts and assets
to the Partnership that will cause us to use our net operating loss carryforwards earlier than we had expected
prior to the merger. After the utilization of our net operating loss carryforwards, we expect that we will be
able to utilize our foreign tax credits within the 10-year carryforward period. In addition, we intend to amend
our 2005 and 2006 U.S. federal income tax returns to make an election to credit foreign taxes that were
previousty deducted. The amendments will result in a $29.5 million benefit for foreign tax credits generated
prior to the merger that has been recorded as a purchase accounting adjustment. If we do not meet our
expectations with respect to taxable income generated by our operating activities and the transfer of assets to
the Partnership, we may not realize the full benefit from our foreign tax credits which would require us to
record a valuation allowance in our tax provision in future years.

.

.

Revenue Recognition — Percentage of Completion Accounting

We recognize revenue and profit for our fabrication operations as work progresses on long-term, fixed-price
contracts using the percentage-of-completion method when the applicable criteria are met, which relies on
estimates of total expected contract revenue and costs. We follow this method because reasonably dependable
estimates of the revenue and costs applicable to various stages of a contract can be made and because the
fabrication projects usually last several months. Recognized revenues and profit are subject to revisions as the
contract progresses to completion, Revisions in profit estimates are charged to income in the period in which
the facts that give rise to the revision become known. The typical duration of these projects is three to thirty-
six months. Due to the long-term nature of some of our jobs, developing the estimates of cost often requires
significant judgment.

We estimate percentage-of-completion for compressor and accessory fabrication on a direct labor hour to total
labor hour basis. This calculation requires management to estimate the number of total labor hours required
for each project and to estimate the profit expected on the project. Production and processing equipment
fabrication percentage-of-completion is estimated using the direct labor hour and cost to total cost basis. The
cost to total cost basis requires us to estimate the amount of total costs (labor and materials) required to
complete each project. Because we have many fabrication projects in process at any given time, we do not
believe that materially different results would be achieved if different estimates, assumptions or conditions
were used for any single project. '

Factors that must be considered in estimating the work to be completed and ultimate profit include labor
productivity and availability, the nature and complexity of work to be performed, the impact of change orders,
availability of raw materials and the impact of delayed performance. If the aggregate combined cost estimates
for all of our fabrication businesses had been higher or lower by 1% in 2007, our results of operations before
tax would have decreased or increased by approximately $11.4 million. As of December 31, 2007, we had
recognized approximately $214.9 million in estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts.

Contingencies and Litigation

We are substantially self-insured for worker’s compensation, employer’s liability, property, auto liability,
general liability and employee group health claims in view of the relatively high per-incident deductibles we
absorb under our insurance arrangements for these risks. In addition, we are not fully insured on all of our
offshore assets, Losses up to deductible amounts are estimated and accrued based upon known facts, historical
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trends and industry averages. We review these estimates quarterly and believe such accruals to be adequate.
However, insurance liabilities are difficult to estimate due o unknown factors, including the severity of an
injury, the determination of our liability in proportion to other parties, the timeliness of reporting of
occurrences, ongoing treatment or loss mitigation, general trends in litigation recovery outcomes and the
effectiveness of safety and risk management programs. Therefore, if our actual experience differs from the
assumptions and estimates used for recording the liabilities, adjustments may be required and would be
recorded in the period in which the difference becomes known. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had
recorded approximately $6.1 million and $4.5 million, respectively, in claim reserves.’

In the ordinary course of business, we are involved in various pending or threatened legal actions. While we
are unable to predict the ultimate outcome of these actions, SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies,”
requires management to make judgmenits about future events that are inherently uncertain. We are required to
record (and have recorded) a loss during any periad in which we believe, based on our experience, a
contingency is probable of resulting in a financial loss to us. In making its determinations of likely outcomes
of pending or threatened legal matters, management considers the evaluation of counsel knowledgeable about
each matter.

Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2006

The results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2007 include Universal’s operations for the 134 days
from the date of the merger, August 20, 2007, through December 31, 2007. Accordingly, these results of
operations are not representative of a full year of operating results for Exterran.

Summary

Revenue. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007 increased 59% to $2,540.5 million from

$1,593.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Approximately $450.5 million and $162.0 million of
the increase in revenues and gross margin (defined as revenues less cost of sales, excluding depreciation and
amortization expense), respectively, was due to the inclusion of Universal’s financial results after the merger
date on August 20, 2007. Gross margin, a non-GAAP financial measure, is reconciled, in total, to net income
(loss), its most directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP
within Part II, Ttern 6 (“Selected Financial Data - Non-GAAP Financial Measure™) of this report. Revenues in
the current year benefited from an improvement in market conditions compared to the prior year.

Net Income. Net income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $34.6 million, or a decrease of

$51.9 million, as compared to net income of $86.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, Net income
in the current year benefited from the inclusion of Universal’s results after the merger and an improvement in
market conditions compared to the prior year but decreased due to the charges discussed below. Net income
for the year ended December 31, 2006 benefited from an $8.0 million gain on the sale of assets in Canada, a
$28.4 million gain on the sale of our U.S. amine treating business and a benefit from the utilization of

$36.2 million of net operating and capital losses that previously had a valuation allowance {including the
reversal of $10.2 million of the vatuation allowance on our net deferred tax assets in the U.S.).
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Net income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was also impacted by the following
charges (in millions):

Year Ended
December 31,
_2007 2006
Merger and integration €XPense . . ... ... ..ottt $ 467 $—
Debt extinguishment charges . ... ....... ... ... e, 702 59
Fleet impairment . .. ... ............. S 61.9 —
Impairment of investment in non-consolidated affiliate (recorded in Equity in
(income) loss of non-consolidated affiliates) .. ................... ... ... 6.7 —
Interest rate swap termination (recorded in Interest expense) . .. .. ... e 7.0 —
Total . . e e $192.5 $59
Summary of Business Segment Results
North America Contract Operations
' Year Ended December 31, Increase
2007 2006 (Decrease)
(In thousands)
Revenue . . ... . e e e $551,140  $384,292 43%
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization
BXPBISE) « o v ottt e e e e 232,238 156,554 48%
Grossmargin . .. ... .t e $318,902  $227,738 40%.
Gross margin Percentage . . .. ..o ut e nr i 58% 59% (1Y%

The increase in revenue and gross margin was primarily due to the inclusion of the Universal results after the
merger, which accounted for approximately $158.6 million and $92.9 million of the increase in revenue and

" gross margin, respectively. Gross margin percentage (defined as revenue less cost of sales, excluding
depreciation and amortization ¢xpense, divided by revenue) was negatively impacted in the current year as
compared to the prior year due to higher repair and maintenance expenses.

International Contract Operations
Year Ended December 31,

Increase
2007 2006 (Decrease)
(in thousands)
Revenue....... ... ... . . .. . $336.807  $263,228 28%
Cost of sales {excluding depreciation and amortization

X PEIISE) . . e e 126,861 96,631 31%
Gross margin .. ... ... .o .t e $209946  $166,597 26%
Gross margin percentage. .. ... ... ... ..o 62% 63% (1)%

The increase in revenue and gross margin was primarily due to the inclusion of the Universal results after the
merger and accounted for approximately $50.8 million and $37.4 million of the increase in revenue and gross
margin of international contract operations, respectively. The remaining increase in international contract
operations revenue during the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to the year ended December 31,
2006, was due primarily to increased revenue in Latin America of approximately $21.8 million. Inclusion of
the results of Universal after the merger date improved our gross margin percentage by approximately 2% for
the year ended December 31, 2007, This increase in gross margin percentage was offset by higher labor and
repair and maintenance costs in Argentina and the Eastern Hemisphere. Gross margin percentage was also
negatively impacted by lower revenues and margins in Nigeria during the year ended December 31, 2007.
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Revenue related to our Nigerian Cawthorne Channel Project was not recognized during the year ended
December 31, 2007; however, we recorded expenses of $3.6 million related to this project. The year ended
December 31, 2006 included $7.4 million in revenue and $5.6 million in expenses related to the project. For
further information regarding the Cawthorne Channel Project, see Note 18 to the Financial Statements.

Aftermarket Services

Year Ended December 31, Increase

2007 2006 {Decrease)
(In thousands)
REVETIUR .« v oot e e e ettt ettt a e e e e $274.489  $179,043 53%
Cost of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization )
EXPEMSE) .+ oottt 214,497 139,633 54%
Gross margin . .................. [N $ 59,992 § 39410 52%
Gross Margin PETCERTAZE . . . v v v v v o v v i nnn oo ons 22% 22% 0%

The increase in revenue and gross margin was primarily due to the inclusion of the Universal results after the
merger and accounted for approximately $84.3 million and $17.7 million of the increase in revenue and gross
margin of aftermarket services operations, respectively. The remaining increase in aftermarket services revenue
and gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2007 was primarily due to an increase in international
sales, primarily in the Eastern Hemisphere.

Fabrication
Year Ended December 31, Increase
2007 2006 (Decrease)
{In thousands)

REVEIUE . v v oot ettt e e e et e et s $1.378,049  $766,758 830%

Cost of sales {excluding depreciation and amortization .
EXPENSE) v o ov v ie e 1,144,580 653,719 75%
GIOSS INATZIN - -+« oo v v v oo r i e e iiia e es $ 233469 $113,039 107%
Gross margin Percentage . ... ... ..vuevvuoc s 1 7% 15% 2%

The inclusion of the Universal results after the merger accounted for approximately $156.8 million and

$14.0 million of the increase in revenue and gross margin, respectively. Approximately $49.1 million of
Universal’s revenues related to three projects in the Eastern Hemisphere accounted for under the completed
contract method of accounting that were near completion on the merger date and were completed by
December 31, 2007. Due to the adjustment to record Universal’s inventory at fair value pursuant to the
allocation of the purchase price on the date of merger, the value of the inventory related to these projects was
increased to their sales price, which resuited in a gross margin percentage of 0% on these projects. For further
information regarding the purchase price allocation with the merger, see Note 2 10 the Financial Statements.

The remaining increase in fabrication revenue and gross margin during the year ended December 31, 2007,
compared to the year ended December 31, 2006, was due primarily to improved market conditions that led to
higher sales levels and better pricing. The product lines compressor and accessory fabrication, production and
processing equipment fabrication and installations comprised 44%, 33% and 23%, respectively, of the increase
in fabrication revenues for the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to the year ended December 31,
2006. Our Eastern Hemisphere operations were responsible for 69% of the increase in fabrication revenues for
the year ended December 31, 2007, compared to the year ended December 31, 2006. During the year ended
December 31, 2007, one of our facilities in the Eastern Hemisphere incurred $16.3 million of cost over-runs
on a large project, which partially offset the impact of improved pricing and market conditions on gross
margin and gross margin percentage.
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Costs and expenses
Year Ended December 31,

Increase
2007 2006 (Decrease)
(In thousands)
Selling, general and administrative .. ... ................. $265,057 $197,282 34%
Merger and integration eXpenses . ... ......... ... © 46,723 — n/a
Depreciation and amortization. ... ...................... 252,716 175,927. 44%
Fleet impairment ... ... .. .... ... ... .. i ireninin... 61,945 — /a
Inferest @Xpense . ... ... ..t 130,092 123,496 3%
Debt extinguishment costs. . ................ ... ....... 70,150 5,902 1,089%
_Equity in income of non-consolidated affiliates . ............ (12,498) (19,430) (36)%
Other (income) expense, net . . .. ..............uuov. ... (44,646) (50,897) (12)%

The increase in selling, general and administrative expenses (“SG&A™) was primarily due to the inclusion of
Universal’s results after the merger and accounted for approximately $49.4 million of the increase in SG&A
expense. The remaining increase in SG&A expense was pritnarily due to higher compensation expenses and
costs associated with the increase in business activity. As a percentage of revenue, SG&A for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 was 10% and 12%, respectively.

Merger and integration expenses related to the merger between Hanover and Universal were $46.7 million
during the year ended December 31, 2007. These expenses were primarily comprised of amortization of
retention bonus awards, acceleration of vesting of Hanover restricted stock, stock options and long-term cash
incentives, change of control payments for Hanover executives and severance for Hanover employees.
Acceleration of vesting of restricted stock and stock options, change of control payments and severance related
to Universal employees were recorded as part of the purchase price allocation and therefore are not reflected
in merger and integration expenses. For further information regarding merger and integration expenses, see
Note 2 to the Financial Statements.

" The inclusion of Universal’s results after the merger accounted for approximately $54.9 million of the increase
in depreciation and amortization expense. The remaining increase in depreciation and amortization expense
during the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2006 was primarily
due to property, plant and equipment additions.

We recorded an impairment of fleet equipment of $61.9 million in the three months ended September 30,
2007. For further information regarding the impairment, see Note 19 to the Financial Statements.

The increase in interest expense during the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2006, was primarily due to the inclusion of additional interest related to Universal’s debt after
the merger compared to interest on our debt before the merger and a $7.0 million charge 10 interest expense in
the third quarter of 2007 from the termination of two fair value hedges. These increases were partially offset
by a reduction in our effective interest rate to 6.3% (excluding the $7.0 million charge for termination of
interest rate swaps} for the year ended December 31, 2007 from 8.5% for the year ended December 31, 2006.
Qur effective interest rate decreased after the merger due to the debt refinancing in the third quarter of 2007.
For turther information regarding the debt refinancing, see Note 11 to the Financial Statements.

The increase in debt extinguishment costs was due to call premium and tender fees paid to retire various
Hanover notes that was part of the debt refinancing and a charge of $16.4 million related to the write-off of
deferred financing costs in conjunction with the refinancing completed during the third quarter of 2007, For
further information regarding the debt refinancing, see Note 11 to the Financial Statements. Debt extinguish-
memt costs for the year ended December 31, 2006 relate to the call premium to repay our 11% Zero Coupon
Subordinated Notes due March 31, 2007.

The decrease in equity in income of non-consolidated affiliates was partially caused by lower equity in
earnings from our Venezuelan joint venture El Furrial. El Furrial is a joint venture in which we have a 33.3%
ownership interest, that operates natural gas compression plants in Venezuela. During the year ended
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December 31, 2007, we recorded equity income of $2.6 million related to El Furrial compared to $6.6 million
in equity income for the year ended December 31, 2006. In addition, we recorded a charge of $6.7 million in
the third quarter of 2007 on our investment in the SIMCO and Harwat Consortium due 1o an impairment of
our investment that was determined to be other than temporary. For further information regarding the SIMCO
and Harwat Consortium charge, see Note 8 to the Financial Statements.

The decrease in other (income) expense, net, was primarily due to a pre-tax gain of $28.4 million on the sale
of our U.S. amine treating business in the first quarter of 2006 and an $8.0 million pre-tax gain on the sale of
assets used in our fabrication facility in Canada during the second quarter of 2006. The decrease in other, net,
was partially offset by a $19.4 miltion increase in gains on sales of trading securities. From time to time, we
purchase short-term debt securities denominated in U.S. dollars and exchange them for short-term debt
securities denominated in local currency in Latin America to achieve more favorable exchange rates. These
funds are utilized in our international contract operations which have experienced an increase in operating
costs due to local inflation. The decrease in other, net, was also partiaily offset by an increase in gains from
the sale of used equipment for the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared to the year ended December 31,
2006. Gains on the sale of used equipment for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $7.4 million
and $1.8 million, respectively.

Income Taxes

Year Ended -
December 31, Increase
2007 2006 (Decrease)
(In thousands)
Provision for inCoOme taxes . ... ......-.ooneen. L $11,894  $28,782 (59)%
Bffective taX Tale - . . . o i it e e et et e e 22.5% 25.1% (3%

The decrease in the provision for income taxes was primarily due to the following factors: (i) a $37.0 million
reduction in U.S. federal taxes due to a decrease in the U.S. component of income from continuing operations
before income taxes, which was partially offset by benefits previously realized in 2006 from the reversal of
$36.2 million of valuation allowances that had been recorded against U.S. net operating loss carryforwards and
capital loss carryforwards, (i) an $8.6 million benefit realized in 2007 from reversing valuation allowances
that were previously recorded against net operating losses of certain foreign subsidiaries, (ii1) a $4.6 million
reduction in residual U.S. federal tax related to foreign dividends paid, or deemed paid, in 2006, and {iv) a net
benefit of $5.6 million from claiming foreign taxes as credits rather than deductions in 2007.

Due to income from continuing operations before income taxes in 2006 and 2007, together with our
expectations for 2008 and future years, we have reached the conclusion that it is more likely than not that
certain of our deferred tax assets in the U.S. and certain foreign jurisdictions will be realized. Previously,
because of cumulative tax losses in the U.S. and certain foreign jurisdictions, we were not able to reach the
“more likely than not” criteria of SFAS No. 109 and had recorded valuation allowances against such deferred
tax assets. We have recorded valuation allowances for certain other deferred tax assets (e.g., net operating
losses of certain foreign subsidiaries) that are not likely to be realized in the future. If we are required to
record and/or reverse additional valuation allowances in the U.S. or in foreign jurisdictions, our effective tax
rate will be impacted, perhaps substantially, compared to the U.S. federal statutory rate.

Minority Interest

As of December 31, 2007, minority interest is primarily comprised of the portion of the Partnership’s capital
and earnings that is applicable to the 49% limited partner interest in the Partnership not owned by us. See
Note 2 to the Financial Statements. As of December 31, 2006, minority interest primarily represented the
equity of the entities that leased compression equipment to us. These equity interests were settled as part of
the redemption of Hanover’s equipment lease obligations, as discussed in Note 11 to the Financial Statements.
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Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes, Net of Tax

On January 1, 2006, we recorded the cumulative effect of a change in accounting related to our adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R), “Stock-Based Payments,” of $0.4 million (net of tax of $0) which related to the requirement
to estimate future forfeitures on restricted stock awards.

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005
Summary

Revenue. Our revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $1,593.3 million compared to revenue of
$1,304.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Our revenue increased due to improved market
conditions and our focus on improving sales.

Net Income.  Net income for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $86.5 million compared with a net loss
of $38.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Our net income improved due to an improvement in
market conditions and our focus on improving sales and margins. In addition, results for the year ended
December 31, 2006 benefited from a pre-tax gain of $28.4 million on the sale of our U.S. amine treating
business, an $8.0 million pre-tax gain on the sale of our fabrication facilities in Canada and a benefit from the
utilization of $36.2 million of net operating and capital losses that previously had a valuation allowance
(including the reversal of $10.2 million of the valuation allowance on our net deferred tax assets in the U.S.).
Results for the year ended December 31, 2006 were also impacted by debt extinguishment costs of $5.9 million
related to the call premium to repay our 11% Zero Coupon Subordinated Notes due March 31, 2007. Net loss
in 2005 included $7.3 million in debt extinguishment costs and $2.5 million related to write-off of deferred
financing costs. '

Summary of Business Segment Results

North America Contract Operations
Year Ended December 31,

Increase
2006 2005 (Decrease)
_ (In thousands)
Revenue................co...u.., P $384.292  $351,128 9%
Cost of Sales (excluding depreciation and amortization .
CXPEINSE) . . o ottt e it e e 156,554 142,657 10%
Gross MATEIN . .. .ottt e ettt 8227738  $208.471 9%
Gross Margin Percentage . . . . . ..o ov v et i 59% 59% 0%

North Ametica contract operations revenue increased during the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to
the year ended December 31, 2005, due primarily to improvement in market conditions that led to an
improvement in pricing and an increase in contracted horsepower of approximately 3%. Gross margin
percentage for the year ended December 31, 2006 benefited from price increases, but was offset by $2.1 million
of incremental expenses related to our program to refurbish approximately 200,000 horsepower of idie

U.S. compression equipment and the impact of recording increased incentive compensation expenses of
approximately $4.3 million, including the impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-
Based Payment” (“SFAS Ne. 123(R)™).
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International Contract Operations

Year Ended December 31, Increase
2006 2005 (Decrease)
(In thousands)
REVENUE . . . oottt e et e $263,228  $232,587 13%
Cost of Sales (excluding depreciation and amortization

BXPEIISE) - + « ¢ v oottt 96,631 76,512 26%
GIOSS MATZIT . . . ot v e s e ia e ie s $166,597 $156,075 7%
Gross margin PECENIage . . . . ..o oo vvnanonrrnrccno s 63% 67% ()%

During the year ended December 31, 2006, international contract operations revenue and gross margin
increased, compared to the year ended December 31, 2005, primarily due to increased revenue in Venezuela,
Mexico, Brazil and Argentina. Gross margin percentage decreased primarily due to increased labor cosis in
Argentina of approximately $2.2 million and higher repair and maintenance costs in Venezuela, Brazil and
Mexico. Additionally, approximately $9.3 million of billings related to the Cawthorne Channel Project in 2006
were not recognized due to the local unrest and uncertainty about when the project’s operations will go back
on-line (see further discussion in Note 18 of the Financial Statements).

Aftermarket Services

- »  Year Ended December 31, Increase
2006 2005 (Decrease)
(In thousands)
REVEMUE . « o it vt v et ae e e $179,043  $152,456 17%
Cost of Sales (excluding depreciation and amortization

BXPEIISE) ¢ o vttt et e 139,633 114,535 22%
GrOSS MATZIN « . . o0 e et ia e e me e e $ 39410 § 37921 4%
Gross mMargin PEICENTAZE . « « o« v v v v v v v v vn s e aeenas 22% 25% (3)%

Aftermarket services revenue and gross margin for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased compared to
the year ended December 31, 2005 primarily due to an increase in North American sales, partially offset by a
decrease in international sales. Gross margin percentage decreased for the year ended December 31, 2006 as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2005 due to lower margins on North American sales.

Fabrication
Year Ended December 31, Increase
2006 2005 {Decrease)
(In thousands)
REVEMUE . .« . v v ettt e ettt et e $766,758  $568,140 35%
Cost of Sales (excluding depreciation and amortization

EXPEIISE) « - o o\ v v e e 653,719 505,948 20%
GIOSS INATEIB . . . oot e e e ce e a e ms e $113,039  § 62,192 82%
Gross margin Percentage. . . . . . oo v v v et 15% 1% 4%

For the year ended December 31, 2006, fabrication revenue, gross margin and gross margin percentage
increased primarily due to improved market conditions that led to higher sales levels, better pricing and an
improvement in operating efficiencies. Gross margin percentage in the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to the prior year was negatively impacted by 1% from increased installation revenues at reduced
gross margin percentages. In addition, gross margin and gross margin percentage during the year ended
December 31, 2005 was negatively impacted by poor performance on a few jobs. As of December 31, 2006,
we had fabrication backlog of approximately $807.6 million consisting of $325.1 million of compressor
fabrication backlog and $482.5 million of production equipment fabrication backlog. As of December 31,
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2005, we had fabrication backlog of approximately $373.1 million consisting of $85.4 million of compressor
fabrication backlog and $287.7 million of production equipment fabrication backlog,

Costs and expenses
Year Ended December 31,

Increase
2006 2005 {Decrease)
(In thousands)

Selling, general and administrative . ..................... $197,282  $176,831 12%
Depreciation and amortization. .. ....................... 175,927 172,649 2%
Interest eXpense - . ......ovurinrienranenn.s . 123,496 146,959 16)%
Debt extinguishment Costs. . .. ... .. ...t innan . 5,902 7,318 (19%
Equity in income of non-consolidated affiliates . . ... ........ (19,430) (21,466) (9%
Other (income) expense, net . .. ..., (50,897) (8,198) 521%

SG&A in 2006 was $197.3 tmillion compared to $176.8 million in 2005. The increase in SG&A expense for
the year was due primarily to higher compensation expenses of approximately $16.1 million, including the
impact of our adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) and other costs associated with the increase in business activity.
SG&A expenses as a percentage of revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006 decreased to 12% from
14% in the prior year. As a percentage of revenues, SG&A expense decreased due to our efforts to manage
SG&A costs while achieving an increased level of business.

Depreciation and amortization expense for 2006 was $175.9 million, compared to $172.6 million in 2005. The
increase in depreciation and amortization expense was primarily due to property, plant and equipment
additions since December 31, 2005.

Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 decreased $23.5 miltion to $123.5 million, from the
same period in the prior year, The decrease in interest expense was primarily due to a decrease in outstanding
debt that was primarily due to our August 2005 public offering of 13.2 million shares of common stock,
resulting in approximately $179.1 million of net proceeds that we used to redeem $167.0 million in
indebtedness and repay $5.2 million in minority interest obligations under our 2001 A compression equipment
lease obligations during September 2005. In addition, our overall effective interest rate on outstanding debt
decreased to 8.5% for the year ended December 31, 2006 from 9.3% for the prior year. This decrease in the
effective interest rate was primarily due to the March 2006 redemption of our 11% Zero Coupon Subordinated
Notes using proceeds from our public offering of $150 million 7.5% Senior Notes due 2013 and borrowings
under our bank credit facility. '

Debt extinguishment costs for the year ended December 31, 2006 were $5.9 million, resulting from the call
premium paid in connection with the redemption of our 11% Zero Coupon Subordinated Notes due March 31,
2007. Debt extinguishment costs for the year ended December 31, 2005 were $7.3 million, resuling from the
call premium paid in connection with the partial redemption and repayment of the 2001 A compression
equipment lease obligations in September 2005.

Equity in income of non-consclidated affiliates decreased by $2.1 million to $19.4 million during the year
ended December 31, 2006, from $21.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2005. This decrease is
primarily due to reduced operating results for the SIMCO joint venture caused by incréased operating costs in
2006. '

Other (income) expense, net increased to income of $50.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to income of $8.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in other, net was .
primarily due to a pre-tax gain of $28.4 million on the sale of our U.S. amine treating business in the first
quarter of 2006 and an $8.0 million pre-tax gain on the sale of assets used in our fabrication facility in Canada
during the second quarter of 2(106. The increase in other {income) expense, net was partially offset by a
decrease in gains from the sale of used equipment for the year ended December 31, 2006. Gains on the sale of
used equipment for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 were $1.8 million and $12.1 million,
respectively. Other (income) expense, net for the year ended December 31, 2006 includes a benefit of
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$4.3 million for foreign exchange gains as compared to a foreign exchange loss of $7.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005.

Income Taxes

Year Ended
December 31, Increase
2006 2005 (Decrease)
(In thousands)
Provision fOr iNCOME taXeS . . - . - . o vt vttt mme et et aanan e $28,782 $27,714 4%
Effective taX Ta18 . . . . . it ettt i e s 251% (293.8)% 319%

The increase in the effective tax rate was primarily due to the following factors: (i) an increase in the

U.S. component of income from continuing operations before income taxes, which was partially offset by the
reversal of $36.2 million of valuation allowances during 2006 that was previously recorded against U.S. net
operating loss carryforwards and capital loss carryforwards, (ii) the impact of changes in loss jurisdictions,
(iii) an increase of approximately $3.0 million in deferred tax expense related to the enactment of the Texas
Margin tax, and (iv) the reversal of $4.3 million of tax reserves during 2005 related to Canadian, Nigerian and
Venezuelan tax issues that we no longer believe it was probable that the liabilities would be incurred or the
statute of limitations had expired.

Due to the U.S. component of income from continuing operations before income taxes in 2006 and our
expectations for income in 2007 and future years, during the fourth quarter of 2006, we reached the conclusion
that it is more likely than not that our net deferred tax assets in the U.S. would be realized and we reversed
valuation allowances that had been recorded in prior years. Previously, because of cumulative tax losses in the
U.S., we were not able to reach the “more likely than not” criteria of SFAS No. 109 and had recorded
valuation allowance against our U.S. deferred tax assets. We have recorded valuation allowances for certain
other deferred tax assets (e.g., net operating losses of certain foreign subsidiaries) that are not likely to be
realized in the future. If we are required to record and/or reverse additional valuation allowances in the U.S. or
foreign jurisdictions, our effective tax rate will be impacted, perhaps substantially, compared to the U.S. federal
statutory rate.

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Changes, Net of Tax

On January 1, 2006, we recorded the cumulative effect of a change in accounting related to our adoption of
' SFAS No. 123(R) of $0.4 million which relates to the requirement to estimate forfeitures on restricted stock
awards.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our unrestricted cash balance was $149.2 million at December 31, 2007, compared to $73.3 million at
December 31, 2006. Working capital increased to $670.5 million at December 31, 2007 from $326.6 million at
December 31, 2006. The increase in working capital was primarily attributable to the addition of Universal’s
working capital.
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Our cash flow from operating, investing and financing activities, as reflected in the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows, are summarized in the table below (In thousands):

For the Year Ended December 31: 2007 2006

Net cash provided by (used .in) continuing operations(1):

Operating activities . . .. .. ottt e $ 239710 § 209,535
Investing activities. . . - . . .. ..o e e e (302,268) (168,168)
Financing activities . . .. . ... ... oo i e 135,727 (18,134)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents .. .. ... ... 2,769, 2,266
Discontinued operations . .. .......... ...ttt —_ (446)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents . . ........................ $ 75938 § 25053

(1) The cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2007 include Universal’s operations for the 134 days
from the date of the merger, August 20, 2007, through December 31, 2007. Accordingly, these cash flows
are not representative of a full year of operating results for Exterran.

Operating Activities: The increase in cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31,
2007 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2006 was primarily due to the payment during the year
ended December 31, 2006 of $86.1 million of interest that had accreted from August 31, 2001 to March 31,
2006 on our 11% Zero Coupon Subordinated Notes, which were redeemed in the first quarter of 2006. Our
2007 cash flows also benefited from a decrease in inventory, excluding the impact of the merger, and the
inclusion of operating cash flows from Universal after the merger date of August 20, 2007. Partially offsetting
these increases to cash provided by operating activities during the year ended December 31, 2007 were
decreases in advance billings and an increase in cost in excess of billings, excluding the impact of amounts
acquired in the merger. The decrease in inventory and advance billings, excluding the impact of amounts
acquired in the merger, was due to the completion of a large project in the Eastern Hemisphere.

Investing Activities: The increase in cash used in investing activities during the year ended December 31,
2007 as compared to the year ended December 31, 2006 was primarily attributable to higher capital
expenditures during the year ended December 31, 2007 and $52.1 million of proceeds from sales of businesses
in the year ended December 21, 2006. This increase in cash used in investing activities was partially offset by
cash acquired in the Universal merger during the year ended December 31, 2007.

Financing Activities: The increase in cash provided by financing activities was primarily due to increased
borrowings to fund increased capital expenditures and an increase in cash provided from stock option
exercises. Cash provided by financing activities was also impacted by approximately $100 million of stock
repurchases made by us during the year ended December 31, 2007.

Capital Expenditures: We generally invest funds necessary to fabricate fleet additions when our idle
equipment cannot be reconfigured to economically fulfill a project’s requirements and the new equipment
expenditure is expected to generate economic returns, over its expected useful life, that exceed our return on
capital targets. We currently plan to spend approximately $400 million to $500 million in net capital
expenditures during 2008 including (1) fleet equipment additions and (2} approximately $110 miilion to
$120 million on equipment maintenance capital.

Long-Term Debt and Debt Refinancing: Following the merger of Hanover and Universal, we completed a
refinancing of a significant amount of our outstanding debt on the merger date. We entered into a $1.65 billion
senjor secured credit facility and a $1.0 billion asset-backed securitization facitity. As a result of this
refinancing, substantially all of the debt of Universal and Hanover outstanding on the merger date has been
retired or redeemed, with the exception of Hanover’s convertible senior debt securities and the credit facility
of the Partnership. For more information regarding the refinancing and the repayment of debt, see Note 11 to
the Financial Statements, '

On August 20, 2007, we entered into a five-year credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement™) with various
financial institutions as the lenders. The Credit Agreement consists of (a) a revolving senior secured credit
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facility (the “Revolver”) in the aggregate amount of $850 million, which includes a variable allocation for a
Canadian tranche and the ability to issue letters of credit under the facility and (b} a term loan senior secured
credit facility, in the aggregate amount of $800 million with principal payments due on multiple dates through
June 2013 (collectively, the “Credit Facility™). Subject to certain conditions, at our request and with the
approval of the lenders, the aggregate commitments under the Credit Facility may be increased by an
additional $400 million less certain adjustments, including the amount of any outstanding borrowing under the
2007 ABS Fucility in excess of $300 million.

The Credit Agreement bears interest, if the borrowings are in U.S. dollars, LIBOR or a Base Rate, at our
option, plus an applicable margin or, if the borrowings are in Canadian dollars, at our option, U.S. dollar
LIBOR, U.S. dollar Base Rate or Canadian prime rate plus the applicable margin or the Canadian Dollar
bankers’ acceptance (“CDOR”) rate. The applicable margin varies depending on the debt ratings of our senior
secured indebtedness (i) in the case of LIBOR loans, from 0.65% to 1.75% or (ii) in the case of Base Rate or
Canadian prime rate loans, from 0.0% to 0.75%. The applicable margin at December 31, 2007 was 0.825%.
The Base Rate is the higher of the U.S. Prime Rate or the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5%. At December 31,
2007, all amounts outstanding were LIBOR loans and the weighted average interest rate excluding the effect
of related cash flow hedges was 5.8%. ’

The Credit Agreement contains various covenants with which we must comply, including, but not limited to,
limitations on incurrence of indebtedness, investments, liens on assets, transactions with affiliates, mergers,
consolidations, sales of assets and other provisions customary in similar types of agreements, We must also
maintain, on a consolidated basis, required leverage and interest coverage ratios. Additionally, the Credit
Agreement contains customary conditions, representations and warranties, events of default and indemnifica-
tion provisions. Our indebtedness under the Credit Facility is collateralized by liens on substantially all of our
personal property in the U.S. and Canada. The assets of the Partnership and our wholly-owned subsidiary,
Exterran ABS 2007 LLC (along with its subsidiaries “Exterran ABS”), are not collateral under the Credit
Agreement. We have executed a U.S. Pledge Agreement pursuant to which we and our Significant Subsidiaries
(as defined in the Credit Agreement) are required to pledge our equity and the equity of certain subsidiaries.
The Partnership and Exterran ABS are not pledged under this agreement and do not guarantee debt under the
Credit Facility.

As of December 31, 2007, we had $180.0 million in outstanding borrowings and $323.2 million in ietters of
credit outstanding under our Revolver. Additional borrowings of up to approximately $346.8 million were
available under that facility as of December 31, 2007.

On August 20, 2007, Exterran ABS entered into a $1.0 billion asset-backed securitization facility (the *2007
ABS Facility”) and issued $400 million of Series 2007-1 notes under this facility. On September 18, 2007, an
additional $400 million of Series 2007-1 notes (collectively with the August 20, 2007 issuance, the

“Series 2007-1 Notes”) were issued under this facility. Interest and fees payable to the notehelders will accrue
on the Series 2007-1 Notes at a variable rate consisting of LIBOR plus an applicable margin. For outstanding
amounts up to $800 million, the applicable margin is 0.825%. For amounts outstanding over $800 million, the
applicable margin will be 1.35%. The weighted average interest rate at December 31, 2007 on the

Series 2007-1 Notes excluding the effect of related cash flow hedges was 5.9%. The Series 2007-1 Notes are
revolving in nature and are payable in July 2012. The amount outstanding at any time is limited to the lower
of (i) 80% of the appraised value of the natural gas compression equipment owned by Exterran ABS and its
subsidiaries, (ii} 4.5 times free cash flow or (iii) the amount calculated under an interest coverage test. The
related indenture contains customary terms and conditions with respect to an issuance of asset-backed
securities, including representations and warranties, covenants and events of default.

Repayment of the Series 2007-1 Notes has been secured by a pledge of all of the assets of Exterran ABS,
consisting primarily of a fleet of natural gas compressors and related contracts to provide compression services
to our customers. Under the 2007 ABS facility, we had $9.1 million of restricted cash as of December 31,
2007.

’

The Partnership, as guarantor, and EXLP Operating LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Partnership (“the
Operating Partnership” and together with the Partnership, the “Partnership Borrowers™), entered into a senior
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secured credit agreement in 2006. The credit facility under the credit agreement was expanded in 2007 and
consists of a five-year $315 million revolving credit facility, which matures in October 2011, As of

December 31, 2007, there was $217.0 million in outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit facility and
$98.0 million was available for additional borrowings. Subject to certain conditions, at the request of the
Partnership, and with the approval of the lenders, the aggregate commitments under the revolving credit
facility may be increased by an additional $135 million.

The Partnership’s revolving credit facility bears interest at a Base Rate or LIBOR, at the Partnership’s option,
plus an applicable margin. The applicable margin, depending on the Partnership’s Leverage Ratio, vanes (i} in
the case of LIBOR loans, from 1.0% to 2.0% or (ii} in the case of Base Rate loans, from 0.0% to 1.0%. The
Base Rate is the higher of the U.S. Prime Rate or the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5%. At December 31, 2007,
all amounts outstanding were LIBOR loans and the applicable margin was 1.25%. The weighted average
interest rate on the outstanding balance at December 31, 2007, excluding the effect of related cash flow
hedges, was 6.6%. '

Borrowings under the Partnership’s credit agreement are secured by substantially all of the personal property
assets of the. Partnership Borrowers. In addition, all of the capital stock of the Partnership’s U.S. restricted
subsidiaries has been pledged to secure the obligations under the credit agreement.

Under the Partnership’s credit agreement, the Operating Partnership and the Partnership are subject to certain
limitations, including limitations on their ability to incur additional debt or sell assets, with restrictions on the
use of proceeds; to make certain investments and acquisitions; to grant liens; and to pay dividends and
distributions. 'The Partnership Borrowers are also subject to financial covenants including a total leverage and
an interest coverage ratio.

As of December 31, 2007, we had approximately $2.3 billion in outstanding debt obligations, consisting of
$800.0 million outstanding under the 2007 ABS Facility, $800.0 million outstanding under our term loan,
$180.0 million outstanding under our $850 million revolving credit facility, $335.8 million outstanding under
our 4.75% convertible notes and $217.0 million outstanding under the Partnership’s revolving credit facility.
We were in compliance with our debt covenants as of December 31, 2007. We have entered into interest rate
swap agreements related to a portion of our variable rate debt. See Item 7A for further discussion of our
interest raie swap agreements.

The interest rate we pay under our senior secured credit agreement can be affected by changes in our credit
rating, As of December 31, 2007, our credit ratings as assigned by Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s were:

Standard

Moody’s & Poor’s

OUOOK . . .. e e e e s Stable Stable
Corporate Family Rating .. ...... ... .. .. .. . . . i Ba2 BB
Exterran Senior Secured Credit Facility. . .......... .. ... ... ... . ... Ba2 BB+
4.75% convertible senior notes due 2008. . . .. ... ... o o L, — B+
4.75% convertible senior notes due 2014, ... ... ... .. e e — B+

Historically, we have financed capital expenditures with a combination of net cash provided by operating and
financing activities. Based on current market conditions, we expect that net cash provided by operating
activities will be sufficient to finance our operating expenditures, capital expenditures and scheduled interest
and debt repayments through December 31, 2008, but to the extent it is not, we may barrow additional funds
under our credit facilities or we may obtain additional debt or equity financing.

Stock Repurchase Program. On August 20, 2007, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to
$200 miillion of our common stock through August 19, 2009. See further discussion of the stock repurchase
program in Note 14 to the Financial Statements. During the year ended December 31, 2007, we repurchased
1,258,400 shares of our comrnon stock at an aggregate cost of approximately $100 million. See Part II, Item 5
(“Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities”) for information regarding our fourth guarter repurchases,
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Office Lease. In August 2007, we entered into an office lease agreement to lease approximately

235,000 square feet of space in Houston that will serve as our worldwide headgquarters. Our obligation to make
lease payments will commence in March 2008 and will continue for 10 years. Base rent under the lease
agreement is an aggregate of $13.8 million over the first five years and an aggregate of $14.6 million over the
last five years. We have the right to extend the lease for up to ten years at the conclusion of the initial ten-
year term.

Dividends. We have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock since formation, and we do not
anticipate paying such dividends in the foreseeable future. Our board of directors anticipates that all cash flow
generated from operations in the foreseeable future will be retained and used to repay our debt, repurchase our
stock or develop and expand our business. Any future determinations to pay cash dividends on our common
stock will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on our results of operations and
financial condition, credit and loan agreements in effect at that time and other factors deemed relevant by our
board of directors.

Fartnership Distributions to Unitholders. The Partnership’s partnership agreement requires it to distribute all
of its “available cash” quarterly. Under the partnership agreement, available cash is defined to generally mean,
for each fiscal quarter, (1) cash on hand at the Partnership at the end of the quarter in excess of the amount of
reserves its general partner determines is necessary or appropriate to provide for the conduct of its business, to
comply with applicable law, any of its-debt instruments or other agreements or to provide for future
distributions to its unitholders for any one or more of the upcoming four quarters, plus, (2) if the Parinership’s
general partner so determines, all or a portion of the Partnership’s cash on hand on the date of determination
of available cash for the quarter. '

Under the terms of the partnership agreement, there is no guarantee that unitholders will receive quarterly
distributions from the Partnership. The Partnership’s distribution policy is subject to certain restrictions and
may be changed at any time, including (1) restrictions contained in the Partnership’s $315 million revolving
credit facility, (2) the general partner of the Partnership’s establishment of reserves to fund future operations or
cash distributions to the Partnership’s unitholders, (3) restrictions contained in the Delaware Revised Uniform
Limited Partnership Act or (4) the Partnership’s lack of sufficient cash to pay distributions.

Through our ownership of common and subordinated units and all of the equity interests in the general partner
of the Partnership, we expect to receive cash distributions from the Partnership. Our rights to receive
distributions of cash from the Partnership as holder of subordinated units are subordinated to the rights of the
common unitholders to receive such distributions.

On February 14, 2008, the Partnership distributed approximately $7.3 million, including distributions to their
general partner on its incentive distribution rights, or $0.425 per unit, covering the period from October 1,
2007 through December 31, 2007.
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Contractual obliga;'ions. The following summarizes our contractual obligations at December 31, 2007 and
the effect such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flow in future periods:

Total 2008 2009-2010 2011-2012  Thereafter
{In thousands)

Long term Debt(1) )
Bank credis facility due 2012 ........ $ 180,000 $ — % — $ 180,000 $ —
Bank senior term loan . ............ 800,000 — 60,000 420,000 320,000
The Partnership’s revolving credit

facility due 2011 . ... ........... 217,000 — — 217,000 —
2007 ABS Facility notes due 2012 . . .. 800,000 — — 800,000 —
4.75% convertible senior notes due

2008(2) . ... 192,000 192,000 — — —
4,75% convertible senior notes due

2004 . 143,750 — — — 143,750
Other. . ......... .. i, 177 997 1027 75 —

Total long-term debt. . . . . . e 2,333,924 192,997 60,102 1,617,075 463,750

Interest on long-term debt(3) . . ... ... .. 586,068 120,144 235,957 202,181 27,786

Purchase commitments .. ............ 649,525 649,525 — — —

Facilities and other equipment operating .
leases .. ...... ... ... ... 48,247 9.463 9,937 7,391 21,456

Total contractual obiigations . ......... $3,617,764 $972,129 $305,996 $1,826,647 $512,992

(1) For more information on our long-term debt, see Note 11 to the Financial Statements.

{2) These notes are classified as long-term because we have the intent and ability to refinance the notes with
available credit,

(3) Interest amounts calculated using interest rates in effect as of December 31, 2007, including the effect of
interest rate swaps. :

At December 31, 2007, $14.6 million of unrecognized tax benefits have been recorded as liabilities in
accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48™) and
we are uncertain as to if or when such amounts may be settled. Related to these unrecognized tax benefits, we
have recorded a liability for potential penalties and interest of $5.4 million.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have agreed to guarantee obligations of indebtedness of the SIMCO/Harwat Consortium, a joint venture in
which we own a 35.5% interest, and of El Furrial, a joint venture in which we own a 33.3% interest. Each of
these joint ventures is our non-consolidated affiliate, and our guarantee obligations are not recorded on our
accompanying balance sheet. In each case, our guarantee cbligation is a percentage of the total debt of the
non-consolidated affiliate equal to our ownership percentage in such affiliate. At December 31, 2007, we have
guaranteed approximately $24.0 million of the debt which is on the books of the El Furrial joint venture. Our
obligation to perform under the guarantees arises only in the eveat that our non-consolidated affiliate defaults
under the agreements governing the indebtedness. We currently have no reason to believe that either of these
non-consolidated affiliates will default on their indebtedness. For more information on these off-balance sheet
arrangements, see Note 8 to the Financial Statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of recent accounting pronouncements that may affect us, see Note 20 to the Financial
Statements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Variable Rate Debt
We are exposed to market risk due to variable interest rates under our financing arrangements.
As of December 31, 2007, after taking into consideration interest rate swaps, we had approximately

$887.0 million of outstanding indebtedness that was effectively subject to floating interest rates. A 1.0%
increase in interest rates would result in an approximately $8.9 million annual increase in our interest expense.

Interest Rate Swap Arrangemenis:

We are a party to interest rate swap agreements that are recorded at fair value in our financial statements. We
do not use derivative financial instruments for trading or other speculative purposes. A change in the
underlying interest rates may also result in a change in their recorded value.

The following table summarizes, by individual hedge instrument, our interest rate swaps as of December 31,
2007 (dollars in thousands):

Fair Value of

Floating Rate to be Notional Swap at
Fixed Rate to be Paid Maturity Date Received Amount December 31, 2007
4.035% March 31, 2010 Three Month LIBOR ~ $ 56,250(1) § (186)
4.007% March 31, 2010 Three Month LEBOR  $ 56,250(1) $ 6D
3.990% March 31, 2010 Three Month LIBOR  § 56,250(1) $ (155)
4.037% March 31, 2010 Three Month LIBOR  § 56,250(1) § (188)
4.675% August 20, 2012 One Month LIBOR $150,941(2) $(4,142)
4.744% July 20, 2012 One Month LIBOR $224,150(2) $(7,040)
4.668% July 20, 2012 One Month LIBOR $150,000(2) $(3,891)
5.210% January 20, 2013 One Month LIBOR $ 60,809(2) $(2,180)
4.450% September 20, 2019  One Month LIBOR $ 42,727(2) $ 0D
5.020% September 20, 2019  One Month LIBOR $ 51,373(2) $(1,879)
5.275% December 1, 2011 Three Month LIBOR  $125,000 $(5,893)
5.343% October 20, 2011 Three Month LIBOR  § 40,000 $(2,045)
5.315% October 20, 2011 Three Month LIBOR  $ 40,000 $(2,002)

(1) These swaps amortize ratably over the life of the swap.

(2) Certain of these swaps amortize while the notional amount of others increase in corresponding amounts to
maintain a consistent outstanding notional amount of $680 million.

All of the swaps, which we have designated as cash flow hedging instruments, meet the specific hedge criteria
of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” (“SFAS No. 133”) so that
any changes in their fair values are recognized as a component of comprehensive income or loss and are
included in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss. These swap terms substantially coincide with
the hedged item and are expected to offset changes in expected cash flows due to fluctuations in the variable
rate, and therefore we currently do not expect a significant amount of ineffectiveness on these hedges. We
perform quarterly calculations to determine if the swap agreements are still effective and to calculate any
ineffectiveness because the terms of the hedged item and the swap do not exactly coincide. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, we recorded approximately $1.0 million of interest expense due to the ineffectiveness
related to these swaps. ' '
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Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

We operate in numerous countries throughout the world and a fluctuation in the value of the currencies of
these countries relative to the U.S. dollar could reduce our profits from international operations and the value
of the net assets of our international operations when reported in U.S. dollars in our financial statements. The
impact of foreign exchange on our statements of operations will depend on the amount of our nét asset and
liability positions exposed to currency fluctuations in future periods.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, our Argentine operations represented approximately 4% of our
revenues and 7% of our gross margin. For the year ended December 31, 2007, our Venezuelan operations
represenied approximately 5% of our revenues and 9% of our gross margin.

Recently, laws and regulations in Venezuela have been subject to frequent and significant changes. These
changes have included currency controls, restrictions on repatriation of capital, expropriation and nationaliza-
tion of certain firms and industries ‘and changes to the tax laws. In addition, exchange controls have been put
in place which put limitations on the amount of Venezuelan currency that can be exchanged for foreign
currency by businesses operating inside Venezuela. If exchange contrels remain in place, or economic and
political conditions in Venezuela deteriorate, our results of operations in Venezuela could be materially and
adversely affected, which could result in reductions in our net income. .

The economic situation in Argentina and Venezuela is subject to change. To the extent that the situation
deteriorates, exchange controls continue in place and the value of the peso and bolivar against the doliar is
reduced further, our results of operations in Argentina and Venezuela could be materially and adversely
affected, which could result in reductions in our net income.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary information specified by this Item are presented following Item 15
of this report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our principal executive officer and principal financial officer evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Exchange Act™)) as of December 31, 2007. Based on the evaluation, our principal executive officer and |
principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of
December 31, 2007.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As required by Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(c) and 15d-15(c), our management, including the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting. Management conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting based on the Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control
over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness as to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. Based
on the results of management’s evaluation described above, management concluded that our internal control
over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.
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On August 20, 2007, we acquired Universal. See Note 2 to the Financial Statements for further information on
this acquisition. We have excluded Universal from the scope of our Sarbanes-Oxley Section 404 report on
internal controls over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007. Universal accounted for approximately

* 40% and 18%, respectively, of our consolidated total asscts and revenues as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

The effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, was audited by
Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in its report found on the
. following page of this report.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting during our fourth quarter of fiscal 2007
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting. Subsequent to the merger between Hanover and Universal Compression Holdings, we commenced a
project to transition a substantial portion of Universal Compression Holdings U.S. based operations from its
pre-merger enterprise resource planning (“ERP”) system, which includes its financial reporting software such
as its general ledger, onto our existing ERP system. This is expected to have a material impact on our internal
controls over financial reporting in the quarter ended March 31, 2008,

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Exterran Holdings, Inc.
Houston, Texas

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Exterran Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsering Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As described
in the Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management exciuded
from its assessment the internal control over financial reporting at Universal Compression Holdings, Inc.
(“Universal”), which was acquired on August 20, 2007 and whose financial statements constitute approxi-
mately 40% of total assets and 18% of revenues of the consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for
the year ended December 31, 2007. Accordingly, our audit did not include the internal control over financial
reporting at Universal. The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting,
included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal contro} over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s intemal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company's principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s intemnal control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented
or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2007 of the Company and our report dated February 29, 2008 expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements.

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Houston, Texas
February 29, 2008
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PART 111

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required in Part IIT — Item 10 of this report will be incorporated by reference to our
definitive proxy statement under the captions “Election of Directors™ and. “Corporate Governance” to be filed
with the SEC within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required in Part IIT — Item 11 of this report will be incorporated by reference to our
definitive proxy statement under the caption “Executive Compensation™ to be filed with the SEC within
120 days of the end of our fiscal year.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and
Related Stockholder Matters

The information required in Part I — Ttem 12 of this report will be incorporated by reference to our
definitive proxy statement under the caption “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Manage-
ment” to be filed with the SEC within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth informatien as of December 31, 2007, with respect to the Exterran compensation
plans under which our common stock is authorized for issuance, aggregated as follows:

Number of Securities

Number of Securities . Remaining Available for
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Future Issuance Under
Exercise of Exercise Price of Equity Compensation Plans
Qutstanding Options, Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column (a))
Plan Category #) 1$) #)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders(l) ............... 69,906 78.31 . 5,267,250
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders(2} . ............ None None 99,607

Total ... ... .. 69,906 78.31 5,366,857

(1) Comprised of the Exterran Holdings, Inc. 2007 Stock Incentive Plan and the Exterran Holdings, Inc.
Employee Stock Purchase Plan. In addition to the outstanding options, as of December 31, 2007 there
were 62,844 outstanding shares of unvested restricted stock and/or restricted stock units outstanding that
were granted under the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan.

(2) Comprised of the Exterran Holdings, Inc. Directors’ Stock and Deferral Plan.

The table above does not include information with respect to equity plans we assumed from Hanover or
Universal Compression Holdings (the “Legacy Plans™). No additional grants may be made under the Legacy
Plans.
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The following equity grants are outstanding under Legacy Plans that were approved by security holders:

Number of Shares
Reserved for Issuance
Upon the Exercise of Weighted-

Qutstanding Stock Average Shares Available
Options Exercise Price  for Future Grants

Plan or Agreement Name . # % #
Hanover Compressor Company
1997 Stock Option Plan. . . ..................... 23,031 30.00 None
Hanover Compressor Company
2001 Equity Incentive Plan . . ................... T 65,337 42.43 None
Hanover Compressor Company
2003 Stock Incentive Plan . . .. .................. 176,676 36.06 None
Universal Compression Holdings, Inc.
Incentive Stock Option Plan . ......... . ... ...... 1,396,017 3196 None

In addition, there are 176,488 shares of restricted stock and/or restricted stock units issued and outstanding
under the Harover Compressor Company 2006 Stock Incentive Plan, and 90,641 shares of restricted stock
issued and outstanding under the Universal Compression Holdings, Inc. Restricted Stock Plan for Executive
Officers.

The following equity grants are outstanding under Legacy Plans for which security holder approval was not
solicited or obtained: :
Number of Shares

Reserved for Issuance
Upon the Exercise of  Weighted-

Qutstanding Stock Average Shares Available
Options Exercise Price for Future Grants

Plan or Agreement Name # %) #
Hanover Compressor Company 1998
Stock OptionPlan. . ...... ... ... ... ... ... ...... 30,611 41.98 None
Hanover Compressor Company
December 9, 1998 Stock Option Plan. . ................. 17,405 30.00 None
Hanover Compressor Company

1999 Stock Option Plan. . . ... ... ... ... ... ..., . .... 14,048 44.63 None

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required in Part 11l — Item 13 of this report will be incorporated by reference to our
definitive proxy statemnent under the captions “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” and “Director
Independence™ to be filed with the SEC within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required in Part [II — Item 14 of this report will be incorporated by reference to our
defmitive proxy statement under the caption “Ratification of Appointment of Independent Auditors™ to be filed
with the SEC within 120 days of the end of our fiscal year.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(a) Documents filed as a part of this report,

1. Financial Statements. The following financial statements are filed as a part of this report.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm . ................ PR F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets . . . . .. .. . e e e F-4
Consolidated Statements of Operations .. .......... .. i F-5
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) . ............... ... ........ F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows . . ... .. ... ... o oo i F-7
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders” Equity .. ... .. i F-9
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . ... . ... ... . . i a.. F-10

2. Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule II — Valuvation and Qualifying Accounts . . .......... ... ... ... ... ... ..., 5-1

All other schedules have been omitted because they are not required under the relevant instructions.

3. Exhibits

Exhibit
2.1

22

2.3

31
a2

4.1

4.2

10.1¢

Description

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 5, 2007, by and among Hanover Compressor
Company, Universal Compression Holdings, Inc., lliad Holdings, Inc., Hector Sub, Inc. and Ulysses Sub,
Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed

_ August 20, 2007

Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 25, 2007, to Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 5,
2007, by and among Hanover Compressor Company, Universal Compression Holdings, Inc., Exterran
Holdings, Inc. (formerly Iliad Holdings, Inc.), Hector Sub, Inc. and Ulysses Sub, Inc., incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 20, 2007

Amended and Restated Contribution Conveyance and Assumption Agreement, dated July 6, 2007, by
and among Universal Compression, Inc., UCO Compression 2005 LLC, UCI Leasing LLC, UCO GP,
LLC, UCI GP LP LLC, UCO General Partner, LP, UCI MLP LP LLC, UCLP Operating LLC, UCLP
Leasing LLC and Universal Compression Partners, L.P., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of
Universal Compression Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 11, 2007

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Exterran Holdings, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 20, 2007

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Exterran Holdings, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 20, 2007

First Supplemental Indenture, dated August 20, 2007, by and between Hanover Compressor Company,
Exterran Holdings, Inc., and Wilmington Trust Company, as Trustee, for the 4.75% Convertible Senior
Notes due 2008, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form §-K filed on August 23, 2007

Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated August 20, 2007, by and between Hanover Compressor Company,
Exterran Holdings, Inc., and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, for the 4.75% Convertible

Senior Notes due 2014, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2007

Exterran Holdings, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2007
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Exhibit

10.2%

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

Description

Form of Indemnification Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2007

Senior Secured Credit Agreement, dated August 20, 2007, by and among Exterran Holdings, Inc., as the
U.S. Borrower and a Canadian Guarantor, Exterran Canada, Limited Partnership, as the Canadian
Borrower, Wachovia Bank, National Association, individually and as U.S. Administrative Agent,
Wachovia Capital Finance Corporation (Canada), individually and as Canadian Administrative
Agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., individually and as Syndication Agent; Wachovia Capital
Markets, 1.I.C and LP. Morgan Securities Inc. as the Joint Lead Arrangers and Joint Book Runners,
Bank of America, N.A., Calyon New York Branch and Fortis Capital Corp., as the Documentation
Agents, and each of the lenders parties thereto or which becomes a signatory thereto (the “Credit
Agreement”), incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on August 23, 2007

U.S. Guaranty Agreement, dated as of August 20, 2007, made by Exterran, Inc., EI Leasing LLC, UCI
MILP LP LLC, Exterran Energy Solutions, L.P. and each of the subsidiary guarantors that become a party
thereto from time to time, as guarantors, in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association, as the U.S.
Administrative Agent for the lenders under the Credit Agreement, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2007

U.S. Pledge Agreement made by Exterran Holdings, Inc., Exterran, Inc., Exterran Energy Solutions, L.P.,
Hanover Compression General Holdings LLC, Hanover HL, LLC, Enterra Compression Investment
Company, UCI MLP LP LLC, UCO General Partner, LP, UCI GP LP LLC, and UCO GP, LLC, and each
of the subsidiaries that become a party thereto from time to time, as the Pledgors, in favor of Wachovia
Bank, National Association, as U.S. Administrative Agent for the lenders under the Credit Agreement,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
August 23, 2007

U.S. Collateral Agreement, dated as of August 20, 2007, made by Exterran Holdings, Inc., Exterran, Inc.,
Exterran Energy Solutions, L.P., EI Leasing LLC, UCI MLP LP LLC and each of the subsidiaries that
become a party thereto from time to time, as grantors, in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association,
as U.S. Administrative Agent, for the lenders under the Credit Agreement, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2007

Canadian Collateral Agreement, dated as of August 20, 2007 made by Exterran Canada, Limited
Partnership, together with any other significant Canadian subsidiary that executes a joinder agreement
and becomes a party to the Credit Agreement, in favor of Wachovia Capital Finance Corporation
(Canada), as Canadian Administrative Agent, for the Canadian Tranche Revolving Lenders under the
Credit Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Registrant’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2007

Indenture, dated August 20, 2007, by and between Exterran ABS 2007 LLC, as Issuer, Exterran ABS
Leasing 2007 LLC, as Exterran ABS Lessor, and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Indenture
Trustee, with respect to the $1,000,000,000 asset-backed securitization facility consisting of
$1,000,000,000 of Series 2007-1 Notes (the “Indenture™), incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8
of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2007

Series 2007-1 Supplement, dated as of August 20, 2007, to the Indenture, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.9 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2007

Guaranty, dated as of August 20, 2007, issued by Exterran Holdings, Inc. for the benefit of Exterran ABS
2007 LLC as Issuer, Exterran ABS Leasing 2007 LLC, as Equipment Lessor and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, , as Indenture Trustee, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2007

Management Agreement, dated as of August 20, 2007, by and between Exterran, Inc., as Manager,
Exterran ABS Leasing 2007 LLC as ABS Lessor and Exterran ABS 2007 LLC, as Issuer, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2007
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10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.237

10.241

10.25%

: Description

Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement, dated as of August 20, 2007, by and among Exterran,
Inc., in its individual capacity and as Manager, Exterran ABS 2007 LLC, as Issuer, Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as Indenture Trustee, Wachovia Bank, National Association, as Bank Agent,
various financial institutions as lenders thereto and JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., in its individual
capacity and as Intercreditor Collateral Agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2007

Intercreditor and Collateral Agency Agreement, dated as of August 20, 2007, by and among Exterran
Energy Solutions, L.P., in its individual capacity and as Manager, Exterran ABS 2007 LLC, as Issuer,
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Indenture Trustee, Wachovia Bank, National Association, as
Bapk Agent, various financial institutions as lenders thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, in its individual capacity and as Intercreditor Collateral Agent, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.13 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2007

Exterran Holdings, Inc. Directors’ Stock and Deferral Plan, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of
the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2007

Consulting Agreement between Exterran Holdings, Inc. and Ernie L. Danner, dated August 20, 2007,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
August 23, 2007

Exterran Holdings, Inc. 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, incorperated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of the
Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 6, 2007

Form of Exterran Holdings, Inc. Change of Control Agreement, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.19 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2007

Form of Amendment No. 1 to Hanover Compressor Company Change of Control Agreement,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 of Exterran the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K
filed on August 23, 2007

Office Lease Agreement by and between RFP Lincoln Greenspoint, LLC and Exterran Energy Solutions,
L.P., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1(.1 of the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
August 30, 2007

Omnibus Agreement, dated October 20, 20006, by and among Universal Compression Partners, L.P., UC
Operating Partnership, L.P, UCO GP, LL.C, UCO General Partner, LP, Universal Compression, Inc.,
Universal Compression Holdings, Inc. and UCLP OLP GP LLC, incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of Universal Compression Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
October 26, 2006

First Amendment to Omnibus Agreement, dated July 9, 2007, by and among Universal Compression
Partners, L.P., Universal Compression FHoldings, Inc., Universal Compression, Inc., UCO GP, LLC, UCO
General Partner, LP and UCLP Operating LLC, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Universal
Compression Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 11, 2007

First Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement, dated as of August 20, 2007, by and among Exterran
Holdings, Iuc., Exterran, Inc., UCO GP, LLC, UCO General Partner, LP, Exterran Partners, L.P,, EXLP
Operating LE.C and Exterran Energy Solutions, L.P. (portions of this exhibit have been omitted and filed
separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to a confidential treatment request
under Rule 24b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.20 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on November 6, 2007

Amendment Number Two to Universal Compression Holdings, Inc, Employee Stock Purchase Plan,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Universal Compression Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on August 3, 2007

First Amendment to Universal Compression, Inc. 401 (k) Retirement and Savings Plan, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Universal Compression Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
August 3, 2007

Form of Amendment to Grant of Unit Appreciation Rights, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of
Universal Compression Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 3, 2007
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Description .

Form of Amendment to Incentive and Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Agreements of Emie L.
Danner, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Universal Compression Holdings, Inc.'s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on August 3, 2007

Form of Unit Option Grant, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Amendment No. 3 to Exterran
Partners, L.P.’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed October 4, 2006 (File No. 333-135351)

Form of Amendment to Unit Option Award Agreement, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of
Universal Compression Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 3, 2007

Exterran Holdings, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan
Exterran Employees’ Supplemernital Savings Plan
Exterran Annual Performance Pay Plan

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Notice
Form of Restricted Stock Award Notice

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Notice

Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Notice °
Form of Grant of Unit Appreciation Rights

Letter dated March 15, 2001, with respect 1o certain retirement benefits to be provided to Stephen A,
Snider, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.43 of Universal Compression Holdings, Inc.’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2001

List of Subsidiaries

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Secuon 1350 as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

T Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
* Filed herewith.

** The registrant hereby agrees to supplementally furnish the staff on a confidential basis, a copy of any
omitted schedule upon the staff’s request.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Exterran Holdings, Inc.

/s STEPHEN A. SNIDER

Name: Stephen A. Snider
Title:  Chief Executive Officer
Date:  February 29, 2008
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature

/s/ STEPHEN A. SNIDER.

Stephen A. Snider

fs/J. MICHAEL ANDERSON

J. Michael Anderson

/s/ KENNETH R. BICKETT

Kenneth R. Bickett

fs/ JANET F. CLARK

Janet F. Clark

/s/ ERNIE L. DANNER

Emie L.. Danner

/s/ URIEL E. DUTTON

Uriel E. Duston

fs/ GORDON T. HALL

Gordon T. Hall

/s J.W.G. HONEYBOURNE

J.W.G. Honeybourne

fs/  JOHN E. JACKSON

John E. Jackson

/s/  WILLIAM C. PATE

William C. Pate

/s/ STEPHEN M. PAZUK

Stephen M. Pazuk

Title

President, Chief Executive Officer and
Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer {(Principal Financial Officer)

Vice President and Corporate Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
.Exterran Holdings, Inc.
Houston, Texas

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Exterran Holdings, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’
equity, comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2007. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our audit also included the financial
statement schedule for the year ended December 31, 2007 listed in the Index at Item 15. These financial
statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The consolidated
financial statements and financial statement schedule of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005, before the effects to retrospectively adjust for (1) the change in classification of supply chain costs
within the consolidated statements of operations, (2) the effect of the reverse stock split on Exterran’s
outstanding common stock and earnings per share calculation, and (3) the change in the composition of
reportable segments including the reclassification on the consolidated statements of operations of the related
revenues and costs of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization) discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements, were audited by other auditors whose report, dated February 14, 2007, expressed an
unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial stat¢ments are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company at December 31, 2007, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the
year ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial statement schedule for the year ended December 31,
2007, when considered in relation 1o the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present
fairly, in all material aspects, the information set forth therein.

We also have audited the adjustments to the 2006 and 2005 consolidated financial statements to retrospectively
adjust for (1) the change in classification of supply chain costs within the consolidated statements of
operations, (2) the effect of the reverse stock split on Exterran’s outstanding common stock and earnings per
share calculation, and (3) the change in the composition of reportable segments in 2007 including the
reclassification on the consolidated statements of operations of the related revenues and costs of sales
(excluding depreciation and amortization), as discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. Our
procedures relating to the presentation of supply chain costs and the change in accounting included

(1) comparing the adjustment amounts of costs to the Company’s underlying analysis and (2) testing the
mathematical accuracy to the consolidated financial statements. Our procedures relating to the reverse stock
split included (1) comparing the previously reported shares outstanding and earnings per share amounts per the
Company’s accounting analysis to the previously issued consolidated financial statements, (2} comparing the
amounts shown in the earnings per share disclosures for 2006 and 2005 to the Company’s underlying
accounting analysis, and (3) recalculating the shares and eamings per share amounts to give effect to the
reverse stock split and testing the mathematical accuracy of the underlying analysis. Our procedures relating to
the change in reportable segments included (1} comparing the adjustment amounts of segment revenues,
operating income and assets to the Company’s underlying analysis and (2} testing the mathematical accuracy
of reclassifications on the consolidated statements of operations of the related revenues and costs of sales
(excluding depreciation and amortization) and the reconciliations of segment amounts to the consolidated
financial statements. In our opinion, such retrospective adjustments are appropriate and have been properly
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applied. However, we were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 2006 and 2005
consolidated financial statements of the Company other than with respect to the retrospective adjustments and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2006 and 2005 consolidated
financial statements taken as a whole.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on
the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 29, 2008, expressed an unqualified
opinion on the Company’s internal control aver financial reporting (such report excludes the internal control
over financial reporting related to the operations acquired from Universal Compression Holdings, Inc.).

DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Houston, Texas
February 29, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Exterran Holdings, Inc. (formerly Hanover Compressor Company):

In our opinion, the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2006 and the related consolidated
statements of operations, of comprehensive income (loss), of common stockholders’ equity and of cash flows
for each of two years in the period ended December 31, 2006, before the effects of the adjustments to
retrospectively reflect (1) the change in classification of supply chain costs within the consolidated statements
of operations, (2) the effect of the reverse stock split on Hanover's outstanding common stock and earnings
per share calculation, and (3) the change in the composition of reportable segments including the reclassifica-
tion on the consolidated statements of operations of the related revenues and costs of sales (excluding
depreciation and amortization), all described in Note 1, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Exterran Holdings, Inc. (formerly Hanover Compressor Company) and its subsidiaries at
December 31, 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the
period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (the 2006 and 2005 financial statements before the effects of the adjustments discussed in
Note 1 are not presented herein). In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule for the each of
the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006 presents fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements before the effects
of the adjustments described above. These financial statements-and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statemnents and financial statement schedule based on our andits. We conducted our audits, before the effects
of the adjustments described above, of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and petform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

We were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the adjustments to retrospectively reflect

(1) the change in classification of supply chain costs within the consolidated statements of operations, (2) the
effect of the reverse stock split on Hanover’s outstanding common stock and earnings per share calculation,
and (3) the change in the compesition of reportable segments including the reclassification on the consolidated
statements of operations of the related revenues and costs of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization),
all described in Note | and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance about
whether such adjustments are appropriate and have been properly applied. Those adjustments were audited by
other auditors.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLLP

Houston, Texas
February 14, 2007
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. .. ... ... ..
Restrictedcash . . ... ................... e e
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $10,846 and $4,938, respectively . . .. .
Inventory, met . .. ... L e e
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts . . .
Current deferred InCOme 1aXeS. . .. . .. ..ottt iie i e
Other current asselS . ... .. . it et et

Total CUITENE @888 . . . . ot ittt it ettt e e e e s
Property, plant and equipment, met . ........ ... .. ... ... i
GoodwWill, Mt . ... o e e e e
Intangible and other assets . .. ... ... . . .t e e
Investments in non-consolidated affiliates . . ... ... e

Total assets . . ....... ... ..., e e e e e e e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Current maturities of long-term debt and short-termdebt . .. ... ... ... ... ..
Accounts payable, trade . ..... ... ... ... ... . e
Accrued liabilities. . . ... .. ... e
Advance billings. . . .. ... .. .
Billings on uncompleted contracts in excess of costs and estimated earnings. . . .

Total current labilities ... ....... .. ... .. . .. .
Long-term-debt .. ... ... ... . e e
Other Liabilities . .. ... . i i e e e e
Deferred income taXes . .. ... . ... e e e

Total liabilities . ........ ... ... ... . . e e
Commitments and contingencies (Note 18)
© MiInority INterest, . ..o o e e e
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 and $0.001 par value, respectively; 50,000,000 and
975,000 shares authorized, respectively; zeroissued. ... ... ......... ...,
Common stock, $0.01 and $0.001 par vatue, respectively; 250,000,000 shares
and 65,000,000 shares authorized, respectively; 66,574,419 and
33,743,363 shares issued, respectively . ............ ... .. ... ...
Additional paid-incapital .. ... ... ... ... e
Accumulated other comprehensive income. . . ........ ... ...,
Accumulated deficit . .. ... ... ... e
Treasury stock — 1,287,237 and 146,173 common shares, at cost, respectively . .

Total stockholders” equity ......... ... ... ... 0 i
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity. ............. .. ... ... .....

December 31,
2007 2006

(In thousands, except par value
and share amounts}

$ 149224 $ 73,286
9,133 —
516,072 283,073
411,436 308,093
203,932 109,732
41,648 20,129
145,159 86,350

1,476,604 880,663
3,533,505 1,863,452

1,455,881 181,098
311457 55,702
86,076 89,974

$6,863,523  $3,070,889

$ 997 § 4,888
221,391 136,908
326,163 147,320
169,330 170,859

87,741 94,123
806,122 554,098
2,332,927 1,365,043
89,012 48,953
281,898 76,522

3,509,959 2,044,616

191,304 11,991
666 34
3,317,321 1,104,800
13,004 12,983
(68,733) (99.565)
{99,998) (3,970)

3,162,260 1,014,282
$6,863,523  $3,070,889

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues:

North America contract operations .......................
International contract operations .. .......................
Aftermarket SEIVICES . . ... . ... e
Fabrication . . ... ... ... ... e

Costs and Expenses:

Cost of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization expense}):
North America contract operations. . . ...........c.ovv. ...
International contract operations . ......................
Aftermarket services . ... ... ... . i
Fabrication .. .. ...... ... . . . e

Selling, general and administrative .......................

Merger and integration expenses . . . ........... ... L.

Depreciation and amortization . . . ... ..ot v

Fleet impairment. . . .. ... ... ... . i

Interest €Xpense .. ... ... . e

Debt extinguishment costs. ... . ... ... ... i,

Equity in (income) loss of non-consolidated affiliates. .. *. ... .,

Other (income) expense, Net . .. .. ... .....oiinnnnn.nnay

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and .
minority interest . . ... ... ..o e ESAPIN

Provision for income taxes . .. ....... ... . ... ... s

Minority interest, netof taxes . . ........... ... ... ... T

Income (loss) from continuing operations . ...................
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax. . .........
Gain (loss) from sales of discontinued operations, net of tax ... ...

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting changes . . . ..
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of tax. . .. .. e

Netincome (loS5) . . .o oottt e et i e

Basic income {loss) per common share:

Income (loss) from continuing operations . .................
Income from discontinued operations, netof tax . ............
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of tax...........

Netincome (loSS) ... ... .ot et

Diluted income (loss) per common share:

Income (loss) from continuing operations . ... ... e
Income from discontinued operations, netof tax . ............
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, netof tax. . . ..... ...

Netincome (I0SS) ... ..ottt e it e e e

Weighted average common and equivalent shares outstanding:

Basic . . e e e e

Years Ended December 31,

2007

2006

2005

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

$ 551,140 $ 384292 3 351,128
336,807 263,228 232,587
274,489 179,043 152,456

1,378,049 766,758 568,140
2,540,485 1,563,321 1,304,311
232,238 156,554 142,657
126,861 96,631 76,512
214,497 139,633 114,535
1,144,580 653,719 505,948
265,057 197,282 176,831
46,723 — —
252,716 175,927 172,649
61,945 — —
130,092 123,496 146,959
70,150 5,902 7,318
(12,498) (19,430) (21,466)
(44,646) (50,897) (8,198)
2,487,715 1,478,817 1,313,745
52,770 114,504 (9,434)
11,894 28,782 27,714
6,307 — —
34,569 85,722 (37,148)
— 368 (756)

— 63 (113)
34,569 86,153 (38,017)
— 370 L=
34569 % 86,523 § (38,017)
076 % 261 $ {(1.25)

— 0.01 (0.03)

— 0.01 —

076 § 263 % (1.28)
075 % 248 % (1.25)

— 0.02 (0.03)

— 0.01 —

075 § 251 % (1.28)
45,580 32,883 29,756
46,300 36,411 29,756

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)

Net income (1055) . v\ v ittt ettt e e e e e $ 34,569 $86,523 $(38,017)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:

Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments. .. ... ..... (17,596) — 608

Foreign currency translation adjustment . ..................... 17,617 (2,231) (2,912)
Comprehensive income (10SS). ... ... vttt e i e $ 34,590 $84,292 $(40,321)

fu

- The accompanying notes are an iniegral part of these financial statements.
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities:
Netincome (1088) . .o vt ve v v e inr i iir ey $ 34,569 $ 86,523 $ (38,017)
Adjustments:
Depreciation and amortization . . .. ........ ...l 252,716 175,927 172,649
Fleet impairment. . ... ..o uun et 61,945 —_ -—
Deferred financing cost amortization and write-off . . .. ...... 21,120 5,489 10,032
(Income) loss from discontinued operations, net of tax. ... .. — (431) 869
Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of tax......... — 370 —
MInority inferest. .. ..o vvv oo 6,307 — —_
Bad debt eXpense ... ... oot iiiii i 2,650 2,465 1,955
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment . . . .......... (8,082) (11,798) (13,183)
Equity in (income) loss of non-consolidated affiliates, net of
dividends received. . . ..., ... i (3,982) (1,831) (2,783)
INtErest rate SWAPS ... . .ovvv v ntanromean e (1,151) — 416
(Gain) loss on remeasurement of intercompany balances . .. .. (5,408) (2,061 12,155
Net realized gain on trading securities . . . . ............... (24,275) (4,873) —
Zero coupon subordinated notes accreted interest paid by -
refinancing . . ... . e — (86,084) —
Gainonsale of busingss ... ....... v i — (28,476) (367)
Stock COMPENSAtion eXPense . . . ... ovvve v et s 23,311 9,773 5,676
Pay-in-kind interest on zero coupon subordinated notes .. .... —_ 6,282 23,336
Sales of trading securities . ........ ... e 49,165 23,344 —_
Purchases of trading securities. . ......... ... ... .. .. ... (24,890) (18,471) —
Deferred iNCOME LAXES. + v« <« vt vv v e e ais e isnneancannnes (43,214) 140 19,304
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable and notes . . .. ... .. ... oL (37,759) (31,539) (45,061)
INVENOTY. - .o vt e e iea e e s e ea e 93,893 (59,944) (73,936)
Costs and estimated earnings versus billings on uncompleted
COMITACES « + v v v v v e v et e et i am e i aan (93,946) 51,298 (21,117)
Prepaid and other current assets. . . ....... ... (19,936) (35,058) (15,840)
Accounts payable and other liabilities . ................ 23,758 51,268 41,037
Advance billings . .. ... ... i e (93,849) 81,885 47,549
T et e e 26,768 (3,923) {(1,804)
Net cash provided by continuing operations ........... 239,710 209,535 122,870
Net cash provided by discontinued operations. ......... —_ (446) (383)
| Net cash provided by operating activities ... .......... 239,710 209,089 122,487
! Cash flows from investing activities:
| Capital expenditures . ... ..ot (352,190) (246,583) (155,146)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment . ... .... 36,277 26,290 51,11
Proceeds from the sale of business. . .. .................. — 52,125 2,724
. Cash paid for business combinations ... ................. (10,709) — (3,426)
| Increase inrestricted cash . .. ..., ... ... .. o i 9,133 — —
Cash acquired inmerger . ........... . ..coviiinian. 36,582 — —
\ Cash advanced to/invested in non-consolidated affiliates. . . ... (3,095 — (500)
Net cash used in continuing operations. . . ............ (302,268) (168,168) (105,247)
Net cash provided by discontinuing operations . . ....... — — 1,220
Net cash used in investing activities . ................ (302,268) (168,168) (104,027)
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Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings on revolving credit facilities . ................
Repayments on revolving credit facilities. ., ..............
Proceeds from issuance of seniornotes . .................
Payments for debtissue costs .. .......................
Proceeds from stock options exercised . . ... ..............
Proceeds from equity offering, net of issuance costs. . .......
Repayment of zero coupon subordinated notes principal . . . . ..
Stock-based compensation excess tax benefiv. ... ... ... .., .
Proceeds from issuance of termloan . ...................
Proceeds from ABS credit facility ... .......... ... ....
Proceeds from the Partnership credit fac:lhty, net ...........
Repayment of seniornotes ... ......... ... ... .. .......
Purchases of treasury stock .. ........ ... ... .. ... e
Repayment of debt assumed inmerger. . .................
Repayment of 2000B equipment lease notes . .............
Repayment of 2001A equipment lease notes .. ............
Repayment of 2001B equipment lease notes ..............
Distributions to non-controlling partners in the Pannershlp. ca
Borrowings of other debt. . .. ........ ... ... . ... . ... ..
Repayments of otherdebt .. ... ....... .. ........... ...

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities . . . . ..,
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and equivalents . . .. .. ...

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . . ..................
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . .. .............

Cash and cash equivalents atend of year. . .. .................

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid, net of capitalized amounts .. .................

Income taxes paid, net . . ... .. ... ... .

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash transactions:
Assets sold in exchange for note receivable . . .. ..... .. ... ..

Conversion of deferred stock option tiability .. ..............
Conversion of debt to common stock. .. ...................

Conversion of Universal stock options to Exterran stock
OPLIONS . . . . o e e

Common stock issued inthe merger . ... ..................

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
{In thousands)

939,400 196,500 152,000
(779.400) (224,500) (111,000)
— 150,000 —_
(13,095) (3,832) (2,592)
27,271 5,675 4,990
— — 179,100
—_ (150,000) —
10,737 1,516 —
800,000 —_ —
800,000 — —
6,000 — —
(550,000} — —
(99,998) — —_
(601,970) — —
— — (57,589)
(137,123) — (172,177)
(257,750) - -—
(3,336) — —
— 7,673 2,180
(5,009) (1,166) (1,802)
135,727 (18,134) (6,890)
2,769 2,266 (1,413)
75,938 25,053 10,157
73,286 48,233 38,076
$ 149,224 $ 73,286 $ 48,233
$ 139,039 $ 196,745 $ 118,787
$ 21923 $ 20,722 $ 18471
$ — $ — $ 1,600
3 — § 35 $ 282
$ 81,682 $ 1447 —
$ 675714 % —  $ —
$2,003,525 $ — 3 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Accumulated c Deferreg
Common Stock A}d‘g;hi?tgal Cumgr'ftf:nsive Treasury Stock ol?&l:;?w; " Accumulated
Shares Amount Capltal Income (Loss} Shares Amount Stock Grants t
{In thousands, except share data)
Balance at December 31,2004 , . .. ... 28,487,540 $ 28 § 913,077 $ 17,518 (215,088) $ (7,307)  §{15,180) $(148,071)
Exercise of stock options . . . .. ... ... 508,418 1 5271
Foreign currency translation
adjustment. . . . ..o a e (2,912)
Interest rate swap agreement gain, net of
17 A 608
Issuance of restricted stock grants, net of
forfeitures, net of amortization )
EXPERSE. o\t vr e e 6,565 401 96,109 3,344 1,931
Issuance of common stock for
stockholder litgation . ... ........ 4,275,175 4 179,087
Netloss . .....ocvvvninnn _ {38,017}
Balance at December 31,2005 ....... 33277698 $ 33 $1,0973836 $ 15,214 (118,979) $ (3.963)  $(13,249) $(186,088)
Option exercise . ... ... .ooavvn. . 175,102 5.709
Stock options expense . . . .. ... ... 1,734
Foreign currency translation
adjustment. . . ... e (2.231)
Issuance of restricted stock grants, net of
forfeitures and cancellations .. ..... 264,249 1 8,046 (27,194) ()]
Convertible debentures converted to .
common Stock ... ... 26,314 1,447
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting related to adoption of
FASBI23(R). . ....... oot (GB70)
Income tax benefit from stock
compensation expense . . . ... ... .- 3,647
Reversal of deferred compensation due to
adoption of FASB 123R). ... ... .. (13,249) 13,249
Netincome . . . ... ...t evvvnen- _ 86,523
Balance at December 31,2006 ... .. .. 33,743,363 5 34 $1,104.800 $ 12983 (146,173) $ (3.970) - § — $ (99,565)
Record purchase price for Universal
acquisition. . . ... ... 30,273,866 302 2,070,796
Changeinparvalue . . ............ 3301y 305 (305)
Unvested shares of restricted stock
assumed in the merger . . ......... 94,911 1
Conventible debentures converted to
common stock . ... ............ 1,588,993 16 81,666
Treasury stock purchased. ... ....... {1,258,400) (99,998)
Retirement of treasury shares . . ... ... {153,191) (2) (3.968) 153,191 3,970
Option eXercises . . .........-0 .. 820,672 8 27,263
Issuance of 401(k) shares. . . . .. ..... 8,363 683
Stock-based compensation, net of
forfeitures . . . .o v v e v v e e s 200,743 2 23,309 (35,855)
Income tax benefit from stock
compensation expense . .. ..... ... 13,077
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting related to adoption of
FINAS .. ... .. i (3,737}
Interest rate swaps change in fair value,
netoftax . ........ ... . ...... (17,596)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment. . .. ... 17,617
Netincome. . .. ..ovuennnennoan L 34,569
Balance at December 31, 2007 .., . ... 66,574,419 3666  $3,317,321 $ 13,004 (1,287,237) $(99.998) 3 — 3 (68,733)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Background and Significant Accounting Policies

Exterran Holdings, Inc., together with its subsidiaries (“we,” “us,” “our,” or “Exterran”), is a global market
leader in the full service natural gas compression business and a premier provider of operations, maintenance,
service and equipment for oil and natural gas production, processing and transportation applications. We sell
equipment and provide complete operation and maintenance services for both customer-owned equipment and
our fleet. Our global customer base consists of companies engaged in all aspects of the oil and natural gas
industry, including large integrated oil and natural gas companies, national oil and natural gas companies,
independent producers and natural gas processors, gatherers and pipelines. Our maintenance business, together
with our parts and service business, provides solutions to customers that own their own compression and
surface production and processing equipment, but want to outsource their operations. We also fabricate
compressor and oil and natural gas production and processing equipment and provide natural gas processing
and treating and oilfield power generation services, as a complement to our compression services. In addition,
we provide engineering, procurement and fabrication of critical process equipment for refinery and petrochem-
ical facilities and construction of tank farms and evaporators and brine heaters for desalination planis.

We were incorporated on February 2, 2007 as Iliad Holdings, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Universal
Compression Holdings, Inc. (“Universal”), and thereafter changed our name to Exterran Holdings, Inc. On
August 20, 2007, in accordance with their merger agreement, Universal and Hanover Compressor Company
(“Hanover”) merged into a wholly-owned subsidiary of ours. As a result of the merger, we became the parent
entity of Universal and Hanover. Hanover was determined to be the acquirer for accounting purpeses and,
therefore, our financial statements reflect Hanover’s historical results for periods prior to the merger date. We
have included the financial results of Universal’s operations in our consolidated financial statements beginning
August 20, 2007. References to “our”, “we” and “us” refer to Hanover for periods prior to the merger date
and to Exterran for periods on or afier the merger date.

As a result of the merger between Hanover and Universal, each outstanding share of common stock of
Universal was converted into one share of Exterran common stock and each outstanding share of Hanover
common stock was converted into 0.325 shares of Exterran common stock. All share and per share amounts in
these consolidated financial statements and related notes have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the
conversion ratio of Hanover common stock for all periods presented.

Subsequent to the merger between Hanover and Universal, we evaluated our management process for
analyzing the performance of our operations. We have changed our segment reporting in accordance with

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles in order to enable investors to view our operations in a manner
similar to the way management does. Qur Fabrication segment previously reported three product lines:
Compressor and Accessory Fabrication, Production and Processing Fabrication — Surface Equipment and
Production and Processing Fabrication — Belleli. We also renamed three of our segments as follows:

U.S. Rentals is now referred to as North America Contract Operations; International Rentals is now referred to
as International Contract Operations; and Parts, Service and Used Equipment is now referred to as Aftermarket
Services. North America Contract Operations includes 17.S, and Canada contract operations. The changes in
our reportable segments, including the reclassification on the consolidated statements of operations of the
related revenues and costs of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization), have been made to all periods
presented within this Annuzal Report on Form 10-K.

In addition, we reclassified our used equipment sales to report these transactions within other income and
expense and reclassified installation sales from Aftermarket Services to our Fabrication segment. Additionally,
we reclassified our supply chain department to include it as part of cost of sales rather than a component of
selling, general and administrative expense. We have made these reclassifications to all periods presented
within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include Exterran and its wholly-owned and majority-
owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolida-
tion. Investments in affiliated entities in which we own more than a 20% interest and do not have a controlling
interest are accounted for using the equity method.

Use of Estimates in the Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses, as well as the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. Because of the inherent
uncertainties in this process, actual future results could differ from those expected at the reporting date.
Management believes that the estimates and assumptions used are reasonable.

Our operations are influenced by many factors, including the global economy, international laws and currency
exchange rates. Contractions in the more significant economies of the world could have a substantial negative
impact on the rate of our growth and profitability. Acts of war or terrorism could influence these areas of risk
and our operations. Doing business in international locations subjects us to various risks and considerations
including, but not limited to, economic and bo]itical conditions abroad, currency exchange rates, tax laws and
other laws and trade restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash consists of cash restricted for use to pay for distributions and expenses incurred under our
asset-backed securitization facility (see Note 11). Therefore, restricted cash is exciuded from cash and cash
equivalents in the balance sheet and statement of cash flows,

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contract operations is recorded when earned, which generally occurs monthly at the time the
monthly service is provided to customers in accordance with the contracts. Aftermarket Services revenue is
recorded as products are delivered and title is transferred or services are performed for the customer.

Fabrication revenue is recognized using the percentage-of-completion method when the applicable criteria are
met. We estimate percentage-of-completion for compressor and accessory fabrication on a direct labor hour to
total labor hour basis. Production and processing equipment fabrication percentage-of-completion is estimated
using the direct labor hour to total labor hour and the cost to total cost basis. The typical duration of these
projects is typically between three and thirty-six months. '

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, advances to non-consolidated affiliates and notes receivable. We believe that
the credit risk in temporary cash investments that we have with financial institutions is minimal. Trade
accounts and notes receivable are due from companies of varying size engaged principally in oil and naturai
gas activities throughout the world. We review the financial condition of customers prior to extending credit
and generally do not obtain collateral for trade receivables. Payment terms are on a short-term basis and in
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

accordance with industry practice. We consider this credit risk to be limited due to these companies’ financial
resources, the nature of products and the services we provide them and the terms of our contract operations
service contracts.

The ailowance for doubtful accounts is our best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our
existing accounts receivable. We determine the allowance based on historical write-off experience. We review
the adequacy of our allowance for doubtful accounts quarterly. Balances aged greater than 90 days are
reviewed individually for collectibility. In addition, all other balances are reviewed based on significance and
customer payment histories. Account balances are charged off against the allowance after all means of
collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote, During the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, our bad debt expense was $2.7 million, $2.5 million and $2.0 million,
respectively.

Inventary

Inventory consists of parts used for fabrication or maintenance of natural gas compression equipment and
facilities, processing and production equipment, and also includes compression units and production equipment
that are held for sale. Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market using the average-cost method. A
reserve is recorded against inventory balances for estimated obsolescence. This reserve is based on specific
identification and historical experience.

Trading Securities

Beginning in 2006, we purchased short-term debt securities denominated in U.S. dollars and exchanged them
for short-term debt securities denominated in local currency in Latin America to achieve more favorable
exchange rates. These debt securities are classified as trading securities because we hold them for a short
period of time and have frequent buying and selling. No-trading securities were held as of December 31, 2007
and 2006.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Compression equipment, facilities and other fleet assets. .. ................... 4 to 30 years
Buildings . . ... 20 1o 35 years
Transportation, shop equipment andother . .. ......... ... .. ... .. ........... 3 10 12 years

Major improvements that extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Repairs and maintenance are
expensed as incurred. When fleet units are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, the gain or loss is recorded
in other (income)/expense. Interest is capitalized in connection with equipment and facilities meeting specific
thresholds that ire constructed for Exterran’s use in our contract operations business until such equipment is
complete. The capitalized interest is recorded as part of the asset to which it relates and is amortized over the
asset’s estimated useful life.

Computer software

Certain costs related to the development or purchase of internal-use software are capitalized and amortized
over the estimated useful life of the software which ranges from three to five years. Costs related to the
preliminary project stage, data conversion and the post-implementation/operation stage of an internal-use
computer software development project are expensed as incurred.
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Long-Lived Assets, other than Intangibles .

We review for the impairment of long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment, and assets held
for sale whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss, exists when estimated undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the
use of the asset and its eventual disposition are less than its carrying amount. The impairment loss recognized
represents the excess of the asset’s carrying value as compared to its estimated fair value.

We hold investments in companies having operations in areas that relate to our business. We record an
investment impairment charge when we believe an investment has experienced a decline in value that is other
than temporary.

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill is réviewed for impairment annually or whenever events indicate impairment may have occurred.
Identifiable intangibles are amortized over the assets’ estimated useful lives.

Advance Biilings

Advance billings are primarily comprised of billings related to jobs where revenue is recognized on the
percentage-of-completion method that have not begun and billings related to jobs where revenue is recognized
on the completed contract method. :

Minority Inferest

As of December 31, 2007, minority interest is primarily comprised of the portion of Exterran Partners, L.P’s
(together with its subsidiaries, the “‘Partnership™) capital and earnings that is applicable to the 49% limited
partner interest in the Partnership not owned by us (see further discussion of the Partnership in Note 2 below).
As of December 31, 2006, minority interest primarily represented the equity of the entities that leased
compression equipment to us. These equity interests were settled as part of the redemption of Hanover’s
equipment lease obligations, as discussed in Note 11.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using an asset and liability approach that requires the recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our
financial statements or income tax returns. In estimating future tax consequences, all expected future events
are considered other than tax law or tax rate changes that were not enacted as of December 31, 2007. A
valuation allowance is recognized for deferred tax assets if it is more likely than not that some or all of the
deferred tax asset will not be realized.

We are subject to taxation not only in the U.S. but also in numerous foreign jurisdictions. Having to consider
these different jurisdictions complicates the estimate of future U.S. and foreign source taxable income, which
in turn determines the realizability of our deferred tax assets. Numerous judgments and assumptions are
inherent in the determination of future U.S. and foreign source taxable income, including assumptions on
future operating conditions and asset utilization. The judgments and assumptions used to determine future
taxable income are consistent with those used for other financial statement purposes.

We also must consider any prudent and feasible tax planning strategies that would minimize the amount of
deferred tax liabilities recognized or the amount of any valuation allowance recognized against deferred tax
assets. For example, a tax planning strategy that we employ is the permanent reinvestment of the earnings of
foreign subsidiaries.
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Foreign Currency Translation

The financial statements of subsidiaries outside the U.S., except those for which we have determined that the
U.S. dollar is the functional currency, are measured using the local currency as the functional currency. Assets -
and liabilities of these subsidiaries are translated at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date.
Income and expense items are translated at average monthly rates of exchange. The resulting gains and losses
from the translation of accounts are included in accumulated other comprehensive income on our consolidated
batance sheets. For subsidiaries for which we have determined that the U.S. dollar is the functional currency,
translation gains and losses are included in other (income) expense, net on our consolidated statements of
operations,

Hedging and Use of Derivative Instruments

We use derivative financial instruments to minimize the risks and/or costs associated with financial activities
by managing our exposure to interest rate fluctuations on a portion of our debt obligations. We do not use
derivative financial instruments for trading or other speculative purposes. We record interest rate swaps on the
balance sheet as either derivative assets or derivative liabilittes measured at their fair value. Fair value was
estimnated using a discounted cash flow approach. These interest rate swaps result in financial impacts that are
inversely correlated to those of the items being hedged. Changes in the fair value of the swaps designated as
cash flow hedges are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax, to the extent the
contracts are effective as hedges until settlement of the underlying hedged transaction. To qualify for hedge
accounting treatment, companies must formally document, designate and assess the effectiveness of the
transactions. If the necessary correlation ceases to exist or if the anticipated transaction becomes improbable,
we would discontinue hedge accounting and apply mark-to-market accounting. Ameunts paid or received from
interest rate swap agrecments are charged or credited to interest expense and matched with the cash flows and
interest expense of the debt being hedged, resulting in an adjustment to the effective interest rate.

Earnings Per Common Share

Basic income (loss) per common share is computed by dividing income (loss) available to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the period. Diluted income (loss) per
common share is computed using the weighted average number of shares outstanding adjusted for the
incremental common stock equivalents attributed to outstanding options and warrants to purchase common
stock, restricted stock, employee stock purchase plan, convertible seniof notes and convertible subordinated
notes, unless their effect would be anti-dilutive.
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TQO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The table below indicates the potential shares of common stock that were included in computing the dilutive
potential shares of common stock used in diluted income (loss) per common share (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Weighted average common shares outstanding — used in basic income

(loss) per common share . .. ........ oo 45580 32,883 29,756
Net dilutive potential common stock issuable:

On exercise of options and vesting of restricted stock. . .......... 464 414 **

Onexerciseof warrants . . ... ... .. i — — **

On settlement of employee stock purchase plan shares . .......... 2 — —

On conversion of Convertible Junior Subordinated Notes due 2029 . . 254 *ok **

On conversion of Convertible Senior Notes due 2008 . ........... *® X *¥

On conversion of Convertible Senior Notes due 2014, ........ ... l 3,114 **
Weighted average common shares and dilutive potential common

shares — used- in diluted income {loss) per commeon share . ....... 46,300 36411 29,756

** Bycluded from diluted income (loss) per common share és the effect would have been anti-dilutive.

Net income for the diluted earnings per share calculation for-the year ended December 31, 2007 is adjusted to
add back interest expense and amortization of financing costs, net of tax, relating to our Convertibie Junior
Subordinated Notes due 2029 totaling $0.3 million. Net income for the diluted eammgs per share calculation
for the year ended December 31, 2006 is adjusted to add back interest expense and amortization of financing
costs, net of tax, relating to our Convertible Senior Notes due 2014 totaling $4.7 million. =

The table below indicates the potential shares of common stock issuable that were excluded from net dilutive
potential shares of common stock issuable as their effect would have been anti-dilutive (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Net dilutive potential common shares issuable: e lh i
On exercise of options and vesting of restricted stock-. . ..... e — — 713
On exercise of options-exercise price greater than average market value

atendof period. . ... ... s 14 17 304
On exercise of WaITANIS, . . . oo« vttt im et a e — -— 1
On settlement of employee stock purchase plan shares. . ............ — — —
On conversion of Convertible Junior Subordinated Notes due 2029. . . . . — 1,568 1,568
On conversion of Convertible Senior Notes due 2008. . ............. 1,420 1,420 1,420
On conversion of Convertible Senior Notes due 2014. .............. 3,114 — 3114

4,548 3005 7.180

. Stock Options and Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment”

(“SFAS No. 123(R)"). This standard addresses the accounting for share-based payment transactions in which
an enterprise receives employee services in exchange for (a) equity instruments of the enterprise or

(b) liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise’s equity instruments or that may be settled by
the issuance of such equity instruments. SFAS No. 123(R) eliminated the ability to account for share-based
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

compensation transactions using the intrinsic value method under Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB No. 257), and generally requlres instead that such
transactions be accounted for using a fair value based method.

Prior to January 1, 2006, we measured compensation expense for our stock-based employee compensation
plans using the intrinsic value method, which follows the recognition and measurement principles of

APB No. 25, as permitted by FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation™ (“SFAS No, 123%),

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R) using the
modified prospective transition method. Under that transition method, compensation cost recognized beginning
in the year ended December 31, 2006 includes: {a) compensation cost for all share-based payments granted
prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value, and (b) compensation
cost for any share-based payments granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant-date fair value.
In accordance with the modified prospective transition method, results for prior periods have, not been restated.
On January 1, 2006, we recorded the cumulative effect.of a change in accounting related to our adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R) of $0.4 million (net of tax of $0) which relates to the requirement to estimate forfeitures on
restricted stock awards.

For the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, stock-based compensation expense of $23.3 million,
$9.8 million and $5.7 million, respectively, was recognized and included in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Operations. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, we recognized income tax
benefits that were recorded as an addition to additional paid-in capital in our Consolidated Balance Sheet of
$13.1 million and $3.6 million, respectively, for share-based compensation arrangements. There was no income
tax benefit recognized for share-based compensation aﬁf:angemems for the year ended December 31, 2005,

Upon the closing of the merger, each share of restricted stock issued by Hanover and each Hanover stock
option was converted into Exterran restricted stock and stock options, respectively, based on the applicable
exchange ratio, and each Hanover stock option and each share of restricted stock or restricted stock unit of
Hanover granted prior to the date of the merger agreement and outstanding as of the effective time of the
merger vested in full. As a result of the merger, we included $11.7 milliop within our stock-based
compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 due to the accelerated vesting of Hanover's
restricted stock and stock options. There was no stock-based compensation cost capitalized during the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

Prior 10 the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), we presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting from the
exercise of stock options as operating cash flows in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. SFAS

No. 123(R) requires the cash flows from the tax benefits of tax deductions in excess of the coinpensation cost
recognized for those options (excess tax benefits) to be classified as financing cash flows. There were

$10.7 million and $1.5 million, respectively, of excess tax benefits classified as a financing cash inflow in the
accompanying Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 that
would have been classified as an operating cash inflow prior to our adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).

QOur adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006 eliminated the pro forma requirements disclosure for
periods following cur adoption. For purposes of this pro forma disclosure, the value of options is estimated
using a Black-Scholes option valuation model and amortized to expense over the options’ vesting periods. Had
we used the fair value based accounting methed for stock-based compensation expense described by

SFAS No. 123(R) for the year ended December 31, 2005, our diluted net loss per common and equivalent
share for the year ended December 31, 2005 would have been as set forth in the table below ($ in thousands,
except per share data).
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Year Ended
December 31,
2005
Net loss, before stock-based compensation for employees . ..................... $(38,017)
Add back: Stock-based compensation expense for employees previously determined
under intrinsic value method, netof tax effect .. ........ ... .. i 5,676
Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation expense for employees determined under
the fair value method, netof tax ... ... ... o e (8,098)
Net loss, after effect of stock-based compensation for employees . ................ $(40,439)
Net loss per share:
Basic, as reported for prior periods . . ... ... ... $ (1.28)
Basic after effect of stock-based compensation for employees . .................. $ (1.36)
Diluted as reported for priorperiods .. ... ... oo $ (1.28)
Diluted after effect of stock-based compensation for employees .. ................ $ (1.36)

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Components of comprehensive income (loss) are net income (loss) and all changes in equity during a beriod
except those resulting from transactions with owners. Our accurnulated other comprehensive income (loss)
consists of foreign currency translation adjustments and changes in the fair value of derivative financial
instruments, net of tax. As a result of the changes in the fair values of interest rate swaps designated as cash
flow hedges, for the year ended December 31, 2007, we recorded a reduction to accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) of $17.6 million, which is net of tax of $11.3 million,

Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments include cash, receivables, payables, interest rate swaps and debt. Except for fixed
interest rate debt as described in Note 11 below, the estimated fair value of such financial instruments at
December 31, 2007 and 2006 approximated their carrying value as reflected in our consolidated balance sheet.
The fair value of our debt has been estimated based on quoted market prices.

SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“SFAS No. 133™), as
amended by SFAS No. 137, SFAS No. 138, and SFAS No. 149, requires that all derivative instruments
(including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts) be recognized in the balance sheet at
fair value, and that changes in such fair values be recognized in earnings unless specific hedging criteria are
met. Changes in the values of derivatives that meet these hedging criteria will ultimately offset related earnings
effects of the hedged item pending recognition in earnings.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the prior period’s financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2007
financial statement classification including the reclassification of our used equipment sales to report these
transactions within other income and expense and reclassification of installation sales from Aftermarket
Services to our Fabrication segment. Additionally, we reclassified our supply chain department to include 1t as
part of cost of sales rather than a component of selling, general and administrative expense. See “Background

- and Significant Accounting Policies” above for a discuss of changes in our business segments. We have made
these reclassifications to all periods presented within this Annual Report on Form 10-K. These reclassifications
have no impact on our consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

F-17




EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC,
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

2. Business Acquisitions

On August 20, 2007, pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement™), dated as of
February 5, 2007, as amended, by and among us, Hanover, Universal, Hector Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporatioi
and our wholly-owned subsidiary, and Ulysses Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and our wholly-owned
subsidiary, Ulysses Sub, Inc. merged with and into Universal and Hector Sub, Inc. merged with and into
Hanover. As a result of the merger, each of Universal and Hanover became our wholly-owned subsidiary.
Immediaiely following the completion of the merger, Universal merged with and into us,

As a result of the merger, each outstanding share of common stock of Universal was converted into one share
of Exterran common stock, which resulted in the issuance of approximately 30.3 million shares of Exterran
common stock. Additionally, each outstanding share of Hanover common stock was converted into 0.325 shares
of common stock of Exterran, which resulted in the issuance of approximately 35.6 million shares of Exterran
common stock. Exterran’s common stock, listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “EXH,”
began trading on August 21, 2007, concurrent with the cessation of the trading of Hanover and Universal
common stock. The merger has been accounted for as a purchase business combination. We determined that
Hanover was the acquirer for accounting purposes and therefore our financial statements reflect Hanover’s
historical results for periods prior to the merger date. We have included the financial results of Universal in
our consolidated financial statements beginning August 20, 2007.

The total preliminary purchase price of Universal was $2.1 billion, including the fair value of Universal stock °
options assumed and acquisition related transaction costs. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed were
recorded at their fair values as of August 20, 2007. The purchase price has been calculated as follows (in
thousands except share and per share amounts and ratios):

Number of shares of Universal common stock outstanding at August 20, 2007 ...... 30,273,866
CONVETSION Ta0 . o o .ttt et e e 1.0
Number of shares of Exterran that wereissued . ... .. ... ... ... .. ... .......... 30,273,866
Assumed market price of an Exterran share that was issued(1) ............ ... .. 3 66.18
Aggregate value of the Exterran shares that were issued . ... ..., ... ......... $ 2,003,524
Fair value of vested and unvested Universal stock options outstanding as of August 20,

2007, which were converted into options to purchase Exterran common stock(2) . . . 67.574
Capitalizable transaction COSIS . . ... .. ... . i 10,709
Preliminary purchase price. . ... ......... ..., e $ 2,081,807

(1) The stock price is based on the average close price of Hanover’s stock for the two days before and through
the two days after the announcement of the merger on February 5, 2007, divided by the exchange ratio.

(2) The majonty of Universal’s stock options and stock-based compensation vested upon consummation of the
merger.

The completion of the merger resulted in the acceleration of vesting of certain long-term incentive awards
held by Hanover employees, including executive officers. On the merger date of August 20, 2007, there was
approximately $13.1 million of unrecognized compensation expense related to restricted stock, stock options
and cash incentive awards that were subject to acceleration of vesting and were expensed upon completion of
the merger. Additionally, we recorded a charge of approximately $8.4 million related to executives with
change of control agreements who were entitled to payments under those agreements as a result of the merger.

Prior to the completion of the merger, the Hanover and Universal boards of directors both adopted a retention
bonus plan of up to $10 million for each company. These plans provide for awards 1o certain key employees if

F-18




EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

such individuals remain employed by Hanover or Universal, including their successor, through a specific date
or dates in 2008 or are terminated without cause prior to such dates. Retention awards totaling $15.3 million
have been granted under these plans and we expensed $9.1 million related to the retention bonus plans during
the year ended December 31. 2007.

Under the purchase method of accounting, the total preliminary purchase price was allocated to Universal’s net
tangible and identifiable intangible assets based on their estimated fair values as of August 20, 2007, as set
forth below. The excess of the purchase price over net tangible and identifiable intangible assets was recorded
as goodwill. The goodwill resulting from the allocation of the purchase price was primarily associated with
Universal’s market presence in certain geographic locations where Hanover did not have a presence, the
advantage of a lower cost of capital that we believe results from the Partnership’s structure, growth
opportunities in the markets that the combined companies serve, the expected cost saving synergies from the
merger, the expertise of Universal's experienced workforce and its established operating infrastructure.

The preliminary allocation of the purchase price was based upon preliminary valuations and our estimates and
assumptions are subject to change upon the completion of management’s review of the final valuations. We
are in the process of finalizing valuations related to identifiable intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment, capitalized transaction costs, certain acquired contracts and residual goodwill. Changes to the
preliminary purchase price could impact future depreciation and amortization expense as well as income tax
expense. In addition, vpon the finalization of our legal entity structure, additional adjustments to deferred taxes
may be required. The final valuation of net assets is expected to be completed as soon as possible, but no later
than one year from the acquisition date, in accordance with accounting principles generalty accepted in the
Us.

The table below indicates the preliminary purchase price allocation to Universal’s net tangible and identifiable
intangible assets based on their estimated fair values as of August 20, 2007 (in thousands):

Preliminary

_Fair Value
CUITENE ASSEIS .+« o o v v v e e e et et e e e e e i e $ 488,338
Property, plant and equIPMEnt . ... ... ..ottt 1,630,708
GoodWIll .« . et e e e e e e 1,272,011
Intangible and otherassets . . ... .. ... 272,620
Current abilIties . . . - o o o e ettt e et (312,624)
Long-term debl . . ..\ttt (812,969)
Deferred INCOIME LAXES « « v v v o v e e e e e oo ne s aae e (240,153)
Other tong-term liabilities . ... ... .. o i (24,564)
MINOMIEY INLETESE . . . o oottt et e {192,460)
Preliminary purchase price. .. .. ... .t ie i e $2,081,807

Goodwill and Intangible Assets Acquired

The preliminary amount of goodwill of $1,272.9 million resulting from the merger is considered te have an
indefinite life and will not be amortized. Instead, goodwill will be reviewed annually for impairment or more
frequently if indicators of impairment exist. Approximately $91.5 million of the goodwill is expected to be
deductible for U.S. federal tax purposes.

The preliminary amount of finite life intangible assets includes $188.0 million and $54.4 million associated
with customer relationships and contracts, respectively. The intangible assets for customer relationships and
contracts will be amortized through 2024 and 2015, respectively, based on the present value of expected
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income to be realized from these assets. Finite life intangible assets also include $12.2 million for the
Universal backlog that existed on the date of the merger and will be amortized over 15 months.

Exterran Partners, L P. (formerly Universal Compression Partners, L.P)

As a result of the merger, we became the indirect majority owner of the Partnership. The Partnership is a
master limited partnership that was formed to provide natural gas contract operations services to customers
throughout the U.S. In October 2006, the Partnership completed its initial public offering, as a result of which
the common units owned by the public represented a 49% limited partner ownership interest in the Partnership
and Universal owned the remaining equity interest in the Partnership. The general partner of the Partnership is
our subsidiary and we consolidate the financial position and results of operations of the Partnership. It is our
intention for the Partnership to be our primary growth vehicle for the U.S contract operations business and for
us to continue to contribute U.S. contract operations customers and assets to the Partnership over time in
exchange for cash and/or additional interests in the Partnership. As of December 31, 2007, the Partnership had
a fleet of approximately 1,720 compressor units comprising approximately 723,000 horsepower, or 16% (by
available horsepower) of our and the Partnership’s combined total U.S. horsepower.

We are party to an omnibus agreement with the Partnership (as amended, the “Omnibus Agreement”), the
terms of which include, among other things, our agreement to provide to the Partnership operationai staff,
corporate staff and support services, the terms under which we may sell to the Partnership newly fabricated
equipment and under which we may transfer to and receive from the Partnership idle compression equipment
and an agreement by us to provide caps on the amount of cost of sales and selling, general and administrative
costs that the Partnership must pay, For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Partnership’s cost of sales
exceeded the cap by $8.6 million. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Partnership’s selling, general
and administrative expenses exceeded the cap in one quarter, resulting in a reduction in its reimbursement to
us of $0.3 million. These caps expire on December 31, 2008.
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Pro Forma Financial Information

The unaudited financial information in the table below summarizes the combined results of operations of
Hanover and Universal, on a pro forma basis, as though the companies had been combined as of the beginning
of each of the periods presented. The unaudited pro forma financial information is presented for informational
purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that would have occurred had the
transaction been consummated at the beginning of each period presented, nor is it necessarily indicative of
future results. The pro forma information for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 excludes non-
recurring items related to merger and integration expenses. The pro forma information for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 includes $77.1 million of debt extinguishment related charges and $61.9 million
of fleet impairment charges incurred in the third quarter of 2007, as discussed in Note 11 and Note 19,
respectively, below. The pro forma amounts represent the historical operating results of Hanover and Universal
with adjustments for purchase accounting expenses and to conform accounting policies that affect revenues,
cost of sales, selling, general and administrative expenses, depreciation and amortization, interest expense,
other income (expense) and income taxes (in thousands, except per share amounts)'.

Years Ended
December 31,
2007 2006
Total TEVEIAUES . . o vt it et e m e i e $3,319,031  $2,560,088
INEL IMCOMMIE & o o o oo e e e e et et e e e e n s $ 115090 § 142920
Basic income per common Share .. ...........c.oeiiiiiaans $ 178 § - 228
Diluted income per common share . . .. .......ovivei i, $ 1.76 $ 2.19

3. Dispositions

In February 2006, we sold our U.S. amine treating assets to Crosstex Energy Services L.P. (“Crosstex”) for
approximately $51.5 million and recorded a pre-tax gain of $28.4 million that is included in other (income)/
expense in our consolidated statement of operations. The disposal of these assets did not meet the criteria
established for recognition as discontinued operations under SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 144”). Our U.S. amine treating assets had revenues of
approximately $7.6 million in 2005. Because we leased back from Crosstex one of the facilities sold in this
transaction, approximately $3.3 million of additional gain was deferred into future periods. We also entered
into a three-year strategic alliance with Crosstex. '

During the first quarter of 2006, our board of directors approved management’s plan to dispose of the assets
used in our fabrication facility in Canada, which was part of our fabrication segment. These assets were sold
in May 2006 as part of management’s plan to improve overall operating efficiency in this line of business. The
Canadian assets were sold for approximately $10.1 million and we recorded a pre-tax gain of approximately
$8.0 million as a result of the transaction in other (income)expense in our consolidated statement of
operations. The disposal of these assets did not meet the criteria established for recognition as discontinued
operations under SFAS No. 144.

During the fourth quarter of 2002, our board of directors approved management’s plan to dispose of our non-
oilfield power generation projects, which were part of our North America contract operations segment, and
certain used equipment businesses, which were part of our aftermarket services segment. These disposals meet
the criteria established for recognition as discontinued operations under SFAS No. 144. SFAS No. 144
specifically requires that such amounts must represent a component of a business comprised of operations and
cash flows that can be clearly distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting purposes, from the rest
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of the entity. These businesses are reflected as discontinued operations in our consolidated statements of
operations.

4. Inventory
Inventory, net of reserves, consisted of the following amounts (in thousands):
December 31,
2007 2006

Parts and supplies . .. ... .o i e e e $246,540  $135,632
WoOrK D PrOgIEss. . . . e e e e e 139,956 162,096
Finished goods ...... e e e e 24,940 10,365
Inventory, net of Teserves. . . ... it it e e $411,436  $308,093

During the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we recorded approximately $1.7 million,

$2.3 million and $0.1 million, respectively, in inventory write-downs and reserves for inventory, which were
either obsolete, excess or carried at a price above market value. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had
* inventory reserves of $21.5 million and $11.9 million, respectively.

5. Fabrication Contracts

Costs, estimated earnings and billings on uncompleted contracts consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2007 2006
Costs incurred on uncompleted contracts. . .. .. ........ ..o onun.. $1,241913  § 558,607
Estimated earnings. . . .. ... ... ..o i e 214,948 85,938
1,456,861 644,545
Less —billingstodate. . ...... ... . .. e (1,340,670)  (628,936)

$ 116,191 § 15,609

Presented in the accompanying financial statements as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompteted
contracts . ............ e e e e $203,932 $109,732
Billings on uncompleted contracts in excess of costs and estimated
BAIMIMES . v\ vt ot e et et e e et et e e e (87,741)  (94,123)

$116,191  § 15,609
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6. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006
Compression equipment, facilities and other fleet assets. . ... ........ $ 4359936  $2,587,377
Land and buildings. . ... ..o ci i e 175,925 107,444
Transportation and shop equipment . . . ......... ... . oo 147,797 89,673
(181117 (R P 72,395 58,788

: . 4,756,053 2,843,282
Accumulated depreciation. . .. ..., . .. e (1,222,548) (979,830)
Property, plant and equipment, DBt .., . ... vriat i $ 3,533,505 $1,863,452

Depreciation expense was $235.2 million, $175.1 million and $171.5 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Assets under construction of $192.1 million and $109.8 million are included in compression
equipment, facilities and other fleet assets at December 31, 2007, and 2006, respectively. We capitalized
$1.4 million, $1.8 million and $0.4 million of interest related to construction in process during 2007, 2006,

and 2005, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006, the compression assets owned by the entities that leased equipment to us but,
pursuant to our adoption of FIN 46 were included in property, plant and equipment in our consolidated
financial statements had a net book value of approximately $340.2 million, including improvements made to

these assets after the sale leaseback transactions.

7. Intangible and Other Assets

Intangible and other assets consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31, .

2007 2006
Deferred debt issuance and leasing transactions costs . . ........... ... $ 15968  $26,553
Notes and other receivables . . . ........ ... ... ... .. e e 6,615 9,714
Intangible SSELS . ... vt ir it e 246,729 5,524
Deferred tAKES. . . . v v vt e i e e 22,536 7,085
(0117 S U 19,609 6,826
Intangibles and Other aSSE1S . . . . ..o v e eeariie e e . $311,457  $55,702
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Intangible assets and deferred debt issuance costs consisted of the following:

As of December 31, 2007 As of December 31, 2006
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
(In thousands)
Deferred debt issuance costs . . ............. $ 25,210 $ (9,242)  $58,037 $(31,484)
Marketing related (20 yr life) . ............. 2,178 (556) 2,256 {524)
Customer related (17-20 yr life) . ........... 191,331 (5,404) 3,022 (621)
Technology based (Syrlife) ............... 710 (639) 1,259 (497)
Contract based (1-17 yrlife) ... .......... .. 72,069 (12,960) 1,326 (697)
Intangible assets and deferred debt issuance
COSIS . .t e, $291,498 $(28,801)  $65,900 $(33,823)

Amortization of deferred debt issuance costs totaled $4.7 million, $5.5 million and $10.0 million in 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. Amortization of intangible costs totaled $17.5 million, $0.8 million and

$1.2 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Customer related intangible assets acquired in connection
with the merger are being amortized based upon the expected cash flows over a seventeen year period. This
amortization methodology will result in a substantial amount of the amortization occurring over the next five
years. Deferred financing costs of $16.4 million were written off in conjunction with the refinancing completed
during the third quarter of 2007 and recorded to debt extinguishment costs in our consolidated statements of
operations.

Estimated future intangible and deferred debt issuance cost amortization expense is as follows (in thousands):

1< P $ 43,821

2000 . e e e e e e e e e 34,646

2 1 ) 29,764

20 e e e 26,461

200 e e e 23,300

B 1 T 1 = 104,705 _
$262,697 '

8. Investments in Non-Consolidated Affiliates

Investments in affiliates that are not controlled by Exterran but where we have the ability to exercise
significant influence over the operations are accounted for using the equity method. Our share of net income
or losses of these affiliates is reflected in the consolidated statements of operations as equity in income (loss)
of non-consolidated affiliates. Qur primary equity method investments are comprised of entities that own,
operate, service and maintain compression and other related facilities. Our equity method investments totaled
approximately $86.1 million and $90.0 million at December 3], 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Our ownership interest and location of each equity method investee at December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Ownership
Interest Location Type of Business
PIGAPII ..... ... ... ... ... .. .. ... ... 300%  Venezuela  Gas Compression Plant
ElFumal ........... ..o o oo 333%  Venezuela  Gas Compression Plant
SIMCO/Harwat Consortium. . .. ............ 355%  Venezucla  Water Injection Plant
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Summarized balance sheet information for investees accounted for by the equity method is as follows (on a
100% basis, in thousands):

December 31,
2007 2006
CUITENE ASSELS &« v v o v v e e ettt anar s an e s $194,835 $135,845
INOD-CUITENL A558L8 . -« v v v ettt et e s e s eae et e 426,268 463,661
Current liabilities, excluding debt . ........ ... ...cov i 85,232 77,618
Debt payable. . .. oo oot e 247,045 256,648
Other non-current Labilities . . . . .. .o it i i e e e 124,809 59,515
OWNEIS” BQUILY + o v o v v v et in s emn e et m e 164,017 205,725

Summarized earnings information for these entities for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is
as follows (on a 100% basis, in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
REVEMUES .« & o o oo ettt et ettt ettt e e $192.923  $199,029 $198,906
Operating inCoOME. . .. ..ottt aee s 91,718 86,421 100,441
Nt INCOMIE & o v e oot et et ae e n e e et 29,683 20,003 54,473

We own 35.5% of the SIMCO and Harwat Consortium, which owns, operates and services water injection
plants in Venezuela. During the third quarter of 2007, we determined that the financial condition and near and
long-term prospects of our investment in the SIMCO and Harwat Consortium had declined and that we had a
loss in our investment that was not temporary. This decline was primarily caused by increased costs to operate
their business that is not expected to improve in the near term. In the third quarter of 2007, we recorded an
impairment of our investment in the SIMCO and the Harwat Consortium of $6.7 million, which is reflected as
a charge in equity in income (loss) of non-consolidated affiliates in our consolidated statements of operations.

During 2007, 2006 and 2005, we received approximately $8.5 million, $17.6 million and $18.7 million in
dividends from these joint ventures. At December 31, 2007 and 2006 we had cumulatively recognized
approximately $3.8 million and $13.2 million, respectively, of eamnings, net of tax, in excess of distributions
from these joint ventures.

In connection with our investrnent in El Furrial and the SIMCO and Harwat Consortium, we guaranteed our
portion of the debt in the joint venture related to these projects. At December 31, 2007, we have guaranteed
approximately $24.0 million of the debt that was on the books of the El Furrial joint venture. At December 31,
2006, we guaranteed approximately $31.7 million of the debt of the El Furrial and the SIMCO and Harwat
consortium joint ventures. These amounts are not recorded on our books.

9. Goodwill

Goodwill acquiréd in connection with business combinations represent the excess of consideration over the
fair value of tangible and identifiable intangible net assets acquired. Certain assumptions and estimates are
employed in determining the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as in determining
the allocation of goodwill to the appropriate reporting units. '

We perform an impairment test of goodwil} assets annually or more often if indicators of potential impairment
exist. Our goodwil! impairment test involves a comparison of the fair value of each of our reporting units with
their carrying value. The fair value is determined using the expected present value of future cash flows and a
market approach. Certain estimates and judgments are required in the application of the fair value models. In
the fourth quarter of 2007, weé performed our annual impairment analysis in accordance with SFAS No. 142,
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“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” and determined that no impairment had occurred. If for any reason
the fair value of our goodwill or that of any of our reporting units declines below the carrying value in the
future, we may incur charges for the impairment.

The table below presents the change in the net carrying amount of goodwill, including the impact of our
preliminary purchase price allocation for Universal, for the vears ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 (in
thousands):

December 31,  Acquisitions/ Inapact of Foreign December 31,
2006 Dispositions Currency Translation 2007
North America contract ,

Operations .. ... ......e.... $ 97,071 $1,017,110 $ — $1,114,181
International contract operations. . . 37,654 137,359 1,372 176,385
Aftermarket services ... ........ 31,982 - 34,060 — 66,042
Fabrication .. ................ 14,391 84,382 i __ 98,773

Towab........... ... $181.,098 $1,272 911 $1,872 $1,455,881

December 31,  Acquisitions/ Impact of Foreign December 31,
2005 Dispositions Currency Translation 2006
North America contract

operations . ................ $100,209 . $(3,138) — $ 97,071
International contract operations. . . 37,654 — — 37,654
Aftermarket services ........... 32,110 {128) — 31,982
Fabrication .................. 14,391 — — 14,391

Total ..................... $134,364 $(3,266) $— $181,098

10. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006
Accrued salaries and other benefits . . . ... .. ... .. $108464 $ 51,299
Accrued income and other 1aXes . . ... . ... .. . 100,910 36,188
Accrued WAarmanty eXPense. . . ... oottt i e e e 6,498 2,759
Accrued interest . ......... e e e e 12,397 22,744
Accrued other liabilities ... ... ... . .. ... .. 97,894 34,330
Accrued Habilities . .. . . .. e $326,163  $147,320
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11. Leong-term Debt ‘

Long-term debt consisted of the following (in thousands):

2007 2006
Bank credit facility due November 2010. ... .................... 3 — $ 20,000
Bank credit facility due August 2012 . . ... ... ... . . 180,000 —
Bank seniorterm loan . ... ... ... e 800,000 —
2007 ABS Facility notes due 2012 . .. ... ... ... oo 800,000 —_
The Partnership’s Revolving Credit Facility due 2011 .............. 217,000 —
4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2008 .. .................... 192,000 192,000
4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014 .. .................... 143,750 143,750
8.625% Senior Notes due 2010. .. ... ... ... . i — 200,000
7.5% Senior Notes due 2013 ... ... .. i — 150,000
9.0% Senior Notes due 2014 . ... ... ot e —_ 200,000
2001A Equipment Lease Notes, interest at 8.5%, due September 2008. . = 133,000
2001B Equipment Lease Notes, interest at 8.75%, due September
. 13 15 P — 250,000
7.25% Convertible Junior Subordinated Notes due 2029 ............ — 84,803
Fair value adjustment — fixed to floating interest rate swaps. ........ — (8,732)
Other, interest at various rates, collateralized by equipment and other
ey £ 1,174 677
2,333,924 1,365,498
Less Current Matunities . . . oot v et e e e ae e e e s 997 (455)
Long-termdebt ... ... .ot $2,332,927  $1,365,043

Following the merger of Hanover and Universal, we completed a refinancing of a significant amount of our
outstanding debt. We entered into a $1.65 billion senior secured credit facility and a $1.0 billion asset-backed
securitization facility.

Exterran Senior Secured Credit Facility

On August 20, 2007, we and our wholly-owned subsidiary, Exterran Canada, Limited Partnership (“Exterran
Canada”), entered into a five-year credit agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with various financial institutions
as the lenders. The Credit Agreement consists of (a) a revolving senior secured credit facility (the “Revolver™)
in the aggregate amount of $850 million, which includes a variable allocation for a Canadian tranche and the
ability to issue letters of credit under the facility and (b) a term loan senior secured credit facility, in the
aggregate amount of $800 miilion with principal payments due on multiple dates through June 2013
(collectively, the “Credit Facility”). Subject to certain conditions, at our request and with the approval of the
lenders, the aggregate commitments under the Credit Facility may be increased by an additional $400 million
less certain adjustments, including the amount of any outstanding borrowings under the 2007 ABS Facility,
described below, in excess of $800 million.

As of December 31, 2007, we had $180.0 million in outstanding borrowings and $323.2 million in letters of
credit outstanding under the Revolver. Additional borrowings of up to approximately $346.8 million were
available under that facility as of December 31, 2007.
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The Credit Agreement bears interest, if the borrowings are in U.S, dollars, at LIBOR or a Base Rate, at our
option, plus an applicable margin or, if the borrowings are in Canadian dollars, at our option, U.S. dollar
LIBOR, U.S. dollar Base Rate or Canadian prime rate plus the applicable margin or the Canadian Dollar
bankers’ acceptance (“CDOR”) rate. The applicable margin varies depending on the debt ratings of our senior
secured indebtedness (i} in the case of LIBOR loans, from 0.65% to 1.75% or (ii) in the case of Base Rate or
Canadian prime rate loans, from 0.0% to 0.75%. The applicable margin at December 31, 2007 was 0.825%.
The Base Rate is the higher of the U.S. Prime Rate or the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5%. At December 31,
2007 all amounts outstanding were LIBOR loans and the weighted average interest rate excluding the effect of
related cash flow hedges was 5.8%.

The Credit Agreement contains various covenants with which we must comply, including, but not limited to,
limitations on incurrence of indebtedness, investments, liens on assets, transactions with affiliates, mergers,
consolidations, sales of assets and other provisions customary in similar types of agreements. We must also
maintain, on a consolidated basis, required leverage and interest coverage ratios. Additionally, the Credit
Agreement contains customary conditions, representations and warranties, events of default and indemnifica-
tion provisions. Our indebtedness under the Credit Facility is collateralized by liens on substantially all of our
personal property in the U.S. The assets of the Partnership and our wholly-owned subsidiary, Exterran

ABS 2007 LLC (along with its subsidiaries, “Exterran ABS™), are not collateral under the Credit Agreement.
Exterran Canada’s indebtedness under the Credit Facility is collateralized by liens on substantially all of its
personal property in Canada. We have execnted a U.S. Pledge Agreement pursuant to which we and our
significant subsidiaries (as defined in the Credit Agreement) are required to pledge our equity and the equity
of certain subsidiaries. The Partnership and Exterran ABS are not pledged under this agreement and do not
guarantee debt under the Credit Facility.

Exterran Asset-Backed Securitization Facility

On August 20, 2007, Exterran ABS 2007 LLC entered into a $1.0 billion asset-backed securitization facility
(the “2007 ABS Facility”) and issued $400 million of Series 2007-1 notes under this facility. On September 18,
2007, an additional $400 million of Series 2007-1 notes {collectively with the August 20, 2007 issvance, the
“Series 2007-1 Notes™) were issued under this facility. Interest and fees payable to the noteholders will accrue
on the Series 2007-1 Notes at a variable rate consisting of LIBOR plus an applicable margin. For outstanding
amounts up to $800 million, the applicable margin is 0.825%. For amounts outstanding over $800 million, the
applicable margin will be 1.35%. The weighted average interest rate at December 31, 2007 on the

Series 2007-1 Notes excluding the effect of related cash flow hedges was 5.9%. The Series 2007-1 Notes are
revolving in nature and are payable in July 2012. The amount outstanding at any time is limited to the lower
of (i) 80% of the appraised value of the natural gas compression equipment owned by Exterran ABS and its
subsidiaries (ii) 4.5 times free cash flow or (iii) the amount calculated under an interest coverage test. The
related indenture contains customary terms and conditions with respect to an issuance of asset-backed
securities, including representations and warranties, covenants and events of default.

Repayment of the Series 2007-1 Notes has been secured by a pledge of all of the assets of Exterran ABS,
consisting primarily of a fleet of natural gas compressors and the related contracts to provide compression
services to our customers. Under the 2007 ABS Facility, we had $9.1 million of restricted cash as of
December 31, 2007.

Senior Notes

We commenced tender offers and consent solicitations in July 2007 for (1) $200 million in aggregate principal
amount of our 8.625% Senior Notes due 2010 (the “8.625% Notes™), (2} $200 million in aggregate principal
amount of our 9.0% Senior Notes due 2014 (the “9.0% Notes™) and (3) $150 million in aggregate principal
amount of our 7.5% Senior Notes due 2013 (the “7.5% Notes”). On August 20, 2007, following completion of
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the merger, we satisfied and discharged all of our outstanding 9.0% Notes and 7.5% Notes and all of its
8.625% Noles that were tendered. During the fourth quarter of 2007, we called and redeemed the remaining
$0.1 million of 8.625% Notes that were not tendered during the third quarter of 2007.

Hanover’s Credit Facility

In connection with the closing of the refinancing on August 20, 2007, we repaid in full all outstanding term
loans and revolving loans, together with interest and all other amounts due in connection with such repayment,
under the credit agreement, dated as of November 21, 2005.

Equipment Lease Obligations

On August 17, 2007, Hanover Equipment Trust 2001A, a special purpose Delaware business trust (“HET
2001A”), called for redemption all $133 million of its outstanding 8.5% Senior Secured Notes due 2008 (the
“2001A Notes™), and Hanover Equipment Trust 2001B, a special purpose Delaware business trust (“HET
2001B™), called for redemption all $250 million of its cutstanding 8.75% Senior Secured Notes due 2011 (the
“2001B Notes” and, together with the 2001A Notes, the “Equipment Trust Notes™). The Equipment Trust Notes
and the related trust equity certificates were redeemed on September 17, 2007.

The 2001A Notes were issued and the redemption was effected pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture
dated as of August 30, 2001, The 2001A Notes were redeemed at a redemption price of 100% of the principal
amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.

The 2001B Notes were issued and the redemption was effected pursuant to the provisions of the Indenture
dated as of August 30, 2001, The 2001B Notes were redeemed at a redemption price of 102.917% of the
principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date.

4,75% Convertible Senior Notes

In March 2001, we issued $192 million aggregate principal amount of 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due
March 15, 2008 and in December 2003 we issued $143.75 million aggregate principal amount of 4.75% Con-
vertible Senior Notes due January 15, 2014. In connection with the closing of the merger, on August 20, 2007,
we executed supplemental indentures between Hanover and the trustees, pursuant to which Exterran Holdings,
Inc. agreed to fully and unconditionally guarantee the obligations of Hanover relating to the 4.75% Convertible
Senior Notes due 2008 and the 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014 (collectively, the “Convertible
Notes™). Hanover, the issuer of the Convertible Notes, is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Exterran Holdings, Inc.
that has no independent assets or operations, as defined in Regulation S-X Article 3-10. Exterran Holdings,
Inc. does not have any other subsidiaries that are not owned by Hanover. There are no significant restrictions
on the ability of Exterran Holdings, Inc. to obtain funds from Hanover by dividend or loan,

The Convertible Notes are our general unsecured obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all of
our other senior debt. The Convertible Notes are effectively subordinated to all existing and future liabilities of
our subsidiaries.

4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2008

The 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2008 with an aggregz.ne principal amount of $192 million are due
March 15, 2008. These notes are classified as long-term debt as we have the intent and ability to refinance the
notes using available credit on our 2007 ABS Facility or the Revolver.

The 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2008 are convertible into a whole number of shares of our common
stock and cash in lieu of fractional shares. The 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2008 are convertible at
the option of the holder into shares of our common stock at a conversion rate of 7.3969 shares of common
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stock per $1,000 principal amount of convertible senior notes, which is equivalent to a conversion price of
approximately $135.19 per share.

We have the right at any time to redeem some or all of the 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2008. If we
experience a specified change in control, a holder of the 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2008 may
require us to repurchase, with cash or common stock, some or all of the 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due
2008 at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest to the repurchase date.
The fair value of the 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2008 was approximately $191.3 million at
December 31, 2007.

4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014

The 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014 are convertible into a whole number of shares of our common
stock and cash in lieu of fractional shares. The 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014 are convertible at
the option of the holder into shares of our common stock at a conversion rate of 21.6667 shares of common
stock per $1,000 principal amount of convertible senior notes, which is equivalent to a conversion price of
approximately $46.15 per share.

At any time on or after January 15, 2011 but prior to January 15, 2013, we may redeem some or all of the
4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014 at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the
4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014 plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, if the price of our commeon
stock exceeds 135% of the conversion price of the convertible senior notes then in effect for 20 trading days
out of a period of 30 consecutive trading days. At any time on or after January 15, 2013, we may redeem
some or all of the 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014 at a redemption price equal to 100% of the
principal amount of the 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014 plus accrited and unpaid interest, if any.
Holders have the right to require us to repurchase the 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2014 upon a
specified change in control, at a repurchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount of 4.75% Convertible
Senior Notes due 2014 plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. The fair value of the 4.75% Convertible Senior
Notes due 2014 was approximately $269.1 million at December 31, 2007.

7.25% Convertible Junior Subordinated Notes due 2029

From December 2006 through May 2007, we called for redemption portions of our 7.25% Convertible Junior
Subordinated Notes due 2029 (“Ir. TIDES Notes”). The Jr. TIDES Notes were owned by the Hanover
Compressor Trust (the “Trust”), a subsidiary of our’s. The Trust was required to call a like amount of the
7.25% Convertible Preferred Securities (“TIDES Preferred Securities”} held by the public. Holders of the
TIDES Preferred Securities converted their securities into 1.6 million shares of our common stock prior to
their respective redemption dates; the remaining TIDES Preferred Securities were redeemed and discharged on
their respective redemption dates. All $86.3 million of Jr. TIDES Notes and TIDES Preferred Securities have
now been redeemed and discharged.

The Partnership’s Revolving Credit Facility

The Partnership, as guarantor, and EXLP Operating LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Partnership (“the
Operating Partnership” and, together with the Partnership, the “Partnership Borrowers™), entered into a senior
secured credit agreement in 2006. The credit facility under the credit agreement was expanded in 2007 and
consists of a five-year $315 million revolving credit facility, which matures in October 2011. As of

December 31, 2007, there was $217.0 million in outstanding borrowings under the revolving credit facility and
$98.0 million was available for additional borrowings. Subject to certain conditions, at the request of the
Partnership, and with the approval of the lenders, the aggregate commitments under the revolving credit
facility may be increased by an additional $135 million.
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The Partnership’s revolving credit facility bears interest at a Base Rate or LIBOR, at the Partnership’s option,
plus an applicable margin. The applicable margin, depending on the Partnership’s Leverage Ratio, varies (i) in
the case of LIBOR loans, from 1.0% to 2.0% or (ii) in the case of Base Rate loans, from 0.0% to 1.0%. The
Base Rate is the higher of the U.S. Prime Rate or the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.5%. At December 31, 2007,
all amounts outstanding were LIBOR loans and the applicable margin was 1.25%. The weighted average
interest rate on the outstanding balance at December 31, 2007 excluding the effect of related cash flow hedges
was 6.6%.

Borrowings under the credit agreement are secured by substantially all of the personal property assets of the
Partnership Borrowers. In addition, all of the capital stock of the Partnership’s U.S. restricted subsidiaries has
been pledged to secure the obligations under the credit agreement,

Under the credit agreement, the Operating Partnership and the Partnership are subject to certain limitations,
including limitations on their ability to incur additional debt or sell assets, with restrictions on the use of
proceeds; to make certain investments and acquisitions; to grant liens; and to pay dividends and distributions.
The Partnership Borrowers are also subject to financial covenants which include a total leverage and an
interest coverage ratio.

Debt Compliance

We were in compliance with our debt covenants as of December 31, 2007.

Debt Extinguishment Charges

The refinancing discussed above and completed in the third quarter of 2007 in connection with the completion
of the merger resulted in various debt extinguishment charges. A summary of these charges is shown below (in
thousands):

Tender fees for the 9.0% Notes, 7.5% Notes and 8.625% NoOIeS. . . .. v v en it ennn. $46,268
Call premium on 2001B Notes . .. ... .. it e e e e e 7,497
Unamortized deferred financings costs — Hanover revolving credit facility, senior notes
and Equipment Trust NoOtes. . . ... ... . i e e e e 16,385
Charges included in debt extinguishment costs ....... ... . ... ... . ... . 0 ve.... 70,150
Termination of interest rate swaps (included in interest expense) .. ... ... coonenns. 6,964
Total debt extinguishment costs and related charges . ............................ $77.114

Long-term Debt Maturity Schedule

Contractual maturities of long-term debt (excluding interest to be accrued thereon) at December 31, 2007 are
as follows (in thousands):

December 31,

__ 007
2008, . e e e e e e e e $ 192,997
2000 . . e e e e e 20,049
710 3 0 Y 40,053
2 277,058
2002, . e e e 1,340,017
Therealter. . . ..o e 463,750
Total debt. . .. ... o e $2,333,924
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12. Income Taxes

The components of income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes and minority interest were
as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
United States. . ...t i i $(45,443) $ 60,230  $(33,146)
Foreign. ... . ... .. i ERERE 08,213 54,274 23,712
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes
and minority interest .. ........ ... $52770  $114504 § (9,434)

The provision for income taxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Current tax provision:
US.federal ................ i 3 147 $ 468 § —
L. o o ottt e e e e 3,603 1 8
FOTEIgM. . . oot e 40,621 26,657 8,402
Total CUMTENt . . . . . o e e e e e 44,371 27,126 8,410
Deferred tax provision (benefit):
US. federal ... i e e (20,076) (9,135 273
LY 7 T 798 (1,158) 1,477
Foreign. . ... ... . .o (13,199) 11,949 17,554
Total deferred . ... ... i e e e (32,477) 1,656 19,304
Provision fOr INCOME LAXES . . . o v v vt vt vt e e i e e e e $ 11,894 $28,782  $27,714

The provision for income taxes for 2007, 2006 and 2005 resulted in effective tax rates on continuing
operations of 22.5%, 25.1%, and (293.8)%, respectively. The reasons for the differences between these
effective tax rates and the U.S. statutory rate of 35% are as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Income taxes at U.S. federal statutory rate of 35%. .. .. ...... .. $18,469° $40,076 $(3.302)
Net state INCOME EAXSS . v . vt it it e oo e et e ettt ieanees 2,932 1,518 965
FOTQIZN LAXES . . . oot i i it e e e et 6,266 17,151 19,184
Minority interest. . ... ... ..ot e e (2,182) — —
Forejgntax credits . .. ... ... ... ... (8,553) — —
FIN 48/FAS 5 e e e e e 2,046 10 (4,254)
Valuation allowances . ... .. ... ...t (9,583) (35,493) 16,733
Executive compensation . ... ........uuvv ity 1,914 438 28
1 7= {113) 5,082 (1,640)

Provision for income 1axes . .. .. v n et it $11,804 $28782 $27,714
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Deferred income tax balances are the direct effect of taxable temporary differences between the financial

statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities at the enacted tax rates expected to be in
effect when the taxes are actually paid or recovered. The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are (in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards . .. ... ... .. ... .. .. .. ... $394,615  § 303,243
Inventory .......... .. . . . . e 8,228 5,105
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards ... ... .............. 6,823 5,834
Accrued liabilities . . .. . ... .. . 39,514 8,597
Intangibles . ... ... . e - 4,140
Foreign tax credit carryforwards .. ... ... ... .. ... L . oL 73,374 -
Capital loss carryforwards . . ... ... ... e 3,126 3,126
Other L e e 31,200 18,605

Subtotal . ... e 557,480 348,650
Valuation allowances. . . .. ... oo (30,863) (46,996)

Total deferred (X 8SSEIS. . .. . o v i 526,617 301,654

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment . .. ... ... .. .. .. . o .. (586,493)  (351,769)
Basis difference in the Partnership. .. ...... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... (47,461) —
Intangibles . ... ... e (82,421) —
Other .. e (35.032) (4,338)

Total deferred tax liabilities . . . ... ... .. .. .. .. . . ... (751,407) (356,107}

Net deferred tax liabilities . .. ........ ... .. ... .o ivr.o.. $(224,790) S (54,453)

Tax balances are presented in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2007 2006
Current deferred income 1aX 488618 . . . ... .. vttt r i $ 41,648 $ 20,129
Intangibles and other asset .. ... ... .. ... .. .. .. .. i, 22,536 " 7,085
Accrued liabilities. . .. ... ... . . e (7,076) (5,145)
Deferred income tax liabilities . ... ........ ... ... .. . . ... ... (281,898)  (76,522)
Net deferred tax liabilities . .. . ....... ... ... ... .. .. ...  $(224,790)  $(54.453)

At December 31, 2007, we had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards and capital loss carryforwards of
approximately $988.8 million and $8.9 million, respectively, that are available to offset future taxable income,
If not used, the carryforwards will begin to expire in 2019 and 2009, respectively. We also had approximately

$104.0 million of net operating loss carryforwards in certain foreign jurisdictions, of which approximately
$26.1 million have no expiration date, $67.3 million are subject to expiration from 2008 to 2012, and the
remainder expires in future years through 2020. Foreign tax credit carryforwards of $73.4 million and
alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of $6.8 million are available to offset future payments of
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U.S. federal income tax. The foreign tax credits will expire in varying amounts beginning in 2013, whereas the
alternative minimum tax credits may be carried forward indefinitely under current U.S. tax law.

As a result of the merger between Hanover and Universal, we have changed our position with respect to
foreign taxes by treating foreign taxes as credits rather than deductions. Foreign tax credits that are not utilized
in the year they are generated can be carried forward for 10 years offsetting payments of U.S. federal income
taxes on a dollar-for-dollar basis. We believe that we will generate sufficient taxable income in the future from
our operating activities as well as from the transfer of U.S. contract operations customer contracts and assets
to the Partnership that will cavse us to use our net operating loss carryforwards earlier than we had expected
prior to the merger. After the utilization of our net operating carryforwards, we expect that we will be able to
utilize our foreign tax credits within the 10-year carryforward peried. In addition, we intend to amend our
2005 and 2006 U.S. federal income tax returns to make an election to credit foreign taxes that were previously
deducted. The amendments will result in a $29.5 million benefit for foreign tax credits generated prior to the
merger that has been recorded as a purchase accounting adjustment. If we do not meet our expectations with
respect to taxable income generated by our operating activities and the transfer of assets to the Partnership, we
may not realize the full benefit from our foreign tax credits which would require us to record a valuation
allowance in our tax provision in future years.

Pursuant to Sections 382 and 383 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, utilization of loss
carryforwards and credit carryforwards, such as foreign tax credits, will be subject to annual limitations due to
the ownership changes of both Hanover and Universal. In general, an ownership change, as defined by

Section 382, results from transactions increasing the ownership of certain stockholders or public groups in the
stock of a corporation by more than 50 percentage points over a three-year period. The merger resuited in
such an ownership change for both Hanover and Universal. Our ability to utilize loss carryforwards and credit
carryforwards against future U.S. federal taxable income and future U.S. federal income tax may be limited.
The limitations may cause us to pay U.S. federal income taxes earlier; however, we do not currently expect
that any loss carryforwards or credit carryforwards will expire as a result of these limitatiens.

We record valuation allowances when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of cur deferred tax
assets (e.g., net operating loss carryforwards, capital loss carryforwards, foreign tax credits, etc.) will not be
realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets depends on the ability to generate sufficient taxable
income ‘of the appropriate character and in the appropriate taxing jurisdictions in the future. We believe the
transfer of U.S. contract operations customer contracts and assets to the Partnership will generate sufficient
capital gains in the future that will allow us to use all of our capital loss carryforwards. The benefit of
reversing a $3.1 million valuation allowance related to the capital loss carryforwards was recorded as a
purchase accounting adjustment.

We have not provided U.S. federal income taxes on indefinitely (or permanently) reinvested cumulative
earnings of approximately $353.7 million generated by our foreign subsidiaries. Such earnings are from
ongoing operations which will be used to fund growth in the foreign subsidiaries’ countries as well as future
international expansion. In the event of a distribution of those earnings in the form of dividends, we may be
subject to both foreign withholding taxes and U.S. federal income taxes net of allowable foreign tax credits.

We adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes™
(“FIN 48™) on January 1, 2007, which resulted in a reduction to stockholders’ equity of $3.7 million. Together
with a $12.7 million tax reserve balance at December 31, 2006, on the date of adoption, we had $16.4 million
of unrecognized tax benefits. Included in the components of unrecognized tax benefits was $3.8 million of
accrued interest and penalties. '
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is shown below (in

thousands):
Year Ended
December 31, 2007
Balance at December 31, 2006 . . . . ... oottt e $11,182
Adoption of FIN 48 . . .. . . . e 1,470
Balance at January 1,2007. . ... .. ... . ... e 12,652
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year. ... .............. 1,443
Additions based on tax positions related to prior years ...................., 2,700
Additions due to acquISIion . . . ... ... . e 920
Reductions due to a lapse of the applicable statute of limitations . . . ........... (3,091)
....................................... 314,624

Balance at December 31, 2007

At December 31, 2007, we had $14.

6 million of unrecognized tax benefits, $13.4 million of which, if

recognized, would affect the effective tax rate. We also have recorded $5.4 million of potential interest
expense and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits associated with uncertain tax positions as of
December 31, 2007. To the extent interest and penalties-are not assessed with respect to uncertain tax
positions, amounts accrued will be reduced and reflected as reductions in income tax expense,

The Company and its subsidiaries file consolidated and separate income tax returns in the U.S. federal
Jurisdiction and in numerous state and foreign jurisdictions. We are subject to U.S. federal income tax
examinations for tax years beginning in 1997 and the Internal Revenue Service has yet to commence an

examination of the Company’s U.S.

federal income tax returns for such tax years,

State income tax returns are generally subject to examination for a period of three to five years after filing of

the respective returns. However, the

by various states for a period of up to one year after formal notification to the states. We do not have any state

state impact of any U.S. federal changes remains subject to examination

audits currently underway that would have a material impact on the Company/s financial position or results of

operations.

We are subject to examination by taxing authorities throughout the world, including such major foreign
jurisdictions as Argentina, Brazil, Canada, Italy, Mexico, and Venezuela. With few exceptions, the Company
and its subsidiaries are no longer subject to foreign income tax examinations for tax years before 2001,
Several foreign audits are currently in progress and we do not expect any tax adjustments that would have a
material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

We do not anticipate that total unrecognized tax benefits wiil significantly change due to the settlement of
audits and the expiration of statute of limitations prior to December 31, 2008. However, due to the uncertain
and complex application of tax regulations, it is possible that the ultimate resolution of these matters may
result in liabilities which could be materially different from these estimates.

13. Accounting for Derivatives

We use derivative financial instruments to minimize the risks and/or costs associated with financial activities
by managing our exposure to interest rate fluctuations on a portion of our debt obligations. We do not use
derivative financial instruments for trading or other speculative purposes. Cash flows from hedges are
classified in our consolidated statements of cash flows under the same category as the cash flows from the
underlying assets, liabilities or anticipated transactions.
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In March 2004, we entered into two interest rate swaps, which we designated as fair value hedges, to hedge
the risk of changes in fair value of our 8.625% Senior Notes due 2010 resulting from changes in interest rates.
These interest rate swaps, under which we received fixed payments and made floating payments, resulted in
the conversion of the hedged obligation into floating rate debt. As a resuit of the repayment of the

8.625% Senior Notes in August 2007, we terminated these interest rate swaps which resulted in a charge to
interest expense of $7.0 million. '

As a result of the merger we assumed ten interest rate swaps with a total notional amount of $585.0 million as
of December 31, 2007 that we designated as cash flow hedges to hedge the risk of variability of LIBOR based
interest rate payments related to variable rate debt.

In September 2007, we entered into three interest rate swaps that we designated as cash flow hedges to hedge
the risk of variability of LIBOR interest rate payments related to variable rate. The three swap agreements
have notional amounts of $150.9 millicn, $224.2 million and $150.0 million, respectively.

The following table summarizes, by individual hedge instrument, our interest rate swaps as of December 31,
2007 (dollars in thousands): -

Fair Value of

Floating Rate to he Notional Swap at
Fixed Rate to be Paid Malturity Date Received Amount December 31, 2007
4.035% March 31, 2010 Three Month LIBOR ~ $ 56,250(1) $ (186)
4.007% March 31, 2010 Three Month LIBOR  $ 56,250(1) $ (167
3.990% March 31, 2010 Three Month LIBOR  $ 56,250(1) $ (155
4.037% March 31, 2010 Three Month LIBOR  $ 56,250(1) $ (188) !
4.675% August 20, 2012 One Month LIBOR $150,941(2) $(4,142) I
4.744% July 20, 2012 One Month LIBOR $224,150(2) $(7,040) . :
4.668% July 20, 2012 One Month LIBOR $150,000(2) $(3,891) i
5.210% January 20, 2013 One Month LIBOR $ 60,809(2) $(2,180)
4.450% September 20, 2019  One Month LIBOR $ 42,727(2) $ (201) .
5.020% September 20, 2019  One Month LIBOR $ 51,373(2) $(1,879) '
5.275% December 1, 2011 Three Month LIBOR  $125,000 $(5,893)
5.343% October 20, 2011 Three Month LIBOR  $ 40,000 5(2,045)
5.315% October 20, 2011 Three Month LIBOR  § 40,000 $(2,002)

(1) These swaps amortize ratably over the life of the swap.

(2) Certain of these swaps amortize while the notional amount of others increase in corresponding amounts to
maintain a consistent outstanding notional amount of $680 million.

All of the swaps, which we have designated as cash flow hedging instruments, meet the specific hedge criteria
of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” (“SFAS No. 133”) so that
any changes in their fair values are recognized as a component of comprehensive income or loss and are
included in accumulated other comprehensive income or loss. These swap terms substantially coincide with
the hedged item and are expected to offset changes in expected cash flows due to fluctuations in the variable
rate, and therefore we currently do not expect a significant amount of ineffectiveness on these hedges. We
perform quarterly calculations to determine if the swap agreements are still effective and to calculate any
ineffectiveness because the terms of the hedged item and the swap do not exactly coincide. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, we recorded approximately $}.0 million of interest expense due to the ineffectiveness
related to these swaps.
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The counterparties to our interest rate swap agreements are major international financial institutions. We
monitor the credit quality of these financial institutions and do not expect non-performance by any
counterparty, although such non-performance could have a material adverse effect on us.

14. Common Stockholders’ Equity

Upon the closing of the merger, we had an aggregate of 300,000,000 shares authorized, of which 250,000,000
can be issued as common stock and 50,000,000 can be issued as preferred stock. All shares have a par value
of $0.01 per share.

On August 20, 2007, our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $200 million of our common
stock through August 19, 2009. Under the stock repurchase program, we may repurchase shares in open
market purchases or in privately negotiated transactions in accordance with applicable insider trading and other
securities laws and regulations. We may also implement all or part of the repurchases under a Rule 10b5-1
trading plan, so as to provide the flexibility to extend our share repurchases beyond the quarterly purchasing
window. The timing and extent to which we repurchase shares will depend upon market conditions and other
corporate considerations, and will be in management’s discretion. Repurchases under the program may
commence or be suspended at any time without prior notice. The stock repurchase program may be funded
through cash provided by operating activities or borrowings. During the period August 20, 2007 through
December 31, 2007, we repurchased 1,258,400 shares of our common stock at an aggregate cost of
approximately $100.0 million.

In connection with the merger, all of Hanover’s treasury stock that existed on the date of the merger was
retired.

On August 15, 2005, we completed a public offering of 4,275,175 shares of Hanover common stock for
approximately $179.1 million of net proceeds to Hanover. Of the 4,275,175 shares of common stock sold by
Hanover, 557,631 shares of Hanover common stock were sold pursuant to the underwriters’ over-allotment
option.

15. Stock — Based Compensation and Awards

The following table presents the stock-based compensation expense included in our results of operations (in
thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Stock options, unit options, and phantom units. .. ............... $ 1819 $1734 $ —
Restricted stock. . .0 ot 21,090 8,039 5,676
Unit appreciation rights . . . ... .. ... ... .. 248 — —
Employee stock purchase plan. . ... ....... ... ... ... . ..... 154 — —_—
Total stock-based compensation expense .. ..................., $23,311  $9.773  $5,676

Upon the closing of the merger, each share of restricted stock issued by Hanover and each Hanover stock
option was converted into Exterran restricted stock and stock options, respectively, based on the applicable
exchange ratio, and each Hanover stock option and each share of restricted stock or restricted stock unit of
Hanover granted prior to the date of the merger agreement and outstanding as of the effective time of the
merger vested in full. As a result of the merger, we included $11.7 million within our stock-based
campensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 related to the accelerated vesting of Hanover’s
restricted stock and stock options. There was no stock-based compensation cost capitalized during the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2003.
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Stock Incentive Plan .

On August 20, 2007, we adopted the Exterran Holdings, Inc. 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (the “2007 Plan™),
which was previously approved by each of the stockholders of Hanover and Universal and provides for the
granting of stock-based awards in the form of options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock apprecia-
tion rights and performance awards to our employees and directors. Under the 2007 Plan, the aggregate
number of shares of common stock that may be issued shall not exceed 4,750,000. Grants of options and stock
appreciation rights count as one share against the aggregate share limit and grants of restricted stock and
restricted stock units count as two shares against the aggregate share limit. Awards granted under the 2007
Plan that are subsequently cancelled, terminated or forfeited remain available for future grant. Grants under
the plan expire no later than seven years from the date of grant. The 2007 Plan is administered by the
Compensation Committee of our board of directors (“Compensation Committee”).

Stock Options

Under the 2007 Plan, stock options are granted at fair market value at the date of grant, are exercisable in
accordance with the vesting schedule established by the Compensation Committee in its sole discretion and
expire no later than seven years after the date of grant. Options generally vest 33%4% on each of the first three
anniversaries of the grant date.

The weighted average fair values at date of grant for options granted during the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2005 were $23.92 and $15.63, respectively, and were estimated using the Black-Scholes option
valuation model with the following weighted average assumptions:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Expected life in years . ... ... ... 4.5 — 7.0

Risk-free interest rate . .. ... ... . ... . . i, 427% — 4.0%
Volatility . . ..o 27.18% — 32.0%
Dividend yield . ...... ... .. .. .. . . . . 00% — 0.0%

The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of the grant for a
period commensurate with the estimated expected life of the stock options. Expected volatility is based on the
historical volatility of our stock over the most recent period commensurate with the expected life of the stock
options and other factors. We have not historically paid a dividend and do not expect to pay a dividend during
the expected life of the stock options.

At the time of the merger, each outstanding stock option granted prior to the date of the merger agreement
under the Hanover equity incentive plans, whether vested or unvested, was fully vested. Stock options granted
under the Hanover equity incentive plans outstanding on the merger date were converted into an option to
acquire a number of shares of Exterran common stock equal to the number of shares of Hanover common
stock subject to that stock option immediately before the merger multiplied by 0.325, and at a price per share
of Exterran common stock equal to the price per share under that Hanover option divided by 0.325. Similarly,
each outstanding stock option granted prior to the date of the merger agreement under the Universal equity
incentive plans {(other than options to purchase Universal common stock under the Universal employee stock
purchase plan), whether vested or unvested, was fully vested at the time of the merger. Stock options granted
under the Universal equity incentive plans outstanding on the merger date were converted into an option to
acquire the same number of shares of Exterran common stock at the same price per share.
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The following table presents stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2007 (in thousands, except

per share data and remaining life in years).

Weighted

Weighted Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsie
. Options  Exercise Price Life Value

Options outstanding, December 31, 2006 ... ... .. $36.95
Options assumed in merger . ............... 33.20
Granted . . .. ........ . ... ... ... ... 77.19
Exercised. . ......... ... .. ... . . 33.46
Cancelled ........ ... ... . v, 37.72

‘Options outstanding, December 3%, 2007 ... ... .. $36.37 5.6 381,560

Options exercisable, December 31, 2007 ... ... .. $32.08 53 $80,627

Intrinsic value is the difference between the market value of our stock and exercise price of each option

multiplied by the number of options outstanding. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the

years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $36.1 million, $4.2 million, and $13.9 million,
respectively. As of December 31, 2007, $4.3 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested
stock options is expected to be recognized over the weighted-average period of 2.5 years,

Restricied Stock and Stock Settled Restricted Stock Units

For grants of restricted stock and stock-settled restricted stock units, we recognize compensation expense over

the vesting period equal to the fair value of our common stock at the date of grant. Common stock subject to
restricted stock grants generally vests 33'4% on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date.

The following table presents restricted stock and stock-settled restricted stock units activity for the year ended

_ December 31, 2007 (shares in thousands). The number of non-vested restricted shares and grant-date fair value
has been adjusted to reflect the exchange ratio in the merger.

Change in expected vesting of performance shares ....................
Cancelled. . ... ... ... e

Non-vested restricted stock, December 31, 2007 . ... ... .. i

The total grant date fair value of restricted stock that vested during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006,

Weighted
Average
Grant-Date
Fair Value
Shares Per Share
633 $43.96
95 75.00
241 69.81
(614) 44 41
(16) 35.05
(40) 6391
299 $7152

and 2005 were $27.2 million, $4.6 million and $3.7 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2007,
$17.1 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested restricted stock is expected to be

recognized over the weighted-average period of 2.4 years.
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On August 20, 2007, we adopted the Exterran Holdings, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“ESPP’), which
is intended to provide employees with an opportunity to participate in our long-term performance and success
through the purchase of shares of common stock at a price that may be tess than fair market value. The ESPP
is designed to comply with Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Each quarter, an
eligible employee may elect to withhold a portion of their salary up to the lesser of $25,000 per year or 10%
of his or her eligible pay to purchase shares of our common stock at a price equal to 85% to 100% of the fair
market value of the stock as of the first trading day of the quarter or the last trading day of the quarter,
whichever is lower. The ESPP will terminate on the date that all shares of common stock authorized for sale
under the ESPP have been purchased, unless it is extended. A total of 650,000 shares of our common stock
have been authorized and reserved for issuance under the ESPP. At December 31, 2007, all shares remained
available for purchase under the ESPP. Under SFAS No. 123R, our ESPP plan is compensatory, and as a
result, we record an expense on our consolidated statements of operations related to our ESPP.

Directors’ Stock and Deferral Plan

On August 20, 2007, we adopted the Exterran Holdings, Inc. Directors’ Stock and Deferral Plan. The purpose
of the Directors”™ Stock and Deferral Plan is to provide non-employee directors of the board of directors with
an opportunity to elect to receive our common stock as payment for a portion or all of their retainer and
meeting fees. The number of shares to be paid each quarter will be determined by dividing the dollar amount
of fees clected to be paid in common stock by the closing sates price per share of the common stock on the
last day of the gquarter. In addition, directors who elect to receive a portion or all of their fees in the form of
common stock may also elect to defer, until a later date, the receipt of a portion or all of their fees to be
received in common stock. We have reserved 100,000 shares under the Directors’ Stock and Deferral Plan,
and as of December 31, 2007, all shares remain available to be issued under the plan.

Unit Appreciation Rights

As a result of the merger, we assumed approximately 0.3 million outstanding unit appreciation rights
(“UARs™}. These UARs entitle the holder to receive a payment from us in cash equal to the excess of the fair
market value of a common unit of the Partnership on the date of exercise over the exercise price. These UARs
vest on January 1, 2009 and expire on December 31, 2009.

Because the holders of the UARs will receive a cash payment from us, these awards have been recorded as a
liability, and we are required to remeasure the fair value of these awards at each reporting date under the
guidance of SFAS No. 123R. At December 31, 2007, the fair value of each UAR was $6.36 and was estimated
using the Black-Scholes option valuation model with the following weighted average assumptions:

December 31, 2007

*

Expected life inyears. .. ................. e 1.61

Risk-free inferest rate. . . ... ... .. o 3.45%
Volatility . ..o e 24.1%
Dividend yield . . . .. .. . o e 5.00%

The expected life represents the period of time the UARs are expected to be outstanding prior to exercise and
is based on the simplified model. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect
at the time of remeasurement for a period commensurate with the estimated expected life of the UARs.
Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of comparable partnerships’ units over the most recent
period commensurate with the expected life of the UAR and other factors. The dividend yield is the expected
dividend rate that will be paid out on the underlying units during the expected term of the options.
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As of December 31, 2007, the outstanding UARs had an aggregate intrinsic value of $2.0 million and no
UARs were exercisable. As of December 31, 2007, $1.0 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to
non-vested UARs is expected 1o be recognized over the weighted-average period of one year.

Partnership Long-Term Incentive Plan

The Partnership has a long-term incentive plan that was adopted by Exterran GP LLC, the general partner of
its general partner, in October 2006, for its employees, directors and affiliates who perform services for them.
The long-term incentive plan currently permits the grant of awards covering an aggregate of 1,035,378
COMmon units, common unit options, restricted units and phantom units. The long-term incentive plan is
administered by the board of directors of Exterran GP LLC or a committee thereof (the “Plan Administrator™).

Unit options will have an exercise price that is not less than the fair market value of the units on the date of
grant and will become exercisable over a period determined by the Plan Administrator. Phantom units are
notional units that entitle the grantee to receive a common unit upon the vesting of the phantom wunit or, in the
discretion of the Plan Administrator, cash equal to the fair value of a common unit.

During the period from June 22, 2006 through December 31, 20006 the Partnership granted 593,572 unit
options to certain employees of Universal Compression Holdings. The unit options vest on January 1, 2009
and have a contractual life of three years. No unit options vested during the year ended Decemnber 31, 2007.

The weighted average fair value of each unit option was $1.62 on the date granted and was estimated using
the Black-Scholes option valuation model with the following weighted average assumptions:

Expected life in years .. ... .. o i e e 2.63

Risk-free INferest rate. . .« . . ..ot e et i e e 4.72%
NVolat iy . . e e e e e 14.71%
Dividend yield. . . .. ... e e 595%

The expected life represents the peried of time the unit options are expected to be outstanding prior to exercise
and is based on the simplified model. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in
effect at the time of the remeasurement for a period commensurate with the estimated expected life of the unit
options. Expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of comparable partnerships’ units over the most
recent period commensurate with the expected life of the unit options and other factors. The dividend yield is
the expected dividend rate that will be paid out on the underlying units during the expected term of the
options. Under SFAS No. 123R, the Partnership is required to record compensation cost from unit-based
compensation utilizing an estimated forfeiture rate. Historical data related to forfeitures experienced by
Universal Compression Holdings was used to estimate forfeiture rates.

The following table presents unit option activity for the year ended December 31, 2007 (remaining life in
’ years, intrinsic value in thousands):

Weighted  Weighted

Average Average
Unit Exercise Remaining Aggregatle
Options Price Life Intrinsic Value
Unit options outstanding, December 31, 2006.... 593,572 $23.76
Granted . . ... ... ... i — —
Unit options outstanding, December 31, 2007.... 593,572  $23.76 2.0 $4,889

As of December 31, 2007, no unit options were exercisable.

Intrinsic value is the difference between the market value of the units and the exercise price of each unit
option multiplied by the number of unit options outstanding. As of December 31, 2007, $0.4 million of
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unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested unit options is expected to be recognized over the
weighted-average period of one year, -

During the year ended December 31, 2007 the Partnership granted 3,825 phantom units to directors of
Exterran GP LLC, which settle on January 1, 2010 and have a contractual life of 2.2 years. No phantom units
vested during the year ended December 31, 2007.

Weighted
Average

Grant-Date

Phantom Fair Value
Units Per Unit
Phantom units outstanding, December 31,2006, . ..................... 5,607 $22.12
Granted. . . ... e 3,825 31.37
Phantom units outstanding, December 31,2007 . .. ... . ................ 9,432 $25.87

As of December 31, 2007, $0.2 million of unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested phantom
units is expected to be recognized over the weighted-average period of 1.4 years.

16. Reﬁrement Benefit Plan

Our 401(k) retirement plan provides for optional employee contributions up to the IRS limitation and
discretionary employer matching contributions. We recorded matching contributions of $4.7 million, $3.4 mil-
lion and $2.9 million during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

17. Related Party Transaction '

On August 20, 2007, Mr. Ernie L. Danner, a non-employee director, entered into a consulting agreement with
us pursuant to which we engaged Mr. Danner, on a month-to-month basis, to provide consulting services. In
consideration of the services rendered, we paid Mr. Danner a consulting fee of approximately $29,500 per
month and reimbursed Mr. Danner for expenses incurred on our behalf. The consulting agreement terminated
in February 2008.

18. Commitments and Contingencies

Rent expense for 2007, 2006 and 2005 was approximately $13.7 million, $7.7 million, and $6.3 million,
respectively. Commitments for future minimum rental payments with lerms in excess of one year at
December 31, 2007 are: 2008 — $9.5 million; 2009 — $5.5 million; 2010 — $4.5 million; 2011 — $3.8 mil-
lion; 2012 — $3.6 million and $21.5 million thereafter. ’
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We have issued the following guarantees that are not recorded on our accompanying balance sheet (dollars in
thousands):

Maximum Potential

Undiscounted
Payments as of
Term December 31, 2007
Indebtedness of non-consolidated affiliates:
ElLFurmial(1) . ... o e e e 2013 $ 24,013
Other:
Performance guarantees through letters of credit(2). ... ...... 2008 - 2012 338,286
Standby letters of credit. . ... ... . o oo 2008 - 2010 17,775
Commercial letters of credit. .. .. ....... e 2008 4,779
Bid bonds and performance bonds(2) ......... ... ... ... 2008 - 2012 138,693
Maximum potential undiscounted payments . . ............... $523,546

(1) We have guaranteed the amounts included above, which is a percentage of the total debt of this non-con-
solidated affiliate equal to our ownership percentage in such affiliate.

(2) We have issued guarantees to third parties to ensure performance of our obligations, some of which may
be fulfilled by third parties.

As part of our acquisition of Production Operators Corporation in 200!, we may be required to make
contingent payments of up to $46 million to Schlumberger dependent on the realization by us of certain
U.S. federal tax benefits through the year 2016. To date, we have not realized any such benefits that would
require a payment to Schlumberger and do not anticipate realizing any such benefits that would require a
payment before the year 2013.

In January 2007, Universal acquired B.T.I. Holdings Pte Ltd (“B.T.L”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary B.T.
Engineering Pte Ltd, a Singapore based fabricator of oil and natural gas, petrochemical, marine and offshore
equipment, including pressure vessels, floating, production, storage and offloading process modules, terminal
buoys, turrets, natural gas compression units and related equipment. We may be required to pay in the future
up to $20 million based on earnings of B.T.1. over the two years ended March 31, 2009.

The natural gas service operations business can be hazardous, involving unforeseen circumstances such as
uncontrollable flows of natural gas or well fluids and fires or explosions. As is customary in the natural gas
service operations industry, we review our safety equipment and procedures and carry insurance against some,
but not all, risks of our business. Qur insurance coverage includes property damage, general liability and
commercial automobile liability and other coverage we feel is appropriate. We are not fully insured on all of
our offshore assets. We believe that our insurance coverage is customary for the industry and adequate for our
business, however, losses and liabilities not covered by insurance would increase our costs.

Additionally, we are substantially self-insured for worker’s compensation and employee group health claims in
view of the relatively high per-incident deductibles we absorb under our insurance arrangements for these
risks. Losses up to the deductible amounts are estimated and accrued based upon known facts, historical trends
and industry averages.

We are involved in a project in the Cawthorne Channel in Nigeria (the “Cawthorne Channel Project”), in
which Global Gas and Refining Ltd., a Nigerian entity (“Global™), has contracted with an affiliate of Royal
Dutch Shell plc (“Shell”) to process natural gas from some of Shell’s Nigerian oil and natural gas fields.
Pursuant to a contract between us and Global, we provide natural gas compression and natural gas processing
services from a barge-mounted facility we own that is stationed in a Nigerian coastal waterway. We completed
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. the building of the required barge-mounted facility and our portion of the project. was declared commercial by
Global in November 2005. The contract runs for a ten-year period which commenced when the project was
declared commercial, subject to a purchase option by Global, which is exercisable for the remainder of the
tertn of the contract. Under the terms of a series of contracts between us, Global, Shell and several other
counterparties, Global is primarily responsible for the overall project.

The area in Nigeria where the Cawthorne Channel Project is located has experienced civil unrest and violence,
and natural gas delivery from Shell to the Cawthorne Channel Project was stopped from June 2006 to June
_ 2007. As a result, the Cawthorne Channel Project did not operate from early June 2006 to June 2007. From
July 2007 through the end of 2007, we received some natural gas from Shell and we have been processing the
‘ natural gas received.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, we received approximately $4.5 million in payments, which we
applied against outstanding receivables. Even though we believe we are entitled to payments from Global and
have accordingly invoiced Global for such, collectibility is not reasonably assured due to uncertainty regarding
when the Cawthorne Channel Project will receive natural gas from Shell and due to Global’s dependence on
natural gas production by the Cawthorne Channel Project to pay us. Therefore, we billed but did not recognize
revenue of approximately $16.8 million related to the Cawthorne Channel Project during the year ended
December 31, 2007. Based on our analysis of estimated future cash flows, we believe we will recover all of
our receivables and our full investment in the Cawthorne Channel Project over the term of the contract.

However, if Shell does not provide natural gas to the project or if Shell were to terminate its contract with
Global for any reason or if we wete to terminate our involvement in the Cawthorne Channel Project, we would
be required to find an alternative use for the barge facility, which could potentiaily result in an impairment
and write-down of our investment and receivables related to this project and could have a material impact on
our consolidated financial position or results of operation. Additionally, due to the environment in Nigeria and
Global’s capitalization level, inexperience with projects of a similar nature and lack of a successful track
record with respect to this project as well as other factors, there is no assurance that Global can satisfy its
obligations under its various contracts, inciuding its contract with us.

This project and our other projects in Nigeria are subject to numerous risks and uncertainties associated with
operating in Nigeria. Such risks include, among other things, political, social and economic instability, civil
uprisings, riots, terrorism, kidnapping, the taking of property without fair compensation and governmental
actions that may restrict payments or the movement of funds or result in the deprivation of contract rights.
Any of these risks could adversely impact any of our operations in Nigeria, and could affect the timing and
decrease the amount of revenue we may ultimately realize from our investments in Nigeria. At December 31,
2007, we had net assets of approximately $76 million related to projects in Nigeria, a majority of which are
related to our capital investment and advances/accounts receivable for the Cawthorne Channel Project.

In the ordinary course of business we are involved in various pending or threatened legal actions. While
management is unable to predict the ultimate outcome of these actions, it believes that any ultimate liability
arising from these actions will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results
of operations or cash flows; however, because of the inherent uncertainty of litigation, we cannot provide
assurance that the reselution of any particular claim or proceeding to which we are a party will not have a
material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operation or cash flows for the period in which the
resolution occurs.

19. Fleet Impairment

Following completion of the merger between Hanover and Universal, Exterran’s management reviewed the
compression fleet assets used in our North America Contract Operations segment that existed at the merger
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date. Management reviewed our fleet for units that would not be of the type, configuration, make or model
that we would want to continue to offer due to the cost to refurbish the equipment, the incremental costs of
maintaining more types of equipment and the increased financial flexibility of the new company to build new
units in the configuration currently in demand by our customers. Prior to the merger. we had planned to
rebuild or reconfigure these units over time to make them into the configurations currently in demand by
customers.

We performed a cash flow analysis of the expected proceeds from the disposition to determine the fair value
for the fleet assets we will no longer utilize in our operations. The net book value of these assets, which were
owned by Hanover prior to the merger, exceeded the fair value by $61.9 million, and was recorded as a long-
lived asset impairment in the third quarter of 2007, The impairment is recorded in fleet impairment expense in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Our plan to dispose of the identified fleet assets did not meet the
criteria to be classified as assets held for sale under SFAS No. 144. No impairment charge was recorded on
units previously owned by Universal as the intended use/disposition was considered as part of fair value of
these units in the allocation of the purchase price.

20. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB"™) issued SFAS No. 155, “Accounting for
Certain Hybrid Instruments — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and 140" {(“SFAS No. 155%).
SFAS No. 155 (a) permits fair vatue remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an
embedded derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation, (b) clarifies which interest-only strips and
principal-only strips are not subject to the requirements of FASB No. 133, (c) establishes a requirement to
evaluate interests in securitized financial assets to identify interests that are freestanding derivatives or that are
hybrid financial instruments that contain an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation, (d) clarifies that
concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded derivatives and {e) amends

SFAS No. 140 to eliminate the prohibition on a qualifying special-purpose entity from holding a derivative
instrument that pertains to a beneficial interest other than another derivative financial instrument. SFAS No. 155
is effective for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of an entity’s first fiscal year
that begins after September 15, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No. 155 did not have a material impact on our
consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

In June 2006, the FASB's Emerging [ssues Task Force (“EITF”) reached a consensus on Issue 06-3, “How
Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities Should Be Presented in the
Income Statement (That Is, Gross versus Net Presentation),” that concludes that the presentation of taxes
within EITF 06-3's scope is an accounting policy decision that should be disclosed. If the taxes are reported
on a gross basis, companies are required to disclose the amounts of those taxes if such amounts are deemed
significant. This pronouncement is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after Decem-
ber 15, 2006. We present the taxes within the scope of EITF 06-3 on a net basis. The adoption of EITF 06-3
did not impact our consolidated financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”
(“FIN 48™). This interpretation is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. This
interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company’s financial
statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. This interpretation prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The interpretation also provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition.
Differences between the amounts recognized on the batance sheet prior to adoption of FIN 48 and the amounts
reported after adoption are to be accounted for as an adjustment to the beginning balance of retained earnings
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(accumulated deficit). The adoption of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007 resulted in a reduction to stockholders’
equity of $3.7 million. .

On the date of our adoption of FIN 48, we had $16.4 million of unrecognized tax benefits which included a
$12.7 million tax reserve balance at December 31, 2006. Included in the components of unrecognized tax
benefits were $1.1 million of accrued interest and $2.7 million of accrued penatties. Qur policy is to classify
interest and penaltics in our provision for income taxes in our consolidated statements of operations. We did
not change our policy on the classification of interest and penalties in conjunction with our adoption of FIN 48,

We do not anticipate that total unrecognized tax benefits will significantly change due to the settlement of
audits and the expiration of statute of limitations prior to December 31, 2008. However, due to the uncertain
and complex application of tax regulations, it is possible that the ultimate resolution of these matters may
result in liabilities which could be materially different from these estimates. See Note 12 to the financial
statements for additional disclosures related to FIN 48.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (“SFAS No. 1577).

SFAS No. 157 provides a single definition of fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and

requires additional disclosures about the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities. SFAS No. 157 is

effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim

periods within those fiscal years; however, in February 2008, the FASB issued a FASB Staff Position that

defers the effective date for us to January 1, 2009 for all nonfinancial assets and liabilities, except those that

are recognized or disclosed in the financial statements at fair value on at least an annual basis. We adopted the

required provisions that were not deferred of SFAS No. 157 on January 1, 2008 and the adoption of

SFAS No. 157 did not have a material impact on our consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial
a position. We do not expect the adoption of the deferred provisions of SFAS No. 157 will have a material
impact on our consolidated results of operations, cash flows or financial position.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Liabilities” (“SFAS No. 159”). SFAS No. 159 provided entities the one-time election to measure financial
instruments and certain other assets and liabilities at fair value on an instrument-by-instrument basis under a
fair value option. SFAS No. 159 is effective for financial statements as of the beginning of the first fiscal year
that begins after November 15, 2007. Its provision may be applied to an earlier period only if the following
conditions are met: (1) the decision to adopt is made after the issuance of SFAS No. 159 but within 120 days
after the first day of the fiscal year of adoption, and no financial statements, including footnotes, for any
interim period of the adoption year have yet been issued and (2} the requirements of SFAS No. 157 are
adopted concurrently with or prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 159. We adopted SFAS No. 159 on January 1,
2008 and the adoption of SFAS No. 159 did not impact our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business Combinations” (“SFAS No. 141(R)").
SFAS No. 141(R) replaces SFAS No. 141 and requires that all assets, liabilities, contingent consideration,
contingencies and in-process research and development costs of an acquired business be recorded at fair value
at the acquisition date; that acquisition costs generally be expensed as incurred; that restructuring costs
generally be expensed in periods subsequent to the acquisition date; and that changes in accounting for
deferred 1ax asset valvation allowances and acquired income tax unceriainties afier the measurement period
impact income tax expense. SFAS No. 141(R) is effective for business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008.
We are currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 141(R) will have on our consolidated
financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements, an Amendment of ARB No. 517 (“SFAS No. 160”). SFAS No. 160 changes the accounting and
reporting for minority intercsts such that minority interests will be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests
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and will be required 1o be reported as a component of equity, and requires that purchases or sales of equity
interests that do not result in a change in control be accounted for as equity transactions and, upon a loss of
control, requires the interest sold, as well as any interest retained, to be recorded at fair value with any gain or
loss recognized in earnings. This Statement is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal
years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008, with early adoption prohibited. We are currently evaluating
the impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 160 will have on our consolidated financial statements.

21. Industry Segments and Geographic Information

We manage our business segments primarily based upon the type of product or service provided. We have four
principal industry segments: North America Contract Operations, International Contract Operations, Aftermar-
ket Services and Fabrication. The North America and International Centract Operations segments primarily
provide natural gas compression services, production and processing equipment services and maintenance
services to meet specific customer requirements on Exterran-owned assets. The Aftermarket Services segment
provides a full range of services to support the surface production and processing needs of customers, from
parts sales and normal maintenance services to full operation of a customer’s owned assets. The Fabrication
segment involves the design, engineering, installation, fabrication and sale of (i) natural gas compression units
and accessories, production and processing equipment to meet standard or unique customer specifications and
(ii) equipment used in the production, treating and processing of crude oil and natural gas. Qur fabrication
segment also provides engineering, procurement and construction services primarily related to the manufactur-
ing of critical process equipment for refinery and petrochemical facilities, the construction of tank farms and
the construction of evaporators and brine heaters for desalination plants,

Subsequent to the merger between Hanover and Universal, we evaluated our management process for
analyzing the performance of our operations. We have changed our segment reporting in accordance with

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles in order to enable investors to view our operations in a manner
similar to the way management does. Qur Fabrication segment previously reported three product lines:
Compressor and Accessory Fabrication, Production and Processing Fabrication — Surface Equipment and
Production and Processing Fabrication — Belleli. We also renamed three of our segments as follows:

U.S. Rentals is now referred to as North America Contract Operations; International Rentals is now referred to
as International Contract Operations; and Parts, Service and Used Equipment is now referred to as Aftermarket
Services. North America Contract Operations includes U.S. and Canada contract operations. The changes in
our reportable segments, including the reclassification on the consolidated statements of operations of the
related revenues and costs of sales (excluding depreciation and amortization), have been made to all periods
presented within this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We evaluate the performance of our segments based on segment gross margin. Revenues include only sales to
external customers. We do not include intersegment sales when we evaluate the performance of our segments.
Our chief executive officer does not review asset information by segment.
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No individual customer accounted for more than 10% of our consclidated revenues during any of the periods
presented. The following tables present sales and other financial information by industry segment, a
reconciliation of our revenues and geographic data for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.
The results below for the year ended December 31, 2007 include 134 days of Universal’s operations from the
merger date of August 20, 2007 through December 31, 2007.

North America International Reportable
Contract Contract  Aftermarket Segments
Operations Operations Services Fabrication Total Other(l) Consolidated
(In thousands of dollars)
2007
Revenue from external
customers . ....... $ 551,140 § 336,807 $274,489 $1,378,049 $2,540,485 § — $2,540,485
Gross Margin(2) . . . .. 318,902 209,946 59,992 233,469 822,309 — 822,309
Total assets. ........ 3,647,354 1,221,118 173;016 649,342 5,690,830 1,172,693 6,863,523
Capital expenditures . . 193,817 128,778 — 22,902 345,497 6,693 352,190
2006
Revenue from external
CUSIOMErs . ... .... $ 384292 § 263,228 $179,043 $ 766,758 $1,593321 % — $1,593,311
Gross margin(2) ... .. 227,738 166,597 39410 113,039 546,784 — 546,784
Total assets......... 1,358,018 637,723 162,688 324,075 2,482,504 588,385 3,070,889
Capital expenditures . . 138,686 87,641 — 17,529 243 856 2,727 246,583
2005 ‘
Revenue from external
customers .. ...... $ 351,128 $ 232,587 $152,456 % 568,140 $1,304,311 § — $1,304,311
Gross margin(2) ... .. 208,471 156,075 37,921 62,192 464,659 — 464,659
Total assets......... 1,415,879 669,421 63,909 224,352 2,373,561 489,435 2,862,996
Capital expenditures . . 61,370 87,858 — 4,700 153,928 1,218 155,146
Geographic Data
U.s. Venezuela Other Consolidated
(In thousands of dollars)
2007 '
Revenues from external customers . . .............. $1,250,048  $125,181  $1,165,256  $2,540,485
Property, plant and equipment, net. . ... ........... $2,443,663  $215,685 $ 874,157  $3,533,505
2006 '
Revenues from external customers . . .............. $ 882,245 $111,771 $ 599,305  $1,593,321
Property, plant and equipment, net. ... ... ......... $1,250,656  $190,514 § 422,282  $1,863,452
2005
Revenues from external cusiomers . ... ..........., $ 674298 $106,282 $ 523,731  $1,304,311
Property, plant and equipment, net. . .............. $1,261,513  $192,889 § 368,698 $1,823,100

(1) Includes investments in non-consolidated affiliates and other corporate related items.
(2) Gross Margin, a non-GAAP financial measure, is reconciled to net income (loss) below.
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The following table reconciles net income (loss) to gross margin (in thousands):

Netincome (108S) . . ... . oot e it
Selling, general and administrative . ...................
Merger and integration expenses. . . ........ .. .0
Depreciation and amortization. .. ......... ... ...
Fleet impairment . .. ... vt
Interest eXPense . . ..ot e e
Debt extinguishment costs .. ............ .. ieannen
Equity in (income) loss of non-consolidated affiliates . ... ..
Other (income) eXpense, NeL . . . ..« o v oo vutisrvneaes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes . .............. ...,
Minority interest, netof tax ........... ... .. . -
{Income) loss from discontinued operatiops, net of tax. .. ...
(Gain) loss from sale of discontinued operations, net of tax . .
Cumulative effect of accounting‘change, netof tax ... .. ...

Grossmargin .. ... ...

22. Subsequent Event

Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
$ 34,569 § 86,523 $(38,017)
265,057 197,282 176,331
46,723 — —
252,716 175,927 172,649
61,945 — —
130,092 123,496 146,959
70,150 5,902 7,318
(12,498) (19,430) (21,466)
(44,646) (50,897) (8,198)
11,894 28,782 27,714
6,307 — —
- (368) 756
— (63) 113
— (370) —
$822,309 $546,784  $464,659

In January 2008, we acquired GLR Solutions LTD. (“GLR™), a Canadian based provider of water treatment
products for the upstream petroleum and other industries, for $24.9 million in cash subject to certain working
capital adjustments to be determined. Total consideration will also include a contingent obligation of up to
$22 million {Canadian), which is based on the performance of GLR over the three years ending December 31,

2010.
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In the opinion of management, the summarized quarterly financial data below (in thousands, except per share
amounts) contains all appropriate adjustments, all of which are normally recurring adjustments, considered
necessary to present fairly over financial position and the results of operations for the respective periods:

1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
2007(1):
Revenue from external customers. .................... $447978  $494,529 $744,602  $853,376 -
Gross profit(2). . ... .. ... L " 107,375 115,312 97,596 208,927
Netincome (I0SS) . ... ...ttt 25402 . 26,063 (75,391) 58,495
Income (loss) per common share:
BasiC. . i e $ 076 $ 076 % (135 $ 090
Diluted . . ... e e $ 071 % 071 % (155 § 087
2006(3):
Revenue from external customers. . .. ..........c...... $332,806 $386,566 $412,505  $461,444
Gross profit(2). . . oot e e 80,508 93,505 97,076 107,868
Income before cumulative effect of accounting changes . ... 22,049 21,704 12,279 30,121
Netincome . ..ottt e e i e et e s 22,419 21,704 12,279 30:121

Income per common share and income per common share
before cumulative effect of accounting changes:

Basic. . ... .. e $ 068 3% 065 $ 037 3 091
Diluted . ....... ... e $ 068 $ 065 $ 037 § 084

(1) During the fourth quarter of 2007, we recorded $9.3 million for merger and integration expenses. During
the third quarter of 2007, we recorded $34.0 million for merger and integration expenses, $77 million in
refinancing charges, $61.9 million for fleet asset impairment charges and $6.7 million for impairment of
an investment in a non-consolidated affiliate.

(2) Gross profit is defined as revenue less cost of sales and direct depreciation and amortization expense.

(3) In the first quarter of 2006, we recorded a $5.9 million charge for debt extinguishment costs and a
$28.4 million pre-tax gain on the sale of our U.S. amine treating business. In the second quarter of 2006,
we recorded an $8.0 million pre-tax gain on the sale of our fabrication facilities in Canada. In the fourth
quarter of 2006, we recorded a benefit for the reversal of $10.2 million of the valuation allowance on our
net deferred tax assets in the U.S.
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Additions
Balance at  Charged to Balance at
Beginning Costs and Charged to End of
Description of Period Expenses Other Accounts  Deductions Period

(Im thousands)

Allowance for doubtful accounts deducted
from accounts receivable in the balance

sheet

2007 . e e e $ 4938 $ 2,650 $ 50634y $ 1,805(1) $10,846
2000 ... e 4,751 2,465 — 2,278(1) 4,938
2005 .. e e 7,573 1,955 — 4,777(1) 4,751

Allowance for obsolete and slow moving
inventory deducted from inventories in

the balance sheet .

2007 e $11,912 $ 1672 $11,003(4) $ 3,115(2) $21,472
2006 ... 11,797 2,293 — 2,178(2) 11,912
2005 ... 11,699 ' 148 — 50(2) 11,797

Allowance for deferred tax assets not
expected to be realized

2007 . $46,996 $ 5,243 $ 1,173(4)  $22,549(3) $30,863
2006 ... e 75,420 13,061 —_ 41,485(3) 46,996
2005 ... 65,441 13,015 — 3,036(3) 75,420

(1) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoveries.
{2) Obsolete inventory written off at cost, net of value received.
(3) Reflects expected realization of deferred tax assets.

(4) Amount represents increase in allowances related to the purchase price allocations for the Universal
merger.
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.

Dear Fellow Stockholder:

You are invited to attend the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Exterran Holdings, Inc. on May 6,
2008, in Houston, Texas. Your attendance at the meeting will give you the opportunity to meet members of
our Board of Directors as well as our senior management team.

The formal notice of the Annual Meeting, Proxy Statement and form of proxy that follow provide
information regarding the matters to be voted on at the meeting as well as information regarding other items
of interest to our stockholders.

Your vote is important, Regardless of the size of your stockholdings, we want to see your shares
represented at the Annual Meeting. Please vote your shares by one of the methods offered and explained in
the Proxy Statement and on the enclosed proxy card. If you have access to the Internet, we urge you to vote
your shares electronically.

As you know, this will be Exterran’s first stockholders’ meeting. We are the result of the August 20, 2007
merger between Hanover Compressor Company and Universal Compression Holdings, Inc. If you are a former
Hanover or Universal stockholder, thank you for your continued support. If you are new to Exterran, welcome.,

We hope to see you at the 2008 Annual Meeting.

Sincerely,
Gordon T. Hall
Chairman of the Board

April 3, 2008
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTICE OF 2008 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To the Stockholders of Exterran Holdings, Inc.:

The 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Exterran Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, will be
held at 9:00 a.m. local time on Tuesday, May 6, 2008, at the Wyndham Hotel, 12400 Greenspoint Drive,
Houston, Texas 77060, for the following purposes:

« to elect nine directors to serve until the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders or until their successors
are duly clected and qualified;

« to ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Exterran Holdings, Inc.’s independent registered
public accounting firm for fiscal year 2008; and

« to transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

The Board of Directors has set the close of business on March 18, 2008, as the record date for
determining the stockholders who are entitled to notice of and to vote at the meeting and at any postponement
or adjournment of the meeting.

We encourage you to sign and return your proxy card, use the telephone or Intermet voting procedures or
attend the meeting in person so that your shares are represented.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

oall 0, Vi

Donald C. Wayne
Secretary

Houston, Texas
April 3, 2008
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EXTERRAN HOLDINGS, INC.
4444 Brittmoore Road
Houston, Texas 77041

PROXY STATEMENT FOR 2008 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
MAY 6, 2008

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Board of Directors has sent these proxy materials to you to solicit your vote at the 2008 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders (the “2008 Stockholders’ Meeting”). The meeting will begin promptly at 9:00 a.m.
local time on Tuesday, May 6, 2008, at the Wyndham Hotel, 12400 Greenspoint Drive, Housten, Texas 77060.
This Proxy Statement and form of proxy are first being mailed to stockholders on or about April 3, 2008, and
are accompanied by our 2007 Annual Report. Exterran Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, is also referred
to in this Proxy Statement as “we,” *‘us,” “our,” “Exterran” or the “Company.”

Agenda
The 2008 Stockholders’ Meeting will be held for the following purposes:

1. to elect nine directors to serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders or until their
successors are duly elected and qualified;

2. to ratify the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as Exterran’s independent registered public
accounting firm for fiscal year 2008; and

3. to transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

All of these items are discussed in more detail in this Proxy Statement.

Stockholders Entitled to Vote

Owners of Exterran’s common stock, $0.01 par value per share (the “Commen Stock”), as of the close of
business on March 18, 2008, are entitled to notice of and to vote at the 2008 Stockholders’ Meeting. At the
close of business on March 18, 2008, there were 65,338,595 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding.
Each share of Common Stock entitles the holder to one vote on all matters submitted to a vote at the 2008
Stockholders’ Meeting and any adjournment or postponement of the meeting. A complete list of the
stockholders entitled to \fbte will be available for examination at the meeting and for at least 10 days prior to
the meeting at the principal executive offices of Exterran Holdings, Inc., 4444 Brittmoore Road, Houston,
Texas 77041. : ‘

Quorum and Required Votes

A quorum of stockholders is necessary for a valid meeting. The presence in person or by proxy of the
holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of our Common Stock will constitute a quorum for the 2008
Stockholders’ Meeting. Under our Amended and Restated Bylaws and under Delaware law, abstentions and
“broker non-votes” are counted as present in determining whether the quorum requirement is satisfied. A
“broker non-vote” occurs when a broker holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular
proposal because the broker does not have discretionary voting power for that proposal and has not received
instructions from the beneficial owner. Under the current rules of the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE"), if
you hold your shares through a bank or broker, your broker is permitted to vote your shares on the election of
directors and ratification of our independent registered public accounting firm even if the broker has not
received instructions from you,




The table below shows the vote required to approve each of the proposals described in this Proxy
Statement, .

Proposat Required Vote
Proposal 1 — Election of nine members to the Board A plurality of the votes present in person or by proxy
of Directors and entitled to vote is required to elect each director

nominee; however, our Corporate Governance
Principles require that any nominee who receives a
greater number of “withheld” votes than “for” votes
must submit his or her résignation for consideration
by our Board of Directors.

Proposal 2 — Ratification of the appointment of Ratification requires, the affirmative vote of a majority

Deloitte & Touche LLP as the of the shares of voting stock represented at the meeting.
Company’s independent registered Abstentions will be weated as votes cast and will have
public accounting firm for fiscal year the same effect as a vote against the proposal.

2008

For any other matters that may!be properly presented for consideration at the 2008 Stockholders’
Meeting, the persons named as proxies will have discrétion to vote on those matters according to their best
judgment to the same extent as the person delivering the proxy would be entitled to vote. As of the date of
this Proxy Statement, we do not anticipate that any other matters will be properly presented for consideration
at the 2008 Stockholders’ Meeting. ‘

401(k) Holdings

Shares of our Commen Steck held through the Exterran Holdings, Inc. Retirement and Savings Plan will
be voted by the plan participant as though such participant was a registered holder with respect to such shares
of Common Stock allocaled to the participant’s plan account. '

How to Vote Your Proxy

Because many stockholders cannot attend the 2008 Stockholders’ Meeling in person, it is necessary that a large
number of stockholders be represented by proxy. You can vote your proxy by one of the following three methods:

¢ over the Internet,
* by calling a toll-free telephone number, or

* by completing the enclosed proxy card and mailing it in the postage-paid envelope provided in these
materials. '

You may receive more than one proxy card, depending on how you hold your shares. You should
complete and return each proxy provided to you. Please refer to your proxy card or the information forwarded
by your bank, broker or other nominee to determine which options are available for voting the proxy. The
internet and telephone voting procedures are designed to authenticate stockholders by use of a control numiber
and to allow you to confirm that your instructions have been properly recorded.

Revocation of a Proxy

A proxy may be revoked at any time before it is voted by sending written notice of revocation to our
Corporate Secretary, by delivering a later dated proxy (by one of the methods described above) or by voting in
person at the meeting. The Corporate Secretary may be contacted at the following address: Exterran Holdings,
Inc., 4444 Brittmoore Road, Houston, Texas 77041, Attention: Corporate Secretary. '

Proxy Solicitation

This solicitation is made on behalf of the Board of Directors. We will pay the cost of soliciting proxies. Proxies
are being solicited by mail and may he solicited by telephone, telegram, facsimile, or in person by our employees,
who will not receive additional compensation for any such selicitation. We will also request brokers and other
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fiduciaries to forward proxy soliciting materials to the beneficial owners of shares of our Common Stock that are
held of tecord by such brokers and fiduciaries, and we will reimburse their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses.

PROPOSAL 1
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Nine directors are nominated 1o be elected to the Board of Directors at the 2008 Stockholders’ Meeting,
10 hold office until our next annual meeting of stockholders or until their respective successors are duly elected
and qualified. Each nominee has consented to serve as a director if elected.

Nominees for Director

Information concerning the name, age and background of each of the nominees for election to the Board
of Directors is set forth below. Ages are stated as of March 18, 2008. The nominees listed below previously
served as directors of ‘Hanover Compressor Company (“Hanover”) or Universal Compression Holdings, Inc.
(“Universal”) and were appointed to the Board of Directors of Exterran on August 20, 2007, the effective date
of a series of mergers among Hanover, Universal and certain of its subsidiaries that resulted in Hanover and
Universal becoming wholly owned subsidiaries of Exterran.

Janet F. Clark, 53, became a director of Universal in January 2003. Ms. Clark was appointed Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Marathon Oil Company (an international energy company) in
January 2007, having served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since January 2004. Prior to
joining Marathon Qil, Ms, Clark served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Nuevo Energy
Company (a natural gas and oil exploration company) from December 2001 through December 2003, and as
Executive Vice President, Corporate Development and Administration, and Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Santa Fe Snyder Corporation (subsequently merged into Devon Energy Corporation) and
its predecessor, Santa Fe Energy Resources, Inc., from 1997 through 2000. Ms. Clark serves on the board of
several non-profit organizations. ) '

Ernie L. Danner, 53, became a director of Universal upon the consummation of Universal’s acquisition of
Tidewater Compression Service, Inc. in 1998. Mr. Danner served in various positions of increasing responsi-
bitity at Universal from 1998 until 2007, including as an Executive Vice President of Universal from
February 1998 to 2007 and Chief Operating Officer from July 2006 to August 2007. Prior to joining Universal,
Mr. Danner served as Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of MidCon Corp. (an interstate
pipeline company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Occidental Petroleum Corporation). Mr. Danner isa
director of Exterran GP LLC, the ultimate general partner of Exterran Partners, L.P. (a master limited
partnership which is 51% owned by Exterran). Mr. Danner is also a director of Copano Energy, LLC (a
midstream natural gas company) and Horizon Lines, LLC (a Jones Act shipping company), and he serves on
the Board -of Trustees of the-John Cooper School in The Woodlands, Texas.

Uriel E. Dutton, 77, became a director of Universal in February 2001 as a designee of WEUS Holding,
Inc. following Universal’s acquisition of Weatherford Global Compression Services, L.P. Mr. Dutton has been
counsel to and a partner with the law firm of Fulbright & Jaworski L.L.P. for over 50 years, where his practice
focuses on real estate and oil and gas matters. Mr. Dutton also serves as director and Vice President of the
M.D. Anderson Foundation (a charitable organization).

Gordon T. Hall, 48, became a director of Hanover in March 2002 and Chairman of the Board in May
2005. Prior to his election as a director, Mr. Hall was a Managing Director at Credit Suisse First Boston (a
brokerage services and investment banking firm). While at Credit Suisse First Boston, Mr. Hall served as
Senior Oil Field Services Analyst and Co-Head of the Global Energy Group. Mr. Hall joined the First Boston
Corporation in 1987 as a technology analyst. Mr. Hall was a director of Hydril Company (a manufactorer of
pressure control products for the oil and gas industry) until its merger with Tenaris S.A. in May 2007 and is
currently a director of Grant Prideco, Inc. (a drill technology and manufacturing company). Mr. Hall also
serves as a director of severa) non-profit organizations.




JW.G. "Will” Honeybourne, 57, became a director of Universal in April 2006. Mr. Honeybourne has
been Managing Director of First Reserve Corporation (a private equity firm) since January 1999, where he is
responsible for deal origination, investment structuring and monitoring, focusing on the energy services and
manufacturing sectors and international markets. Prior to joining First Reserve, Mr. Honeybourne served as
Senior Vice President of Western Atlas International (a seismic and wireline-logging company).

Mr. Honeybourne currently serves as a director of Acteon Group (a U.K.-based offshore and subsea services
company), Red Technology Alliance (a First Reserve joint venture with Halliburton) and Abbott Group (a
U.K.-based drilling company).

John E. Jackson, 49, became a director of Hanover in July 2004 and served as Hanover’s President and
Chief Executive Officer from October 2004 to August 2007, having joined Hanover in January 2002 as Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Jackson was named Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and
President of Price Gregory Services, Inc. {a pipeline-related infrastructure service provider in North America)
in February 2008. Mr. Jackson joined Duke Energy Field Services (a producer and marketer of natural gas
liquids) in 1999 and served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Prior to joining Duke Energy Field
Services, Mr. Jackson held a variety of treasury, controller and accounting positions at Union Pacific Resources
(an oil and gas exploration and production company). Mr. Jackson is currently a director of Seitel Inc. (a
provider of seismic data and geophysical expertise) and Encore Energy Partners GP LLC (the general partner
of Encore Energy Partners, L.P,, an oil and gas exploration and production partnership) and serves on the
board of a non-profit organization.

William C. Pate, 44, became a director of Hanover in January 2007. Mr. Pate is Chief Investment Officer
and a Managing Director of Equity Group Investments, L.L.C., or EGI (a private investment firm), and serves
as a member of the board of directors of certain private affiliates of EGI. Prior to joining EGI in 1994, Mr. Pate
was an associate with The Blackstone Group (a global asset management and advisory services firm) and
served in the mergers and acquisitions group of Credit Suisse First Boston (a brokerage services and
investment banking provider). Mr. Pate also serves as a director of Covanta Holding Corporation (an owner
and operator of energy-from-waste and power generation projects).

Stephen M. Pazuk, 64, became a director of Hanover in February 2004, Mr. Pazuk is the Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer of Drive Thru Technology, Inc. (a provider of computer-based surveillance equipment,
systems and monitoring), a position he has held since 2000. He has also been involved in venture capital
investments and real estate development in Boston, Massachusetts, and Fresno and Clovis, California, since his
retirement as Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Partner of Wellington Management Company, LLP (a
global investment advisar) in June 2000. Mr. Pazuk started his career with Wellington in 1968 and held
various positions during his tenure, including Treasurer of Wellington Trust Company NA and President of
Wellington Sales Company. Mr. Pazuk currently serves on the boards of several privately held companies.

Stephen A. Snider, 60, became President, Chief Executive Officer and director of Universal upon the
consummation of Universal’s Tidewater Compression Services, Inc. acquisition in 1998, and was appointed as
Chairman of Universal's Board of Directors in April 2006. He has over 26 years of experience in senior .
management of operating companies. Mr. Snider also serves as President, Chief Executive Officer and director
of Exterran GP LLC. Mr. Snider is on the board of directors of Energen Corporation (a diversified energy
company focusing on natural gas distribution and oil and gas exploration and production) and the Memorial
Hermann Hospital System and serves as an officer and director of cettain majority-owned subsidiaries of
Exterran.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE STOCKHOLDERS VOTE
FOR .
THE ELECTION OF EACH OF THE NOMINEES TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.
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INFORMATION REGARDING CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Governance

The Board of Directors has designated an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee and a
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to assist in the discharge of the Board’s responsibilities.
Members of each committee are elected by the Board at its first meeting following the annual meeting of
stockholders and serve for one-year terms. The Board and the committees of the Board are governed by our
Code of Business Conduct, Corporate Governance Principles and committee charters, which are reviewed by
the Board annually and are available to the public on our website at www.exterran.com or in print by
submitting a written request to Exterran Holdings, Inc., 4444 Brittmoore Road, Houston, Texas 77041,
Attention: Corporate Secreiary.

Director Independence

Exterran’s Code of Business Conduct requires all employees, officers and non-employee directors to
avoid situations that may impact their ability to carry out their duties in an independent and objective fashion.
Any circumstances that have the potential to compromise their ability to perform independently must be
disclosed. This policy is made available to all employees. In addition, Exterran distributes director and officer
questionnaires at least annually to elicit relatéd party information. The questionnaire requires that responses be
updated to the extent circumstances change. :

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee assesses director independence cach year by
considering all direct or indirect business relationships between Exterran and each director (including his or
her immediate family), as well as relationships with other for-profit concerns and charitable organizations.
With the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee’s recommendation, the Board makes a determina-
tion relating to the independence of its members, which is based on applicable laws, regulations, Exterran’s
Corporate Governance Principles and the rules of the NYSE.

During the Nominating and Corporate Governance Commiitee’s most recent review of independence, the
Committec was provided information regarding transactions with any related parties as determined through a
search of our accounting records as well as the responses to the director and officer questionnaires; as a result,
the relationships described in this Proxy Statement under the section titled “Certain Relationships and Related
Transactions” were reviewed by the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

Based on the recommendation of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, the Board
determined that the following directors are independent: Ms. Clark and Messrs. Dutton, Hall, Honeyboumne,
Pate and Pazuk. Mr. Snider is not independent by virtue of his role as President and Chief Executive Officer
of Exterran, Mr. Jackson is not independent by virtue of his former role as an exccutive of Hanover, and
Mr. Danner is not independent by virtue of his former role as an executive of Universal and his entry into a
consulting agreement with Exterran from August 2007 through February 2008, as further described in the
section titled “— Transactions with Directors” on page 41 of this Proxy Statement.

Executive Sessions of the Board

Mr. Hall serves as Chairman of the Board and presides over the executive sessions of the Board, which
are attended by non-management directors only and are held at every regularly scheduled Board meeting. The
Board also holds at least one executive session each year in which only the independent members of the Board
participate.

Communication with the Board

Stockholders may communicate with the entire Board or any individual member of the Board by writing
to us at the following address: Exterran Holdings, Inc., 4444 Brittmoore Road, Houston, Texas 77041,
Attention: Corporate Secretary. All written inquiries will be immediately forwarded to the Chairman of the
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Board. In addition, any concern or inquiry may be communicated to the Audit Committee or the Board by
calling our hotline at 1-800-281-5439 (within the U.S.) or 1-832-554-4859 {outside the U.S.).

Committees of the Board
Audit Committee

Purpose. The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to assist the Board in its oversight of
the integrity of our financial statements, our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
independence, qualifications and performance of the independent auditor, the performance of our internal audit
function and the independent auditor and our systems of disclosure controls and procedures and internal
controls over financial reporting. The Audit Committee operates under a Board-approved written charter, a
copy of which is available as indicated in the section titled “Governance™ above.

Members. Janet F. Clark (Chair)
Gordon T. Hall
William C. Pate

The Board has determined that each member of the Audit Committee is independent and possesses the
requisite financial literacy to serve on the Audit Committee. The Board has also determined that each member
qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert” as that term is defined by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC"}. No member of the Audit Committee serves on the audit committee of more than
two other public companies. The Report of the Audit Committee is included in this Proxy Statement on
page 15. '

Compensation Committee

Purpose. The Compensation Committee has been appointed by the Board to oversee the development
and implementation of our compensation philosophy and strategy with the goals of attracting the executive
talent required to achieve corporate objectives and linking pay and performance. The Compensation Commit-
tee operates under a Board-approved written charter, a copy of which is available as indicated in the section
titled “Governance” above.

Members. J.W.G. (“Will”} Honeybourne
William C. Pate
Stephen M. Pazuk {Chair)

The Board has determined that each member of the Compensation Committee is independent. The Report
of the Compensation Committee is included in this Proxy Statement on page 16.

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Purpose. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has been appointed by the Board to
identify qualified individuals to become Board members, determine whether existing Board members should
be nominated for re-election, review the cémposition of the Board and its committees, oversee the evaluation
of the Board and review and implement our Corporate Governance Principles. The Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee operates under a Board-approved written charter, a copy of which is available as
indicated in the section titled “Governance” above.

. Members, Uriel E. Dutton (Chair)
Gordon T. Hall
JLW.G. (“Will”) Honeybourne




The Board has determined that each member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is
independent.

Attendance at Meetings

Since we became a publicly traded company on August 20, 2007, the Board and its committees held the
following number of meetings and acted by unanimous written consent the following number of times during

the remainder of 2007:

Y v« B P R R 3
Board Action by Unanimous Written CORSENt. . ... ... 2
AUdit COMMIMBE .+ . - o v v ettt et e e e ettt a e aea e a e ne e 3
Compensation COMMUMEE . . .. ..o ot o vt e e e e 2
Compensation Committee Action by Unanimous Written Consent . ..............cooinnnen 2
Nominating and Cotporate Governance Committee . . .. ... ... o
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Action by Unanimous Written Consent . . . .. 1

We expect members of the Board to attend all meetings. All directors standing for re-election attended
100% of the meetings of the Board and Board committees on which they served since August 20, 2007.
Directors are also encouraged to attend the annual meeting of stockholders.

Compensation of Directors

Cash Compensation. On August 20, 2007, the Compensation Committee recommended and the Board
approved remuneration for non-employee members of the Board that was composed of cash and equity. Each
director (other than Messrs. Snider and Hall) receives a cash retainer in the annual amount of $30,000 (payable
in four equal quarterly installments), Directors are reimbursed for expenses incurred for attendance at the
meetings of the Board and its committees. The chairs of the Audit Committee and Compensation Committee
each receive an annual retainer of $15,000 (payable in four equal quarterly installments) and the chair of the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee receives an annual retainer of $10,000 (payable in four
equal quarterly installments). Each director (other than Messrs. Snider and Hall) also receives $1,500 per
meeting attended.

Mr. Hall receives a retainer of $150,000 per year (payable in four equal quarterly installments) for his
services as a director and Chairman of the Board.

Equity-Based Compensation. It is anticipated that each non-employee director will receive an annual
equity grant beginning in 2008. The Compensation Committee chose not to provide an equity grant during
2007, except as follows: '

» on August 20, 2007, the Compensation Committee approved the grant of 1,400 non-qualified stock
options to Mr. Danner; and ‘

» on October 1, 2007, the Compensation Committee approved the grant of 900 non-qualified stock
options to Mr. Jackson. .

The Compensation Committee determined to grant equity awards only to Messrs. Danner and Jackson in
2007, because neither of them received an annual equity grant prior to the merger in his capacity as an
executive of Universal and Hanover, respectively. The number of options awarded to Messrs. Danner and
Jackson was based on a pro-ration of an annual grant value of $125,000 (with an assumed option value as a
percentage of face value and rounded to the nearest 100 options). The stock options vest on the one-year
anniversary of the date of grant.




Director Stock and Deferral Plan. Pursuant to Exterran’s Director Stock and Deferral Plan, directors
may elect to receive all or a portion of their cash remuneration in the form of our Common Stock. In addition,
for 2008, the directors were provided the opportunity to defer their cash remuneration under the plan,

Total Comprensation.  Set forth below is a summary of the total compensation attributable to each non-
employee director’s service to Exterran during 2007, which commenced on August 20, 2007.

Total Non-Emplt;yee Director Compensation — 2007

Long Term Incentive

Cash Compensation(1) Awards
Board Committee Meeting Stock Restricted
Retainer  Chair Retainer Fees Options(2)  Stock(3) Total
JanetE Clark . .............. $10,842 $5,421 $7,500 $35475 — 59,238
Emie L. Danner ............. 10,842 4,500 12,284 — 27,626
Uriel E.Dutton. . ............ 10,842 3,614 4,500 35,475 —_ 54,431
Gordon T. Hall .. ............ 54,212 — — 75659 129,871
1. W. G. Honeybourne . . . .. .. .. 10,842 T 6000 35475 — 52317
John E. Jackson .. .... e - 10,842 4500 8,270 — 23612
William C. Pate ............. 10,842 . : 9,000 — 12,834 32,676
Stephen M. Pazuk............ 10,842 5421 6,000 — 12,834 35,097

(1) Retainers and meeting fees reflect Board of Director service from August 20, 2007 through December 31,
2007. '

(2) The amounts shown are based on the compensation cost we recognize as <escribed in SFAS 123R relating
_to stock options awarded by Universal or Exterran. The actual value of stock options ultimately realized
by each director is dependent on fluctuations in the market price of our Common Stock.

(3} The amounts shown are based on the compensation cost we recognize as described in SFAS 123R relating
to restricted stock awarded by Hanover. The actual value of restricted stock ultimately realized by each
director will vary based on fiuctuations in the market price of our Common Stock.

Director Qualifications and Nominations

Stockholders may propose director nominees to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee (for
consideration for election at the 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders) by submitting, within the time frame set
forth in this Proxy Statement on page 46, the names and supporting information (including confirmation of the
nominee’s willingness to serve as a director) to: Exterran Holdings, Inc., 4444 Brittmoore Road, Houston,

Texas 77041, Attention: Corporate Secretary.

Any stockholder-recommended nominee will be evaluated in the context of our director qualification
standards and the existing size and composition of the Board. The Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee believes that all Board candidates should be selected for their character, judgment, ethics, integrity,
business experience, time commitment and acumen. The Board, as-a whole, through its individual members,
seeks to have competence in areas of particular importance to us such as finance, accounting, international
business and relevant technical expertise. Directors.must be commitied to enhancing the long-term interests of
our stockhoelders as a whole and should not be biased toward the interests of any particular segment of the
stockholder or employee population. Board members should also be prepared to travel to personally attend
meetings of the Board and its committees and should be ready to dedicate sufficient time to prepare in .
advance of such meetings to aillow them to make an effective contribution to the meetings. Further, Board
members should ensure that they are not otherwise committed to other activities which would make a
commitment to Exterran’s Board impractical or unadvisable and should satisfy the independence, qualification
and composition requirements of the Board and its committees, as required by law or the rules of the NYSE,
our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and our Corporate Governance Principles.
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Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The members of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors during the last completed fiscal
year were Messrs. Honeybourne, Pate and Pazuk. There are no matters relating to interlocks or insider
participation that we are required to report.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following provides information regarding our executive officers as of March 18, 2008. All officers
were elected by the Board on August 20, 2007. Certain of our executive officers also serve as officers of
Exterran GP LLC, the ultimate general partner of Exterran Partners, 1..P., a master limited partnership which is
519% owned by Exterran and its wholly owned subsidiaries. Information concerning the business experience of
Mr. Snider is provided under the Section titled “— Nominees for Director” on page 4 of this Proxy Statement.

" J. Michael Anderson, 45, is Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. He also serves as Senior
Vice President and director of Exterran GP LLC, positions he has held since June 2006 and October 2006,
respectively. Prior to the merger of Hanover and Universal, Mr. Anderson was Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Universal, a position he assumed in March 2003. Mr. Anderson held various positions
with Azurix Corp. (a water and wastewater utility and services company), including, and primarily as, Chief
Financial Officer and later as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. Prior to that time, he spent ten years in
the Global Investment Banking Group of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co., where he specialized in merger and
acquisitions advisory services. Mr. Anderson also serves as an officer and director of certain other Exterran
majority-owned subsidiaries.

Kenneth R. Bickert, 46, is Vice President and Controlter. He also serves as Vice President and Controller
of Exterran GP LLC, a position he has held since June 2006. Prior 1o the merger of Hanover and Universal
and since July 2005, Mr. Bickett served as Vice President, Accounting and Corporate Controller of Universal.
Mr. Bickelt previously served as Vice President and Assistant Controller for Reliant Energy, Inc. (an electricity
and energy services provider). Prior to joining Reliant Energy in 2002, Mr. Bickett was employed by Azurix
Corp. since 1998, most recently as Vice President and Controller. Me. Bickett also serves as an officer of
certain other Exterran majority-owned subsidiaries.

D. Bradley Childers, 43, is Senior Vice President. He also serves as Senior Vice President of Exterran
GP LLC, a position he has held since June 2006, and as President, North America of Exterran Energy
Solutions, L.P., a position he has held since March 2008. From August 2007 through March 2008, Mr. Childers
served as Exterran’s Senior Vice President, Corporate Development. Prior to the merger of Hanover and
Universal, Mr. Childers was Senior Vice President of Universal and President of the International Division of
Universal Compression, Inc., Universal’s wholly owned subsidiary, positions he held since July 2006.
Previously, he served as Senior Vice President, Business Development, General Counsel and Secretary of
Universal beginning in April 2005 and as Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of Universal
beginning in September 2002. Prior to joining Universal, he held various positions with Occidental Petroleum
Corporation and its subsidiaries (an international oil and gas exploration and production company) from 1994
to 2002, including Vice President, Business Development at Occidental Oil and Gas Corporation and corporate
counsel. Mr. Childers also serves as an officer and director of certain other Exterran majority-owned
subsidiaries.

Brian A. Matusek, 49, is Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. He also serves as Senior
Vice President and director of Exterran GP LLC, a position he has held since October 2007. Prior to the
merger of Hanover and Universal, Mr. Matusek was Senior Vice President, Western Hemisphere of Hanover, a
position he assumed in July 2006, having served as Senior Vice President, U.S. and Global Services since May
2005. He joined Hanover in August 2003 and had previously served as Vice President of Marketing, Product
Development & Domestic Sales and Vice President of Marketing and Strategic Development. Prior to joining
Hanover, Mr. Matusek served in various senior managerial roles with Schlumberger (an oilfield services
company), from 1998 through 2003, including leadership roles in Schlumberger’s compression systems and

9




artificial lift product lines. Before joining Schlumberger as part of its purchase of Camco International, Inc. (a
provider of oilfield equipment and services for applications in oil and gas drilling, completion and production),
he served as Vice President, International Business of Camco. Mr. Matusek also serves as an officer and
director of certain other Exterran majority-owned subsidiaries.

Steven W. Muck, 55, is Senior Vice President, Global Human Resources. Prior to the merger of Hanover
and Universal, Mr. Muck served as Vice President, Global Human Resources and Health, Safety and
Environment of Hanover since July 2006, having served as Vice President, Latin America since May 2005,
Mr. Muck joined Hanover in 2000 as Vice President, International Operations. From 1997 to 2000, Mr. Muck
served as Vice President of Worldwide Operations of Dresser-Rand Compressor Services (a provider of
equipment to the oil, gas and chemical industries). In addition, Mr. Muck held positions in sales, marketing
and operations with Dresser-Rand and its predecessor, Ingersoll Rand, from 1975 to 1997. Mr. Muck also
serves as an officer of certain other Exterran majority-owned subsidiaries.

Daniel A. Newman, 51, is Senior Vice President, Manufacturing and Supply Chain. Prior to the merger of
Hanover and Universal, Mr. Newman served as Vice President, Manufacturing and Global Services of Hanover
since January 2006, having served as Director Global Services since May 2005. Mr, Newman joined Hanover
in June 2004 as Director Global Engineering. Prior to joining Hanover, he served as Vice President of the
Central U.S. Division of Halliburton (an energy service provider and construction company, including well
logging, well completion and reservoir engineering). Mr. Newman began his career as a manufacturing
engineer with Halliburton and held a variety of positions with the company, including Research and
Development Engineer, Product Scheduling Manager for the U.S., Manufacturing Engineering Manager,
Global Manufacturing Technology Manager and Vice President, Global Shared Services. Mr. Newman also
serves as an officer and director of certain other Exterran majority-owned subsidiaries. '

Daniel K. Schlanger, 34, is Senior Vice President. He also serves Exterran GP LLC as Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer, positions he has held since June 2006, and as a director, a position he
has held since October 2006. Prior to the merger of Hanover and Universal and since May 2006, Mr. Schlanger
served as Vice President, Corporate Development of Universal Compress;ion, Inc. (a wholly owned sub'sidiary
of Universal). From August 1996 through May 2006, Mr. Schlanger was employed as an investment banker
with Merrill Lynch & Co. where he focused on the energy sector,

Donald C. Wayne, 41, is Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. He- also serves as Vice
President, General Counsel and Secretary of Exterran GP L1.C, a position he has held since August 2006.
Prior to the merger of Hanover and Universal, Mr. Wayne served as Vice President, General Counsel and
Secretary of Universal, a position he held since joining Universal in August 2006. Prior to joining Universal,
he served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of U.S. Concrete, Inc. (a producer of ready-mixed
concrete and concrete-related products) from 1999 to August 2006. Prior to joining U.S. Concrete in 1999,
Mr. Wayne served as an attorney with the law firm of Akin, Gump, Strauss, Hauver & Feld, L.L.P. Mr. Wayne
also serves as an officer and director of certain other Exterran majority-owned subsidiaries.
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BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF COMMON STOCK

5% Stockholders

The following table provides information about beneficial owners, known by us as of March 18, 2008, of

more than 5% of the outstanding Common Stock (the 5% Stockholders”). Unless otherwise noted in the
footnotes to the table, the 5% Stockholders named in the table have sole voting and investment power with
respect to all shares shown as beneficially owned by them. This information is based upon statemerits that
have been filed with the SEC pursuant to Section 13(d) or Section 13(g) under the Securities Exchange Act of

1934.
Number of Shares Approximate
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Beneficially Owned Percent of Class
Barclay’s Global Investors, NA ... ... ...... ... ... .. ..., 3,339,318(1) 51%

(1)

@)

3

G

45 Fremont Street
San Francisco, CA 94105
Dimensional Fund Advisors LP . ............. ... ... .. 3,471, 783(2) 5.3%
1299 Ocean Avenue, 11th Floor :
Santa Monica, California 90401 _ .
EGI-HC, LG, . e e i aa 4,386,249(3) 6.7%
Two North Riverside Plaza, Suite 600
Chicago, Illinois 60606
FMR Corp. ... .. S R 9,482,533(4) . 14.5%
82 Devonshire Street ' '
Boston, Massachusetts 02109

Barclays Global Investors, NA is the beneficial owner of 1,550,994 shares of our Common Stock and has
sole dispositve power over such shares and sole voting power over 1,318,350 shares. Barclays Global
Fund Advisors is the beneficial owner of 1,681,329 shares and has sole voting and dispositive power over
such shares. Barclays Global Investors, LTD is the beneficial owner of 51,843 shares and has sole disposi-
tive power over such shares and sole voting power over 45,366 shares. Barclays Global Investors Japan
Limited is the beneficial owner of 55,152 shares and has sole voting and dispositive power over such
shares.

Dimensional Fund Advisors LP (“Dimensional™), an investment advisor registered under Section 203 of
the Investment Advisors Act of 1940, furnishes investment advice to four investment companies registered
under the Investment Company Act of 1940 and serves as investment manager to certain commingled
group trusts and separate accounts (the “Funds™). In its role as investment advisor or manager,
Dimensional possesses investment and/or voting power over shares of our Common Stock that are owned
by the Funds and may be deemed to be the beneficial owner. All securities reported in the table above are
owned by the Funds, and Dimensional disclaims beneficial ownership of such securities.

EGI-Fund (05-07) Investors, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company (“Fund 05-077), is the managing
member of EGI-HC, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company (“EGI-HC”). SZ Investments, LLC,a
Delaware limited liability company (“SZI”), is the managing member of Fund 05-07. SZ1 is indirectly
owned by various trusts established for the benefit of Samuel Zell and his family (the “Trusts™), The
trustee of each of the Trusts is Chai Trust Company, L.L.C., an Illinois limited liability company (*Chai
Trust’”). Fund 05-07, S$ZI, EGI-HC and Chai Trust share voting power and dispositive power over the
shares owned beneficially by them. EGI-HC holds 4,306,249 shares of our Common Stock and Fund 05-07
holds 80,000 shares of our Common Stock.

Fidelity Management & Research Company (“Fidelity”), a wholly owned subsidiary of FMR LLC, is the
beneficial owner of 8,867,607 shares of our Common Stock as a resuit of acting as investment adviser to
various investment companies (the “Funds”). Edward C. Johnson 111 and FMR Corp. have sole dispositive
power of such shares but not voting power. Fidelity carries out the voting of the shares under written
guidelines established by the Funds’ Boards of Trustees.
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Pyramis Global Advisors, LLC (“PGALLC"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of FMR LLC, is the
beneficial owner of 75,000 shares of our Common Stock as a result of its serving as investment adviser to
institutional accounts, non-U.S. mutual funds, or investment companies registered under Section 8 of the
Investment Company Act of 1940 owning such shares. Edward C. Johnson I} and FMR LLC, through its
control of PGALLC, each has sole voting and dispositive power over such shares.

Pyramis Global Advisors Trust Company (“PGATC™), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of FMR LLC,
is the beneficial owner of 516,226 shares of our Common Stock as a result of its serving as investment
manager of institutional accounts owning such shares. Edward C. Johnson il and FMR LLC, through its
control of PGAT(, each has sole dispositive power over 516,226 shares and sole voting power over
486,592 shares.

Fidelity International Limited (“FIL") and various foreign-based subsidiaries provide investment advisory
and management services to a number of non-U.S. investment companies and certain institutional
investors. FIL is the beneficial owner of 23,700 shares of our Commeon Stock. Partnerships controlled
predominantly by members of the family of Edward C. Johnson III, Chairman of FMR LLC and FIL, or
trusts for their benefit, own shares of FIL voting stock with the right to cast approximately 47% of the
total votes which may be cast by ali holders of FIL voting stock. FMR LLC and FIL are separate and
independent corporate entities, and their boards of directors are generally composed of different
individuals.

Officers and Directors

The following table provides information, as of March 18, 2008, regarding the beneficial ownership of
our Common Stock by each of our directors, each of our Named Executive Officers (as identified on page 17
of this Proxy Statement), and all of our current directors and executive officers as a group. Unless otherwise
noted in the footnotes to the table, the persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with
respect to all shares shown as beneficially owned by them. The address for each executive officer and director
listed below is c/o Exterran Holdings, Inc., 4444 Brittmoore Road, Houston, Texas 77041,

Shares Unvested Percent
Owned Restricted Stock Indirect Total of

Name of Beneficial Owner Directly(1)  Stock(2) Options(3) Ownership Ownership Class
Non-Employee Directors

Janet F.Clark . ............. 3,721 — 32,500 36,221 *

Ernie L. Danner ............ 7,939 — 113,350 1,340 122,629 *

Uriel E. Dutton. . ........... 701 —_ 47,500 48,201 *

Gordon T.Hall . ............ 23,432 9,002 7,210 39,644 *

1L.W.G. Honeybourne . .. ... ... 2,800 —_ 10,000 12,800 *

John E. Jackson ............ 7.855 — 26,946 48 34,849 *

William C. Pate(4) .......... 183 1,527 1,710 *

Stephen M. Pazuk......... .. 2,663 1,527 5,200 9,390 *
Officers —

Stephen A. Snider. . . ..... ... 42,153 41,393 366,234 2,188 451,968 *

Brian A. Matusek . .. ...... .. 21,673 19,320 7,352 48,345 *

J. Michzel Anderson .. ....... 10,850 18,040 142,290 877 172,057 *

Steven W.Muck............ 13,957 11,504 12,768 39 38,268 *

D. Bradley Childers ......... 5,782 17,370 120,705 962 144,819 *

All directors and executive

officers as a group
(17 persons) ............. 1,208,421 1.8%

* Less than 1%
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(1) Includes vested restricted stock awards and, where applicable, shares acquired under the Company’s
Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

(2) Unvested restricted stock awards vest on the anniversary date of grant and have no less than a three-year
vesting period from the original date of grant. Officers and directors have voting power and, once vested,
dispositive power.

(3) Shares that can be acquired immediately or within 60 days of March 18, 2008 through the cxercise of
stock options and, where applicable, through a distribution from Universal’s Employee Supplemental
Savings Plan.

{4) Mr. Pate is Chief Investment Officer of Equity Group Investments, L.L..C. (“EGI”), but disclaims beneficial
ownership of the shares that are owned by EGI. See footnote 3 of the “5% Stockholders’ table on page 11
of this Proxy Statement.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our directors, executive officers and
persons who beneficially own more than 10% of our Commeon Stock to file reports with the SEC and us to
disclose their initial beneficial ownership of Common Stock and changes in such ownership. Based upon a
review of such reports furnished to us and certifications from our directors and executive officers, we believe
that during 2007, all of our directors, executive officers and beneficial owners of more than 10% of our
Common Stock complied with all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to them with the following
exceptions: a Form 4 disclosing the grant of 1,400 stock options to Mr, Danner for his service as a director
and a Form 4 disclosing the acquisition of 71 shares by Ms. Clark under the Directors’ Stock and Deferral
Plan was filed late, each due to an administrative error.

PROPOSAL 2

RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm of Hanover

Prior to the merger of Hanover and Universal, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”) and Deloitte &
Touche LLP (“Deloitte”) acted as the independent registered public accounting firm for Hanover and Universal,
respectively. Hanover was the accounting acquirer in the merger with Universal and, with the approval of
Hanover's board of directors, PwC’s appointment as Hanover’s independent registered public accounting firm
was concluded upon consummation of the merger. PwC’s reports on Hanover’s financial statements for the prior
two fiscal years did not contain an adverse opinion or a disclaimer of opinion, nor were they qualified or
modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles. During the prior two fiscal years and through
August 20, 2007, there were no disagreements with PwC on any matter of accounting principles or practices,
financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to the
satisfaction of PwC, would have caused PwC to make reference thereto in its reports on Hanover’s financial
statements for such years. In addition, during the prior two fiscal years and through August 20, 2007, there were
no reportable events as defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm of Exterran

On August 20, 2007, Exterran’s Audit Committee ratified the appointment of Deloitte as the independent
registered public accounting firm to audit our consolidated financial statements for fiscal year 2007. The Audit
Committee has also selected Deloitte as our independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year
ending December 31, 2008. We are submitting the selection of Deloitte for stockholder ratification at the 2008
Stockholders’ Meeting. A representative of Deloitte is expected to be present at the 2008 Stockholders’ Meeting
and will have an opportunity to make a statement and to respond to appropriate questions from stockholders.

Our organizationa) documents do not require that our stockholders ratify the selection of our independent
registered public accounting firm. We are requesting such ratification because we believe it is a matter of good
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corporate practice. If our stockholders do not ratify the selection, the Audit Committee will reconsider whether
to retain Deloitte. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee, in its discretion, may change the
appointment at any time during the year if it determines that such a change would be in the best interests of us
and our stockholders.

Fees Paid to the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The following table presents fees for professional services rendered by (a) PwC and its member firms and
respective affiliates on behalf of Hanover (the accounting acquirer in the merger with Universal) for calendar
year 2006, and by (b) Deloitte and its member firms and respective affiliates on behalf of Exterran for
calendar year 2007: '

Types of Fees FY 2007 FY 2006
(In thousands)
Audit fees(@). . . . .o e $2,945  $3,209
Audit-related fees(b) . . ... 35 4
Tax fees(C) . . oo e 1,033 65
Allotherfees(d) . ....... .. ... ... .. .. ......... e e e —_ 2
Total fees . . . e e e $4,013  §3,280

(a) Audit fees include fees billed by our independent registered public accounting firm related to audits and
reviews of financial statements that we are required to file with the SEC, audits of internal control over
financial reporting, statutory audits of certain of our subsidiaries’ financial statements as required under
local regulations and other services, including issuance of comfort letters and assistance with and review
of documents filed with the SEC.

(b} Audit-related fees include fees billed by our independent registered public accounting firm related to
employee benefit plan audits and consultations concerning financial accounting and reporting standards.

(c) Tax fees include fzes billed by our independent registered public accounting firm primarily related to tax
compliance and consulting services.

(d) All other fees include fees billed by our independent registered public accounting firm related to software
licensing agreements,

In considering the nature of the services provided by Deloitte, the Audit Committee determined that such
services are compatible with the provision of independent audit services, The Audit Committee discussed these
services with our independent registered public accounting firm and our management to determine that they
are permitted under the rules and regulations concerning auditor independence promulgated by the SEC to
implement the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Pre-Approval Poiicy

The Audit Committee has adopted policies and procedures relating to-the approval of all audit and non-
audit services that are to be performed by our independent registered public accounting firm. This policy
generally provides that we will not engage our independent registered public accounting firm to render audit
or non-audit services, and will not engage any other independent registered public accounting firm to render
audit services, unless the service is specifically approved in advance by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s practice is to consider for approval, at its regnlarly scheduled meetings, all audit
and non-audit services proposed to be provided by our independent regisiered public accounting firm. In
situations where a matter cannot wait until the next regularly scheduled committee meeting, the chair of the
Aupdit Committee has been delegated authority to consider and, if appropriate. approve audit and non-audit
services, Approval of services and related fees by the Audit Committee chair are reported to the full Audit
Committee at the next regularly scheduled meeting. All services performed by our independent registered
public accounting firm in 2007 were pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE STOCKHOLDERS VOTE
. FOR
THE RATIFICATION OF THE REAPPOINTMENT OF DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Directors in its general oversight of
Exterran’s financial reporting, internal controls and audit functions. The Audit Committee Charter describes in
greater detail the full responsibilities of the Audit Committee and is available on Exterran’s website at
www.exlerran,com.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the consolidated financial statements and management’s
assessment of internal controls over financial reporting with management and Deloitte & Touche LLP
(“Deloitte™), the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm. Management is responsible for the
preparation of financial statements and the reporting process, including the system of internal controls. Deloitte
is responsible for performing an independent audit of Exterran’s consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) and to
issue a report thereon. The Audit Committee monitors these processes.

The Audit Committee members are not professional accountants or auditors, and their functions are not
intended to duplicate or to certify the activities of management and the independent auditors. The Audit
Committee serves a board-level oversight role, in which it provides advice, counsel and direction to
management and the independent auditors on the basis of the information it receives, discussions with
management and the independent auditors, and the experience of the Audit Committee’s members in business,
financial and accounting matters. The Audit Committee has the authority to engage its own outside advisers,
including experts in particular areas of accounting, as it determines appropriate, apart from counsel or advisers
hired by management.

In this context, the Audit Committee met and held discussions with management and Deloitte. Manage-
ment represented to the Audit Committee that Exterran’s consolidated financial statements were prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, and the Audit Committee
reviewed and discussed the consolidated financial statements with management and Deloitte. The Audit
Committee also discussed with Deloitte the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 61 {Codification of Statements on Auditing Standards, AU 380), as amended.

In addition, the Audit Committeg discussed with Deloitte their independence from Exterran and its
management, and Deloitte provided to the Audit Committee the written disclosures and letter required by the
Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 (Independence Discussions With Audit Committees). The Audit
Committee discussed with Exterran’s internal auditors and Deloitte the overall scope and plans for their
respective audits. The Audit Committee met with the internal auditors and Deloitie, with and without
management present, to discuss the results of their examinations, their evaluations of Exterran’s internal
controls, and the overall quality of Exterran’s financial reporting.

Based on the reviews and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee recomumended to Exterran’s
Board of Directors, and the Board has concurred, that (i) the audited financial statements be included in
Exterran’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the twelve months ended December 31, 2007, for filing with the
Securities and Exchange Commission; (ii) Deloitte meets the requirements for independence; and (iii) the
appointment of Deloitte for 2008 be submitted to the stockholders for ratification.

Submitted by the Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors

Janet F. Clark, Chair

Gordon T. Hall

William C. Pate

15




REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis
required by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K with management and, based on such review and discussions, the
Compensation Committee recommended to Exterran’s Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion
and Analysis be included in this Proxy Statement.

Submitted by the Compensation Committee of the
Board of Directors

Stephen M. Pazuk, Chair
J.W.G. Honeybourne
William C. Pate




COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Compensation Discussion and Analysis

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis (“CD&A) provides information about our compensation
objectives and policies for our chief executive officer, chief financial officer and three other most highly
compensated executive officers (our “Named Executive Officers”) and provides additional context for the
numbers presented in the compensation tables which follow this discussion. For calendar year 2007, the
following individuals comprised our Named Executive Officers:

» Stephen A. Snider, President and Chief Executive Officer

« J. Michael Anderson, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

D. Bradley Childers, Senior Vice President
« Brian A. Matusek, Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
o Steven W Muck, Senior Vice President, Global Human Resources

Prior to the consummation of the merger of Hanover and Universal effective August 20, 2007, each of
our Named Executive Officers was employed by Hanover or Universal, and many of the key decisions
impacting their 2007 compensation were made by the respective company’s compensation committee prior to
the merger. This CD&A will address key compensation decisions made by Hanover and Universal prior to the
merger, as well as actions taken by our Compensation Commitiee.

Compensation Committee Overview

The Compensation Committee is comprised of independent, non-employee directors and operates under a
charter approved by the full Board, which is available on our website at www.exterran.com. The fundamental
responsibilities of the Committee are to:

+ establish compensation programs that are consistent with our compensation philosophy and values and
serve to align the interests of management with our stockholders;

« review the Chief Executive Officer’s performance and approve the annual salary, annual performance-
based compensation and long-term incentive opportunities for the Chief Executive Officer and other
executive officers;

» provide oversight of management’s decisions concerning the performance and compensation of other
officers and employees;

+ review and approve any employment or severance arrangement entered into with an executive officer;
« approve equity grants under our long-term incentive plan;
« oversee regulatory compliance with respect to compensation matters; and

« review and recommend to the full Board of Directors the compensation of non-employee directors.

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

We and the Compensation Committee believe that compensation programs play a vital role in attracting
and retaining people with the level of expertise and experience needed to help achieve the business objectives
that ultimately drive both short- and long-term success and stockholder value. Our philosophy is to provide
total compensation that is competitive with that of similarly-sized companies within the oilfield services sector
by targeting cash compensation at the 50% percentile and by targeting equity compensation at the 50% to
75% percentile. The combination of these percentages positions our executives’ compensation competitively
relative to the market, but places a greater emphasis on at-risk compensation. To attract, retain and motivate an
effective management team, the Compensation Committee has guided management in developing a compensa-
tion program to reward the achievement of specific goals and to link pay and performance consistent with our
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corporate values. These values include the recognition of the importance of retaining talented employees and
fostering an entrepreneurial spirit within an environment of well-reasoned risk-taking to achieve consistent
growth, profitability and return for our stockholders,

More than. haif of the compensation earned in 2007 by our Named Executive Officers was variable and
was based on corporate level financial and operational objectives as well as individual performance. This is
consistent with our emphasis on a pay for performance philosophy and is intended to focus executives and key
employees on Exterran’s short-term goals of profitability as well as long-term strategic goals for sustained
growth and stockholder value.

Elements of Compensation

Our executive compensation programs are managed from a “total rewards” perspective, with consideration
given to each of the following components:

* base salary;

+ annual performance-based incentives;

* long-term incentives;

* severance; and

+ other compensation and benefit programs.

In addition to base salaries and annual incentive bonuses, our U.S. and certain of our internaticnal
employees are provided and share in the cost of customary health and welfare benefits and are eligible to
participate in the Exterran 401(k) Plan and Employee Stock Purchase Plan. In addition, certain employees are
alsa eligible to participate in Exterran’s Deferred Compensation Plan, Employees whose employmem is
terminated due to a change of control or reduction in workforce are eligible to receive severance benefits, and
certain executive officers, including our Named Executive Officers, have been provided with cﬁange of control
arrangements, as further described below. Employees who are asked to relocate outside of their home country
are provided with an expatriate compensation package, which generally includes assistance with housing, auto
and education expenses and, where applicable, a cost of living adjustment. We have attempted to keep
perquisites to a minimum and have typically made exceptions only in circumstances where necessary to attract
or retain specific talent. Information on the compensation paid to our Named Executive Officers can be found
in tabular format in the Summary Compensation Table on page 31 of this Proxy Statement.

Role of Our Compensation Consultant

During 2007, Hanover’s and Universal’s compensation committees engaged Towers. Perrin LL.C and
Hewitt Associates LLC, respectively, to act as a third-party consultant in connection with the overall desrgn of
compensation and benefit programs, including executive compensation.

The chairman of Exterran’s Compensation Committee, with the Compensation Committee’s authorization,
eatered into an agreement in August 2007 for Towers Perrin o act as a third-party consultant to the
Committee. Towers Perrin has been directed by our Compensation Committee to:

* provide a competitive review of executive compensation in the marketplace (including data from the
peer group of Exterran as selected by the Compensation Committee (and identified below under
“Determining Executive Compensation™), the oilfield services industry and publicly traded companies
across industries); )

» model estimated long-term incentive awards for executives, directors and other eligible employees;
. provnde an estimate of the potcntlal cost of severance in the event of a change of control; and

* provide the Compensatlon Commlttee and management with information on how trends, new rules,
regulations and laws impact executive and board compensation practice and administration.
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The scope of Towers Perrin’s compensation review includes base salary, annval incentives, long-term
incentives and total direct compensation and takes into consideration Exterran’s financial plans, strategic
direction, organization structure and current compensation programs.

Role of Our Executive Officers in Compensation Decisions
The most significant aspects of management’s role in the compensation-setting process are:

» recommending compensation programs, compensation policies, compensation levels and incentive
opportunities that are consistent with Exterran’s business strategies;

» compiling, preparing and distributing materials for Compensation Committee review and consideration,
including market data;

» recommending corporate performance goals; and
» assisting in the evaluation of employee performance.

The Chief Executive Officer annually reviews the performance of each executive. The conclusions he
reaches and recommendations he makes based on these reviews, including salary adjustments, annual cash
incentives and equity awards, are then presented to the Compensation Committee. The Compensation
Committee meets in executive session to determine the compensation of our executive officers in its discretion,
taking into account the recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer and other data and materials made
available to the Committee,

Determining Executive Compensation

In considering the appropriate levels of compensation during 2007, the Hanover and Universal compen-
sation committees engaged in a discretionary review of total compensation and used as a reference published
compensation surveys, information obtained from their respective compensation consultant and compensation
data contained in the proxy statements for companies which the respective compensation committees identified
as its peers in the oilfield services industry, which included the following:

Hanover Peer Group Universal Peer Group

Cameron International Corporation BJ Services Company

Grant Prideco, Inc. Cameron International Corporation
Hydril Co. FMC Technologies, Inc.

Natco Group Inc. Global Industries, Ltd.

National Qilwell Varco, Inc. : Grant Prideco, Inc.

Universal Compression Holdings, Inc. Hanover Compressor Company

Maverick Tube Corporation
Nabors Industries Ltd.
National Qilwell Varco, Inc.
Noble Corporation

Rowan Companies, Inc.
SEACOR Holdings Inc.
Tidewater Inc.

W-H Energy Services, Inc.

For the fourth quarter of 2007 and calendar year 2008,'lthe following companies were selected by
Exterran’s Compensation Committee as oiifield services industry peers based on a range of revenue, market
capitalization, number of employees, product offerings,' and international markets: BJ Services Company,
Cameron International Corporation, FMC Technologies, Inc., Grant Prideco, Inc., Natco Group Inc., National
Oilwell Varco, Inc. and Smith International, Inc. While the Compensation Committee considers peer group
information in its deciston-making process, particularly from a competitive and retention aspect, data from the
oilfield services sector is also considered, as well as corporate and individual performance, in determining the
compensation of our executive officers.
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During the last quarter of 2007, the Compensation Committee reviewed each executive officer’s current
and historic total compensation, which included a three year look-back at base salary, short-term incentive pay
and the value of long-term incentives. In its review, the Compensation Committee focused on each executive
officer’s performance and scope of responsibilities, our strategic initiatives and that individual’s contribution 1o
those initiatives, his or her future potential, experience and competitive market pay levels relative to the
oilfield services market generally and our peer group.

Each of the compensation components provided to exccutive officers and key employees is further
described below.

Base Salaries

2007. Base salary increases during 2007 were determined by the respective Hanover and Universal
compensation committees. Each of Messrs. Snider, Anderson and Childers received a 4% increase in base
salary effective July 1, 2007. Messrs. Matusck and Muck received a 10% and 8% increase in base salary,
respectively, effective April 1, 2007, in recognition of significant changes in their responsibilities in July 2006.

2008. Our Compensation Committee has determined that base pay generally should be set near the
median of our peer group companies and similarly-sized companies in the oilfield services industry in order to
attract and retain sufficient talent. In addition to considering market comparisons in making salary decisions,
the Compensation Committee exercises judgment and discretion based upon an individual's level of responsi-
bility, individual skills, experience in their current role or expanded future role or promotion, performance, and
external factors involving competitive positioning and general economic conditions. No specific formula is
applied to determine the weight of each of these factors. Performance evaluations are conducted during the
first guarter of each year and adjustments in base salaries are effective shortly thereafter, Due to the timing of
the merger, Exterran’s Compensation Committee determined not to make additional adjustments in our Named
Executive Officers’ base salaries for the remainder of 2007.

In February 2008, the Compensation Committee approved changes, expected to be effective in April
2008, to the annual base salaries of our Named Executive Officers as follows:

New
Amount of Base
Increase Salary
Officer Title %) (%
Stephen A. Snmider . ... .......... President & Chief Executive Officer 28,000 600,000
J. Michael Anderson ............ Senior Vice President & Chief
Financial Officer 33,000 355,000
D. Bradley Childers . ..........., Senior Vice President 28,000 340,000
Brian A. Matusek. . ............. Senior Vice President & Chief
Operating Officer 35,000 375,000
Stephen W. Muck .............. Senior Vice President, Human
Resources 15,000 285,000

Annual Performance-Based Incentive Compensation

2007 Awards. The 2007 annual performance-based incentive programs of each of Hanover and Universal
were established in early 2007, and Exterran’s Compensation Committee determined that the Named Executive
Officers and other participants would earn compensation based upon actual performance under the perfor-
marnce measures set out in the respective programs for the period of January'l, 2007 through August 20, 2007,
the date of the merger and at target performance for the remainder of 2007. The following is a brief
description of Hanover’s and Universal’s annual incentive programs that applied to our Named Executive
Officers in 2007.

Hanover Short-Term Incentive Program, Messrs. Matusek and Muck, our Named Executive Officers
who participated in Hanover’s 2007 performance-based short-term incentive program (the “‘Hanover
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STI Program”), were assigned a target cash bonus award opportunity of 50% of base salary, which represented
the level of payment the executive could earn in the event plan performance was achieved at “target.”
Participants in the Hanover STI Program could earn payouts above or below the target based on performance
levels that exceeded or fell below expectations. For 2007, annual incentive compensation was based on the
following:

Hanover’s 2007 Performance Goals

Weight of  Performance Performance
Performance Measure Measure Level Goals

Corporate Performance

EBITDA — eamings before interest, tax, depreciation
and aMOrtzation. . ..« - oo v e e e 15% Threshold  $385 million

Target $430 million
Maximum  $485 million

ROCE — return on capital employed(1) .. ........... 15% Threshold 7.20%
Target 9.00%
Maximum 11.30%
EPS —earnings pershare . ............. ... ..., 20% Threshold $0.31
Target $0.57
Maximum $0.87
Individual Performance ... ...... ... .. ... . ..., 50%

(1) ROCE is calculated as (1) earnings before interest and taxes, or “EBIT,” divided by (2) the sum of short-
term debt, current maturities of long-term debt, long-term debt, minority interest and stockholders’ equity,
less cash. The method used in calculating ROCE for the three-year performance period computes the aver-
age annualized EBIT over the entire period and divides it by the average capital employed.

As the table above illustrates, 50% of each executive officer’s bonus that could be earned under the
Hanover STI Program was to be calculated based on an objective analysis of Hanover’s financial and
operational performance, with 15% based on earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(“EBITDA™), 15% based on return on capital employed (“ROCE”) and 20% based on carnings per shares
(“EPS™). For each 2007 Hanover corporate performance measure, there were three levels of attainment.
threshold, target and maximum. No awards could be made for any performance measure for which the
threshold was not met; awards were prorated for performance between the threshold and maximum levels. For
the range of possible payouts based on performance under the Hanover STI Program, see the Grants of Plan-
Based Awards Table following this CD&A.

The remaining 50% of each executive officer’s bonus that could be earned under the Hanover STI1
Program was to be based on an examination of each executive’s performance compared with his or her pre-
established goals and objectives. However, because effecting the merger required the Named Executive
Officers to redirect a substantial portion of their time and focus, Exterran’s Compensation Committee chose to
evaluate each executive relative to his overall performance, including with respect to effecting the merger,
rather than compared with the goals and objectives established for such executive at the beginning of 2007.

For the period from January 1, 2007 through August 20, 2007, Exterran’s Compensation Commitiee
determined that the corporate performance goals under the Hanover STI Program were atizined at 200%.
Because of the difficulty in assessing Hanover’s corporate performance following the merger on August 20,
2007, the Compensation Committee determined that, for the period from August 21, 2007 through
December 31, 2007, incentive bonuses would be paid out at the target level (100%). Therefore, in
February 2008, Exterran’s Compensation Committee concluded that the total Hanover ST1 Program funding
associated with the achievement of corporate performance goals for 2007 would be 163.7%, assuming
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individual performance met Exterran’s standards. The cash incentive awards under Hanover’s STI Program
were paid in March 2008, as set forth in the Summary Compensation Table following this CD&A.

Universal Officer Incentive Program. Messrs. Snider, Anderson and Childers, our Named Executive
Officers who participated in Universal’s Officer Incentive Program (the “Universal OIP™) for 2007, were
assigned a target cash bonus award opportunity of 70% of base salary (100% in the case of Mr. Snider), which
represented the level of payment as a percentage of base salary the executive could earn in the event plan
performance was achieved at “target.”” Participants in the Universal OIP could earn payouts above or below the
target based on performance levels that exceeded or fell below expectations. For 2007, annual incentive
compensation was based on the following:

Universal’s 2007 Performance Goals

Weight of
Weight of Measure for
. Target Performance Measure for International
Performance Measure Goal Corporate Groop Group
Financial Performance :
Corporate EPS — carnings per share .. . . .. $3.31 30% 30%
EBT — earnings before taxes
North America Division. ............. $170.26 million 20% —
International Division ............... $30.02 million 10% 30%
Operational Performance — Safety
North America Division TRIR — total
reportable incident rate or International
Division (excluding Argentina). ........ 1.03/1.00 6% —
International Division (Argentina) . .. ... 1.82 ‘ 2% 5%
Worldwide Collision Rate .. ... ....... 3.0 per million miles
driven ' ' 2% 5%
Individual Performance . ............... ' 30% 30%

As the table above illustrates, 70% of each executive officer’s bonus that could be earned under the
Universal OIP was to be calculated based on an objective analysis of Universal’s financial and operational
performance, with 30% based on corporate earnings per share (“EPS”), 30% based on divisional earnings
before taxes (“"EBT™), and 10% based on operational performance, as measured by the incident rate of
recordable injuries and lost time accidents, and frequency of motor vehicle collisions occurring in a company-
owned vehicle, each variable being defined in the Universal OIP. For each 2007 company performance
measure, there were three levels of attainment: threshold (80% of objective), target (100% of objective) and
maximum (120% of objective). No awards could be made for any performance measure for which the
threshold was not met; awards were prorated for performance between the threshold and maximum levels. For
the range of possible payouts based on performance under the Universal OIP, see the Grants of Plan-Based
Awards Table following this CD&A.

The remaining 30% of each executive officer’s bonus that could be earned under the Universal OIP was
to be based on an examination of each executive’s performance compared with his pre-established goals and
objectives. However, because effecting the merger required the Named Executive Officers to redirect a
substantial portion of their time and focus, Exterran’s Compensation Committee chose to evaluate each
executive relative to his overall performance, including with respect to effecting the merger, rather than
compared with the goals and objectives established for such executive at the beginning of 2007,

For the period from January 1, 2007 through August 20, 2007, Exterran’s Compensation Committee
determined that the performance goals under the Universal OIP were attained at 56.0% of the prorated target
for Messrs. Snider and Anderson (members of the Corporate Group) and at 78.7% of the prorated target for
Mr. Childers (a member of the International Group). Because of the difficulty in assessing Universal’s
corporate perfermance following the merger on August 20, 2007, the Compensation Committee determined
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that, for the period from August 21, 2007 through December 31, 2007, incentive bonuses would be paid out at
the target level (100%). Therefore, in February 2008, the Compensation Committee concluded that the total
incentive program funding associated with the achievement of performance goals for 2007 would be 72.3% for
the Corporate Group and 86.6% for the International Group, assuming individual performance met Exterran’s
standards.

Under the provisions of the Universal OIP, Exterran’s Compensation Committee could, in its discretion,
and taking into consideration the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer with respect to the
compensation of the other Named Executive Officers, choose to apply an individual multiplier, which could
range from O to 1.25, to each executive’s bonus for 2007. The muitiplier was designed to provide
differentiation for individual contribution to company performance, and could be increased above 1.25 in the
discretion of the Compensation Committee. Mr. Snider recommended to the Compensation Committee that the
multiplier for certain executives, including Messrs. Anderson and Childers, be set greater than 1.00, based on
their individual performance. Mr. Snider also requested that his own multiplier be set below 1.00 to partially
offset the increased multiplier for certain executives. The cash incentive awards under the Universal OIP were
paid in March 2008, as set forth in the Summary Compensation Table following this CD&A.

2008 Awards — Exterran Annual Performance Pay Plan.  In January 2008, Exterran’s Compensation
Committee approved the Exterran Annual Performance Pay Plan (the “APPP™) to provide the short-term incentive
compensation element of Exterran’s total direct compensation program. Under the APPP, each Named Executive
Officer will be eligible to receive an annual cash award based on our level of achievement of specified corporate
performance objectives established by the Compensation Committee for that year as well as the individual Named
Executive Officer’s performance assessment, which will be determined primarily through his performance
evaluation for that year. The amount of a Named Executive Officer’s award under the APPP for a given year will
be calculated by multiplying.(i) a target percentage of his base salary by (ii) the level of Exterran’s achievement of
the applicable corporate performance measures (ranging from 0% to 200% of the target performance level) for that
year by (iii} his individual performance coefficient (ranging from 0% to 125%) for that year.

The Compensation Committee considered the relative responsibility of each of its'executive officers, their
role in continuing the integration of Exterran and their potential impact on the achievement of our short-term
and long-term performance goals, in determining the target 2008 bonus opportunity for each of the Named
Executive Officers (expressed as a percentage of each Named Executive Officer’s base salary for 2008), which
is as follows:

2008 Bonus
Target

Executive Officer Title P )
Stephen A. Snider . . ............ President & Chief Executive Officer 100
J. Michael Anderson . ........... Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer 70
Brian A. Matusek ........... ... Senior Vice President & Chief Operating Officer 70
D. Bradley Childers. ............ Senior Vice President ' 70
Steven W.Muck . .............. Senior Vice President, Global Human Resources 50

The Compensation Committee adopted corporate'peljformance measures under the APPP for 2008 that are
related to the following: ‘

« the incident rate for both recordable injuries and lost time accidents for all employees worldwide;

« EBITDA, defined for purposes of the Plan as net income plus income taxes, interest expense,
depreciation and amortization expense, impairment charges, merger and integration expenses, minority
interest, excluding non-recurring items, and extraordinary gains or losses;

» growth in U.S. working horsepower from year to year;

+ bookings made outside the United States and Canada related to product sales and new contract
operations projects; and

» merger-related synergies.
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For each 2008 company performance measure, there are three levels of attainment: threshold (50% of
objective), target (100% of objective) and maximum (200% of objective). No awards will be made for any
performance measure for which the threshold is not met; awards will be prorated for performance between the
threshold and maximum levels. f

Because the future performance targets for our Named Executive Officers are based on our strategic plan,
we believe they reflect confidential business information. We are in a highly competitive business with low
barriers to entry and we employ technology and processes that are not patented; therefore, the disclosure of
our target performance objectives would potentially create competitive harm by providing competitors and
other third parties with insights into our planning process and methods of obtaining a market advantage. Such
disclosure could potentially give rise to below market pricing of goods and services, strateglc inventory issues
and overly aggressive recruiting of field employees by competitors.

Qur target performance objectives generally reflect a growth rate that the Compensation Committee
considered sufficiently aggressive but achievable based on the underlying strategic and operating assumptions.
While future results cannot be predicted with certainty, the Compensation Committee believes that these
performance targets are set at levels such that achievement of the target levels would require significant effort
on the part of the executive officers and that payment of the maximum amounts would reflect resuits
substantially in excess of internal and market expectations.

We anticipafe that awards under the APPP for the year ending December 31, 2008 will be determined and
paid in the first quarter of 2009,

Long-Term Incentive Compenﬁatior;

2007 Awards. During 2007, the Hanover and Universal compensation committees had the authaority to
provide lohg-term incentives to executive officers and other key employees through the award of a variety of
vehicles, including stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights and
performance-based awards, which are collectively referred to as “LTI Awards.” In determining the mix of 2007
LTI Awards, both compensation committees conducted an analysis of prior LTI Awards and considered the
cost, value and retention element of these prior awards. The compensation committees also reviewed share
overhang, burn rate, and the accounting treatment and earnings impact of various forms of LTl Awards. Each
respective compensation committee’s determination of the size of LTI Awards to its executive officers was
based on market references to long-term incentive compensation for comparable positions within the respective
Peer Groups and on the subjective assessment of organizational roles and internal job relationships by the
compensation committees. At the time both compensation committees were considering the grant of LTI
Awards, the proposed merger between Hanover and Universal had been announced. Therefore, both compen-
sation committees determined that in light of the merger, performance-based awards were not appropriate as
management and the compensation committees would not be in a position to set meaningful performance
measures for the combined company. Additionally, both compensation committees determined that retention
should be a key aspect of awards during 2007, as it was anticipated that all outstanding equity awards that
were granted prior to February 5, 2007, by both Hanover and Universal would vest due to the change of
control triggered by the merger. Therefore, the compensation committees chose to provide long-term incentives
in 2007 to executives and certain key employees as follows:

* Messrs. Matusek and Muck (former Hanover executives) — 100% of the total LTI Award value as
restricted stock. vesting at the rate of one-third per year over a period of three years on each
anniversary of May 8, 2007, the date of grant, awarded under the Hanover Compressor Company 2006
Stock Incentive Plan.

¢ Messrs. Snider, Anderson and Childers (former Universal executives) — 56% of the total LTI Award
value as restricted stock and 44% of the total LTI Award value as stock options, in each case vesting at
the rate of one-third per year over a period of three years on each anniversary of June 12, 2007, the
date of grant, awarded under the Universal Compression Holdings, Inc. Restricted Stock Plan for
Executive Officers and the Universal Compression Holdings, Inc. [ncentive Stock Opnon Plan,
respectively.
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2008 Awards. Exterran’s Compensation Committee and management believe that our executive officers
and other key employees should have an ongoing stake in our success and that these individuals should have a
meaningful portion of their total compensation tied to the achievement of our strategic objectives and long-
term financial and operational performance. In considering the makeup of the 2008 LTI Awards, the
Compensation Committee also considered the need to enhance retention of executives and key employees in
light of the vesting of pre-2007 equity awards due to the merger. Based on this review, the Compensation
Committee adjusted the mix of awards for its executive officers to include 45% Exterran restricted stock, 45%
Exterran stock options and 10% phantom units of Exterran Partners, L.P., a master limited partnership in
which Exterran holds a 519% ownership interest (“Exterran Partners”), or a combination of the foregoing to
certain other key employees, to make up the aggregate value of long-term incentive awards during 2008.
Exterran’s Compensation Committee believes that:

« grants of stock options provide an incentive to our key employees and executive officers to work toward
our long-term performance goals, as the benefit will increase only if and to the extent that the value of
our Common Stock increases;

« grants of restricted stock not only provide an incentive to our key employees and executive officers to
work toward long-term performance goals, but also serve as a retention tool; and

« grants of Exterran Partners phantom units with tandem distribution equivalent rights serve to emphasize
our growth objectives with respect to Exterran Partners. Such grants will be made from the Exterran
Partners, L.P. Long-Term Incentive Plan (“Exterran Partaers LTIP"), which 1s solely administered by
the compensation committee of Exterran GP LLC, the general partner of Exterran Partners’ general
partner. Distribution equivalent rights (“DERs”) are the right to receive cash distributions that are
provided to all common unitholders, subject to the same vesting restrictions and risk of forfeiture
applicable to the underlying grant.

If our Compensation Committee determines to continue to include LTI Awards as a component of our
compensation program in future years, it is expected that such LTI Awards will be granted during the first
quarter of the year. Any award of equity is considered effective and priced at the close of business on the date
of Compensation Committee or Board approval. The Compensation Committee has also delegated limited
autherity to Exterran’s Chief Executive Officer to grant equity awards, with the following restrictions:

« The aggregate limit on the grant of restricted stock or stock-settled restricted stock units is 10,000 and
the aggregate limit on the grant of stock options is 20,000,

+ The number of shares or options that can be awarded to any one individual is limited to 10% of the
aggregate limit;
« Time-vested awards will vest over a minimum of three years;

» No grants will be made to aVSection 16 officer;

« No grants will be made retroactively (i.e., they are considered effective on the date of hire or
promation); and

+ All grants are required to be regularly reported to the Compensation Committee.

An aggregate of 2,350 shares of restricted stock was granted by the Chief Executive Officer during 2007
under the Compensation Committee’s delegation of authority.

Change of Control Arrangements

Change of Control Provisions in Equity Plans. Hanover’s and Universal’s equity plans and/or award
agreements provided for the accelerated vesting of all equity granted prior to February 5, 2007 in connection
with the change of control resulting from the merger of Hanover and Universal, except for awards made under
the Exterran Partners LTIP. Therefore, effective August 20, 2007, all such equity grants became fully vested.
No additional grants can be made from Hanover’s and Universal’s equity plans. The Exterran Holdings, Inc.
Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, adopted on August 20, 2007, and subsequently amended,
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also provides for accelerated vesting in the event of a change of control (other than the change of control that
resulted from the merger of Hanover and Universal),

Change of Control Provisions in 401(k} Plans. Hanover’s and Universal’s respective 401(k) plans
provided for the accelerated vesting of all company matching contributions in connection with the change of
control that resulted from the merger of Hanover and Universal. Therefore, effective August 20, 2007,
company contributions in alt employee accounts became fully vested. The Exterran Holdings, Inc. 401(k) Plan
also provides for accelerated vesting of all company matching contributions in the event of a change of control
(other than the change of control that resulted from the merger of Hanover and Universal).

Hanover and Universal Change of Control Agreements. Hanover and Universal had entered into change
of control agreements with certain of their executive officers and key members of management. The August 20,
2007 merger of Hanover and Universal triggered a change of control under these agreements. For those
executives and key employees whose employment was terminated following such change of control or whose
employment may be terminated within a year of August 20, 2007, the appropriate payments have been or will
be made. A more specific description of the terms of the Hanover and Universal change of control agreements,
along -with an illustration of the estimated payouts in connection with such agreements assuming a change of
control and “qualifying termination,” is provided in this Proxy Statement beginning on page 36.

Exterran Change of Control Agreements. Exterran’s Cormpensation Committee concluded that the
provision of change of control agreements for its executive officers is consistent with the Compensation
Committee’s compensation philosophy and is in the best interest of our stockholders. The Compensation
Committee also considered the change of control agreements a customary part of executive compensation and,
therefore, an aid in attracting and retaining executive talent. The Exterran change of control agreements
provide for continued employment of the executive for a period of time following a qualifying change of
control and are designed to ensure continuity of management in such event.

The Exterran change of control agreements generally provide that if the executive is terminated within
12 months after a change of control occurs, or if during that period the executive terminates his employment
for “good reason,” as defined in the agreements, he will be entitled to a payment equal to a multiple of two
times the executive's annual base salary and target bonus (three times base salary and bonus, in the case of
Mr. Snider), will be provided health and welfare benefits for a number of years equaling the payment multiple,
and will receive certain other forms of remuneration. A more specific description of the terms of change of
control agreements provided to our Named Executive Officers, along with an illustration of the estimated
payouts in connection with such agreements assuming a change of control and “qualifying termination,” is
provided in this Proxy Statement beginning on page 39.

2007 Retention Bonus Plan

After the proposed merger between Hanover and Universal was announced, during the first quarter of
2007, the boards of directors of Hanover and Universal approved the adoption of retention plans that were
intended to provide select employees, including certain of our Named Executive Officers, with an incentive to
continue employment in light of the pending merger between the two companies. The Hanover Compressor
Company Retention Plan and the Universal Compression Holdings, Inc. Retention Bonus Plan (collectively,
the “Retention Bonus Plans™} provide for the payment of the fellowing amounts 10 our Named Executive
Officers on the dates indicated:

’ : Amount of Retention
Expected Bonus Award

Named Executive Officer Payment Date (%)

J. Michael Anderson. . ........... ... ... .. ... April 30, 2008 160,000
D.Bradley Childers . .. ......... .o April 30, 2008 160,000
Steven W. MUCK. . . o\ oo oee e ... March 31, 2008 250,000

The amounts payable under the Retention Bonus Plans were set at a level that was intended to provide a
sufficient incentive to the executive to remain in the employ of Exterran for an adequate period of time
following the merger and ensure a smooth integration of Hanover and Universal. Under the terms of the
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Retention Bonus Plans, if the officer remains in the employment of Exterran up to the payment date indicated
in the table, the officer is entitled to be paid his entire retention bonus, and if any of the above officers’
employment with Exterran is terminated prior to-the payment date by reason of death, disability or termination
without cause (as defined in the Retention Bonus Plans), that officer will be entitled to be paid his entire
retention bonus.

Other Compensation Programs
401k} Retirement and Savings Plans

Prior to the merger, Hanover maintained the Hanover Companies Retirement Savings Plan (the “Hanover
401(k) Plan™) and Universal maintained the 401(k) Retirement and Savings Plan (the “Universal 401(k) Plan™),
both of which provided employees, including the Named Executive Officers, the opportunity to defer up to
25% of their eligible salary up to the IRS maximum deferral amount on a pre-tax basis. This was
accomplished through contributions to an account maintained by an independent trustee in investments as
directed by the emptoyee. Hanover and Universal each had a policy to match an employee’s contribution, up
to a maximum of 3% and 4.5% of an employee’s annual eligible compensation, respectively, and in the case
of the Universal 401(k) Plan, subject to limitations described under “Employees’ Supplemental Savings Plan”
below. As noted above, as a result of the merger, all company matching contributions under the Hanover
401(k) Plan and the Universal 401(k) Plan fully vested on the merger date.

Effective January 1, 2008, Exterran Holdings’ Board of Directors amended the Hanover 401{k) Plan (as
amended, the “Exterran 401(k) Plan”) to, among other things, provide that Exterran would become the plan
sponsor and merge the Universal 401(k) Plan with and into the Exterran 401(k) Plan. The Exterran 401(k)
Plan provides employees the opportunity to defer up to 25% of their eligible salary up to the IRS maximum
deferral amount on a pre-tax basis. This is accomplished through contributions to an account maintained by an
independent trustee. Exterran’s policy for all employees is to match 100% of an employee’s contribution to a
maximum of 1% of the employee’s annual eligible compensation plus 50% of an employee’s contribution to a
maximum of 5% of the employee’s annual eligible compensation. The employee may direct how the funds are
invested. Employees vest in Exterran’s contributions after two years of service.

Employees” Supplemental Savings Plan

Prior to the merger, Universal sponsored an Employees’ Supplemental Savings Plan (the “ESSP”} through
which employees with an annual base salary of $100,000 or more, including the Named Executive Officers,
could defer up to 25% of their eligible salary on a pre-tax basis, The ESSP was a nongqualified, deferred
compensation plan and participation was voluntary. Participants could also defer up to 100% of their incentive
bonus in 25% increments. Universal’s policy was to provide matching contributions to the ESSP, in the form
of Universal common stock. Deferrals from bonuses were not eligible for the match. The match limits of 3%
and 4.5% (based on company tenure) were aggregate amounts and included both the Universal 401(k) Plan
and the ESSP match amounts. The ESSP was designed in part to provide a vehicle to restore qualified plan
benefits that were reduced as a result of limitations imposed under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code™). It also enabled deferral of compensation that would otherwise be treated as excess
employee remuneration by Universal within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Code.

Effective January 1, 2008, the ESSP was amended to (i) change the plan sponsor to Exterran, (i1) freeze
the ESSP with respect to new participation and contributions as of December 31, 2007 and (iii) fully vest the
accounts of active participants as of that date. On December 31, 2007, all deferred compensation and employer
matching contributions that were earned or vested under the ESSP after December 31, 2004, along with all
associated earnings, gains and losses, were transferred from the ESSP to the Exterran Deferred Compensation
Plan (described below) and will be maintained and distributed under the Exterran Deferred Compensation
Plan. The ESSP is intended to be a “grandfathered” plan for purposes of Section 409A of the Code.
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Deferred Compensation Plan

Effective January 1, 2008, our Board of Directors adopted the Exterran Deferred Compensation Plan (the
“Deferred Compensation Plan”), under which key management or highly compensated employees may (i) defer
receipt of their compensation, including up to 100% of their salaries and up to 100% of their bonuses, and
(it) be credited with company contributions that are designed to make-up a portion of the employer-matching
contribution that cannot be made under the Exterran 401(k) Plan due to qualified plan limits under the Code.
We may, but have no obligation to, make discretionary contributions on behalf of a participant, in such form
and amount as Exterran’s Compensation Committee deems appropriate, in its sole discretion. In addition, the
ESSP deferred compensation and employer matching contributions that were not earned and vested prior 10
lanuary 1, 2005 were transferred to the Deferred Compensation Plan.

Participant elections with respect to deferrals of compensation and distributions generally must be made
in the year preceding that in which the compensation is earned, except that our Compensation Committee may
permit a newly eligible participant to make deferral elections up to 30 days after he or she first becomes
eligible to participate in the Deferred Compensation Plan. The Deferred Compensation Plan is an “unfunded”
plan for state and federal tax purposes, and participants have the rights of our unsecured creditors with respect
to their Deferred Compensation Plan accounts,

Participants may elect to receive distributions of their accounts while still in the service of Exterran or
upon the participant’s separation from service or disability, each as defined in the Deferred Compensation
Plan. Participants also may elect to receive distributions of their accounts either in a Jump sum or in two to 10
annual installments. Distributions will be made in cash, except that a participant may elect to have any portion
of his or her account that is deemed invested in cur Common Stock to be distributed in shares of Common
Stock if the distribution is made prior to January 1, 2011.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

On August 20, 2007, our. Board of Directors adopted the Exterran Holdings, Inc. Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”), which provides our eligible employees with an option to purchase Common
Stock through payroll deductions and is designed to comply with Section 423 of the Code. Exterran’s
Compensation Committee, which administers the ESPP, has determined that employees who elect to participate
in the ESPP will initiafly have an option to purchase a share of Common Stock at the lesser of (i) 85% of the
fair market value of a share of Common Stock on the offering date or (i) 85% of the fair market value of a
share of Common Stock on the purchase date. Exterran’s Compensation Committee has the discretion to set
the purchase price at 85% to 100% of the fair market value of a share of Common Stock on one of the
following dates: (i) the offering date, (ii) the purchase date or (iii) the offering date or the purchase date,
whichever is lower. The initial offering period commenced on October 1, 2007 and offering periods will
consist of three months, or such other period as may be determined from time to time by Exterran’s
Compensation Committee. A total of 650,000 shares of Common Stock have been authorized and reserved for
issuance under the ESPP. ‘

Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plan

On August 20, 2007, our Board of Directors initially adopted and then subsequently amended the
Exterran Holdings, Inc. Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Stock Incentive Plan™), which
is administered by our Compensation Committee and authorizes the issuance of awards, at the discretion of
our Compensation Committee, of Common Stock, stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock
appreciation rights and performance awards to our directors and employees and employees of our subsidiaries.
A maximum of 4,750,000 shares of Common Stock is available for issuance under the Stock Incentive Plan.
This plan was approved by Universal’s and Hanover’s stockholders in connection with their approval of the
merger of the two companies. '
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Perquisites

Hanover, Universal and Exterran made what we believed were limited use of perquisites during 2007.
None of our executive officers had company cars or car allowances. A ‘taxabie benefit of tax preparation and
planning services was made available to each Named Executive Officer formerly employed by Universal. The
health care and insurance coverage provided to our executives was the same as that provided to all active
employees with the exception of the Medical Expense Reimbursement Ptan (“MERP”). The MERP provided
for additional medical, dental, and vision benefits to certain of our executive officers, and an annual physical
examination was made available to our Named Executive Officers during 2007. In addition, we have agreed
that Mr. Snider and his spouse will be entitled to continue to participate at no cost in Exterran’s medical
benefit plan following his retirement, provided he remains an active employee of Exterran untii the time of his
retirement.

Chief Executive Officer Compensation

Our President and Chief Executive Officer, Steve Snider, received compensation through August 20,
2007, from Universal in his role as Universal’s President and Chief Executive Officer. Upon consummation of
the merger, Exterran’s Compensation Committee determined not to make any changes in the compensation of
our Named Executive Officers, including Mr. Snider, during the remainder of 2007. Mr. Snider’s compensation
was determined by the Universal compensation committee using substantially the same criteria utilized to
determine compensation for the other Named Executive Officers who were former executives of Universal, as
described above.

Base Salary. In accordance with Universal’s overall philosophy and practice to provide generally for 4%
base salary increases in 2007, its compensation committee chose to increase Mr. Snider’s 2006 annual base
salary by 4% to $572,000, effective July 1, 2007.

Annual Performance-Based Incentive Compensation. Exterran’s Compensation Committee considered
Universal’s corporate performance with respect to the measures described in the section above entitled the
“— Determining Executive Compensation — Annual Performance-Based Incentive Compensation” section
above and Mr. Snider’s personal performance as evaluated by the Compensation Committee. In reviewing
Mr. Snider’s performance during 2007, the Compensation Committee disregarded the objectives that
Universal’s compensation committee had established at the beginning of 2007 and instead considered overall
corporate performance, the leadership role Mr. Snider played in effecting the merger and the level of success
of the subsequent integration of Hanover and Universal. In addition, the entire Board of Directors participated
in a written evaluation of Mr, Snider’s performance with respect to qualitative measures (including, but not
limited to, strategic and organizational leadership, customer satisfaction and other key relationships, financial
management and ethics), the results of which the Compensation Committee considered. Although, based on
this evaluation, Mr. Snider was determined to have met or exceeded the Board’s expectations, Mr. Snider
requested that the Compensation Committee apply an individual performance multiplier to his 2007 bonus of
less than 1.00 (as described in the section titled **- Universal Officer Incentive Program™), which resulted in a
reduced payout to Mr. Snider of $350,000.

Long-Term Incentive Award. The Universal compensation committee considered it in the best interest of
both the stockholders and Mr. Snider to emphasize long-term incentives as a key component of Mr. Snider’s
total compensation. To recognize the importance of Mr. Snider’s role in effecting the merger between
Universal and Hanover and integrating the two companies, the Universal compensation committee approved on
June 12, 2007, the following LTI Award for Mr. Snider:

« A grant of 21,333 shares of restricted stock, which represents approximately 50% of the total value of
Mr. Snider’s 2007 LTI Award. The restricted stock is subject to vesting at the rate of one-third per year
on each anniversary from the date of grant over a period of three years.

+ A grant of 3,984 incentive stock options and 34,667 non-qualified options to purchase our Common
Stock, which represents approximately 50% of the total value of Mr. Snider’s 2007 LTI Award. The
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stock options are subject to vesting at the rate of one-third per year on each anniversary from the date
aof grant over @ period of three years.

The size and type of awards provided to Mr. Snider, taken together with the other elements of his
compensation, were determined by Universal’s compensation committee to be appropriate and were designed
to encourage the achievement of a successful merger, improved operating results and growth in stockholder
value as well as 1o aid in Tetention and io ensure a greater ownership stake in Exterran, thereby further
aligning Mr. Snider’s interests with those of our stockholders. '

Stock Ownership Requirements

We do not have any policy or guidelines that require specified ownership of our Common Stock by our
directors or executive officers or stock retention guidelines applicable to equity-based awards granted 10
directors or ¢xecutive officers. As of March 18, 2008, the Named Executive Officers held 649,349 stock
options and 107,627 shares of restricted stock, representing 1% of the outstanding Common Stock.

Accounting Implications and Compensation Deductions Limitation

We accounted for the equity compensation expense under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment,” which requires us to estimate and record an expense for each award of
equity compensation over the vesting period of the award. Accounting rules also require us to record cash
compensation as an expense at the time the obligation was incurred. ‘

Section 162(m) of the Code limits the deductibility of certain compensation expenses in excess of
$1,000,000 to any one individual in any fiscal year. Compensation that is “performance-based” is excluded
from this limitation. For compensation to be “performance-based,” it must meet certain criteria including
certain predetermined objective standards approved by stockholders, We believe that maintaining the discretion
to evaluate the performance of our executive officers is an important part of our responsibilities and benefits
our stockholders. The Compensation Committee, in coordination with management, periodically assesses the
poiential application of Section 162{m) on incentive compensation awards and other compensation decisions.

Conclusion
We believe that our executive compensation programs for 2007 were:
* appropriate in amount;
* appropriately applied to our Named Executive Officers; and

)

* necessary to retain the executive officers who are essential to our continued development and success,
to compensate those executive officers for their contributions and to enhance stockholder value.
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INFORMATION REGARDING EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

In the tables that follow, compensation paid and equity awards granted prior to August 20, 2007, were by
Universal (in the case of Messrs. Snider, Anderson and Childers) or by Hanover (in the case of
Messrs. Matusek and Muck) pursuant to the executive’s employment with each respective company. Any
compensation paid thereafter was in connection with each executive’s employment with Exterran.

Summary Compensation Table

The foIIoWing table sets forth certain information with respect to compensation paid during 2007 to our
Named Executive Officers.

Non-Equity
) Incentive
Stock Option Plan Al Other
Salary Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Compensation Total
Name and Position Year {$) 1) ($)2) 33 ($)4) ($)(5) ($)
Stephen A, Snider, .. ....... 2007 550,000 089 646(6) 2,523,597(6) 350,000 44,486 4,451,729
President and Chief
Executive Officer
1. Michael Anderson, . ...... 2007 309,808 792,408(6)  728,535(6) 200,000 18,081 2,048,832
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
D. Bradley Childers,. . ... ... 2007 300,000 736,095(6)  640,334(6) 200,000 25,489 1,901,918
Senior Vice President
Brian A. Matusek, . ........ 2007 331,944 180,000 1,143917(7) 63,808(7y 360,000 8,022 2,087,691

Senior Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer

Steven W. Muck, . . ..... ... 2007 264,636 140,000 1,201,268(7) 57,557(7) 285,000 8,618 1,957.079
Senior Vice President,
Global Human Resources

(1) The amounts included in this column represent the cash payment of a long-term incentive award at 100%
of target payout earned in connection with Hanover’s Long-Term Incentive Program for a three year per-
formance period commencing on January 1, 2005, which was governed by the terms of Hanover's 2003
Stock Incentive Plan, the vesting of which accelerated upon consummation of the merger.

(2) The amounts included in this column represent the compensation cost recognized by Exterran that is
related to restricted stock awards, as described in SFAS 123R. For a discussion of valuation assumptions,
see Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements within our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2007. Please see the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table betow for more information
regarding equity-based awards granted in 2007. ‘

(3) The amounts included in this column represent the compensation cost of (a) opticns to purchase our Com-
mon Stock, (b) options to purchase Exterran Partners common units, awarded and recognized by Exterran
Partners, and (c) unit appreciation rights with respect to Exterran Partners common units, awarded and rec-
ognized by Exterran, in each case as described in SFAS 123R. For a discussion of valvation assumptions,
see Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements within our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2007. Please see the Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table below for more information
regarding equity-based awards granted in 2007. '

(4) The amounts included in this column represent the following cash awards:

« For Messrs. Snider, Anderson and Childers, a cash payment under Universal's 2007 Officer Incentive
Plan, which covered the twelve-month compensation measurement and performance review period
ending December 31, 2007, and which was paid during the first quarter of 2008; and

o For Messrs. Matusek and Muck:

» a cash payment under Hanover’s 2007 Short-Term Incentive Program, which covered the twelve-
month compensation measurement and performance review period ending December 31, 2007, and
which was paid during the first quarter of 2008; and
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= a cash bonus representing an additicnal 50% of target payout to supplement the payout (described in
footnote (1) of this table) under Hanover’s Long-Term Incentive Program. This supplemental cash
bonus was approved by Hanover’s compensation committee to partially correct the inequity created
under the terms of Hanover’s 2003 Stock Incentive Plan, which limited the payout in the event of a
change of control to 100% of target payout (despite expected actual performance at 200% of stated
corporate performance objectives). The supplemental cash bonus was paid upon consummation of the
merger with Universal.

{5) The amounts shown in this column for the year ended December 31, 2007 are attributable to the

(6)

(7

following:
Tax
Preparation
401(k) Plan ESSP Executive and
Maiching Matching Medical Planning

Contribution  Contribution Coverage Services Other Total
Name ($)(a) ($)(b} $)c) $) $)d) $
Stephen A. Snider. . ... ... 10,125 15,120 7,005 11,000 1,236 44,486
J. Michael Anderson., .. ... 6,750 2,730 7,005 900 696 18,081
D. Bradley Childers . ..... 5,265 3,645 7,005 4,900 674 25,489
Brian A. Matsek ... ... .- 7,154 868 8,022
Steven W. Muck . ... ..... 7,750 868 8,618

(a) Executives could contribute up to 25% of their salary to the Universal and Hanover 401 (k) Plans,
which during 2007 was matched by Universal and Hanover (with a maximum match of 4.5% and 3%,
respectively, of each executive's annpal eligible compensation). Both individual and matching contri-
butions are subject to limits established by the Internal Revenue Service.

(b) Eligible executive officers could contribute up to 25% of their salary and up to 100% of their incen-
tive bonus to the Employee Supplemental Savings Plan, which during 2007 was matched by Universal
and Exterran in an amount ranging from 3% to 4.5% of the executive’s annual eligible compensation,
based on such executive’s tenure.

(c) Represents premiums paid for medical coverage under the Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan.

{d) Other benefits include premiums paid by Exterran for group term life and accidental death and dis-
ability insurance.

These amounts include shares of restricted stock and options 1o acquire Common Stock that immediately
vested on August 20, 2007, the effective date of the merger (as set forth in the Option Exercises and
Stock Vested Table below), awarded by Universal prior to the merger under the Universal Incentive Stock
Option Plan and the Restricted Stock Plan for Executive Officers.

These amounts include shares of restricted stock and options to acquire Common Stock that immediately
vested on August 20, 2007, the effective date of the merger (as set forth in the Option Exercises and
Stock Vested Table below), awarded by Hanover prior to the merger under Hanover’s equity plans.
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table

The following table provides additional information about stock and option awards and non-equity
incentive plan awards granted to the Named Executive Officers during the year ended December 31, 2007.
All Other All Other

Stock Option Grant Date
Awards: Awards: Exercise Fair
Fstimated Future Payouts Under  "Gmbr st O AN dodiang
Nan-Equity Incentive Plan Awards(l) Stock or Underlying Optlon Option
Grant Threshold  Target Maximum Units Options Awards Awards
Name Date (4] %) * (# # (%/SH) $32)
m (b) () (d) (e) n (g (h} (i)
Stephen A, Snider ... .... 114,400 572,000 1,114,000
6/12/2007 21,333(3) 1,599,975
6/1212007 3,984(4) 75.27 128,325
6/12/2007 34,667(5) 7527 1,116,624
J. Michael Anderson. .. ... 45,080 225400 450,800
6/12/2007 6,000(3) 450,000
6/12/2007 39844) 1527 128,325
6/12/2007 6,887(5)  75.27 221,830
D. Bradley Childers . . . . .. 43680 218,400 436,800
6/12/2007 6,000(3) 450,000
6/12/2007 3,984(4) 73.27 128,325
6/12/2007 6,887(5y 75.27 221,830
Brian A. Matusek. . ... ... 85,000 170,000 340,000
5/8/2007 7,280(6) 499,999
Steven W. Muck ........ 67,500 135000 270,000
5/8/2007 5,824(6) 399,992

(1) The amounts in these columns reflect the range of potential payouts under the 2007 Universal Officer
Incentive Plan (for Messrs, Snider, Anderson and Childers) and the 2007 Hanover Short-Term Incentive
Program (for Messrs. Matusek and Muck). The actual payouts under the plans have been determined and
were paid in March 2008, as reflected in the Summary Compensation Table above. The performance mea-
sures which determined the payouts under the plans are described in the CD&A above.

(2) The value of restricted stock and stock option awards is based on SFAS 123R calculations.

(3) Restricted stock awards were granted on June 12, 2007 under the Universal Restricted Stock Plan for
Executive Officers and vest on each anniversary date of grant at the rate of one-third per year over a
three-year period, subject to accelerated vesting in the event of a change of control.

(4) Incentive options were granted on June 12, 2007 under the Universal Incentive Stock Option Plan and vest
on each anniversary date of grant at the rate of one-third per year over a three-year period, subject to
accelerated vesting in the event of a change of control.

(5) Non-qualified options were granted on June 12, 2007 under the Universal Incentive Stock Option Plan and
vest on each anniversary date of grant at the rate of one-third per year over a three-year period, subject to
accelerated vesting in the event of a change of control.

(6) Restricted stock awards were granted on May 8, 2007 under the Hanover 2006 Stock Incentive Plan and
vest on each anniversary date of grant at the rate of one-third per year over a three-year period, subject to
accelerated vesting in the event of a change of control.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table

The following table provides information regarding equity awards and equity-based awards granted by
Hanover, Universal and Exterran which were outstanding at December 31, 2007.

Name
(a}

Stephen A, Snider . .

J. Michael Anderson

D. Bradley Childers

Brian A. Matusek . .

Steven W. Muck . . .

Stock Awards
Option Awards 3:?{;‘ ?l'
Number of * Number of Number of Shares or
Securities Securities Shares or Units of
Undeslying Underlying Units of Stock
Unexercised Unexercised Option Stock That That
Options Options Exercise Option Have Not Have Not
(i) #) Price Expiration Vested Vested
Exercisable Unexercisable (6] Date (#) ($)(1)
(b} (c) (d} (e) f (g}
145,306 21.30 2/19/2012 21,333 1,745,039
130,000 43.39 3/3/2016
30,000 38.15 3/9/2015
26,015 16.71 3/10/2013
97,024 33.60 412042011
31,675 30.07 4/30/2014
90,523 31.65 12/11/2010
3,984(2)  75.27 6/12/2017
34,667(2)  75.27 6/12/2017
85,714(3) 25.94 12/31/2009
85,714(4) 2594 12/31/2009
20,000 43.39 3/3/2016 6,000 490,800
17,000 38.15 3/9/2015
67,660 17.30 3/31/2013
17,340 17.30 3/31/2013
16,675 30.07 4/30/2014
3,325 30.07 4/30/2014
3,984(2) 75.27 6/12/2017
6,887(2) 75.27 6/12/2017
64,286(3) 2594 12/31/2009
‘ 64,286(4) 2594 12/31/2009
20,000 43.39 3/312016 6,000 490,800
17,000 38.15 3/9/2015
19,016 16.71 3/10/2013
5,984 16.71 3/10/2013
16,675 30.07 4/30/2014
3,325 30.07 4/30/2014
24,238 19.03 9/3/2012
14,182 19.03 9/3/2012
3,984(2)  75.27 6/12/2017
6,887(2) 75.27 6/12/2017
42.857(3) 2594 - 12/31/2009
42,8574y 2594 12/31/2009
1,827 30.76 10/22/2013 7,280 595,504
5,525 36.86 7/8/2015
1,773 44.76 5/14/2012 5,824 476,403
3,250 31.38 H1/812012
3,520 35.16 7/16/2013
4,225 36.86 7/8/2015

(1) Based on the market closing price of our Common Stock on December 31, 2007 ($81.80).

(2) Represents opticns to purchase our Common Stock, awarded under the Universal Incentive Stock Option
Plan, that vest on each anniversary date of grant at the rate of one-third per year over a three-year period
with a term of ten years following the date of grant.
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(3)

4)

Represents options to purchase Exterran Partners common units, awarded under the Exterran Partners
LTIP, that vest in a lump sum on January 1, 2009,

Represenis unit appreciation rights payable in cash by Exterran, that vest in a lump sum on January 1, 2009,

Option Exercises and Stock Vested Table

The following table provides additional information about the value realized by the Named Executive

Officers on stock option exercises and stock award vesting during the year ended December 31, 2007.

(1

(2}

Q)

4)

(5)

(®

(7

Option Awards Stock Awards
Number of Number
Shares Value of Shares Value
Acquired on Realized on Acquired Realized on
Exercise Exercise on Vesting Vesting
Name (#) ($)1) # $)X2)
(@) (b) {c) (d) (€)
Stephen A. Smider ... ........ ... ... ... 3,325 152,518 31,250 2,338,125(3)
J. Michael Anderson . ... ... ...l — — 33,000 2,479,560(4)
D. Bradley Childers. . ... ................. — — 25,500 1,945,535(5)

23,369
23,596

1,841,613(6)
1,845,155(7)

Brian A. Matusek
Steven W. Muck

The amount included in this column represents the aggregate dollar value realized upon the exercise of
options to purchase Common Stock.

The amounts included in this column represent the number of shares vested multiplied by the market price
of a share of Common Stock on the date of vesting. '

The value of vested shares reported for Mr. Snider is attributable to vesting of the following awards:

5,000 restricted shares of Common Stock at $65.01 — $325,050

3,750 restricted shares of Common Stock at $67.32 — $252,450

22,500 restricted shares of Common Stock at $78.25 — $1,760,625 (in connection with the closing of the
merger) ‘

The value of vested shares reported for Mr, Anderson is atiributable to vesting of the following awards:

2,000 restricted shares of Common Stock at $65.01 — $130,020

5,000 restricted shares of Common Stock at $67.68 — $338.400

2,000 restricted shares of Common Stock at $66.57 — $133,140

24 000 restricted shares of Common Stock at $78.25 — $1,878,000 {in connection with the closing of
the merger)

The value of vested shares reported for Mr. Childers is atiributable to vesting of the following awards:
2.000 restricted shares of Common Stock at $65.01 — $130,020
2,000 restricted shares of Common Stock at $66.57 — $133,140

21,500 restricted shares of Common Stock at $78.25 — $1,682,375 (in connection with the closing of
the merger}

The value of vested shares reported for Mr. Matusek is aitributable to vesting of the following awards:

1,245 restricted shares of Common Stock at $81.32 — $101,243

4,538 restricted shares of Common Stock at $80.27 — $364,265

17,586 restricted shares of Common Stock at $78.25 — $1,376,105 (in connection with the c¢losing of
the merger)

The value of vested shares reported for Mr. Muck is attributable to vesting of the following awards:

975 restricted shares of Common Stock at $81.32 — $79,287
663 restricted shares of Common Stock at $79.69 — $52,834
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2,198 restricted shares of Common Stock at $80.27 — $176,433

1,625 restricted shares of Common Stock at $72.33 — $117,536

18,135 restricted shares of Common Stock at $78.25 — $1,412,064 (in connection with the closing of
the merger)

Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Table

The following Non-qualified Deferred Compensation Table summarizes the Named Executive Officers’
compensation under the Universal Employee Supplemental Savings Plan (the “ESSP”) {(assumed by Exterran)
for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Company Aggregate Aggregate
Executive Contributions in Earnings Aggregate Balance at
Contributions in Last Fiscal in Last Withdrawals/ Last Fiscal
Last Fiscal Year Year Fiscal Year Distributions Year-End

Name 1) $)2) $3 $) $)4)
Stephen A, Snider. .. ... 259,500 15,120 154,370 — 2,522,696
J. Michael Anderson . . .. 11,708 2,730 14,014 — 166,467
D. Bradley Childers . ... 17,500 3,645 7,742 — 101,443

(1) Amounts shown represent contributions made by each Named Executive Officer to the ESSP during 2007.

(2) Amounts shown represent matching contributions (in the form of Commen Stock) to each Named Execu-
tive Officer’s ESSP account. '

(3) Amounts shown represent earnings under the ESSP, considering historical balances and Named E;(ccutive
Officer and Company matching contributions during 2007.

(4) Amounts shown represent the aggregate ESSP balance for each Named Executive Officer at December 31,
2007. ' :

Payments and Potential Payments uplon‘Cl‘lange of Control

Because the mergef between Hanover and Universal resulted in a change of control under both
companies’ equity plans, other than the Exterran Partners LTIP, all unvested grants awarded prior to February 5,
2007 immediately vested on August 20, 2007, the effective date of the merger. This change of control under
the plans resulted in the vesting of the following awards held by our Named Executive Officers:

« 138,376 options 1o acquire our Common Stock, originally awarded as options to acquire Hanover or
Universal common stock; and

= 103,725 shares of our Common Stock, originally awarded as Hanover or Universal restricted stock.

Hanover Change of Control Agreements. Each of Messrs. Matusek and Muck is a party to a change of
control agreement with Hanover (the “Hanover change of control agreements™) pursuant to which certain
benefits may be paid or provided to the executive due to a change of control, but only if his employment is
terminated within one year from the date of such change of control. Although the merger of Hanover and
Universal constituted a change of control under the Hanover change of control agreements, each of
Messrs. Matusek and Muck continued his employment with Exterran and thus has not been entitled to any
payout under his agreement, however, if either of these executives’ emptoyment with Exterran is terminated
without cause or if the executive terminates his employment for good reason before August 20, 2008, then
Exterran will pay the executive in a lump sum in cash within five business days after the date of termination
(provided, however, that to the extent the executive is a specified employee for purposes of Section 409A of
the Code, payment of amounis subject to Section 409A will be delayed for six months from the date of
termination} the following:

« the executive’s eamned but unpaid base salary through the date of termination plus the executive’s target
bonus for the current year (prorated to the date of termination);
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any carned but unpaid actual bonus for the prior year;

» that portion of the executive’s vacation pay accrued, but not used, for the current year to the date of
termination;

» the product of two times the sum of the executive’s respective base salary and target bonus; and

« amounts previously deferred by the executive, if any, or earned but not paid, if any, under any Hanover
incentive and nonqualified deferred compensation plans or programs as of the date of termination.

In addition, the Hanover change of control agreements provide that Exterran will pay the executive for
health insurance premiums for a period of up to 18 months following his termination. If the executive is
terminated for “cause.” or such executive terminates his or her employment without “good reason,” Exterran is
not obligated to make any payments under the Hanover change of control agreement.

Assuming a termination of employment on December 31, 2007, and assuming a Common Stock value of
$81.80 per share (the December 31, 2007 closing price), we estimate that Messrs. Matusek and Muck would
receive the following under the Hanover change of control agreements:

Base Target Stock Restricted

Salary Bonus Options Stock Benefits Total
Name ) ($}2) ($}3) $)) ($)5) %)
Brian A. Matusek ........... 680,000 340,000 — — 15,464 1,035,464
Steven W. Muck ............. 540,000 270,000 — — 15.464 825,464

(1) The amounts provided under “Base Salary” represent the product of two times the executive’s base salary
on December 31, 2007.

(2) The amounts provided under “Target Bonus” represent the product of two times the executive’s 2007 target
bonus.

(3) Options to purchase Common Stock éranted prior to February 5, 2007 became fully vested upon the
change of control resulting from the merger of Hanover and Universal on August 20, 2007. Options to pur-
chase Common Stock granted after February 5, 2007 would be forfeited upon termination of employment.

(4) Restricted stock granted prior to February 5, 2007 became fully vested upon the change of control result-
ing from the merger of Hanover and Universal on August 20, 2007. Restricted stock granted after Febru-
ary 5, 2007 would be forfeitéd upon termination of employment.

(5) Health care benefits include the reimbursement of COBRA monthly premiums for an 18-month period as
stated in the Hanover change of control agreements. The calculations are based upon 2007 COBRA
premivms.

Universal Change of Control Agreements. Each of Messrs. Snider, Anderson and Childers is party to a
change of control agreement with Universal (the “Universal change of control agreements™), pursuant to which
certain benefits may be paid or provided to the executive due to a change of control, but only if his
employment is terminated within one year from the date of such change of control. Although the merger of
Hanover and Universal constituted a change of control under the Universal change of control agreements, each
of Messrs. Snider, Anderson and Childers continued his employment with Exterran and thus has not been
entitled to any payout under his agreement; however, if any of these executives’ employment with Exterran is
terminated without cause or the executive terminates his employment for good reason before August 20, 2008,
then Exterran will pay the executive in a lump sum in cash within 30 days after the date of termination
(provided, however, that to the extent the executive is a specified employce for purposes of Section 409A of
the Code, payment of amounts subject to Section 409A will be delayed for six months from the date of
termination) the following:

« an amount equal to the total of the executive’s earned but unpaid base salary through the date of
termination and a prorated annual bonus based upon the greater of the annual bonus that would be
payable to the executive for that year or the executive’s highest annual bonus over the preceding three
years; :
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* an amount equal to two times the executive’s current annual base salary and two times the greater of
the annual bonus that would be payable to the executive for that year or the executive’s highest annual
bonus over the preceding three years;

* an amount equal to two times the executive's basic and matching contributions credited to the executive
under the 401(k) Plan and any other deferred compensation plan during the 12-month period
immediately preceding the month of the executive’s date of termination, such amount being grossed up
so that the amount the executive actually receives after payment of any federal or state taxes payable
equals the amount described above;

* for a period of two years following the executive’s date of termination, Exterran will provide company
medical and welfare benefits to the executive or the executive's family equal to those benefits which
would have been provided to such executive in accordance with the benefits if the executive’s
employment had not been terminated;

+ the amount forfeited by the executive under the deferred compensation plan, 401(k) Plan or any similar
plan;

+ all stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units or other stock-based awards held by the
executive that are not vested, will vest; and

* in the event that any payment or distribution made by Exterran to or for the benefit of the executive
would be subject to a federal excise tax, then the executive is entitled to receive an additional gross-up
payment.

Payments to Exierran’s executive officers under the Universal change of control agreements would be
made in exchange for a commitment from the executive to not (1) disclose any confidential information
concerning Exterran, (2) employ or seek to employ any key employee of Exterran or solicit or encourage such
key employee to terminate his or her employment with Exterran during the two-year period following the
termination of the executive’s employment and (3) engage in a competitive business for a period of one-year
following the executive’s termination.

Assuming a termination of employment on December 31, 2007, and assuming a Common Stock value of
$81.80 per share and an Exterran Partners common unit value of $32.00 per unit (the December 31, 2007
closing prices, respectively), we estimate that Messrs. Snider, Anderson and Childers would receive the
following (excluding any tax gross-ups) under the Universal change of control agreements:

Base Exterran
Highest Salary and Partners,
Paid Highest Stock  Restricted L.P. Unit Benefits and
Bonus  Paid Bonus Gptions Stock Awards  Perquisites Total
Name . $)1) $)2) (3K3) ($44) ($)(5) ($)(6) ($)
Stephen A. Snider .. ......... 859,250 2,862,500 — —_ — 71,108 3,792,858
J. Michael Anderson ... ... ... 354,870 1,353,740 — f— — 39,578 1,748,188
D. Bradley Childers . ......... 283,553 1,191,106 — — — 46,439 1,521,098

(1} The amounts included in this column represent the greater of (a) the highest paid bonus received by each
executive,over the preceding three-year period or (b) the bonus payable at the target level for the current
fiscal year. -

(2) The amounts included in this column are calculated by adding each executive’s current base salary and
highest paid bonus multiplied by a factor of two, as specified in each Universal change of control
agreement.

(3) Options to purchase Common Stock granted prior to February 5, 2007 became fully vested upon the
change of control resulting from the merger of Hanover and Universat on August 20, 2007 Options to pur-
chase Common Stock granted after February 5, 2007 would be forfeited upon termination of employment.
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(4) Restricted stock granted prior to February 5, 2007 became fully vested upon the change of control result-
ing from the merger of Hanover and Universal on August 20, 2007. Restricted stock granted after Febru-
ary 5, 2007 would be forfeited upon termination of employment.

(5) Options to purchase Exterran Partners common units and unit appreciation rights granted by Universal in
2006 (and assumed by Exterran after the merger) will continue to vest in accordance with the terms of
award, irrespective of any termination of the executive’s employment. The number of unit options and unit
appreciation rights unvested and outstanding at year end held by the Named Executive Officers is provided
in column (c) of the Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table above.

(6) The amounts included in this column represent each executive’s right to the reimbursement of COBRA
premiums, 401(k) match and Employee Supplemental Savings Plan matching contributions for a two-year
period.

Exterran Change of Control Agreements. 'We have elected, as a policy matter, not to offer employment
agreements to our executive officers. Generally, each of our executive officers, including each of the Named
Executive Officers, has entered into a change of control agreement with Exterran. The change of control
agreements are designed to aid in the retention of our executives and provide continuity of management in the
event of any actual or potential change of control of Exterran. Each such agreement provides that if, during
the one-year period following a change of control, the executive’s employment is terminated other than for
cause, death or disability, or the executive terminates for good reason, then the executive will receive in a
lump sum in cash within five days after the date of termination (provided, however, that to the extent the
executive is a specified employee for purposes of Section 409A of the Code, payment of amounts subject to
Section 409A will be delayed for six months from the date of termination) the following:

« an amount equal to the total of the executive’s earned but unpaid base salary through the date of
termination, plus the executive’s target annual incentive bonus that would be payable 1o the executive
for that year prorated to the date of termination, plus any earned but unpaid annual bonus for the prior
year, plus any portion of the executive’s earned but unused vacation pay for that year;

» an amount equal to two times (three times in the case of Mr. Snider) the sum of the executive’s current
annual base salary and the target annual incentive bonus award that would be payable to the executive
for that year,

« an amount equal to two times (three times in the case of Mr. Snider) the executive’s basic and matching
‘contributions credited to the executive under the Exterran 401(k) Plan and any other deferred
compensation plan during the 12-month period immediately preceding the month of the executive’s date
of termination, such amount being grossed up so that the amount the executive actuaily receives after
payment of any federal or state taxes equals the amount described above;

« any amount previously deferred, or earned but not paid, by the executive under the incentive and non-
qualified deferred compensation plans or programs as of the date of termination;

« for a period of two years (three years in the case of Mr. Snider) following the executive’s date of
termination, Exterran will provide company medical and welfare benefits to the executive or the
executive's family equal to those benefits which would have been provided to such executive in
accordance with the benefits if the executive’s employment had not been terminated;

« all stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units or other stock-based awards, and all common
units, unit appreciation rights, unit awards or other unit-based awards and all cash-based incentive
awards held by the executive that are not vested, will vest; and

« in the event that any payment or distribution made by Exterran to or for the benefit of the executive
would be subject to a federal excise tax, then the executive is entitled to receive an additional gross-up
payment. '

All payments to a Named Executive Officer under the change of control agreements would be made in
exchange for a commitment from the executive to not (1) disclose any confidential information concerning
Exterran during the two-year period following the termination of the executive’s employment, (2) employ or
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seek to employ any key empilovee of Exterran or solicit or encourage such key employee to terminate his or
her employment with Exterran during the two-year period (a three-year period in the case of Mr. Snider)
following the termination of the executive’s employment and (3) engage in a competitive business for a period
of two years (three years in the case of Mr. Snider) following the executive’s termination.

Additionally, the Exterran Partners LTIP provides that, upon a change of control {defined in the Exterran
Partners LTIP to include (1) any “person” or “group,” other than affiliates, becoming the beneficial owner of
50% or more of the voting power of the outstanding equity interests of Exterran or Exterran Partners, (2)a
person other than Exterran, Exterran GP LLC or one of their affiliates becoming the general partner of
Exterran Partners or (3) the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all pf the assets of Exterran,
Exterran GP LLC or Exterran Partners), all awards of phantom units (including the related DERs) and unit
options automatically vest and become payable or exercisable, as the case may be. The Exterran Partners LTIP
does not require that the recipient of awards under the Exterran Partners LTIP have his or her employment
with Exterran or Exterran GP LLLC terminate following such change of control in order for automatic vesting
to occur. This feature was incorporated into the Exterran Partners LTIP and the awards under the Exterran
Partners LTIP because it was consistent with the long-term incentive plans of other publicly-traded
partnerships, reflecting their relatively unique situations as controlled publicly-traded entities with few of their
own officers or employees.

Assuming the occurrence of a triggering event under the Exterran change of control agreements and the
Exterran Partners LTIP on December 31, 2007, and assuming a Common Stock value of $81.80 per share and
an Exterran Partners common unit value of $32.00 per unit (the December 31, 2007 closing prices,
respectively), we estimate that the Named Executive Officers would receive the following benefits (excluding
any tax gross-ups as provided for in the change of control agreements):

Exterran
Partners,
L.P. Unit
Awards and
Base Salary Unit Benefits
Tarpget and Target Stock Restricted  Appreciation and
Bonus Bonus Options Stock Rights Perquisites Total
Name & ($)2) 83 {($)}(d) (8)(5) ($)(6) %
Stephen A. Snider......... 572,000 3,432,000 252,391 1,745,Q39 1,038,854 106,662 7,146,946
J. Michael Anderson . . ... ., 225400 1,094,800 70,988 490,800 779,146 39,578 2,700,712
D. Bradley Childers. . ...... 218,400 1,060,800 70,988 490,800 519,427 46,439 2,406,854
Brian A, Matusek ......... 170,000 1,020,000 - 595,504 — 34926 1,820,430
Steven W. Muck .. ........ 135,000 810,000 — 476,403 — 36,118 1,457,521

(1) The amounts inciuded in this column represent a full year bonus with an assumed payout at target
performance.

(2) The amounts included in this column are calculated by adding each Named Executive Officer’s current
base salary and target bonus multiplied by a factor of two (three in the case of Mr. Snider), as specified in
each Named Executive Officer’s change of control agreement.

(3) The amounts incloded in this column represent the value of options to purchase Common Stock. All stock
options become fully vested upon a change of control. The number of options currently unvested and out-
standing at year end for each Named Executive Officer is provided in column (c) of the Qutstanding
Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table above, and the value of such awards has been calculated using the
market closing price on December 31, 2007.

(4) The amounts included in this column represent the value of restricted stock. Upon a change of control, all
restricted shares will fully vest and the restrictions will lapse. The number of restricted shares that are
unvested and outstanding at year end for each Named Executive Officer is provided in column (f) of the
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table above, and the value of such awards has been calcu-
lated using the market closing price on December 31, 2007,
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(5) The amounts included in this column represent the value of {a) options to purchase Exterran Partners com-
mon units and (b) unit appreciation rights (related to Exterran Partners common units) payable by Exter-
ran. The unit option awards and unit appreciation rights will continue to vest in accordance with the terms
of each award, irrespective of any termination of the Named Executive Officer’s employment. The number
of unit options and unit appreciation rights unvested and outstanding at year end for each Named Execu-
tive Officer is provided in column (¢} of the Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End Table above,
and the value of such awards has been calculated using the market closing price on December 31, 2007.

(6) The amounts included in this column represent each Named Executive Officer’s right to the reimbursement
of COBRA premiums, 401(k) match and Employee Supplemental Savings Plan matching contributions for
a two-year period (a three-year period in the case of Mr. Snider).

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Related Party Policy

We recognize that transactions with related persons can present potential or actual conflicts of interest
and create the appearance that decisions are based on considerations other than the best interests of us and our
stockholders. Therefore, our Audit Committee has adopted a policy on related party transactions to provide
guidance and set standards for the approval and reporting of transactions between us and individuals with a
direct or indirect affiliation with us and to ensure that those transactions are in our best interest. Our policy
requires that our subsidiaries report all related party transactions to the Financial Reporting Department on a
quarterly basis. Additionally, proposed related party transactions must be submitted to the Audit Committee
for approval prior to entering into the transaction. In the event a senior officer becomes aware of any pending
or ongoing related party transaction that has not been previously approved or ratified, the transaction must be
promptly submitted to the Audit Committee or its Chair for ratification, amendment or termination of the
related party transaction. If a related party transaction is ongoing, the Audit Committee may establish
guidelines for management and will annually assess the relationship with such related party.

Transactions with Directors

Our Audit Committee reviewed and approved the following transactions (with Ms. Clark abstaining with
respect to the transaction with Marathon Oil Company): :

« We engage in commercial business transactions with Marathon Qil Company, pursuant to which we
provide equipment and services are provided by us at market prices and pursuant to our standard terms
and conditions. Ms. Clark, a member of our Board, serves as Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Marathon. During the twelve months ended December 31, 2007, we (including,
prior to August 20, 2007, Hanover and Universal) recorded revenue from sales to Marathon Oil of
approximately $18 million (which represents less than 1% of our 2007 revenue), Although the Audit
Committee does not believe that Ms. Clark has a direct or indirect material interest in these transactions
and, as a result, these transactions do not meet the SEC’s disclosure requirements for related party
transactions, the Audit Committee believes disclosure of these transactions is appropriate.

* On August 20, 2007, Mr. Danner, a non-employee director, entered into a consulting agreement with us
pursuant to which we engaged Mr. Danner, on a month-to-month basis, to provide consulting services,
In consideration of the services rendered, we paid Mr. Danner a consulting fee of approximately
$29,500 per month and reimbursed Mr. Danner for expenses incurred on our behalf. The consulting
agreement terminated in February 2008,

The Board determined that no charitable organizations with which any member of the Board or their
immediate family members were affiliated during 2007 received support from us.
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Transactions with Exterran Partners, L.P.
Distributions and Payments to Exterran Partners

We own (a) 6,325,000 subordinated units and 2,014,395 common units of Exterran Partners, which constitute
49% ownership of Exterran Partners; and (b) 340,383 general partner units, which constitute the entire 2% general
partnier interest in Exterran Partners, resulting collectively in a 51% effective ownership interest in Exterran
Partners. We are, therefore, a “related person” to Exterran Partners as such term is defined by the SEC: .

The following summarizes the distributions and payments made or to be made to or by Exterran Partners
to us, and the other unitholders, in connection with the formation, ongoing operation and any liquidation of
Exterran Partners. These distributions and payments were determined by and among affiliated entities and,
consequently, were not the result of arm’s-length negotiations.

Distributions of available cash to Exterran Exterran Partners will generally make cash

Partners’ general partner and its affiliates distributions 98% to its unitholders on a pro rata
basis, including us, as the holder of 6,325,000
subordinated units and 2,014,395 common units, and
2% to Exterran Partners’ general partner, which we
indirectly own. In addition, if distributions exceed the
minimum quarterly distribution and other higher
target distribution levels, then we are entitled 1o
increasing percentages of the distributions, up to 50%
of the distributions above the highest target
distribution' level.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, we received
aggregate distributions of approximately $0.4 million
on general partner units, $1.5 million on common
units and $8.7 millien on subordinated units, On
February 14, 2008, we received a quarterly
distribution with respect to the period from October
1, 2007 to December 31, 2007, of approximately $0.2
million on general partner units, including
distributions on incentive distrtbution rights, $0.9
million on common units and $2.7 million on
subordinated units.

Payments to Exterran Partners’ Subject to certain caps, Exterran Pariners reimburses

general partner and its affiliates us for the payment of all direct and indirect expenses
incurred on Exterran Partners’ behalf. For further
information regarding the reimbursement of these
expenses, please read “— Omnibus Agreement”

below. )
Withdrawal or removal of Exterran . I we withdraw or are removed in our general partner
Partners’ general partner capagcity, our general partner interest and its incentive

distribution rights will either be sold to the new
general partner for cash or converted into common
units, in each case for an amount equal te the fair
market value of those interests.

Liquidation Upon liquidation of Exterran Partners, the partners of
Exterran Partners, including us, will be entitled to
receive liquidating distributions according to their
respective capital account balances.

Pursuant 10 the terms of Exterran Parniners’ Omnibus Agreement (as described below), Exterran Partners
reimburses us for (1) allocated expenses of operational personnel who perform services for Exterran Partners’
benefit, (2) direct costs incurred with operating and mainiaining Exterran Partners’ assets and (3) its allocated
selling, general and administrative expenses. We do, not receive any management fee or other compensation
for management of Exterran Partners. Subject to certain caps, Exterran is reimbursed for certain expenses
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incurred on Exterran Partners’ behalf, including the compensation of our employees who perform services on
Exterran Partners’ behalf. These expenses include all expenses necessary or appropriate to the conduct of
Exterran Partners’ business and that are allocable to Exterran Parters. Exterran Partners’ partnership
agreement provides that we, in our general partner capacity, will determine in good faith the expenses that are
allocable to Exterran Partners. Except as provided in the Omnibus Agreement, there is no cap on the amount
that may be paid or reimbursed by Exterran Partners to us for compensation or expenses incurred on Exterran
Partners’ behalf.

Omnibus Agreement

Upon the closing of Exterran Partners’ initial public offering, Exterran Partners entered into an omnibus
agreement with us, Exterran Partners’ general partner and others. In connection with the purchase by Exterran
Partners of approximately $233 million in compression units and customer contracts from us in July 2007,
Exterran Partners entered into the First Amendment to the Omnibus Agreement with us, Exterran Partners’
general partner and others. On August 20, 2007, in connection with the closing of the merger between
Hanover and Universal, Exterran Partners entered into the First Amended and Restated Omnibus Agreement
with us and others (as amended and restated, the “Omnibus Agreement”). The following describes the
provisions of the Omnibus Agreement. The Omnibus Agreement (other than the indemnification obligations
described below under “— Indemnification for Environmental and Related Liabilities”) will terminate upon a
change of control of our general partner or the removal or withdrawal of Exterran Partners’ general partner,
and certain provisions will terminate upon a change of control of Exterran.

Non-competition

Under the Omnibus Agreement, we agreed not to offer or provide compression services in the
United States to the contract compression services customers that are contract compression service customers
of Exterran Partners. Compression services are defined to include the provision of natural gas contract
compression services, but exclude fabrication of compression equipment, sales of compression equipment or
material, parts or equipment that are components of compression equipment, leasing of compression equipment
without also providing related compression equipment service and operating, maintenance, service, repairs or
overhauls of compression equipment owned by third parties. In addition, under the Omnibus Agreement,
Exterran Partners agreed not to offer or provide compression services to our domestic contract compression
services customers.

As a result of the merger between Hanover and Universal, at the time of execution of the Omnibus
Agreement some of Exterran Partners customers were also our contract operations services customers, which
we refer to as overlapping customers. We and Exterran Partners have agreed, subject to the exceptions
described below, not to provide contract operations services to an overlapping customer at any site at which
the other was providing such services to an overlapping customer on the date of execution of the Omnibus
Agreement, each being referred to as an “Exterran Partners site” or “Exterran site.” After the date of the
agreement, if an overlapping customer requests contract operations services at an Exterran Partners site or an
Exterran site, whether in addition to or in the replacement of the equipment existing at such site on the date of
the agreement, Exterran Partners will be entitled to provide contract operations services if such overlapping
customer is an Exterran Partners overlapping customer and we will be entitled to provide such contract
operations services if such overlapping customer is an Exterran overlapping customer. Additicnally, any
additional contract operations services provided to an Exterran Partners overlapping customer will be provided
by Exterran Partners and any additional services provided to an Exterran overlapping customer will be
provided by us.

We also have agreed that new customers for contract compression services (neither Exterran Partners’
customers nor our customers for U.S. contract compression services) are for Exterran Partners” account unless
the new customer is unwilling to contract with Exterran Partners or unwiiling to do so under Exterran
Partners’ form of compression services agreement. If a new customer is unwilling to enter into such an
arrangement with Exterran Partners, then we may provide compression services to the new customer. In the
event that either Exterran Partners or we enter into a contract to provide compression services to a new
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customer, either Exterran Partners or we, as applicable, will receive the protection of the applicable non-
competition arrangements described above in the same manner as if such new customer had been a
compression services customer of either Exterran Partners or us at the time of entry into the Omnibus
Agreement. )

The non-competition arrangements described above do not apply to:

Exterran Partners’ provision of contract compression services to a particular Exterran customer or
customers, with our approval;

Our provision of contract compression services to a particular customer or customers of Exterran
Partners’, with the approval of the conflicts committee of the board of directors of Exterran GP LLC;

Exterran Partners’ purchase and ownership of not more than five percent of any class of securities of
any enlity which provides contract compression services to our contract compression services
customers;

Qur purchase and ownership of not more than five percent of any class of securities of any entity which
provides contract compression services to Exterran Partners’ contract compression services customers;

Our ownership of Exterran Partners;

Exterran Partners’ acquisition, ownership and operation of certain businesses that provide contract

" compression services (o our contract compression services customers if we have been offered the

opportunity to purchase the business for its fair market value from Exterran Partners and we decline to
do so. However, if neither the Omnibus Agreement nor the non-competition arrangements described
above have already terminated, Exterran Partners will agree not to provide contract compression
services to our customers that are also customers of the acquired business at the sites at which we are
providing contract operations services to them at the time of the acquisition;

Our acquisition, ownership and operation of certain businesses that provide contract compression
services to our contract operations services customers if Exterran Partners has been offered the
opportunity to purchase the business for its fair market value from us and Exterran Partners declines to
do so with the concurrence of the conflicts committee of the board of directors of Exterran GP LLC,
However, if neither the Omnibus Agreement nor the non-competition arrangements described above
have already terminated, we will agree not to provide contract operations services to Exterran Partners’
customers that are also customers of the acquired business at the sites at which Exterran Partners is
providing contract operations services to them at the time of the acquisition; or

a situation in which one of Exterran Partners’ customers (or its applicable business) and a customer of
ours (or our applicable business) merge or are otherwise combined, in which case each of Exterran
Partners and we may continue 10 provide contract operations services to the applicable combined entity
or business without being in violation of the non-competition provisions, but we and the conflicts
committee of the board of directors of Exterran GP LLC must negotiate in good faith to implement
procedures or such other arrangements, as necessary, to protect the value to each of us and Exterran
Partners of the business of providing contract operations services to each such customer or its
applicable business, as applicable.

Unless the Omnibus Agreement is terminated earlier as described above, the non-competition provisions
of the omnibus agreement will terminate on August 20, 2010 or the date on which a change of controi of
Exterran occurs, whichever event oceurs first. If a change of control of Exterran occurs, and neither the
omnibus agreement nor the non-competition arrangements have already terminated, we will agree for the
remaining term of the non-competition arrangements not to provide contract operations services to Exterran
Partners’ customers at the sites at which Exterran Partners is providing contract operations services to them at
the time of the change of control.
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Indemnification for Environmental and Related Liabilities

Under the Omnibus Agreement, we have agreed to indemnify Exterran Partners for three years after the
closing of Exterran Partners’ initial public offering, which occurred in October 2006, against certain potential
environmental claims, losses and expenses associated with the operation of Exterran Partners’ assets and
occurring before the closing date of the initial public offering. Our maximum liability for this indemnification
obligation will not exceed $5 million and we will not have any obligation under this indemnification until
Exterran Partners’ aggregate losses exceed $250,000. We will have no indemnification obligations with respect
to environmental claims made as a result of additions to or modifications of environmental laws promulgated
after the closing date of Exterran Partners’ initial public offering. Exterran Partners has agreed to indemnify us
against environmental liabilities related to Exterran Partners’ assets to the extent we are not required to
indemnify Exterran Partners.

Additionally, we will indemnify Exterran Partners for losses attributable to title defects, retained assets
and income 1axes attributable to pre-closing operations. Exterran Partners will indemnify us for all losses
attributable to the post-closing operations of the assets contributed to Exterran Partners, to the extent not
subject to our indemnification obligations. For the year ended December 31, 2007, there were no requests for
indemnification by either party.

Purchase of New Compression Equipment from Exterran

Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, Exterran Partners is permitted to purchase newly fabricated
compression equipment from us or our affiliates at our cost to fabricate such equipment plus a fixed margin of
10%, which may be modified with the approval of us and the conflicts committee of the board of directors of
Exterran GP LLC. For the year ended December 31, 2007, Exterran Partners purchased $24.5 million of new
compression equipment from us.

Transfer of Compression Equipment with Exterran

Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, in the event that we determine in good faith that there exists a need
on the part of our contract operations services business or on Exterran Partners’ part to transfer compression
equipment between us and Exterran Partners so as to fulfill the compression services obligations of either of
us or Exterran Partners, such equipment may be so transferred if it will not cause Exterran Partners to breach
any existing contracts or to suffer a loss of revenue under an existing compression services contract or incur
any unreimbursed costs.

In consideration for such transfer of compression equipment, the transferee will either (1) transfer to the
transferor compression equipment equal in value to the appraised value of the compression equipment
transferred to it; (2) agree to lease such compression equipment from the transferor; or (3) pay the transferor
an amount in cash equal to the appraised value of the compression equipment transferred to it.

Unless the Omnibus Agreement is terminated earlier as discussed above, the transfer of compression
equipment provisions of the Omnibus Agreement described above will terminate in August 2010.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, Exterran Partners had revenue from us and cost of sales related
to leases of compression equipment of $1.4 million and $4.9 million, respectively.

Reimbursement of Operating and Selling, General and Administrative Expense

We provide all operational staff, corporate staff and support services reasonably necessary to run Exterran
Partners’ business. The services provided by us may include, without limitation, operations, marketing,
maintenance and repait, periodic overhauls of compression equipment, inventory management, legal, account-
ing, treasury, insurance administration and claims processing, risk management, health, safety and environmen-
tal, information technology, human resources, credit, payroll, internal audit, taxes, facilities management,
investor relations, enterprise resource planning system, training, executive, sales, business development and
engineering.
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Costs incurred by us directly attributable to Exterran Partners are charged to Exterran Partners in full.
Costs incurred by us that are indirectly attributable to Exterran Partners and our other operations are allocated
among Exterran Partners and our other operations. The allocation methodologies vary based on the nature of
the charge and include, ameng other things, revenue, employee headcount and net assets. Included in Exterran
Partners’ selling, general and administrative expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $10.4 million
of indirect costs incurred by Exterran.

We have agreed that, for a period that will terminate on December 31, 2008, Exterran Partners’ obligation
to reimburse us for (1) any cost of sales that we incur in the operation of Exterran Partners’ business will be
capped at an amount equal‘to $18.00 per operating horsepower (after taking into account any such costs
Exterran Partners incurs and pays directly) on a quarterly basis; and (2) any selling, general and administrative
costs allocated to Exterran Partners will be capped at $4.75 million per quarter (after taking into account any
such costs Exterran Partners incurs and pays directly). These caps may be subject to increases in connection
with expansions of Exterran Partners’ operations through the acquisition or construction of new assets or
businesses, '

For the year ended December 31, 2007, Exterran Partners” cost of sales exceeded the cap by $8.6 million
and Exterran Partners’ selling, general and administrative expenses exceed the cap by $0.3 million. The excess
amount over the cap is being accounted for by us as a capital contribution 1o Exterran Partners.

GENERAL INFORMATION

2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Any proposals of stockholders that are intended for inclusion in our Proxy Statement for our 2009 annual
meeting of stockholders must be received by our Corporate Secretary no later than December 16, 2008. Notice
of a stockholder proposal submitted for consideration at the 2009 Annual Meeting but not for inclusion in our
Proxy Statement must be received no later than February 18, 2009. If a stockholder proposal is not received
by us by February 18, 2009, it will be considered untimely and our proxy for the 2009 annual meeting of
stockholders may confer discretionary authority to vote on such matter without any discussion of such matter
in the Proxy Statement for the meeting. Stockholder proposals must be in writing and delivered to our
principal executive office at 4444 Brittmoore Road, Houston, Texas 77041, Attention: Corporate Secretary.

Annual Reports '

Our 2007 Annual Report to Stockholders and Annual Report on Form 10-K is being mailed to our
stockholders with this Proxy Statement. We will provide to any stockholder or potential investor, without
charge, upon written or oral request, by first class mail or other equally prompt means within one
business day of receipt of such request, a copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007. Please direct any such requests to the attention of the Corporate Secretary, Exterran
Holdings, Inc., 4444 Brittmoore Road, Houston, Texas 77041 or by telephone at (281) 405-5175. Such
document is also available at the website of the SEC, which can be found at http:/www.sec.gov.
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Annual Meeting

The 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held May 6, 2008,
at 9:00 a.m, local time, at:

Wyndham Horel

12400 Greenspoim Drive

Houston, Texas 77060 USA

Stock Trading
New York Stock Exchange Symbol: EXH

Steckholder Information Website

Additional information on Exterran, including sccurities filings,
press releases, Coxle of Business Conduct, Corporate Governance
Principles, and Board Committee Charters, is available on our
website at www . exicrran.com.

Transfer Agent-Registrar

American Stock Transfer and Trust Company
39 Muaiden Lane

Plaza Level

New York, New York 10038 USA

(800) 937-5449 or (718) 921-8200

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Deliotte & Touche LLP
Houston, Texas USA

Carporate Office

Currently:

4444 Brittmoore Road
Houston, Texas 77041 USA
(713) 335-7000
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16666 Northchase Drive
Houston, Texas 77060 USA
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Stephen M. Pazuk

Stephen A. Snider

Daniel K. Schlanger
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10-K/investor Contact

Stockholders may obwain a copy, without charge, of Exterran’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, by visiting our website at www .exterran.com

or by requesting a copy (except for exhibits) in writing o
investorrelations@cexierran.com or Exterran’s Corporate Office,
Attention: Investor Relations.

The cenifications by our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
are filed as exhibits 0 our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We have also filed with the New York Stock Exchange the written
affirmation certifying that we are not aware of any violations by
Exterran of NYSE Corporate Governance Listing Standards.

Contact Board of Directors

To report complaints abowt Extersiin’s accounting, internal accounting
controls or auditing maners, or any other concerns, to the Audit
Commitiee or non-management members of the Board of Directors,
sendd 2 detailed note, with relevam documents, (o Exterran’s
Corporate Office, Attention: Gordon T. Hall, Chairman of the
Board, or leave a message on Exterran's compliance haotline at
1-800-281-5439 (11.5. and Canada) or 1-832-354-4859 (owside U.S,
and Canadi), request reverse charges.

Forward-Looking Statements

Cerntin statements contained in this Annual Report may constitute
forward-tooking statements within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, These statements involve
a number of risks, uncentainties and other factors that could cause
actual results 1o he materially different, as discussed more fully
elsewhere in this Annual Report and in our filings with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, including our 2007 Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed on Febroary 29, 2008. Except as required
by law, we expressly disclaim any intention or obligation to revise
or update any forward-looking statements whether as a result

of new information, future events or aotherwise,
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